
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2020\Plan Com Notice 060820.docx 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Plan Commission of the City of Stoughton, 


Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date 


and at the time and location given below. 


Meeting of: PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Monday, June 8, 2020 @ 6:00 – 8:00 p.m. 


 Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 


Location: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/449814309 


 


You can also dial in using your phone. 


(For supported devices, tap a one-touch number below to join 


instantly.) 


United States (Toll Free): 1 877 568 4106 


- One-touch: tel:+18775684106,,449814309# 


United States: +1 (312) 757-3129 


- One-touch: tel:+13127573129,,449814309# 


Access Code: 449-814-309 


 


New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 


https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/449814309 


If you wish to speak to items open for public input or have comments that you request to 


have read aloud at the meeting, please register at http://speak.cityofstoughton.com. 


 


If you intend to speak, please complete the form link on the agenda by 5:45 on the day of 


the meeting. Your comments will be forwarded to the “Organizer”.  The public can click on 


the link or call in and use the access code.  When connected the public will have to identify 


themselves in order for the “Organizer” to rename them on the “Attendee” screen.  If you 


plan to speak, please mute TV or stream volume (if online) and do not use speakerphone, as 


it creates feedback.  There may be a delay.  The Public Comment participant will be 


unmuted by the “Organizer” when it is their turn and have up to 3 minutes to speak.  After 


speaking, the “Organizer” will mute the Public Comment participant.  The participant can 


log out or hang up and stream at WSTO, or watch on Channel 981 on Charter/Spectrum. 
 


 


AGENDA 
1. Call to Order 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of May 11, 2020.   


3. Council Representative Report. 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


5. Request by Brad Fry, Kwik Trip for approval of a Conditional Use Permit and Site Plan to 


construct a new commercial building at 1700 E. Main Street. 


 CUP referred back from Council 


 Site Plan Review/Approval 


Virtual 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/449814309

tel:+18775684106,,449814309

tel:+13127573129,,449814309

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/449814309

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2020\Plan Com Notice 060820.docx 


 


6. Request by Kevin Urso to rezone the property at 117 Ashberry Lane from SR-4 Single 


Family Residential to TR-6 Two Family Residential. 


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


7. Request by Megan Bisbee, Viking Day Camp, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit 


(CUP) at 2125 McComb Road, Units 102-105 for a group daycare.   


 Public Hearing 


 Recommendation to Council 


8. Request by Jim Hess for approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow upper story 


dwellings as an accessory use and Site Plan for a new commercial building at 700 Nygaard 


Street. 


 Public Hearing. 


 Recommendation to Council. 


 Site Plan Approval. 


9. Request by Joe Langmeier, Zink Power for approval of a Site Plan to construct a new 


commercial building at 2443 County Highway A. 


10. Future agenda items. 


11. Adjournment. 


 


COMMISSIONERS:  
Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair  Tom Robinson    Tom Selsor 


Todd Barman, Vice-Chair  Tom Majewski   Phil Caravello 


Brett Schumacher 


 


CC: PACKETS:   
Rodney Scheel   Michael Stacey   Tom Robinson 


Mayor Tim Swadley   Todd Barman    Tom Selsor 


 


E-MAIL NOTICES: 
All Department Heads   Council members   Steve Kittelson 


City Attorney Matt Dregne  Stoughton Hub   Derek Westby           


Peter Sveum    Michael Stacey   Plan Commissioners 


Area Townships   smonette@stolib.org   Jim Hess 


Chamber of Commerce   mackenzie.krumme@wcinet.com Megan Bisbee 


stoughtonreporter@wcinet.com     Tom Matson       Joe Langmeier 


Brad Fry    Mark Rosenbaum   Scott Anderson 


Troy Mleziva    Scott Winter    Paul Mason 


stoughtoneditor@wcinet.com  Jerry Bourquin   Kevin Urso 


Brad Fry    Troy Mleziva    Tom Matson 


Mark Rosenbaum   Erik Olsen 


 
Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 
accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In addition, any person 
wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have access to the internet should 
also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at least 24 hours before the scheduled 
meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  



mailto:smonette@stolib.org

mailto:mackenzie.krumme@wcinet.com

mailto:stoughtonreporter@wcinet.com

mailto:stoughtoneditor@wcinet.com






T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  5-11-20.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, May 11, 2020 at 6:00 pm 
Virtual Meeting 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair; Phil Caravello; Todd Barman; Brett Schumacher; 
Tom Robinson; and Tom Selsor 
Members Absent: Tom Majewski 
Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development; Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator 
Press: None 
Guests: Tom Matson; Mark Rosenbaum; Troy Mleziva; Scott and Stacey Quam; Maggie Gasner; 
Steve and Brenda Reilly; David Sharpe; Jerry Judd; Debra Carter; Jerry Moy; Matt Griffey 
 
1. Call to order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
2. Elect Vice-Chair.  Schumacher nominated Barman as Vice-Chair.  There were no other 


nominations.  Nomination approved unanimously. 
 
3. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of April 13 and April 23, 2020. 


Motion by Schumacher to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 


4. Council Representative Report. 
Caravello stated the following were approved by the Common Council: Conditional Use for Zink 
Power; Final Plat for Kettle Park West and a CSM for 1008 Nygaard Street. 


 
5. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments as outlined in the packet of 
materials.   
 
Schumacher questioned the use of the NAFA property.  Scheel stated it is unclear but he believes 
there is a new tenant. 
 


6. Request by Mark Rosenbaum to re-approve a certified survey map (CSM) to combine the 
parcels at 1700 E. Main Street for future development. 
Scheel gave an overview of the CSM. 
 
Selsor questioned the release of restriction.  Scheel explained the history of the restriction and why 
the release is necessary. 
 
David Sharpe questioned the use of the access easement.  Scheel explained it is the only access for 
Lot 2 because the WDOT will not allow access to Hwy 51. 
 
Barman agrees it is not the best access route for Lot 2. 
 
The group discussed alternate options for access to Lot 2 and there really is no other option at this 
time. 
 
Maggie Gasner stated her access to the daycare is narrow and not suitable for truck traffic. 
 
Caravello stated he is concerned about safety. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/11/20 
Page 2 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  5-11-20.docx 


 


Tom Matson stated cross easements are common place in the real estate world when close to 
highways. 
 
Barman stated the difference here is the pedestrian use across the access easement creates the 
safety issue. 
 
Barman stated they are getting into the site plan discussion and should act on the CSM. 
 
Motion by Barman, seconded by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM 
at 1700 E. Main Street as presented.   Motion carried unanimously. 


 
7. Request by Kwik Trip for approval of a Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an 


in-vehicle sales and service use including Outdoor display incidental to an indoor sales use at 
1700 E. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the right-in, right-out at the County Highway N access that was added from 
discussions with the Dane County Highway Department. 


 
Robinson questioned the depth of the retention pond related to safety.  Scheel stated the design is 
similar to most other projects in the City. 
  
Mayor Swadley reopened the public hearing. 


 
 Debra Carter spoke with concern about the increased traffic.  Scheel stated the property has been 


commercially zoned from when it was platted and has always been anticipated to have some type 
of commercial use. 


 
 Jerry Moy spoke with concern about the access at Cedarbrook Lane.  Scheel stated the City and 


Developers have tried to work with the WDOT to gain access to Hwy 51 without success. 
 
 Tom Matson stated there is no reason for vehicles to migrate down Stoney Ridge Trail. 
 
 Jerry Judd stated he is concerned about the access easement from his property (Lot 2) to County 


Highway N and who is responsible for maintenance.  He went on to say no one has discussed what 
is going on with the development. 


 
 Troy Mleziva stated the property owner met with Jerry Judd.  Tom Matson stated he and Mark 


Rosenbaum met with Jerry Judd to discuss options for the access easement. 
 
 Troy Mleziva said Kwik Trip will agree to a condition of approval that Kwik Trip would maintain 


the access easement area. 
 
 Steve Reilly spoke with concern about the lack of safety controls and is concerned about noise 


from the car wash.  He also questioned onsite deliveries and unloading.  Troy Mleziva stated 
deliveries are made at the northeast corner of the building. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/11/20 
Page 3 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  5-11-20.docx 


 


 Steve Reilly questioned why another Kwik Trip.  Troy Mleziva stated they plan to replace the 
existing eastside store and sell that property. 


 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 
 Caravello questioned semi-truck maneuvering to the Fastenal site.  Mayor Swadley stated it should 


not be affected since the access easement is not changing. 
 
 Barman questioned whether the car wash is part of the conditional use.  Scheel stated it is a 


conditional use.  Scheel noted there is a car wash at the Kwik Trip on Roby Road with an exit door 
that faces a residential use and we have no known complaints. 


 
Motion by Barman, seconded by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the 
conditional use permit resolution.  Motion carried 5 – 0 (Caravello abstained). 
 
Barman stated Kwik Trip has several vendors who deliver throughout the day.  Barman questioned 
if the truck delivery location would be striped.  Troy Mleziva stated it would be. 


 
 Barman questioned if there was a way to have access from Hwy N when coming from the north 


and south.  Scheel stated discussions with the County have led to the proposed plan. 
 
 Schumacher stated we should consider having a solar pedestrian crossing at Cedarbrook and 


Stoney Ridge. 
 
 Barman stated there should be some pedestrian safety features added from the fuel pumps to the 


store; possibly a change of surface color, striping or visual cues. 
 
 Barman stated we need to make sure semi-trucks can access the Fastenal location from the Kwik 


Trip Cedarbrook access.  He would like the County to look into speed controls such as reduced 
speed and identifiers on County Highway N coming into Stoughton.   


 
 Schumacher supports the need for speed controls and the access to Fastenal. 
 
 Caravello questioned the legality of trucks using the Cedarbrook access for Fastenal.  Barman 


stated we could add language that allows truck traffic from the Cedarbrook access to Fastenal. 
 
 The group discussed the access at County Highway N. 
 
 Barman stated there are 3 things he would like to see from the developer: 


 A clear pedestrian path (distinguishing colored pavement, markings, etc.) from the fuel 
pumps across the access easement to the Kwik Trip store; 


 A response from Dane County Highway Department regarding traffic control on County 
Highway N coming up the hill into Stoughton; 


 A conversation and agreement between the developer and the adjacent Lot 2 owner 
regarding semi-truck access to and from Lot 2. 
 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/11/20 
Page 4 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  5-11-20.docx 


 


The Commissioners agreed with Barman. 
Motion by Barman, seconded by Schumacher to Table the site plan subject until next month to 
allow the developer to bring back a site plan with a clear pedestrian path (distinguishing colored 
pavement, markings, etc.) from the fuel pumps across the access easement to the Kwik Trip store, a 
response from Dane County Highway Department regarding traffic speed controls on County 
Highway N coming up the hill into Stoughton, and an agreement between the developer and the 
adjacent Lot 2 owner regarding semi-truck access to and from Lot 2 (the “Fastenal” property).  
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


8. Request by Edward and Patricia Bierer of Stellar Services for approval of a building addition 
at 301 Business Park Circle. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request.  The Business Park North Committee recommends 
approval. 
 
Schumacher questioned future growth and the utility easement across the property.  Scheel stated 
the utility easement is not a factor for this expansion and their plan is to continue to grow and they 
will have to deal with the utility easement as part of future expansions. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, seconded by Caravello to approved the site plan as presented.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


9. Future agenda items. 
Kwik Trip site plan 


 
10. Adjournment. 


Motion by Schumacher to adjourn at 7:36 pm, seconded by Caravello.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 


Respectfully Submitted,   
 
Michael P. Stacey 








S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2020\Status of development 060820.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 
 
 


 
Date:  June 1, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commission Members 
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Status of Current Developments  
 
Status of Development: 


• Grosso units in Business Park North – Landscaping left to do in spring. 
• Hilton Tru Hotel – Under Construction. 
• Multi-Family Project at 1601 Hoel Avenue – One building completed and the second 


building is nearing completion. 
• Former North American Fur Building (now for sale) – Landscaping left to do. 
• Stoughton Utilities substation – Paving left to do. 
• Exclusively Roses – Under construction 
• Stellar Services Addition – Under construction 
• Madison Powder Coating Addition – Has yet to start construction 
• Grosso Commercial Buildings – 441 Glacier Moraine Drive – Under construction 


 
 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2020 
 
 


COMMERCIAL 
Building Activity 
Type 


# of Permits 
May 2020 


May $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 
Values 


Addition 1 $3,435 1 $3,435 $900,000 
New  
Construction - 
Building 


2 $19,769 5 $27,323 $5,763,744 


New 
Construction - 
Other 


2 $1,057 11 $4,378 $68,000 


Remodel/Repair 7 $3,260 34 $7,780 $953,277 
Zoning 4 $960 36 $20,129 $263,976 
Grand Total 16 $28,481 87 $63,045 $7,948,997 


 
 


RESIDENTIAL 
Building Activity 
Type 


# of Permits 
May 2020 


May $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 
Values 


Addition 6 $1,000 12 $1,972 $111,460 
New 
 Construction -  
Dwelling 


2 $3,207 5 $7,917 $1,537,000 


New 
Construction - 
Other  


0 $0 2 $549 $58,800 


Remodel/Repair 36 $3,271 138 $12,756 $1,376,249 
Zoning 19 $2,070 53 $10,505 $179,222 
Grand Total 63 $9,548 210 $33,699 $3,262,731 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 City of Stoughton 
 


 


For more information, please contact: Steve Kittelson – Building Inspector 
(608) 873-7626 or skittelson@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 







COMMERCIAL 
Building Activity 
Type 


YTD $ Fees 
2020 


YTD Construction 
Values 2020 


YTD $ Fees  
2019 


YTD Construction 
Values 2019 


Addition $3,435 $900,000 $1,743 $1,366,013 
New Construction - 
Building 


$27,323 $5,763,744 $1,010 $43,000 


New Construction - 
Other 


$4,378 $68,000 $3,936 $0 


Remodel/Repair $7,780 $953,277 $10,848 $1,384,242 
Zoning $20,129 $263,976 $23,299 $27,895 
Grand Total $63,045 $7,948,997 $40,836 $2,821,150 


RESIDENTIAL 
Building Activity 
Type 


YTD $ Fees 
2020 


YTD Construction 
Values 2020 


YTD $ Fees  
2019 


YTD Construction 
Values 2019 


Addition $1,972 $111,460 $2,367 $200,279 
New Construction -  
Dwelling 


$7,917 $1,537,000 $18,045 $2,665,000 


New Construction - 
Other  


$549 $58,800 $0 $0 


Remodel/Repair $12,756 $1,376,249 $12,286 $1,234,509 
Zoning $10,505 $179,222 $4,070 $180,988 
Grand Total $33,699 $3,262,731 $36,768 $4,280,776 


 







City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2020 
 


 
 


 
 


 City of Stoughton              S:\Planning\Desi\Monthly Permit Report\May 2020.docx                                                            


1


6


1


4


0


0


16


54


9


14


1


6


2


2


2


0


7


36


4


19


0 10 20 30 40 50 60


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwelling


Commercial New Construction- Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits Issued


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Monthly Permit Data


May-20


May-19


1


14


1


11


4


0


40


147


30


38


1


12


5


5


11


2


34


138


36


53


0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwellings


Commercial New Construction - Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits 


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Yearly Permits Issued to Date


YEAR 2020


YEAR 2019








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\060820\Plan Info\Kwik Trip CUP - Site Plan Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  June 3, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the June 8, 2020 Plan Commission and June 23, 2020 Common 


Council Meetings 
 
Request by Brad Fry of Kwik Trip for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) and Site 
Plan for an in-vehicle sales and service use including Outdoor display incidental to an indoor 
sales use at 1700 E. Main Street. 
The Common Council sent the conditional use permit request back to the Plan Commission for 
further review related to neighborhood safety concerns.  See provided Council minutes.  Due to 
customer demand on the eastside of Stoughton, Kwik Trip is proposing to relocate their east side 
business to this property.  Their intent is to demo the existing eastside gas storage tanks and market 
that building/property.   The applicant and City staff have been in discussions with Dane County 
Highway Department staff about access controls at the County Highway N access.  A right-turn out 
and right-turn in only at County Highway N has been recommended and shown on the site plan.  
Dane County staff stated they will do a speed study to see if a reduction in speed signage is 
necessary on CTH N.  The current speed on CTH N is 55 mph which drops to 35 mph near the 
proposed site.  The applicant and current property owner have been in discussions with the adjacent 
owner to the east and have agreed to make some modifications to the site to address onsite 
pedestrian and customer/truck access concerns.  Another access has been added south of the Kwik 
Trip building.  A colored pavement pedestrian path has been proposed from the gas pumps to the 
store.  A recommendation for the conditional use permit could be sent back to the Common Council 
if all safety concerns are deemed to be addressed.   We don’t believe the Kwik Trip use will be a 
destination use, rather we believe the existing traffic will remain constant.  Making the site access 
safe seems to be the priority here and the applicant has made modifications to address some of those 
concerns.  There is an existing pedestrian sidewalk system in place including a signal crossing at 
Hwy 51 and CTH N.  We don’t want to encourage pedestrians to cross Hwy N anywhere else 
except at the Hwy 51 intersection.  Installing a solar radar speed sign may help reduce speed on 
CTH N.  Adding a “No Exit” sign on Stoney Ridge Trail may alleviate some neighborhood 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\060820\Plan Info\Kwik Trip CUP - Site Plan Memo.doc 


concerns about the potential for unnecessary traffic.  Adding some type of marked pedestrian 
crossing at Cedarbrook and Stoney Ridge would make it safer for pedestrians to cross Cedarbrook.  
The site plan review/approval is at the discretion of the Plan Commission.  A recommendation to 
Council is necessary for the conditional use permit. 
 
  
 
   
 
 


 







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Kwik Trip for an in-vehicle sales and service use 
including outdoor display incidental to an indoor sales use at 1700 E. Main Street, Stoughton, 
Wisconsin.  
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-  -2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, on March 9 and May 11, 2020 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held public hearings 
and further reviewed the proposed conditional use permit application by Kwik Trip on June 8, 2020 for an 
in-vehicle sales and service use including outdoor display incidental to an indoor sales use at 1700 E. Main 
Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 
 
WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested to operate a gas station, car wash and convenience 
store; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


• The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;  


• The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development;   


• The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


• The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property; 


• The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 
will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 
now therefore 
 
 







 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request by 
Kwik Trip for an in-vehicle sales and service use including outdoor display incidental to an indoor sales use 
at 1700 E. Main Street is hereby approved subject to: 


• Staff review dated June 4, 2020 
 
 


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
  
 
  
   
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\1700 E. Main Street CUP.doc 







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving a building site plan for Kwik Trip at 1700 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 6 - 2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
June 8, 2020 


RECITALS 
 


A. Kwik Trip (the “Applicant”) is seeking approval for building site plan approval at 1700 E. Main 
Street in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Planned Business which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   
 


C. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed site plan at their regular May 11 
and June 8, 2020 meetings and found that the plan meets the intent of the zoning ordinance and 
Comprehensive Plan. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the site plan at 1700 E. Main Street, 
Stoughton, WI, with the following conditions: 
 


• Staff review letter dated June 4, 2020; 
• Plan Commission approval of wider access at Cedarbrook Lane, approximately 35 feet in width at 


the property line and 40 feet in width at the curb; 
• Common Council approval of the conditional use permit; 
• Approval by Dane County Highway Department for access controls at the County Highway N access 


point including the proposed right-in/right-out access and proposed widths. 
 
   
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Planning Commission Chair 
 


 
    
  
   
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2020\1700 E. Main Street Site Plan - PC Resolution 6-20.doc 











































Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community, Parcels


1700 E. Main Street


Parcels


March 4, 2020 0 230 460115 Feet


¯


1700



























NA







NA


1700 E. Main Street


Dane County Mask
Dane County Mask
Parcels


June 5, 2020


 
 


0 250 500125 Feet


¯















S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


T 1.0


T
I
T


L
E


 
S


H
E


E
T


DANE COUNTY


KWIK TRIP CONVENIENCE STORE # 738


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 5N, RANGE 11E


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


TITLE SHEET  


SHEET TITLESHEET #


REGIONAL


SITE LOCATION MAP


CITY OF STOUGHTON,


DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


T 1.0


DM 1.0


SP 1.0


SP 1.2


CAUTION:


CERTAIN UNDERGROUND UTILITIES HAVE BEEN LOCATED ON THE PLANS. THESE LOCATIONS SHALL NOT BE


TAKEN AS CONCLUSIVE. VERIFICATION TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE CONTRACTOR OF ALL UNDERGROUND


UTILITES, WHETHER SHOWN ON THE DRAWING OR NOT, SHALL BE ASSUMED AS A CONDITION OF THE


CONTRACT. FOR EXACT LOCATION CONTACT DIGGERS HOTLINE 1-800-242-8511


EXISTING SITE & DEMOLITION PLAN


SP 1.1 SITE PLAN - LAYOUT


SITE TURNING MOVEMENT


SITE PLAN - KEYNOTE


GRADING PLAN - SPOT DETAILSP 2.1


SP 2.0 SITE GRADING


BENCHMARKS


V
E


T
R


A
N


S
 
R


D
.


ACCESSIBLE PLANSP 2.3


STORM SEWER PLANSP 3.0


UTILITY PLANSP 4.0


MISC. DETAILSSP 5.0


MISC. DETAILSSP 5.1


EROSION CONTROL PLANSWP 1.0


EROSION CONTROL NOTESSWP 1.1


EROSION CONTROL DETAILSSWP 1.2


EROSION CONTROL DETAILSSWP 1.3


BENCHMARK # 1


TOP NUT ON HYDRANT NEAR THE NORTH EAST CORNER OF


CEDARBROOK LANE AND STONEY RIDGE TRAIL


ELEV. = 903.70


R


A


C


E


 


T


R


A


C


K


P


A


R


K


HWY 51 / E. MAIN ST.


STORM WATER BASIN PLANSP 3.1


LANDSCAPING NOTESL 1.0
MULCH, SEEDING AND TURF PLANL 2.0


PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLANE1.0


GRADING PLAN - SPOT DETAILSP 2.2


C
T


H
 
N


VERNON ST.


SITE


KEGONSA


ELEM.


CEDARBROOK LANE


A
S


H
B


E
R


R
Y


 
C


T
.


R
A


C
E


 
T


R
A


C
K


 
R


D
.


PLANTING PLANL 2.1 - L 2.2
LANDSCAPING DETAILSL 3.0







900


900


9


0


0


9
0
0


9
0
0


9
0
0


899


8
9
9


901


901


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


902


902


9


0


2


9
0
2


9
0
2


9
0
2


9
0
2


902


9
0
2


9


0


0


8


9


9


8


9


9


9


0


1


9
0
2


9


0


3


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


DM 1.0


E
X


I
S


T
I
N


G
 
S


I
T


E
 
P


L
A


N


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL SITE CONDITIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK ON SITE


CONTRACTOR SHALL CALL FOR UTILITY LOCATIONS PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK ON SITE


EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS BASED ON SURVEY BY:


SNYDER & ASSOCIATES


SURVEYOR: ERIC LINDAAS


PHONE: 608-838-0444


DATED: JANUARY 2020


CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE ALL NECESSARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES PER TOWN, CITY, COUNTY AND STATE


SPECIFICATIONS.  ALL MEASURES ARE TO BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK ON SITE.  ALL MEASURES SHALL


BE MAINTAINED UNTIL SITE SOILS ARE STABILIZED. SEE SHEET SWP1- SWP4 FOR MORE INFORMATION


CONTRACTOR TO OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS FOR DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION PRIOR TO COMMENCING


ANY WORK ON SITE.


ALL DAMAGED ASPHALT ON ADJOINING STREETS / DRIVEWAYS SHALL BE PATCHED TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE


OWNING AGENCY .


SITE PLAN KEYNOTES


PLAN NOTES:


1 EXISTING GRAVEL, CONCRETE AND ASPHALT TO BE REMOVED


EXISTING MAILBOX BASE TO BE REMOVED


2


3


1


EXISTING VEGETATION TO INCLUDE TREES AND SHRUBS TO BE REMOVED


3


2


1


1


1


SAW CUT EXISTING PAVEMENT FOR A CLEAN MATCH LINE
4


4


REMOVE EXISTING RCP CULVERT  - REPAIR ANY DAMAGE DONE TO


RETAINING WALL IN THE PROCESS


5


5


REMOVE EXISTING SIDEWALK
6


REMOVE EXISTING CURB RETURNS7


6


6


7


7


RELOCATE EXISTING SIGNS FOR NEW SIDEWALK INSTALLATION
8


8


EXISTING CURB TO BE SAWCUT FOR NEW DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE
9


9


9


S
T


A
T


E
 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
5
1


COUNTY  HIGHWAY  N


C
E


D
A


R
B


R
O


O
K


 
 
L
A


N
E







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


U
N


L


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


N
O


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


U
N


L


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


N
O


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SP 1.0


S
I
T


E
 
T


U
R


N
I
N


G
 
M


O
V


E
M


E
N


T


TRUCK ROUTE FOR FUEL DELIVERYTRUCK ROUTE FOR STORE DELIVERY


SCALE: 1" = 30'


STATE  HIGHWAY  51


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


STATE  HIGHWAY  51


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


CEDARBROOK  LANE


CEDARBROOK  LANE


SCALE: 1" = 30'







U
N


L


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


35.0'


25.0'


25.0'


25.0'


30.0'


20.0'


18.4
'


3
7
.
5
'


10.0'


2.4'


1.4'


10.0'


5.0'


8.0'
11.0'


10.2'


10.4'


R1.0'


1.4'


R39.0'


R39.0'


7.3
'


R5.0'


R15.0'


R3.0'


R3.0'


R3.0'


R5.0'


R5.0'


R3.0'


R5.0'


R3.0'


R20.0'


R3.0'


35.0'


121.5'


46.0'


1
4
.
0
'


4
1
.
5
'


4
0
.
0
'


120.0'


18.3'


7
2
.
0
'


R1.0'


9
.
5
'


20.0'


25.0'


10.0'


19.3'


17.0'


1
3
3
.
8
'


1
0
.
3
'


9
.
5
'


20.0'


9
.
7
'


15.0
'


.7'


20.6'


17.0'


105.5'


19.4'


20.5'


R8.0'


42.0
'


23.0'


8
7
.
0
'


10.4'


2
0
.
0
'


8.0'


12.5
'


1
5
4
.
7
'


37.4'


1
5
.
0
'


2.5'


17.0'


30.0'


6
8
.
0
'


2
3
.
0
'


230.0'


1
3
5
.
9
'


R10.0'


R10.0'


11.8'


10.8'


2
4


.
0


'


5
9
.
4
'


7
3
.
6
'


8
9
.
4
'


29.3'


R30.0'


R2.0'


R5.0'


5.0'


1
3


.
5


'


3.9'


4
3
.
5
'


4
0
'


R2.0'


R25.0'


R5.0'


16.1
'


16.5
'


1
4
.
0
'


1
4
.
0
'


2
5
.
2
'


R2.0'


1
2
.
2
'


R25.0'


6.4
'


3
0
.
0
'


A
C


C
E


S
S


E
A


S
E


M
E


N
T


R10.0'


R30.0'


R12.0'


R12.0'


5.0'


2
4
.
0
'


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SP 1.1


S
I
T


E
 
P


L
A


N
 
-
 
L


A
Y


O
U


T


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


ADA PARKING                       2 STALLS WITH LOADING ZONE


STANDARD PARKING:         37 STALLS


CONVENIENCE STORE   20'-0" 


CANOPY             15'-6" 


UTILITY COMPANY INFORMATION


ELECTRICITY -  STOUGHTON UTILITIES - 608-873-3379


NATURAL GAS - ALLIANT ENERGY - 800-255-4268


PHONE - VARIES


CABLE -  SPECTRUM - 855-829-0255


SANITARY SEWER -  STOUGHTON UTILITIES - 608-873-3379


WATER SERVICE -  STOUGHTON UTILITIES - 608-873-3379


NOTE:


CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING UTILITIES ON AND


ADJACENT TO THE SITE PRIOR TO THE START OF THE PROJECT.


RADII ARE FROM FACE OF CURB


DIMENSIONS ARE FROM FACE OF CURB


FIRE LANE:


HIGHWAY 51 OR CEDARBROOK LANE WILL ACT AS THE FIRE LANE


ACCESS TO THE BUILDING.


TOTAL PARKING SPACES NEEDED:


1 SPACE PER 300 S.F. GROSS FLOOR AREA (9,200 / 300 = 30.66)


31 SPACES NEEDED


37 STALLS PROVIDED


TOTAL ADA PARKING STALLS NEEDED:


26 - 50 PARKING SPACES REQUIRES 2 ADA STALLS (1 VAN ACCESSIBLE)


2 SPACES NEEDED


2 SPACES PROVIDED (1 VAN ACCESSIBLE)


SITE  INFORMATION


FRONT: 20'


REAR:  20'


SIDE:  10'


TRUCK PARKING                  1 UNLOADING STALL


ZONING DISTRICT: PB - PLANNED BUSINESS


TOTAL SITE AREA: 116,121 SF / 2.67  ACRES


TOTAL DISTURBED AREA: 114,755 SF /  2.63 ACRES


EXISTING IMPERVIOUS: 5,875 SF


TOTAL IMPERVIOUS: 72,415 SF (62.4% LOT COVERAGE)


PAVED AREA: 55,690 SF


BUILDING AREA: 9,210 SF


CANOPY AREA: 4,800 SF


SIDEWALK & PICNIC AREA: 2,715 SF


PRO. PERVIOUS: 43,706 SF (37.6% LOT COVERAGE)


PARKING STALL COUNT


BUILDING HEIGHTS - 45' MAXIMUM


BUILDING SETBACKS / OFFSETS


CEDARBROOK   LANE


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


FLOOD NOTE:


THE FLOODPLAIN DESIGNATION FOR THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IN IN ZONE X,


AREAS IN MINIMAL FLOOD HAZARD, AS DESIGNATED IN THE FLOOD


INSURANCE MAP FOR DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. COMMUNITY PANEL


NUMBER 55025C0637H, EFFECTIVE DATE 9/17/2014.


STATE  HIGHWAY  51


W
IS


DOT S
ETBACK


30' A
CCESS E


ASEMENT


 FOR ADDITIONAL


INFORMATION ON TRAFFIC


ISLAND, SEE DETAIL ON


SHEET SP 2.1







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


U
N


L


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SP 1.2


S
I
T


E
 
P


L
A


N
 
-
 
K


E
Y


N
O


T
E


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


SITE PLAN KEYNOTES


1. LANDSCAPE AREA. SEE SHEET L1.


       ALL GREEN SPACE THAT DOES DONT RECEIVE EROSION MAT SHALL HAVE


       SOD APPLIED. - 26,829 SQ.FT.


2. OFF-STREET PARKING STALLS


STRIPING - 4" WIDE STALL LINES, USE HIGH VISIBILITY YELLOW PAINT.


SPACES PROVIDED


       (6) 10'-0"x 20'-0" GENERAL PARKING


       (31) 9'-6"X 20'-0" GENERAL PARKING


       (2) 8'-0"x 20'-0" ACCESSIBLE PARKING WITH


       (1)  11'-0"x 20'-0" LOADING ZONE


       (1)  23'-0"x 87'-0" LOADING ZONE


3. A.D.A. ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE WITH LOADING ZONE.  PROVIDE APPROPRIATE STRIPING AND


PAVEMENT MARKINGS.


4. 4" WIDE, HIGH VISIBILITY, PAVEMENT STRIPING, LANE MARKINGS AND TEXT.


       COLOR: YELLOW


       PAINT SHALL BE SHERWIN WILLIAMS SETFAST PREMIUM ALKYD ZONE MARKING PAINT


5. 6" DEPTH (MIN.) CONCRETE SLAB-ON-GRADE WITH #3 REBAR 3' O.C.


CONCRETE SEALER: TK-26UV - 51,240 SQ.FT.


6. 8" DEPTH (MIN.) CONCRETE SLAB-ON-GRADE WITH #4 REBAR 3' O.C. 


CONCRETE SEALER: TK-26UV - 4,450 SQ.FT.


7. CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER PER DETAIL ON SHEET SP 5.0.


8. BRICK SCREENING WALLS, SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR DETAILS.


9. 6" INTEGRAL CONCRETE CURB/ WALK. SEE DETAILS.


       CONCRETE SEALER: TK-26UV - 1,626 SQ.FT.


10. 30" HT., 6" DIA. CONCRETE FILLED PIPE BOLLARD SEE DETAIL ON SHEET SP 5.0.


11. 5 STALL BIKE RACK WITH 5' CLEARANCE. BIKE RACKS WILL BE SARIS CITY RACK SKU2409 5-BIKE


FREE STANDING MODEL IN COLOR RED.


12. 40'-0"x 120'-0" DISPENSER ISLAND CANOPY.  VERIFY SIZE, PLACEMENT, COLUMN AND FOOTING


SIZE WITH CANOPY AND STRUCTURAL PLANS.  CANOPY GRAPHICS PER OWNER.


13. 3'-6"x 6'-0" CONCRETE ISLANDS W/ 6" EXPOSURE WITH FUEL DISPENSERS.  DISPENSER PER


OWNER.


14. 36" HT BOLLARD, SEE DETAIL ON SHEET SP 5.0.


15. UNDERGROUND FUEL STORAGE TANKS PER OWNER.  PROVIDE PIPING AND VENTING PER


OWNER'S SPECIFICATIONS.


16. EXTERNAL TRASH ENCLOSURE TO MATCH BUILDING. SEE ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS.


17. KWIK TRIP TRADEMARK SIGN (VERIFY LOCATION AND STYLE WITH SIGN PERMIT).


18. 'FREE AIR' COMPRESSOR.  PROVIDE SIGNAGE PER OWNER.


19. HC PVC BOLLARD SLEEVE PER OWNER. VAN ACCESS SIGNAGE AT 48" HT.  STALL PARKING AT


       60" HT, SEE DETAIL ON SHEET SP 5.0.


20. PICNIC TABLE PER OWNER. PROVIDE 1 HC. ACCESS TABLE SPACE. PROVIDE TRASH CONTAINER


PER OWNER.


21.   36"x48" ICE OUTDOOR STORAGE (ITEMS SOLD EXCLUSIVELY IN THE STORE).


22.   26"x84" LP OUTDOOR STORAGE (ITEMS SOLD EXCLUSIVELY IN THE STORE).


23.   4" CONCRETE PATIO AREA - 1,090 SQ.FT.


24.   REJECT CURB & GUTTER, SEE DETAIL 7 ON SHEET SP 5.0.


25.  CONCRETE LIGHT POLE BASE, SEE SHEET E1 FOR DETAIL.


26.  OUTDOOR MERCHANDISE AREA, TYPICALLY RESERVED FOR BAGS OF SALT.


27.  ALL DAMAGED ASPHALT SHALL BE PATCHED TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON.


28.  VARIABLE HEIGHT RETAINING WALL, STYLE SELECTED BY OWNER


29.  PROPOSED 5' WIDE 4" THICK CONCRETE SIDEWALK


30.   PAINTED PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALK


27


1


2


4


6


5


26


8


18


9


10


12


13


14


14


16


19


20


22


11


CEDARBROOK   LANE


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


STATE  HIGHWAY  51


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


1


2


2


2


2


2


2


2


2


4


4


4


4


4


5


5


5


5


5


5


5


5


5


6


6


6


7


7


7


7


7


7


7


7


7


7


7


7


8


9


9


9


23


23


10


12


13


15


17


21


26


27


25


25


25


25


25


25


25


25


25


25


28


28


28


29


24


24


24


24


17


24


 FOR ADDITIONAL


INFORMATION ON TRAFFIC


ISLAND, SEE SHEETS


SP 1.1 & SP 2.1


3
0
.
0
'


A
C


C
E


S
S


E
A


S
E


M
E


N
T


30


33


30


30







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


U
N


L


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


IMPERVIOUS


9


0


2


902


900


898


896


894


892


892


894


896


898


900


902


9
0
1


9
0
2


9


0


2


9
0
3


903


904


9


0


4


9


0


4


9


0


4


9
0
0


900


8


9


9


899


9


0


1


9
0
1


901


9
0
1


9
0
1


9


0


2


902


904


9


0


29


0


3


9
0
3


9
0
2


9


0


2


902


9


0


1


9


0


3


9


0


2


9
0
2


9


0


2


9
0
1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9
0
0


8
9
9


8
9
9


9
0
0


897


897


8


9


7


8
9
7


9
0
2


9
0
3


9


0


2


9
0
3


9


0


4


9


0


2


9


0


3


9


0


2


9
0
1


9
0
1


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


SP 2.0


S
I
T


E
 
G


R
A


D
I
N


G


NOTES:


-ALL SILT FENCE MUST BE INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND INSPECTED BY THE CITY PRIOR


TO ANY SITE WORK.


-SITE EROSION CONTROL MEASURES MUST BE IN PLACE AT ALL TIMES.  SHOULD DEVICES BE


REMOVED FOR WORK ACCESS, THEY SHALL BE REINSTALLED AT THE END OF EACH WORK DAY


UNTIL PAVEMENTS HAVE BEEN INSTALLED AND ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS HAVE BEEN MULCHED AND


SODDED.  SEEDED AREAS MUST EXHIBIT MINIMUM OF 70% SOIL COVERAGE.


-REFER TO THE EROSION CONTROL PLAN NOTES AND DETAIL SHEETS FOR MORE INFORMATION.


CONTACT BRAD FRY


KWIK TRIP, INC


P0 BOX 2107


LACROSSE, WI 54602


608-793-6414


CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE


*INSTALL EROSION/SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES


*INSTALL STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SEDIMENT BASINS


*INSTALL STORM SEWER


*INSTALL STRUCTURES


*INSTALL PAVEMENTS


*INSTALL LAWN/ LANDSCAPE


*FLUSH STORM SEWER


*REMOVE EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ONLY AFTER ALL


PAVEMENTS HAVE BEEN INSTALLED AND ALL SOILS HAVE BEEN


STABILIZED


NOTES:


ENGINEER TO OBTAIN RIGHT-OF-WAY EXCAVATION PERMIT PRIOR TO BEGINNING SITE WORK.


CONSTRUCTION FENCING TO BE INSTALLED AROUND ENTIRE CONSTRUCTION SITE. COORDINATE


WITH OWNER FOR FENCING AND GATE LOCATION AND APPROPRIATE SIGNAGE LOCATION.


PLAN PREPARED FROM ALTA LAND TITLE SURVEY BY:


ERIC LINDAAS, PLS


SNYDER & ASSOCIATES


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WI 53718


608-838-0444 EXT. 236


CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL UTILITIES WHICH MAY AFFECT THIS WORK NOTIFY THE OWNER


OF ANY POTENTIAL CONFLICTS.


CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO START OF


CONSTRUCTION. VERIFY CRITICAL ELEVATIONS TO ENSURE CONFORMANCE WITH GRADING PLAN,


PARTICULARLY WITH WALK, AND/OR PAVEMENTS TO REMAIN. MEET EXISTING GRADES ALONG


STREETS, PROPERTY LINES, AND DRIVEWAY ENTRANCES. RESTORE ALL EXISTING PAVEMENTS


THAT REMAIN TO THEIR ORIGINAL, IF NOT BETTER CONDITION. NOTIFY OWNER OF ANY CONFLICTS.


AREAS NOT PAVED AND TO BE LANDSCAPED SHALL RECEIVE MINIMUM OF 4" DEPTH COMPACTED


TOPSOIL.


CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE GRADING AND INSTALLATION OF DRIVES IN R.O.W. WITH


APPROPRIATE GOVERNMENT AGENCIES. OBTAIN APPROPRIATE PERMITS FOR GRADING AND


DRAINAGE IN ALL R.O.W.


REFER TO OWNERS SPECIFICATIONS FOR CURB, APPROACH, AND CONCRETE PROFILES AS WELL


AS ADDITIONAL SITE STANDARDS RELATED TO THIS PROJECT.


EXCAVATOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL EROSION CONTROL INSPECTIONS


NOTE FOR GRADING CONTRACTOR:


ANY PROPERTY IRONS THAT ARE DISTURBED IN THE GRADING PROCESS SHALL BE RESET BY A


LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


FFE: 905.00'


CEDARBROOK   LANE


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N


POND N
ORMAL P


OOL E
LEV: 8


97.00







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
 
T


 
O


 
P


901.41


901.36


L.P. 901.10


903.12


902.94


902.58


902.22


901.86


901.50


901.44


901.34


901.20 L.P.


901.75


901.87


901.98


902.30


901.51


902.01


902.02


901.54


902.68


903.13


903.60


903.94 H.P.


903.89


903.84


903.81


903.70


902.45


902.86


903.67 H.P.


903.94


903.39


903.15


903.11


903.07


902.87 LP


903.03


903.19


903.31 H.P.


903.86


903.98


904.10


904.22


904.34


904.40


904.25 H.P.


902.98


902.55


902.84


903.82 H.P.


903.37


902.72


902.89


904.86


904.86


904.88


904.90


904.60


904.60904.60


904.60


904.90


904.90


904.90


904.86


904.73


904.67


904.68


904.66


904.54


904.44


904.36


904.31 L.P.


904.30


904.90


904.90


904.90


904.90


904.17


904.09


904.03


904.03


904.06


904.12


904.33


904.33


904.22


904.13


904.15


904.54


904.90


904.31


904.46


904.41


904.87


904.79


903.36


903.25


903.22 T/I


903.42


903.59


903.92 T/I


902.70


902.88


903.20 T/I


903.40


903.58


903.90 T/I


902.69


902.86


903.19 T/I


903.39


903.56


903.89 T/I


902.67


902.85


903.17 T/I


903.37


903.55


903.87 T/I


902.66


902.83


903.16 T/I


903.36


903.53


903.86 T/I


902.45


902.53


902.53


902.45


902.18


902.12


902.27


902.53


902.52


902.52


9


0


2


902


900


898


896


894


892


892


894


896


898


900


902


9
0
1


9
0
2


9


0


2


9
0
3


903


904


9


0


4


9


0


4


9


0


4


9
0
3


9
0
2


9


0


2


902


902.28


902.29


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


901.68 BW


901.37 BW


901.60 BW


901.35 BW


900.74 BW


900.11 BW


903.19 TW


903.20 TW


903.23 TW


904.24 TW


904.24 TW


904.24 TW


901.79


901.50


901.39 L.P.


900.19 BW


903.12 TW


900.54 BW


903.62 TW


900.58 BW


903.63 TW


900.89 BW


903.64 TW


901.70


901.52


901.16


900.89


902.25 H.P.


904.02


897


897


8


9


7


8
9
7


9
0
2


9
0
3


9


0


2


9
0
3


904.44


9


0


4


9


0


2


9


0


3


TOP O
F T


ANKS


ELEV. =
 898.23


903.33


904.13


903.51


903.51


903.55


903.84 H.P.


903.84 H.P.


S
 
T


 
O


 
P


9


0


4


903.36 H.P.


903.30


903.33


903.08


902.62


902.53


901.99


901.73


901.56


901.65


901.80


901.95


902.50


902.59


903.04


901.61


9
0
2


9
0
3


9


0


2


9
0
3


901.40


902.60


902.69


902.95


901.90


902.24


902.33


902.58


902.24


902.13


902.05


902.42


902.86


902.25
902.39


902.72


902.67


902.84


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SP 2.1


G
R


A
D


I
N


G
 
-
 
S


P
O


T
 
E


L
E


V
A


T
I
O


N
 
P


L
A


N


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


NOTES:


H.P. = HIGH POINT FOR DRAINAGE


L.P. = LOW POINT FOR DRAINAGE


T/I = TOP OF ISLAND ELEVATION


TW = TOP OF WALL


BW = BOTTOM OF WALL


BC = BACK OF CURB


ALL SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE AT THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT (FLAG


OF CURB)


HATCHED CURB AND GUTTER DEPICTS REJECT CURB


LOCATIONS


ALL LANDSCAPE AND SOD AREAS SHALL HAVE POSITIVE


DRAINAGE


CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE CONTROL JOINTS,


CONSTRUCTION JOINTS AND EXPANSION JOINTS IN SLAB ON


GRADE, SIDEWALKS AND DRIVEWAYS.


CONTROL JOINT MAXIMUM DISTANCE: SIDEWALKS - 8' O.C., ALL


OTHERS 10' O.C.


SAW CUT CONTROL JOINTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 


1


4


 OF THE


CONCRETE THICKNESS.


EXPANSION JOINT MINIMUM DISTANCE: SIDEWALKS - 24' O.C., ALL


OTHERS 40' O.C.


DOWEL ALL EXPANSION JOINTS - 24" O.C.


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


FFE: 905.00


CEDARBROOK   LANE


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N


1" = 10'


DRIVEWAY ISLAND - RIGHT IN / RIGHT OUT


SP2.1


1


RIGHT TURN


ONLY SIGN


STOP SIGN


TRUNCATED


DOMES, TYP.


RAISED CONCRETE


FILLED TRAFFIC


ISLAND


CROSSWALK


MARKING PER CITY


OF STOUGHTON


 FOR ADDITIONAL


INFORMATION ON


TRAFFIC ISLAND,


SEE SHEET SP 1.1


& DETAIL 1 ON


THIS SHEET







UNL


2
0
K


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
 
T


 
O


 
P


903.12


902.94


902.58


901.75


901.87


901.98


902.30


901.54


902.68


903.13


903.60


903.94 H.P.


903.89


903.84


903.81


903.70


902.45


902.86


903.67 H.P.


903.94


903.39


903.15


903.11


903.07


902.87 LP


903.03


903.19


903.31 H.P.


903.19


903.02 LP


903.19


903.25


903.23


903.38


903.49 H.P.


903.30


903.11


902.93 LP


903.00


903.12


903.74


903.86


903.98


904.10


904.22


904.34


904.40


904.25 H.P.


902.98


902.55


902.84


903.82 H.P.


903.37


902.72


902.89


904.86


904.86


904.88


904.90


904.60


904.60904.60


904.60


904.90


904.90


904.90


904.86


904.73


904.67


904.68


904.66


904.54


904.44


904.36


904.31 L.P.


904.30


904.90


904.90


904.90


904.90


904.17


904.09


904.03


904.03


904.06


904.12


904.33


904.33


903.99


903.98


903.96


903.95


903.91


903.90


903.75


903.64


903.81


903.99


904.04


904.04


904.08


904.12


904.33


904.33


904.22


904.13


904.15


904.54


904.90


904.31


904.46


904.41


904.87


904.79


903.36


903.25


903.22 T/I


903.42


903.59


903.92 T/I


902.70


902.88


903.20 T/I


903.40


903.58


903.90 T/I


902.69


902.86


903.19 T/I


903.39


903.56


903.89 T/I


902.67


902.85


903.17 T/I


903.37


903.55


903.87 T/I


902.66


902.83


903.16 T/I


903.36


903.53


903.86 T/I


902.18


902.12


902.27


902.53


902.52


902.52


9


0


2


903


904


9


0


4


9


0


4


9


0


4


9
0
0


900


8


9


9


899


9


0


1


9
0
1


901


9
0
1


9
0
1


9


0


2


902


904


9


0


2


9


0


3


9
0
3


9
0
2


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9
0
0


8
9
9


8
9
9


9
0
0


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


905.00


903.51


903.53


903.27


903.62


901.35 BW


900.74 BW


900.11 BW


903.23 TW


904.24 TW


904.24 TW


904.24 TW


901.39 L.P.


901.00 BW


904.02 TW


901.00 BW


904.01 TW


902.49 BW


904.16 TW


900.36 BW


903.12 TW


900.19 BW


903.12 TW


900.54 BW


903.62 TW


900.58 BW


903.63 TW


900.89 BW


903.64 TW


901.26


901.22


900.97


900.89


900.68


900.61


900.18


900.10


899.55


899.50


900.00


899.00


901.70


901.52


902.25 H.P.


903.67


903.73


904.02


899.79


9
0
2


9
0
3


9


0


2


9
0
3


903.26


901.11 H.P.


904.44


9


0


4


9


0


2


9


0


3


TOP O
F T


ANKS


ELEV. =
 898.23


902.57 TW


900.69 BW


903.68


902.91


901.45


901.45


902.66


903.52


903.56


901.89


901.53


901.50


901.41


901.25


903.33


904.13


903.51


903.51


903.55


903.84 H.P.


903.84 H.P.


9


0


2


9
0
1


9
0
1


899.29


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SP 2.2


G
R


A
D


I
N


G
 
-
 
S


P
O


T
 
E


L
E


V
A


T
I
O


N
 
P


L
A


N


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


NOTES:


H.P. = HIGH POINT FOR DRAINAGE


L.P. = LOW POINT FOR DRAINAGE


T/I = TOP OF ISLAND ELEVATION


TW = TOP OF WALL


BW = BOTTOM OF WALL


BC = BACK OF CURB


ALL SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE AT THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT (FLAG


OF CURB)


HATCHED CURB AND GUTTER DEPICTS REJECT CURB


LOCATIONS


ALL LANDSCAPE AND SOD AREAS SHALL HAVE POSITIVE


DRAINAGE


CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE CONTROL JOINTS,


CONSTRUCTION JOINTS AND EXPANSION JOINTS IN SLAB ON


GRADE, SIDEWALKS AND DRIVEWAYS.


CONTROL JOINT MAXIMUM DISTANCE: SIDEWALKS - 8' O.C., ALL


OTHERS 10' O.C.


SAW CUT CONTROL JOINTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 


1


4


 OF THE


CONCRETE THICKNESS.


EXPANSION JOINT MINIMUM DISTANCE: SIDEWALKS - 24' O.C., ALL


OTHERS 40' O.C.


DOWEL ALL EXPANSION JOINTS - 24" O.C.


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


FFE: 905.00


STATE HIGHWAY 51


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N







2
0
K


2
0
K


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
 
T


 
O


 
P


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SP 2.3


A
C


C
E


S
S


I
B


L
E


 
P


L
A


N


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE
NOTES FOR CONVENIENCE STORE ACCESSIBLITY


AT LEAST 1 MPD(MULTI PRODUCT DISPENSER) COVERING ALL


GRADES OF FUEL MUST BE ACCESSIBLE IN A 30"X48" CLEAR LEVEL


FLOOR AREA(CLF).


ALL PUMP CONTROLS SHALL BE < 48"(2010 STANDARD). WINDOW


WASHER, PAPER TOWEL DISPENSER, LITERATURE, FIRE


EXTINGUISHER, EMERGENCY FUEL STOPS, ETC. BE ACCESSIBLE


30"X48" CLF SPACE AND WITHIN A FORWARD OR SIDE APPROACH


REACH RANGE.


PROVIDE ISA(INDUSTRY STANDARD ARCHITECTURE) AT EACH


ACCESSIBLE FUEL POSITION ON FACE OF PUMP.


PROVIDE ISA AT EACH ACCESSIBLE FUELING POSITION VISIBLE TO


APPROACHING VEHICLES.


PROVIDE A SIGN AT EACH ACCESSIBLE FUELING POSITION WITH


STORE TELEPHONE NUMBER, ADVISING AVAILABLE FUELING


ASSISTANCE.


ANY PAY FUNCTION- i.e. AIR/VACUUM etc. ARE REQUIRED TO HAVE


AN ACCESSIBLE ROUTE TO STORE ENTRANCE. CONTROLS SHALL BE


ACCESSIBLE 30"X48" CLF SPACE AND WITHIN A FORWARD OR SIDE


APPROACH REACH RANGE.


NOTES:


-REFER TO THE DOCUMENT FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE ON "2010 ADA STANDARDS FOR ACCESSIBLE


DESIGN". CONTRACTOR SHALL REFERENCE CURRENT A.D.A. GUIDELINES AND LOCAL REGULATIONS FOR SITE


ACCESSIBILITY. IN ALL CASES THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE PROVIDED ON SITE TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE


TO ALL REGULATIONS.


- KWIK TRIP STANDARD ENTRANCE DOOR IS AUTOMATIC SLIDING DOOR SYSTEM DESIGNED TO COMPLY WITH ALL


ACCESS CODES AND LAWS. ENTRANCE DOORS FOR ACCESSIBLE ROUTES WILL HAVE A MINIMUM CLEAR OPENING OF


32"


-STORE FRONTS WILL PROVIDE FLUSH PAVEMENTS ALONG ACCESSIBLE ROUTES WITH PROTECTIVE SECURITY


BOLLARDS INDICATED AND SPACED BETWEEN PARKING SURFACES AND BUILDING WALK PER PLAN.


-NO OBJECTS OR DISPLAYS SHOULD PROTRUDE INTO THE MINIMUM CLEAR SPACE OF THE ACCESSIBLE ROUTES TO


THE STORE ENTRANCE.  THIS WILL INCLUDE SEASONAL DISPLAY VENDING AREAS AS WELL AS OTHER OUTDOOR


STORAGE UNITS FOR PROPANE AND ICE, ETC.


-PER A.D.A GUIDELINES- CLEAR WIDTH OF ACCESSIBLE ROUTES SHALL BE 36" AND PERMITTED TO BE REDUCED TO 32"


FOR A LENGTH OF 24".


- ACCESS ISLES SERVING WHEEL CHAIR LIFTS OR CHAIR ACCESS FROM VEHICLES ARE REQUIRED TO BE NEARLY


LEVEL IN ALL DIRECTIONS TO PROVIDE SAFE TRANSFER OF WHEELCHAIRS TO AND FROM VEHICLES. THE EXCEPTION


WOULD BE FOR DRAINAGE.  MAXIMUM SLOPE FOR THE ACCESS ISLE IS 1:48.  NO CURB RAMPS SHALL BE A PART OF


THE ACCESS ISLE.


-IDENTIFICATION SIGNS SHALL INCLUDE THE INTERNATIONAL SYMBOL OF ACCESSIBILITY WITH THE DESIGNATION OF 1


"VAN ACCESSIBLE' IN EVERY 8 ACCESSIBLE SPACES ON SITE.


PLAN VIEW


NOT TO SCALE


VAN ACCESSIBLE PARKING


PAVEMENTS FLUSH


2


%


 


M


A


X


I


M


U


M


 


S


L


O


P


E


P


A


V


E


M


E


N


T


 
F


L


U


S


H


S


T


O


R


E


 
F


R


O


N


T


 
F


L


U


S


H


APPROVED ADA SINAGE BOLLARD


SP2.2


1


8'-0"


MIN.


11'-0"


MIN.


8'-0"


MIN.


2


%


 


M


A


X


.


C


R


O


S


S


 


S


L


O


P


E


1'-0"


DIA


5
'
-
0
"


8"


1
'
-
6
"


OR PAVEMENT


CONCRETE FOOTING


BLUE HDPE BOLLARD COVER


FINISH GRADE


PERMIT


REQUIRED


MINIMUM FINE


VAN


ACCESSIBLE


STEEL BOLLARD


ADA ACCESSIBLE SIGNAGE-


ADHESIVE STICKER, WHITE


LETTERS WITH BLUE


REFLECTIVE BACKGROUND,


ADHERE TO HDPE BOLLARD


COVER


DIA.


VAN


ACCESSIBLE


$250


B
O


T
T


O
M


 
O


F
 
S


I
G


N


DELIVERY


VEHICLES


UNLOADING IN


FRONT OF


ACCESSIBLE


SPACES ARE IN


VIOLATION


DELIVERY


VEHICLES


UNLOADING IN


FRONT OF


ACCESSIBLE


SPACES ARE IN


VIOLATION


ADD STORE PHONE # TO BOLLARD


(MUST BE VISABLE)


STORE # XXX-XXXX


 PLAN KEYNOTES


1. ACCESSIBLE STALLS


A. STRIPING - 4" WIDE STALL LINES, USE HIGH VISIBILITY BLUE PAINT.


SPACES PROVIDED:


(2) 8'-0"x 20'-0" ACCESSIBLE PARKING WITH (1) 11'-0"x 20'-0" LOADING ZONE (MIN.)


B. ACCESSIBLE FUELING POINT AND DISPENSER AND VALET. VALET AND KEY PAD ON


PUMP SHALL CONFORM TO ADA REACH DIMENSIONS AS SHOWN IN DETAIL.


2. PAVEMENTS FLUSH FOR ACCESSIBILITY INTO BUILDING.


3. PICNIC TABLE WITH ACCESSIBLE PLACEMENT


4. ACCESSIBLE ROUTE TO AIR STATION


HIGH AND LOW  -  SIDE REACH LIMITS


4
'
-
0
"


1
5
"


MAXIMUM SIDE REACH OVER OBSTRUCTION


3
'
-
1
0
"


2
'
-
1
0
"


2'-6"


2'-6" 2'-Ø"


NOT TO SCALE


ACCESSIBLE REACH DIMENSIONS


12"


MAX.


SP2.2


3


NOT TO SCALE


ADA BOLLARD SIGNAGE


SP2.2


2


I
N


 
A


L
L
 
D


I
R


E
C


T
I
O


N
S


 
2
%


 
M


A
X


S
L
O


P
E


 
I
N


C
L
U


D
I
N


G


P
A


R
K


I
N


G
 
S


P
A


C
E


S


3


1A


4


1A


PERMIT


REQUIRED


MINIMUM FINE


$250


2


1B


PIC
NIC


 T
ABLE A


CCESS


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


A
C


C
E


S
S


 
T


O
 
P


U
M


P
S







U
N


L


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZO
NE


CAR


W
ASH


ST-5


ST-4


SEE DETAIL


ST-9


SEE DETAIL


ST-10


ST-11


SEE DETAIL


ST-12


ST-13


ST-14


ST-17


ST-7


ST-2


ST-1


ST-6


ST-15


ST-16


ST-8


ST-3


ST-26


ST-27


ST-28


ST-29


ST-31


ST-25


ST-18


ST-23


ST-24


ST-21


ST-20


ST-19


ST-22


ST-36


ST-30


17 LF OF 18" HDPE @ 0.52%


1
5
3
 
L
F


 
O


F
 
1
5
"
 
H


D
P


E
 
@


 
0
.
5
0
%


17 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 3.98%


58 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 3.50%


9


0


 


L


F


 


O


F


 


1


2


"


 


H


D


P


E


 


@


 


0


.


6


1


%


6
0
 
L
F


 
O


F
 
2
4
"
 
H


D
P


E
 
@


 
0
.
5
7
%


1
5
3
 
L
F


 
O


F
 
2
4
"
 
H


D
P


E
 
@


 
0
.
5
7
%


1
3
3
 
L
F


 
O


F
 
1
5
"
 
H


D
P


E
 
@


 
0
.
5
0
%


9


2


 
L


F


 
O


F


 
1


2


"
 
H


D


P


E


 
@


 
0


.
7


5


%


49 LF OF 15" HDPE @ 0.47%


29 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.00%


21 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 3.99%


21 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 4.03%


13 LF OF 4" PVC @ 0.48%


19 LF OF 4" PVC @ 0.48%


25 LF OF 4" PVC @ 0.52%


50 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.50%


47 LF OF 8" PVC @ 0.51%


12 LF OF 4" PVC @ 0.56%


13 LF OF 4" PVC @ 0.56%


19 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.53%


12 LF OF 4" PVC @ 1.36%


12 LF OF 4" PVC @ 1.36%


19 LF OF 4" PVC @ 1.38%


25 LF OF 24" HDPE @ 0.56%


10 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.59%


8
5
 
L
F


 
O


F
 
6
"
 
P


V
C


 
@


 
0
.
6
1
%


24 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.59%


5 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.61%


7 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.54%


63 LF O
F 6" P


VC @
 0.60%


5
4
 
L
F


 
O


F
 
6
"
 
P


V
C


 
@


 
0
.
6
0
%


10 LF OF 6" PVC @ 5.90%


11 LF OF 4" PVC @ 5.36%


5 LF OF 4" PVC @ 12.20%


5 LF OF 4" PVC @ 13.20%


21 LF OF 4" PVC @ 0.68%


41 LF OF 4" PVC @ 0.69%


17 LF OF 8" PVC @ 0.76%


8
7
 
L
F


 
O


F
 
8
"
 
P


V
C


 
@


 
0
.
7
0
%


21 LF OF 6" PVC @ 2.00%


23 LF OF 4" PVC @ 1.65%


21 LF OF 3" PVC @ 0.34%


27 LF OF 8" PVC @ 0.66%


ST-32


ST-33


ST-34


27 LF OF 8" PVC @ 0.66%


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 900.49


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 900.50


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 900.50


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 900.15


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 900.50


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 900.50


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 900.67


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 898.50


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 898.50


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 898.50


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 898.50


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 898.60


ROOF DRAIN


INV: 898.50


10 LF OF 6" PVC @ 0.59%


STRUCTURE TABLE


STRUCT #


ST-1


ST-2


ST-3


ST-4


ST-5


ST-6


ST-7


ST-8


ST-9


ST-10


ST-12


ST-13


ST-14


ST-15


ST-16


ST-17


ST-18


ST-19


ST-20


ST-21


ST-22


ST-23


ST-24


ST-25


ST-26


ST-27


ST-28


ST-29


ST-30


ST-32


ST-33


ST-34


ST-36


RIM EL


900.36


903.28


903.23


901.88


898.63


903.37


903.48


903.34


901.71


-2.69


895.11


898.10


898.60


898.68


902.89


902.64


902.99


902.60


902.59


902.43


902.63


902.98


902.95


904.75


904.17


904.22


904.19


904.15


904.16


904.59


904.51


904.52


903.48


STRUCT


TYPE


15 IN DIA


60 IN DIA 27 IN OPENING


48 IN DIA 27 IN OPENING


24 X 36 INLET 24 X 36 OPENING


18 IN DIA


24 X 36 INLET 24 X 36 OPENING


24 X 36 INLET 24 X 36 OPENING


24 X 36 INLET 24 X 36 OPENING


24 X 36 INLET 24 X 36 OPENING


12 IN DIA


12 IN DIA


48 IN DIA 27 IN OPENING


84 IN DIA 27 IN OPENING


24 IN DIA


48 IN DIA 27 IN OPENING


48 IN DIA 27 IN OPENING


4 IN CLEANOUT


4 IN CLEANOUT


8 IN CLEANOUT


8 IN CLEANOUT


8 IN CLEANOUT


4 IN CLEANOUT


4 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


4 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


6 IN CLEANOUT


INVERTS IN


INV S = 898.77


INV E = 899.02


INV W = 899.02


INV S = 898.10


INV W = 898.35


INV S = 897.34


INV S = 897.00


INV S = 897.00


INV NE = 897.00


INV SW = 896.45


INV W = 896.45


INV S = 896.93


INV W = 896.93


INV S = 896.59


INV W = 898.54


INV S = 898.45


INV W = 898.32


INV S = 898.16


INV W = 897.91


INV S = 898.07


INV W = 897.50


INV W = 898.43


INV E = 898.43


INV W = 898.33


INV E = 898.33


INV E = 900.43


INV N = 899.91


INV E = 899.91


INV N = 899.77


INV W = 899.74


INV N = 899.91


INV W = 899.70


INV N = 899.89


INV W = 899.32


INV N = 899.49


INV W = 900.53


INV N = 900.25


INV W = 900.09


INV W = 900.12


INV N = 899.79


INV N = 899.18


INVERTS OUT


INV N = 899.00


INV N = 898.77


INV N = 898.10


INV N = 897.09


INV W = 899.71


INV E = 899.86


INV E = 899.19


INV N = 897.68


INV E = 897.00


INV N = 897.80


INV N = 896.93


INV NE = 896.59


INV N = 898.54


INV E = 898.45


INV E = 898.16


INV E = 897.74


INV N = 898.26


INV N = 898.33


INV S = 900.43


INV S = 899.91


INV E = 899.77


INV E = 899.74


INV E = 899.70


INV S = 899.32


INV S = 900.53


INV S = 899.92


INV S = 899.79


INV SW = 899.18


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


SP 3.0


S
T


O
R


M
 
S


E
W


E
R


 
P


L
A


N


S T O R M    D R A I N A G E :


1. UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, USE REINFORCED, PRECAST, CONCRETE MAINTENANCE HOLES AND CATCHBASINS CONFORMING TO ASTM C478,


FURNISHED WITH WATER STOP RUBBER GASKETS AND PRECAST BASES.  JOINTS FOR ALL PRECAST MAINTENANCE HOLE SECTIONS SHALL HAVE


CONFINED, RUBBER "O"-RING GASKETS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C923.  THE INSIDE BARREL DIAMETER SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 48 INCHES.


2. ALL JOINTS AND CONNECTIONS TO CATCHBASINS OR MANHOLES SHALL BE WATERTIGHT.  USE RESILIENT RUBBER SEALS, WATERSTOP GASKETS, OR


APPROVED EQUAL.  CEMENT MORTAR JOINTS ARE NOT ALLOWED.


3. INSTALL CATCHBASIN CASTINGS WITH SPECIFIED TOP ELEVATION AT THE FRONT RIM.


4. USE HDPE SOLID WALL PIPE WHEN CALLED OUT ON THE PLANS.


5. PVC PIPE: USE SOLID-CORE, SDR-35, ASTM D3034 POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PIPE FOR DESIGNATED PVC STORM SEWER SERVICES 4 TO 15-INCHES IN


DIAMETER.  USE SOLID-CORE, SDR-35, ASTM F679 POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PIPE FOR DESIGNATED PVC STORM SEWER SERVICES 18 TO 27-INCHES IN


DIAMETER.  JOINTS FOR ALL STORM SEWER SHALL HAVE PUSH-ON JOINTS WITH ELASTOMERIC GASKETS.  USE OF SOLVENT CEMENT JOINTS IS ALLOWED


FOR BUILDING SERVICES.  SOLVENT CEMENT JOINTS IN PVC PIPE MUST INCLUDE USE OF A PRIMER WHICH IS OF CONTRASTING COLOR TO THE PIPE AND


CEMENT.  PIPE WITH SOLVENT CEMENT JOINTS SHALL BE JOINED WITH PVC CEMENT CONFORMING TO ASTM D2564.  LAY ALL PVC PIPE ON A CONTINUOUS


GRANULAR BED.  INSTALLATION MUST COMPLY WITH ASTM D2321.


6. TESTING: TEST ALL PORTIONS OF STORM SEWER THAT ARE WITHIN 10 FEET OF BUILDINGS, WITHIN 10 FEET OF BURIED WATER, LINES, WITHIN 50 FEET


OF WATER WELLS, OR THAT PASS THROUGH SOIL OR WATER IDENTIFIED AS BEING CONTAMINATED.  TEST ALL FLEXIBLE STORM SEWER LINES FOR


DEFLECTION AFTER THE SEWER LINE HAS BEEN INSTALLED AND BACKFILL HAS BEEN IN PLACE FOR AT LEAST 30 DAYS.  NO PIPE SHALL EXCEED A


DEFLECTION OF 5%.  IF THE TEST FAILS, MAKE NECESSARY REPAIRS AND RETEST.


7. INSTALL DETECTABLE UNDERGROUND MARKING TAPE DIRECTLY ABOVE ALL PVC, POLYETHYLENE, AND OTHER NONCONDUCTIVE UNDERGROUND


UTILITIES AT A DEPTH OF 457 MM (18 INCHES) BELOW FINISHED GRADE, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.  BRING THE TAPE TO THE SURFACE AT VARIOUS


LOCATIONS IN ORDER TO PROVIDE CONNECTION POINTS FOR LOCATING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.  INSTALL BLUE RHINO TRIVIEW FLEX TEST STATIONS,


OR APPROVED EQUAL, WITH BLACK CAPS AT EACH SURFACE LOCATION.


8. TRACER WIRE: LOCATING REQUIREMENTS - A MEANS TO LOCATE BURIED UNDERGROUND EXTERIOR NON METALLIC SEWERS/MAINS MUST BE PROVIDED


WITH TRACER WIRE OR OTHER METHODS IN ORDER TO BE LOCATED IN ACCORD WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THESE CODE SECTIONS AS PER 182.0715(2R)


OF THE STATUTES.


9.    THE MINIMUM DEPTH OF COVER FOR BUILDING AND CANOPY ROOF DRAIN LEADERS WITHOUT INSULATION IS 5 FEET.  INSULATE ROOF DRAIN LEADERS AT


LOCATIONS WHERE THE DEPTH OF COVER IS LESS THAN 5 FEET.  PROVIDE A MINIMUM INSULATION THICKNESS OF 2 INCHES.  THE INSULATION MUST BE


AT LEAST 4 FEET WIDE AND CENTERED ON THE PIPE.  INSTALL THE INSULATION BOARDS 6 INCHES ABOVE THE TOPS OF THE PIPES ON MECHANICALLY


COMPACTED AND LEVELED PIPE BEDDING MATERIAL.  USE HIGH DENSITY, CLOSED CELL, RIGID BOARD MATERIAL EQUIVALENT TO DOW STYROFOAM HI-40


PLASTIC FOAM INSULATION.


10.  CLEANOUTS: INSTALL CLEANOUTS ON ALL ROOF DRAINS IN ACCORDANCE WITH S.P.S 382.35 (3)(C)(1.).  THE DISTANCE BETWEEN CLEANOUTS IN


HORIZONTAL PIPING SHALL NOT EXCEED 100 FEET FOR PIPES 10-INCHES AND UNDER IN SIZE.  CLEANOUTS SHALL BE OF THE SAME NOMINAL SIZE AS THE


PIPES THEY SERVE.  INSTALL A METER BOX FRAME AND SOLID LID (NEENAH R-1914-A, OR APPROVED EQUAL) OVER ALL CLEANOUTS.


11.   INSTALL ALL PIPE WITH THE ASTM IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS ON THE TOP FOR INSPECTION.  COMMENCE PIPE LAYING AT THE LOWEST POINT IN THE


PROPOSED SEWER LINE.  LAY THE PIPE WITH THE BELL END OR RECEIVING GROOVE END OF THE PIPE POINTING UPGRADE.  WHEN CONNECTING TO AN


EXISTING PIPE, UNCOVER THE EXISTING PIPE IN ORDER TO ALLOW ANY ADJUSTMENTS IN THE PROPOSED LINE AND GRADE BEFORE LAYING ANY PIPE.


DO NOT LAY PIPES IN WATER OR WHEN THE TRENCH CONDITIONS ARE UNSUITABLE FOR SUCH WORK.


8.80'±


15" HDPE


INV = 897.34'


ELEV: 901.88' T/C


S
N


O
U


T
 


INLET WITH OIL SKIMMER


R-3067 CASTING


2' X 3' CURB INLET


TOP OF CURB ELEV: 901.88'±


18" HDPE INV: 897.09'


DEPTH: 8.80'±


SUMP: 4.0'


SNOUT: 24 F


R-3067 CASTING


BOTTOM


ELEV: 893.08'


36"


ST- 4


WITH OIL SKIMMER


18" HDPE


CEDARBROOK   LANE


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N


R-3067 CASTING


INV = 897.09'


REINFORCED CONCRETE


BASE SLAB CONFORMING


TO ASTM C478


16"O.C.


NEENAH R-1981-J MANHOLE


STEPS OR APPROVED EQUAL


8.03'±


ELEV: 901.71' T/C


S
N


O
U


T
 


INLET WITH OIL SKIMMER


R-3067 CASTING


2' X 3' CURB INLET


TOP OF CURB ELEV: 901.71'±


12" HDPE INV: 897.68'


DEPTH: 8.03'±


SUMP: 4.0'


SNOUT: 24 F


R-3067 CASTING


BOTTOM


ELEV: 893.68'


36"


ST- 9


WITH OIL SKIMMER


12" HDPE


INV = 897.68'


REINFORCED CONCRETE


BASE SLAB CONFORMING


TO ASTM C478


16"O.C.


NEENAH R-1981-J MANHOLE


STEPS OR APPROVED EQUAL


5.63'±


ELEV: 901.54' T/C


S
N


O
U


T
 


INLET WITH OIL SKIMMER


R-3067 CASTING


2' X 3' CURB INLET


TOP OF CURB ELEV: 901.54'±


12" HDPE INV: 899.04'


DEPTH: 5.63'±


SUMP: 37.5"


SNOUT: 18 F


BOTTOM


ELEV: 895.92'


36"


ST- 11


WITH OIL SKIMMER


12" HDPE


INV = 899.04'


REINFORCED CONCRETE


BASE SLAB CONFORMING


TO ASTM C478


16"O.C.


NEENAH R-1981-J MANHOLE


STEPS OR APPROVED EQUAL


ADS UNDERGROUND


STORAGE SYSTEM


PROPOSED 15" RCP


50' @ 1.0%


S INV ELEV:899.76'


N INV ELEV: 899.27'







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


895


895


9
0
0


900


8
9
2


892
893


893


894


894


896


896


8


9


7


897


8
9
8


898


8
9
9


899


9


0


1


901


9


0


2


9


0


2


902


902


9


0


2


9


0


2


9
0
3


9
0
4


9


0


1


9
0
2


9
0
2


9


0


1


9


0


1


9
0
1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9
0
1


9
0
1


9
0
1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9
0
1


9


0


1


9
0
2


9
0
2


9
0
2


9


0


2


9
0
2


9


0


2


9


0


3


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


SP 3.1


W
E


T
 
P


O
N


D
 
D


E
T


A
I
L


 
S


H
E


E
T


W
ET D


ETENTIO
N P


OND


(1P)


PERM
. P


OOL E
LEV. =


 8
97.0


0'


48" DIA.


 RCP OUTLET


STRUCTURE


MANHOLE


HAALA 48" TOP MOUNT


CONE GRATE (GALVANIZED)


OR EQUAL


90' ~ 12" DIA. HDPE


(INV. 897.00')


RIM = 899.75'


B


E


R


M


EL = 897.00'


NORMAL WATER LEVEL


2.5" ORIFICE


(INV. 897.00')


12" ORIFICE


(INV. 897.00')


NOT TO SCALE


SP3.1


1
WET POND 1P - SECTION


3


:


1


901.90' TOP


902.00'


OVERFLOW


WEIR


2


:


1


BOTTOM ELEV=892.00'


NORMAL WATER SURFACE ELEV=897.00' 


2


:


1


1


0


:
1


1


0


:
1


OUTLET STRUCTURE ST-13


SEE DETAIL 2


12" HDPE


INV.=897.00


WET POND BOTTOM WITH CLAY LINER


NOT TO SCALE


SP3.1


2
WET POND 1P OUTLET DETAIL


OVERFLOW WEIR LOCATION


9" ORIFICE


(INV. 899.00')


9" ORIFICE


2.5" ORIFICE


12" ORIFICE


90' ~ 12" Ø HDPE


A A


894.00


PLAN


SECTION  A-A


SCALE:  1" = 20'


WET DETENTION POND 1P


CONCRETE BAFFLE


CONCRETE BAFFLE







6' 6'


900


9
0
0


900


900


9


0


0


9
0
0


899


899


9


0


1


9
0
1


9


0


1


9


0


1


901


901


901


901


9


0


1


9


0


2


902


9


0


2


9


0


2


9


0


3


903


9
0
3


9


0


3


9
0
4


904


904


904


9


0


0


900


900


9


0


0


8


9


9


8


9


9


8


9


9


899


8


9


9


8


9


9


9


0


1


9


0


1


9


0


1


9
0
1


9


0


1


IN
FILTRATIO


N B
ASIN


 (2
P)


BOTTOM A
REA =


 1,200 S
Q. F


T.


BOTTOM E
LEV. =


 899.00'


901.00'


4


:


1


4


:


1


900.00'


OVERFLOW WEIR


SEE DETAIL 2


FINISHED SURFACE ELEV=899.00' 


NOT TO SCALE


SP3.2


1
INFILTRATION BASIN 2P DETAIL


NOT TO SCALE


SP3.2


2
BROAD CRESTED OVERFLOW WEIR DETAIL


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


SP 3.2


I
N


F
I
L


T
R


A
T


I
O


N
 
B


A
S


I
N


 
D


E
T


A
I
L


 
S


H
E


E
T


4


:


1


4


:


1


50'


900.00'


901.00'


EROSION MATTING, CLASS III, TYPE A (TURF


REINFORCEMENT MAT) TO BE PLACED WITHIN THE


TOPSOIL LAYER. AFTER SEEDING, STABILIZE WITH


EROSION MATTING, CLASS I URBAN TYPE B.


OVERFLOW WEIR LOCATION


SEE DETAIL 2


CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THAT INFILTRATION BASIN IS


EXCAVATED ALL THE WAY TO AN EXISTING NATIVE SOIL LAYER


WITH A 0.50 IN/HR. MIN. INFILTRATION RATE BASED UPON SOIL


BORINGS. ALL BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM


INFILTRATION RATE OF 0.50 IN/HR.


CAPPED 6" PVC EMERGENCY DRAW


DOWN PIPE @ INV.=899.00


BOTTOM OF INFILTRATION BASIN TO BE


RESTORED WITH 2-3" COMPOST EVENLY MIXED


INTO THE UPPER 12" AND INFILTRATION SWALE


SEED MIX BY AGRECOL (OR APPROVED EQUAL).







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
 
T


 
O


 
P


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


SP 4.0


U
T


I
L


I
T


Y
 
P


L
A


N


S A N I T A R Y    S E W E R :


1. PIPE: USE SOLID-CORE, SDR-35, ASTM D3034 (OR APPROVED EQUAL) POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PLASTIC PIPE FOR


ALL DESIGNATED PVC SANITARY SEWER SERVICES.  JOINTS FOR ALL SANITARY SEWER SHALL HAVE PUSH-ON JOINTS


WITH ELASTOMERIC GASKETS.  USE OF SOLVENT CEMENT JOINTS IS ALLOWED FOR BUILDING SERVICES.  SOLVENT


CEMENT JOINTS IN PVC PIPE MUST INCLUDE USE OF A PRIMER WHICH IS OF CONTRASTING COLOR TO THE PIPE AND


CEMENT.  PIPE WITH SOLVENT CEMENT JOINTS SHALL BE JOINED WITH PVC CEMENT CONFORMING TO ASTM D2564.


LAY ALL PVC PIPE ON A CONTINUOUS GRANULAR BED.  INSTALLATION MUST COMPLY WITH ASTM D2321.


2. CLEANOUTS: INSTALL CLEANOUTS ON ALL SANITARY SEWER SERVICES.  THE DISTANCE BETWEEN CLEANOUTS IN


HORIZONTAL PIPING SHALL NOT EXCEED 100 FEET FOR PIPES 4-INCH AND OVER IN SIZE.  CLEANOUTS SHALL BE OF


THE SAME NOMINAL SIZE AS THE PIPES THEY SERVE.  INCLUDE FROST SLEEVES AND CONCRETE FRAME AND PIPE


SUPPORT.  INSTALL A METER BOX FRAME AND SOLID LID (NEENAH R-1914-A, OR APPROVED EQUAL) OVER ALL


CLEANOUTS.


3. TESTING: PRESSURE TEST ALL SANITARY SEWER LINES.  TEST ALL FLEXIBLE SANITARY SEWER LINES FOR


DEFLECTION AFTER THE SEWER LINE HAS BEEN INSTALLED AND BACKFILL HAS BEEN IN PLACE FOR AT LEAST 30


DAYS.  NO PIPE SHALL EXCEED A DEFLECTION OF 5%.  IF THE TEST FAILS, MAKE NECESSARY REPAIRS AND RETEST.


4. UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED, USE REINFORCED, PRECAST, CONCRETE MAINTENANCE HOLES CONFORMING TO


ASTM C478, FURNISHED WITH  PRECAST BASES.  SANITARY SEWER MAINTENANCE HOLES SHALL BE SUPPLIED WITH


PRE-FORMED INVERTS AND FLEXIBLE NEOPRENE SLEEVE CONNECTIONS FOR ALL LATERAL LINES 375 MM (15 INCHES)


IN DIAMETER OR LESS, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.  JOINTS FOR ALL PRECAST MAINTENANCE HOLE SECTIONS


SHALL HAVE CONFINED, RUBBER "O"-RING GASKETS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C923.  THE INSIDE BARREL


DIAMETER SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 48 INCHES.


5. INSTALL FLEXIBLE WATERTIGHT FRAME/CHIMNEY SEALS ON ALL SANITARY SEWER MAINTENANCE HOLES.  USE EITHER


MANUFACTURED MAINTENANCE HOLE FRAME/CHIMNEY SEALS OR ELASTOMERIC WATERPROOFING FRAME/CHIMNEY


SEALS.


6. USE NEENAH FOUNDRY CO. R-1642 CASTING WITH SELF-SEALING, SOLID, TYPE B LID, OR APPROVED EQUAL, ON ALL


SANITARY SEWER MAINTENANCE HOLES.  COVERS SHALL BEAR THE "SANITARY SEWER" LABEL.


7. THE MINIMUM DEPTH OF COVER FOR SANITARY SEWER WITHOUT INSULATION IS 5 FEET.  INSULATE SANITARY SEWER


SERVICES AT LOCATIONS WHERE THE DEPTH OF COVER IS LESS THAN 5 FEET.  PROVIDE A MINIMUM INSULATION


THICKNESS OF 2 INCHES.  THE INSULATION MUST BE AT LEAST 4 FEET WIDE AND CENTERED ON THE PIPE.  INSTALL


THE INSULATION BOARDS 6 INCHES ABOVE THE TOPS OF THE PIPES ON MECHANICALLY COMPACTED AND LEVELED


PIPE BEDDING MATERIAL.  USE HIGH DENSITY, CLOSED CELL, RIGID BOARD MATERIAL EQUIVALENT TO DOW


STYROFOAM HI-40 PLASTIC FOAM INSULATION.


8. TRACER WIRE: LOCATING REQUIREMENTS - A MEANS TO LOCATE BURIED UNDERGROUND EXTERIOR NON METALLIC


SEWERS/MAINS MUST BE PROVIDED WITH TRACER WIRE OR OTHER METHODS IN ORDER TO BE LOCATED IN ACCORD


WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES 182.0175(2R) AND THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE


COMM 82.30(11)(H).


CONNECT TO EXISTING


LATERAL AT ± 890.4


GREASE TRAP, SEE


PLUMBING SHEETS


FOR DETAILS


PROPOSED


UNDERGROUND


GAS LINE


W A T E R    D I S T R I B U T I O N    S Y S T E M :


1. BRING ALL SITE UTILITIES TO 5' OUTSIDE OF THE BUILDING LINE WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE WATER SERVICE.  EXTEND


WATER SERVICE INTO THE BUILDING AND UP TO THE FLANGE FOR THE WATER METER.


2. SEPARATION OF WATER AND SEWER: PROVIDE A MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION OF 10 FEET BETWEEN ALL WATER


AND SEWER LINES.  PROVIDE A MINIMUM SEPARATION OF 18 INCHES AT ALL WATER LINE AND SEWER LINE CROSSINGS.


3. WATERMAIN DEPTH: MAINTAIN 7.0 FEET OF COVER OVER THE TOP OF THE WATER LINES TO THE FINISHED GRADE.


VERIFY ELEVATION OF PROPOSED AND EXISTING WATER LINES AT ALL UTILITY CROSSINGS.  INSTALL THE WATER LINES


AT GREATER DEPTHS IN ORDER TO CLEAR STORM SEWERS, SANITARY SEWERS, OR OTHER UTILITIES AS REQUIRED.


INCLUDE COSTS TO LOWER WATER LINES IN THE BASE BID.


4. TESTING: PRESSURE TEST AND PERFORM BACTERIOLOGICAL TESTS ON ALL WATER LINES UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF


THE MUNICIPALITY.  NOTIFY THE MUNICIPALITY AT LEAST 24 WORKING HOURS PRIOR TO ANY TESTING.  PRESSURIZE THE


WATERLINE TO 1034-KPA (150-PSI) GAUGE PRESSURE (MEASURED AT THE POINT OF LOWEST ELEVATION) BY MEANS OF A


PUMP CONNECTED TO THE PIPE IN A SATISFACTORY MANNER.  MAINTAIN THE TEST PRESSURE FOR A MINIMUM OF 2


HOURS.  DO NOT ADD WATER TO THE WATERMAIN IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN THE REQUIRED PRESSURE DURING THE WATER


MAIN PRESSURE TESTING.  THE TEST SECTION OF PIPE IS ACCEPTABLE WITH A PRESSURE DROP OF 14 KPA (2 PSI) OR


LESS.


5. USE MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT DEVICES FOR JOINT RESTRAINT ON ALL WATERMAIN BENDS HAVING A VERTICAL OR


HORIZONTAL DEFLECTION OF 22-1/2 DEGREES OR GREATER, ALL VALVES, STUBS, EXTENSIONS, TEES, CROSSES, PLUGS,


ALL HYDRANT VALVES, AND ALL HYDRANTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH MUNICIPALITY REQUIREMENTS.  USE "SERIES 1100


MEGALUG" MANUFACTURED BY EBAA IRON INC., EASTLAND, TEXAS, OR APPROVED EQUAL, INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE


WITH MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR RESTRAINT ON DUCTILE IRON PIPE.


6. AT ALL VALVE LOCATIONS WHICH REQUIRE A 12" OR SMALLER VALVE, INSTALL GATE VALVES WHICH ARE OF THE


COMPRESSION RESILIENT SEATED (CRS) TYPE.  USE AMERICAN FLOW CONTROL'S SERIES 2500 DUCTILE IRON RESILIENT


WEDGE GATE VALVE, OR APPROVED EQUAL.  GATE VALVES SHALL CONFORM TO AWWA C509.  INSTALL CAST IRON VALVE


BOXES CONFORMING TO ASTM A48 AT EACH VALVE LOCATION.  VALVE BOXES SHALL BE THE THREE-PIECE TYPE WITH


5-1/4" SHAFTS.  USE TYLER 6860-G WITH NO. 6 BASE, OR EQUIVALENT.  VALVE BOXES SHALL HAVE AT LEAST 6" OF


ADJUSTMENT ABOVE AND BELOW FINISHED GRADE.  DROP COVERS ON VALVE BOXES SHALL BE ROUND AND BEAR THE


WORD "WATER" CAST ON THE TOP.  USE TYLER 6860-G "STAYPUT" COVERS WITH EXTENDED SKIRT, OR EQUIVALENT.


7. USE MUELLER H 10300 OR FORD EM 2 7057, OR APPROVED EQUAL, AT ALL CURB STOP LOCATIONS.  STATIONARY ROD IS


REQUIRED ON ALL CURB STOPS.


8. WATERMAIN AND LATERALS 4" OR LARGE FOR THE SITE SHALL BE CLASS 52 DUCTILE IRON THAT CONFORM TO THE


REQUIREMENTS OF AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARD FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPE, CENTRIFUGALLY CAST, FOR WATER


(ANSI/AWWA C151/A21.51 - LATEST REVISION).  PIPE SHALL BE CEMENT LINED, PUSH-ON JOINT, AND BONDING STRAPS TO


PROVIDE ELECTRICAL CONDUCTIVITY WITHOUT FIELD WELDING.  ALL COMPONENTS SHALL CONFORM WITH CITY OF


SUSSEX STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.


9. TRACER WIRE: LOCATING REQUIREMENTS - A MEANS TO LOCATE BURIED UNDERGROUND EXTERIOR NON METALLIC


SEWERS/MAINS MUST BE PROVIDED WITH TRACER WIRE OR OTHER METHODS IN ORDER TO BE LOCATED IN ACCORD


WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES 182.0175(2R) AND THE WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE


COMM 82.30(11)(H).


10. WHERE EXISTING GAS, ELECTRIC, CABLE, OR TELEPHONE UTILITIES CONFLICT WITH THE WORK, COORDINATE THE


ABANDONMENT, RELOCATION, OFFSET, OR SUPPORT OF THE EXISTING UTILITIES WITH THE APPROPRIATE LOCAL UTILITY


COMPANIES.  COORDINATE NEW GAS METER AND GAS LINE INSTALLATION, ELECTRIC METER AND ELECTRIC SERVICE


INSTALLATION, CABLE SERVICE, AND TELEPHONE SERVICE INSTALLATION WITH THE LOCAL UTILITY COMPANIES.


11. COORDINATE BUILDING UTILITY CONNECTION LOCATIONS AT 5 FT. OUT FROM THE PROPOSED BUILDING WITH THE WITH


THE INTERIOR PLUMBING CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  VERIFY WATER AND SEWER SERVICE LOCATIONS AND


ELEVATIONS WITH THE MECHANICAL ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.


12. THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE FROM RECORD INFORMATION.  THE ENGINEER 


DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ALL EXISTING UTILITIES ARE SHOWN OR, IF SHOWN, EXIST IN THE LOCATIONS INDICATED ON


THE PLAN. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO ASCERTAIN THE FINAL VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL LOCATION OF


ALL EXISTING UTILITIES (INCLUDING WATER AND SEWER LINES AND APPURTENANCES). NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF ANY


DISCREPANCIES


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


FFE: = 905.00'


CEDARBROOK   LANE


CONNECT TO EXISTING NATURAL


GAS LINE PER UTILITY PROVIDERS


SPECIFICATIONS


UNDERGROUND


ELECTRIC AS


DIRECTED BY


UTILITY PROVIDER


ELECTRICAL PANEL,


VERIFY LOCATION


WITH MEP DRAWINGS


4" WATER VALVE


4" D.I.WATER


LATERAL TO


BLDG.


STATE   HIGHWAY   51


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
 
N


GAS METER


LOCATION


CONNECT TO EXISTING


WATER MAIN PER


UTILITY PROVIDERS


SPECIFICATIONS


INSTALL 4"


90° BEND


94 L.F. OF 6" PVC @ 2.9%


SAN. CLEANOUT #1


RIM: 903.38


INV.: 892.92


82 L.F. OF 6" PVC @ 2.9%


SAN. CLEANOUT #2


RIM: 903.94


INV.: 895.44


73 L.F. OF 6" PVC @ 2.9%


SAN. CLEANOUT #3


RIM: 904.74


INV.: 897.56


SAN. CLEANOUT #3


RIM: 904.84


INV.: 897.71


5 L.F. OF 6" PVC @ 2.9%


SAN. AT BUILDING


INV.: 898.00


DEPTH = 7.0'


10 L.F. OF 6" PVC @ 2.9%







S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SP 5.0


M
I
S


C
.
 
D


E
T


A
I
L


S


9


NOT TO SCALE


66" X 6" DIAMETER PIPE BOLLARD


3
0
"
 
T


Y
P


I
C


A
L


3
6
"
 
T


Y
P


I
C


A
L


6
6
"


66"x 6" DIA. CONCRETE FILLED


STEEL PIPE W/ 30" EXPOSURE.


PAINT: FACTORY PRIMER;


BOLLARD COVER PER OWNER


6" DEPTH CONCRETE


PAVEMENT


SLOPE PER GRADE PLAN


EXPANSION FELT


6" MIN. CLASS 5 BASE


NOTE: SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR REMOVABLE


BOLLARD LOCATION AND DETAIL


SP5.0


6


NOT TO SCALE


60" X 6" DIAMETER PIPE BOLLARD


3
0
"
 
T


Y
P


I
C


A
L


3
0
"
 
T


Y
P


I
C


A
L


60"


60"x 6" DIA. CONCRETE FILLED


STEEL PIPE W/ 30" EXPOSURE.


PAINT: FACTORY PRIMER;


BOLLARD COVER PER OWNER


6" DEPTH CONCRETE


PAVEMENT


SLOPE PER GRADE PLAN


EXPANSION FELT


6" MIN. CLASS 5 BASE


NOTE: SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR REMOVABLE


BOLLARD LOCATION AND DETAIL


SP5.0


7


8


CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER


NOT TO SCALE


NOT TO SCALE


SIDEWALK/ CURB DETAIL


SEE PLAN FOR WALK DIMENSION


6X6-W1.4XW1.4 W.W.F.


2-#4 BARS CONT.


6" CONC. WALK W/


6"


BASE COURSE


ROUGH GRADE


2" RADIUS


6
"


12"
6"


3


4


"


6"


3


"


R


13"


2


.


5


"


R


7


3


4


"


NOTES:


3


4


"6"


7"


6"


3


"


R


1
3
"


12"


LATERAL CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED AT INTERVALS OF NOT


MORE THAN 15' NOR LESS THAN 6' IN LENGTH.  THE JOINTS SHALL BE A


MINIMUM OF 3" IN DEPTH EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE PLACED


TRANSVERSELY AT RADIUS POINTS ON CURVES OF RADIUS 200' OR LESS,


AND AT ANGLE POINTS, OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.


THE EXPANSION JOINT SHALL BE A ONE PIECE ASPHALTIC MATERIAL


HAVING THE SAME DIMENSIONS AS CURB & GUTTER AT THAT STATION


AND BE 1/2" THICK.  IN ALL CASES, CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER SHALL BE


PLACED ON THOROUGHLY COMPACTED CRUSHED STONE.


PAVING


C.J.'S @ 5'-0" O.C.


EXP. JOINTS @ 25'-0" O.C.


TOP OF SIDEWALK


ELEVATION SHOWN


ON PLANS


SP5.0


SP5.0


2


.


5


"


R


NOT TO SCALE


SP5.0


3


84" X 6" DIAMETER PIPE BOLLARD


3
6
"


4
8
"
 
T


Y
P


I
C


A
L


8
4
"


6" DEPTH CONCRETE


PAVEMENT


SLOPE PER GRADE PLAN


1/2" DECK-O-FOAM


6" MIN. CLASS 5 BASE


NOTE: SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR REMOVABLE


BOLLARD LOCATION AND DETAIL


84"x 6" DIA. CONCRETE FILLED SCHEDULE


40 STEEL PIPE W/48"


EXPOSURE.


PAINT: FACTORY PRIMER; 5' PLASTIC


BOLLARD COVER PER OWNER


5


4


#4 BAR @ 36" O.C.


BOTH WAYS


8" CONCRETE PAVEMENT


8" CONCRETE


PAVEMENT DETAIL


SEE GEOTECH REPORT FOR


SUBGRADE PREPARATIONS


#3 BAR @ 36" O.C.


BOTH WAYS


6" CONCRETE PAVEMENT


6" CONCRETE


PAVEMENT DETAIL


SEE GEOTECH REPORT FOR


SUBGRADE PREPARATIONS


NOT TO SCALE


CONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTIONS


THICKENED EDGE SIDEWALK 


SEE PLAN FOR WALK DIMENSION


6X6-W1.4XW1.4 W.W.F.


2-#4 BARS CONT.


6" CONC. WALK W/


6"


BASE COURSE


2" RADIUS


6
"


PAVING


C.J.'S @ 5'-0" O.C.


EXP. JOINTS @ 25'-0" O.C.


FL ELEVATION AS


SHOWN PLANS


SP5.0


SP5.0


STANDARD 2' X 3' STORM SEWER CATCHBASIN - RECTANGULAR INLET


NOT TO SCALE


2


1" PVC


DRAINAGE


PIPE


18"


INVERT


ELEVATION


TOP OF CURB


CASTING ELEVATION


5" IF PRECAST


6" IF POURED


24"x36"


OPENING


BACKPLASTER


& MASTIC RINGS


TOGETHER


STANDARD CURB SECTION


SEE DETAIL


6" MAX.


12"


NOTES:


- TOP OF CURB AND PIPE INVERT ELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN ON THE PLANS.


- THE GRATE ELEVATION SHALL BE DEPRESSED 0.1' FROM STRAIGHT GUTTER GRADE STARTING 5' FROM THE INLET


AND EXTENDING IN BOTH DIRECTIONS.


- THE CASTING SHALL BE NEENAH FOUNDRY R-3067 CURB INLET WITH REVERSIBLE GRATES WHERE RUNOFF


REACHES THE INLET FROM BOTH DIRECTIONS.  WHERE RUNOFF REACHES THE INLET FROM ONE DIRECTION A


NEENAH R-3067-L CASTING SHALL BE USED.  DIRECTIONAL SLOTS TO BE LOCATED TO DIRECT THE FLOW INTO THE


STREET INLET.


- MASTIC BETWEEN RINGS AND BACKPLASTER A SMOOTH LAYER OF GROUT OVER THE ENTIRE INNER AND OUTER


SURFACES OF THE RINGS.


GRATE ELEVATION


NEENAH R-3067


CURB INLET AND


GRATE SHOWN


PRECAST CONCRETE


INLET BOX SHOWN


A A


PLAN VIEW


SECTION A-A


6"


1" PVC


DRAINAGE


PIPE


SP5.0


NOT TO SCALE


SP5.0


1


NOTE:  DRIVEWAY CONSTRUCTION PER SPECIFICATION OF CITY, COUNTY AND STATE.  OBTAIN ALL


NECESSARY PERMITS BEFORE COMMENCING CONSTRUCION WORK.  REFER TO GRADE PLAN FOR ALL


APPROACH RELATED GRADES AND NOTES.


URBAN COMMERCIAL DRIVEWAY DETAIL


11


NOT TO SCALE


SP5.0


10


NOT TO SCALE


SP5.0


RETAINED SOIL


EMBEDDED DEPTH


TO BE DETERMINED


BY RETAINING WALL


SUPPLIER/DESIGNER


FINISHED GRADE


SEE GRADING PLANS


FOR EXACT ELEVATION


JUMBO MODULAR


CONCRETE BLOCK


SUPPLIER, SIZE OF BLOCK,


AND COLOR SHALL BE


PRE-APPROVED BY KWIK TRIP


FINISHED GRADE


4" DIA TOE DRAIN


PIPE VENTED TO DAYLIGHT


30' O.C. MAX


6" MINIMUM DEPTH


EXPOSED WALL HEIGHT


SEE PROPOSED GRADING PLAN


FOR HEIGHT OF EACH WALL


12" MINIMUM WIDTH OF


GRANULAR BACK FILL


EMBEDDED REINFORCEMENT


IN SOIL SHALL BE DESIGNED


BY RETAINING WALL SUPPLIER


LARGE BLOCK RETAINING WALL WITH RAILING


CONCRETE POST


FOOTING


FENCE OR RAILING


AS REQUIRED - SEE


PLANS FOR LOCATIONS


30" MIN.


42" MIN.


REJECT CONCRETE


CURB & GUTTER


STANDARD CONCRETE


CURB & GUTTER


A
A


SECTION A-A


PLAN


7" CONCRETE


SIDEWALK


30" CONCRETE


DEPRESSED C & G


STANDARD 30"


CONCRETE C & G


C
O


N
S


T
R


U
C


T
I
O


N
 
J
O


I
N


T


C
O


N
S


T
R


U
C


T
I
O


N
 
J
O


I
N


T


PROFILE


TOP OF CURB


18"


VARIES


SEE PLAN


1


2


" EXPANSION JOINT


5
'


3


4


" EXPANSION


JOINT


18"


TAPER CURB


HEIGHT 2" TO 6"


5'
7" CONCRETE


30" CONCRETE


DEPRESSED C & G


9" AGGREGRATE BASE


28°


28


RETAINED SOIL


NOTE: EMBEDDED DEPTH


TO BE DETERMINED


BY RETAINING WALL


SUPPLIER/DESIGNER


JUMBO MODULAR


CONCRETE BLOCK


SUPPLIER, SIZE OF BLOCK,


AND COLOR SHALL BE


PRE-APPROVED BY KWIK TRIP


FINISHED GRADE


4" DIA TOE DRAIN


PIPE VENTED TO DAYLIGHT


WELL-GRADED GRANULAR WALL


ROCK 0.25" TO 1.5"


LESS THAN 10% FINES


6" MINIMUM DEPTH


EXPOSED WALL HEIGHT


SEE PROPOSED GRADING PLAN


FOR HEIGHT OF EACH WALL


12" MINIMUM WIDTH OF


GRANULAR BACK FILL


SLOPE GRADE SO


WATER WILL FLOW


AWAY FROM WALL


3'


LARGE BLOCK RETAINING WALL WITHOUT RAILING







S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SP 5.1


M
I
S


C
.
 
D


E
T


A
I
L


S


6


NOT TO SCALE


SP5.1


SANITARY/WATER MAIN BEDDING


WASHED STONE


UNSTABLE TRENCH *


"RIGID PIPE" INCLUDES REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE AND DUCTILE IRON PIPE ONLY.  ALL


OTHER PIPE MATERIALS SHALL BE CONSIDERED "FLEXIBLE PIPE".  THE WET TRENCH AND


UNSTABLE TRENCH DETAILS ARE DRAWN SHOWING A "RIGID PIPE" TRENCH INSTALLATION.


WET TRENCH *


*


3" BREAKER RUN


"RIGID PIPE" TRENCH *


D:  4" BELOW BARREL AND 3" BELOW BELL; IN ROCK, 6" BELOW BARREL


B:  FOR ROCK, OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF PIPE PLUS 18" (MAXIMUM)


"FLEXIBLE PIPE" TRENCH *


IMPORTED


GRANULAR


BACKFILL


GRAVEL


BEDDING


GRAVEL


BEDDING


SPRING LINE


OF PIPE


IMPORTED


GRANULAR


BACKFILL


GRAVEL


BACKFILL


A:  OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF PIPE PLUS 24" (MAXIMUM)


C:  MINIMUM - 6"


DIMENSIONS:


12"


A OR B


C


C


D


C


D


C


A OR B


12"


A


12"


12"


A


D


C


C


D


7


NOT TO SCALE


SP5.1


SANITARY CLEANOUT


ENDWALL GRATE DETAIL


NOT TO SCALE


5


SP5.1


NOTES:


- THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BOLT THE PIPE GATE TO THE CONCRETE ENDWALL WITH FOUR 3/8"x6"


MACHINE BOLTS WITH NUTS ON INSIDE WALL.


PAINTING SPECIFICATIONS:


- THE PIPE GATE SHALL RECEIVER THE FOLLOWING PREPARATION & PAINTING.  THE FIRST COAT SHALL


BE RUS-OLEUM X-60 RED  BARE METAL PRIMER OR APPROVED EQUAL.  THE SECOND COAT SHALL BE


RUST-OLEUM 960 ZINC CHROMATE PRIMER OR APPROVED EQUAL.  THE THIRD COAT SHALL BE


RUS-OLEUM 1282 HIGH GLOSS METAL FINISH OR APPROVED EQUAL.


PREPARATION STEPS:


1. BARE METAL SURFACES -  TREAT WITH THE THREE-COAT PAINTING SYSTEM LISTED AFTER A


THOROUGH SCRAPING, WIRE BRUSHING & CLEANING.


2. EACH COAT OF PAINT SHALL BE APPLIED OVER THE ENTIRE GATE SURFACE.


3. ALLOW 24-48 HOURS DRYING TIME AT 60° OR ABOVE BETWEEN COATS.


SHOP DRILL FOUR 7/16"


DIA. HOLES AS SHOWN


1" DIA. STD. PIPE FRAME


1" DIA. STD. PIPE FRAME


3/4" DIA. ROD - MAX.


WELD AT EACH PIPE


4"x4"x3/16" ANGLES


(4 REQ'D) WELD TO


FRAME & PROVIDE 7/16"


HOLE IN EACH ANGLE


8"


SLOPE ENDWALL AT


THE SAME SLOPE AS


THE STORM SEWER


ENDWALL DETAILS PIPE GATE DETAILS


1
2
"
O


C


SP5.1


1


TRUNCATED DOME DETAIL
3


SP5.1


NOT TO SCALE


WATER VALVE DETAIL


NOTES:


- SOLID CONCRETE BLOCKS SHALL BE USED. HARDWOOD BLOCKS ARE


PROHIBITED.


- VALVES SHALL BE SECURED WITH RODDING OR MEGALUGS TO THE NEAREST


"TEE" FITTING OR TO THE FIRST JOINT CONNECTING A FULL SECTION OF WATER


MAIN PIPE.


2


NOT TO SCALE


SP5.1


AIR AND VACUUM ISLAND SECTIONS


4


NOT TO SCALE


SP5.1


TANK LAYOUT 


CONCRETE PAVEMENT SLOPE PER GRADING PLAN


COMPACTED CLASS 5 PAVING BASE


A
IR


VACVAC


TRASH


COMPACTED SUB-GRADE


6
" B


O
LL


A
R
D


TOP OF ISLAND SLOPES


WITH GRADE


FINISH DRIVE/PAVEMENT GRADE


6" BOLLARD SET IN FOOTING SLEEVE (FOR FUTURE


REPLACEMENT) SET BOLLARD & SLEEVE INTO


CONCRETE FOOTING - MIN. 6" CLEARANCE BETWEEN


TOP OF BOLLARD FOOTING & BOTTOM OF CONCRETE


VACUUM ISLAND


ALL BOLLARDS TO BE FILLED WITH CONCRETE AND


WILL RECEIVE EXTERIOR SLEEVE/COVER AS SPECIFIED


BY OWNER


CONDUIT PER.


ELECTRICAL


PLANS TYP.


EXPANSION JOINT


FOOTING SLEEVE FOR BOLLARD


2" R


EXPANSION JOINT


#3 REBAR


12" O.C. BOTH WAYS


BROOM FINISH


FINISH DRIVE/


PAVEMENT GRADE


3
'
-
0
"


2
'
-
6
"


6" SEWER


MAINWYE


6" SEWER MAIN


CLEANOUT


A
S


 
R


E
Q


U
I
R


E
D


TURF


ROUND CONCRETE COLLAR


COVER


2
"


1
"


8
"


CONCRETE


CLEANOUT BOX


CLEANOUT PLUG


C.I. PIPE RISER


STANDARD 1/8 BEND


4" TYP.


CONCRETE ENCASEMENT


4" MIN. COVER


ELEVATION


PLAN


3/4" EXPANSION JOINT


W/JOINT SEAL


#3 BARS ALL AROUND


(W/6" OVERLAP)


SHORT LENGTH OF CAST IRON


PIPE FURNISHED W/CLEANOUT


BOX


TANK LAYOUT DIAGRAM 


ELEVATION LAYOUT DIAGRAM 


DSL


1
2


K


1
0


K


PREM


UNL


88


2
0


K


E85


1
0


K


UNL


2
0


K


4
2


.
0


'


9.0' 9.0' 9.0'


9.0'


ELEV. 902.23


ELEV. 902.45


TEST WELL


ELEV. 902.53


ELEV. 902.55


ELEV. 889.23


ELEV. 889.23


ELEV. 889.23


ELEV. 889.23


CURB LINE


ELEV. 902.54


20,000 GALLON


 (9' x 42')


UNL


ELEV. 902.54


20,000 GALLON


 (9' x 42')


UNL


12,000 GALLON


 (9' x 26')


DSL


TEST WELL


ELEV. 898.23


ELEV. 898.23


ELEV. 898.23


ELEV. 898.23


ELEV. 902.53


ELEV. 902.45


42.0'


1
0
.
5
'


1
5
.
5
'


1
4


.
0


'


46.0'


COVER


A/C PAVEMENT


BACK FILL


TRENCH


POLYETHYLENE OR


OTHER APPROVED MAT.


WRAP ALL AROUND


VALVE BOX, CAST IRON


POLYETHYLENE OR


OTHER APPROVED MAT.


WRAP ALL AROUND


BRICK LEVELING COURSE


GATE VALVE


BEDDING


SOLID CONC. BLOCK


3"


6"


VARIES"


20,000 GALLON SPLIT TANK


 (9' x 42')


PREM & E85


2.0' MIN.


5.0' MIN.


2.0' MIN.


CONCRETE


TRAFFIC ISLAND


TRANSITION FACE


OF CURB FROM


0" TO 6" HEIGHT


TRANSITION FACE


OF CURB FROM


0" TO 6" HEIGHT


TRUNCATED DOME


PLATE


MIN. MAX.


A


B


C


D


1.6"


0.65"


*


0.9"


2.4"


1.5"


*


1.4"


*  THE C DIMENSION IS 50% TO 65%


OF THE D DIMENSION.


PLAN


SECTION


A


B


A


B


C


D


0.2"


NEENAH TRUNCATED DOME PLATE


4.0'







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


N
O


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SWP 1.0


E
R


O
S


I
O


N
 
C


O
N


T
R


O
L


 
P


L
A


N


TOLL FREE
1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


60300


SCALE: 1" = 30'


PLOTTING NOTE: PLANS PLOTTED TO 11X17


SHEET SIZE ARE 


1


2


 SCALE - 1"=60'


SURFACE SOIL


SOIL DATA


POST-CONSTRUCTION IMPERVIOUS AREA


PRE-CONSTRUCTION IMPERVIOUS AREA


DISTURBED AREA


SITE AREA DATA


PROJECT DATA


CONCRETE W/ GRAVEL BASE OVER FILL


CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE


*INSTALL EROSION/SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES


*INSTALL STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SEDIMENT BASINS


*INSTALL STORM SEWER


*INSTALL STRUCTURES


*INSTALL PAVEMENTS


*INSTALL LAWN/ LANDSCAPE


*FLUSH STORM SEWER


*REMOVE EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ONLY AFTER ALL


PAVEMENTS HAVE BEEN INSTALLED AND ALL SOILS HAVE BEEN


STABILIZED


ESTIMATED PRELIMINARY EROSION CONTROL QUANTITIES


(ACTUAL QUANTITIES SUBJECT TO CHANGE)


ITEM


ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1 EA.


EROSION MAT 1,670 S.Y.


SILT FENCE 650 L.F.


NOTE: FOR MAINTENANCE PURPOSES CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY ALL SUFFICIENT


QUANTITIES FOR REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT OF EROSION CONTROL DEVICES


THROUGHOUT ALL PHASES OF THE PROJECTS CONSTRUCTION.


QUANTITY


INLET PROTECTION, TYPE A 0 EA.


72,415 SQ.FT.


 5,875 SQ.FT.


114,755 SQ.FT.


161,121 SQ.FT.


KWIK TRIP


STORE #738


TEMPORARY SILT FENCE


LOCATION, SEE DETAILS


ON SWP 1.2


STONE CONSTRUCTION


ENTRANCE, SEE DETAIL


ON SHEET SWP1.2


TEMPORARY


CONCRETE WASHOUT


AREA, SEE DETAIL ON


SHEET SWP1.2


RIP-RAP 20 C.Y.


INLET PROTECTION, TYPE D 6 EA.


INLET PROTECTION


TYPE "D", SEE


DETAIL ON SWP 1.2


TEMPORARY SILT FENCE


LOCATION, SEE DETAILS


ON SWP 1.2


PROPOSED RIP-RAP PAD,


SEE DETAIL ON SWP 1.2


ALL SLOPES 4:1 OR GREATER


SHALL HAVE TYPE B CLASS 2


EROSION MAT INSTALLED


CEDARBROOK    LANE


STONE CULVERT INLET PROTECTION 2 EA


STATE  HIGHWAY  51


C
O


U
N


T
Y


 
 
H


I
G


H
W


A
Y


 
 
N


WET POND


IN
FILTRATIO


N P
OND


PROPOSED RIP-RAP PAD,


SEE DETAIL ON SWP 1.2


INLET PROTECTION


TYPE "D", SEE


DETAIL ON SWP 1.2


INLET PROTECTION


TYPE "D", SEE


DETAIL ON SWP 1.2


INLET PROTECTION


TYPE "D", SEE


DETAIL ON SWP 1.2


INLET PROTECTION


TYPE "D", SEE


DETAIL ON SWP 1.2


INLET PROTECTION


TYPE "D", SEE


DETAIL ON SWP 1.2


ALL SLOPES 4:1 OR GREATER


SHALL HAVE TYPE B CLASS 2


EROSION MAT INSTALLED


STONE CULVERT


PROTECTION, SEE


DETAIL ON SWP 1.3


STONE CULVERT


PROTECTION, SEE


DETAIL ON SWP 1.3







S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SWP 1.1


E
R


O
S


I
O


N
 
C


O
N


T
R


O
L


 
N


O
T


E
S


P O L L U T I O N    C O N T R O L :


DESIGNATE A CONCRETE WASH-OUT AND TRUCK WASH AREA:


MAKE IT VISIBLE IN THE FIELD TO VEHICLE OPERATORS AND NOTE THIS ON THE SWPP PLAN.


WHEN WASHOUTS OCCUR ON THE SITE, CONCRETE WASHOUT WATER MUST BE CONTAINED IN A LEAK-PROOF CONTAINMENT FACILITY OR IMPERMEABLE 


LINER.  LIQUID AND SOLID WASTES MAY NOT TOUCH THE GROUND AND THERE MUST NOT BE RUNOFF FROM THE CONCRETE WASHOUT OPERATIONS OR


AREAS.


ON SITES WHERE CONCRETE WASHOUT AREAS ARE NOT FEASIBLE AS SHOWN ON THE DETAIL SHEET, ABOVE GROUND METHODS AND/OR OFF-SITE METHODS 


CAN BE UTILIZED AS APPROVED BY OWNER.


CONCRETE WASHOUT MAY BE PROVIDED OFF-SITE BY CONCRETE CONTRACTOR OR CONCRETE SUPPLIER, AT AN APPROVED WASHOUT DISPOSAL AREA. CONCRETE


SUPPLIER MAY PROVIDE CONCRETE WASHOUT AREAS ON-BOARD THEIR TRANSPORTS FOR DISPOSAL OFF-SITE. CONCRETE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY WITH


SUPPLIER IN REGARDS TO PROVIDED CONCRETE WASHOUT AREAS ON AND OFF-SITE, AS NECESSARY.


LIMIT EXTERNAL WASHING OF TRUCKS AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION VEHICLES TO A DEFINED AREA PREFERABLY BEFORE THE CONSTRUCTION ACCESS/EXIT


POINT.  WASH VEHICLES ONLY ON AN AREA STABILIZED WITH STONE THAT DRAINS INTO AN APPROVED SEDIMENT TRAPPING DEVICE. CONTAIN RUNOFF AND


PROPERLY DISPOSE OF WASTE. ENGINE DEGREASING IS PROHIBITED.


SOLID WASTE:  PROPERLY DISPOSE OF COLLECTED SEDIMENT, ASPHALT AND CONCRETE MILLINGS, FLOATING DEBRIS, PAPER, PLASTIC, FABRIC,


CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION DEBRIS, AND OTHER WASTES IN COMPLIANCE WITH STATE REQUIREMENTS.


HAZARDOUS MATERIALS:  PROPERLY DISPOSE OF ALL WASTE AND UNUSED BUILDING MATERIALS (INCLUDING GARBAGE DEBRIS, CLEANING WASTES, OIL,


GASOLINE, PAINT, WASTEWATER, TOXIC MATERIALS, AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS) OFF-SITE.  DO NOT ALLOW WASTE AND UNUSED BUILDING MATERIALS TO


BE CARRIED BY RUNOFF INTO A RECEIVING CHANNEL OR STORM SEWER SYSTEM.  PROPERLY STORE OIL, GASOLINE, PAINT, AND OTHER HAZARDOUS


MATERIALS IN ORDER TO PREVENT SPILLS, LEAKS, OR OTHER DISCHARGE.  INCLUDE SECONDARY CONTAINMENT.  RESTRICT ACCESS TO STORAGE AREAS IN


ORDER TO PREVENT VANDALISM.  STORAGE AND DISPOSAL OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MUST BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS.


MACHINERY:  AND MECHANIZED EQUIPMENT THAT LEAKS WASTE SHALL HAVE A PROTECTIVE BARRIER OR CONTAINMENT UNDER THE DEVICE ADEQUATE TO


CONTAIN THE WASTE. PROPERLY DISPOSE OF THE WASTE.


EMERGENCY SPILL STATION:  CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE AND SIGN AN EMERGENCY SPILL STATION THAT HAS NECESSARY CONTAINMENT OR CLEANUP


DEVICES FOR ALL WORKERS TO ACCESS.


SITE INVESTIGATION, INSTALLATION, IMPLEMENTATION :


PRIOR TO ANY WORK, CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT THE SITE, DOCUMENT EXISTING CONDITIONS AS NECESSARY(PHOTOS, NOTES, ETC) AND NOTE EXISTING


DRAINAGE PATTERNS ON AND OFF SITE THAT ARE RELATED TO THE PROJECT.  THESE NOTES SHALL BE PART OF THE SWPP.


INSTALL ALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES INCLUDING SILT FENCE, ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE(S), EROSION CONTROL


BERMS, ROCK FILTERS, SILT SACKS, ROCK /EARTH BERMS, AND SEDIMENTATION BASINS. PROTECT ALL RECEIVING WATERS, CATCH BASINS, DITCHES, INLETS


ETC. IN AND AROUND THE SITE.  ALL PROTECTIVE AND PREVENTATIVE MEASURES MUST BE IN PLACE AND INSPECTED PRIOR TO BEGINNING SITE CLEARING,


GRADING, OR OTHER LAND-DISTURBING ACTIVITY.


PRIOR TO BEGINNING SITE CLEARING AND GRADING, PROTECT ALL STORM SEWER INLETS THAT RECEIVE RUNOFF FROM DISTURBED AREAS.  IN ORDER TO


PREVENT SEDIMENT FROM LEAVING THE SITE AND ENTERING THE DOWNSTREAM STORM SEWER SYSTEM, SEAL ALL STORM SEWER INLETS THAT ARE NOT


NEEDED FOR SITE DRAINAGE DURING CONSTRUCTION.  PROTECT ALL OTHER STORM SEWER INLETS BY INSTALLING SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES, SUCH AS


SILT SACKS, OR ROCKED FILTRATION LOGS/WIERS.  STRAW BALES OR FABRIC UNDER THE GRATES ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE FORMS OF INLET PROTECTION.


PROTECT NEW STORM SEWER INLETS AS THEY ARE COMPLETED.  MAINTAIN STORM SEWER INLET PROTECTION IN PLACE UNTIL ALL SOURCES WITH


POTENTIAL FOR DISCHARGING TO THE INLETS ARE STABILIZED.


BEFORE BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION, INSTALL A TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE AT EACH POINT WHERE VEHICLES EXIT THE CONSTRUCTION


SITE WHEN AT ALL POSSIBLE CONTRACTOR SHALL DESIGNATE ONLY ONE ACCESS POINT FOR VEHICLES ENTERING AND EXITING THE SITE. THE ROCK ON THE


ENTRANCE WILL HAVE TO BE INSPECTED DAILY AND REPLACED OR ROCK SUPPLEMENTED BY THE CONTRACTOR WHEN OVER 50% OF THE VOIDS IN THE ROCK


ARE FILLED.  A CLEANING STATION SHOULD BE MADE AVAILABLE TO DRIVERS AND VISIBLY SIGNED AS SUCH.  PROVIDE SHOVELS, BROOMS AND/OR HOSE


WITH A WASH OUT AREA SO SOILS CAN BE REMOVED FROM VEHICLES ON SITE.


AVOID ENTIRE REMOVAL OF TREES AND SURFACE VEGETATION ALL AT ONCE WHENEVER POSSIBLE AS THIS LIMITS THE AMOUNT OF SITE SUSCEPTIBLE TO


EROSION.  SCHEDULE CONSTRUCTION ZONES AND NOTE THIS ON THE SWPP PLAN IN ORDER TO EXPOSE THE SMALLEST PRACTICAL AREA OF SOIL AT ANY


GIVEN TIME.  UTILIZE VEGETATION REMOVED BY ON SITE GRINDING AND MULCHING AND USING THIS MATERIAL TO PROTECT THE SOIL FROM EROSION.


FOLLOWING INITIAL SOIL DISTURBANCE OR REDISTURBANCE, COMPLETE PERMANENT OR TEMPORARY STABILIZATION AGAINST EROSION DUE TO RAIN, WIND,


AND RUNNING WATER WITHIN 7 CALENDAR DAYS ON ALL DISTURBED OR GRADED AREAS.  THIS REQUIREMENT DOES NOT APPLY TO THOSE AREAS THAT ARE


CURRENTLY BEING USED FOR MATERIAL STORAGE ON A DAILY BASIS OR FOR THOSE AREAS ON WHICH GRADING, SITE BUILDING, OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION


ACTIVITIES ARE ACTIVELY UNDERWAY.  PROVIDE TEMPORARY  COVER ON ALL STACKED TOPSOIL PILES, AND OTHER AREAS OF STOCKPILED EXCAVATED


MATERIAL IN ORDER TO PREVENT SOIL EROSION AND RAPID RUNOFF DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD. STOCKPILES CAN BE MULCHED,COVERED WITH


POLY OR FABRIC, AND OR SEEDED DURING PROLONGED EXPOSURE. PROLONGED PERIODS OF OPEN, BARE EARTH WITHOUT GRASS COVER WILL NOT BE


PERMITTED.  STABILIZE ALL DISTURBED GREENSPACE AREAS WITH A MINIMUM OF 4" TOPSOIL IMMEDIATELY AFTER FINAL SUBGRADE COMPLETION.  SEED


AND MULCH, OR SOD AND PROTECT THESE AREAS WITHIN 48 HOURS AFTER COMPLETION OF FINAL GRADING WORK (WEATHER PERMITTING).  STABILIZE ALL


DISTURBED AREAS TO BE PAVED USING EARLY APPLICATION OF GRAVEL BASE.  STABILIZE THE NORMAL WETTED PERIMETER OF ANY TEMPORARY OR


PERMANENT DRAINAGE DITCH THAT CONVEYS WATER FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE, OR DIVERTS WATER AROUND THE CONSTRUCTION SITE, WITHIN 200


LINEAL FEET FROM THE PROPERTY EDGE, OR WITHIN 200 FEET FROM THE POINT OF DISCHARGE TO ANY SURFACE WATER.  STABILIZE TEMPORARY OR


PERMANENT DRAINAGE DITCHES WITHIN 24 HOURS OF CONNECTING TO A SURFACE WATER. PROTECT OUTFALLS MINIMUM OF 200FEET DOWN STREAM AND


TO THE SIDE OF THE DISCHARGE POINT. ADDITIONAL SETTLING "POTS" ACHIEVED BY FILTER LOGS OR FILTERED STICK BALES STAKED IN THE CHANNEL WILL


DISSIPATE THE WATER ENERGY.  PROVIDE PIPE OUTLETS WITH TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT ENERGY DISSIPATION WITHIN 24 HOURS OF CONNECTION TO A


SURFACE WATER.


RECEIVING WATERS - IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO INSPECT THE SITE DISCHARGE POINT AS WELL AS DOWNSTREAM TO THE RECEIVING


BODY OF WATER(POND, LAKE, STREAM, ETC.) ON A REGULAR BASIS INCLUDING AFTER EACH STORM EVENT AND DOCUMENT IF ANY DIFFERENCES OR


CHANGES IN NORMAL IN DISCHARGE AND IF MATERIAL IS LEAVING THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.  IF SO IT SHALL BE DOCUMENTED AND REMOVED IMMEDIATELY.


NOTE:  ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES WILL BE CHECKED BY THE CONTRACTOR AFTER EACH STORM EVENT AND BE MAINTAINED, OR


IMPROVED UPON AFTER EVERY STORM EVENT TO ENSURE ADEQUATE PERFORMANCE.


S E D I M E N T   C O N T R O L :


ALL INLET PROTECTION SHALL BE TYPE - D AND ON THE WISCONSIN EROSION CONTROL PRODUCT ACCEPTABILITY LIST (PAL)


SILT FENCE:


INSTALL AND MAINTAIN PER WIDNR CONSERVATION PRACTICE STANDARD 1056.


INSTALL SILT FENCE ALONG THE CONTOUR (ON A LEVEL HORIZONTAL PLANE) WITH THE ENDS TURNED UP (J-HOOKS) IN ORDER TO HELP POND WATER BEHIND


THE FENCE.  INSTALL THE SILT FENCE ON THE UPHILL SIDE OF THE SUPPORT POSTS.  PROVIDE A POST SPACING OF 1.2 M (4 FEET) OR LESS.  DRIVE POSTS AT


LEAST 0.6 M (2 FEET) INTO THE GROUND.  ANCHOR THE SILT FENCE FABRIC IN A TRENCH AT LEAST 152 MM (6 INCHES) DEEP AND 152 MM (6 INCHES) WIDE DUG


ON THE UPSLOPE SIDE OF THE SUPPORT POSTS.  LAY THE FABRIC IN THE TRENCH AND THEN BACKFILL AND COMPACT WITH A VIBRATORY PLATE


COMPACTOR.  MAKE ANY SPLICES IN THE FABRIC AT A FENCE POST.  AT SPLICES, OVERLAP THE FABRIC AT LEAST 152 MM (6 INCHES), FOLD IT OVER, AND


SECURELY FASTEN IT TO THE FENCE POST.  SILT FENCE SUPPORTING POSTS SHALL BE 51 MM (2 INCH) SQUARE OR LARGER HARDWOOD, PINE, OR STANDARD


T- OR U-SECTION STEEL POSTS.  T- OR U-SECTION STEEL POSTS SHALL WEIGH NOT LESS THAN 1.8602 KG PER METER (1.25 LB PER LINEAL FOOT).  POSTS


SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM LENGTH OF 1524 MM (5 FEET).  POSTS SHALL HAVE PROJECTIONS TO FACILITATE FASTENING THE FABRIC AND PREVENT SLIPPAGE.


GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF WIDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION 628 FOR PREASSEMBLED SILT FENCE, FURNISHED IN A


CONTINUOUS ROLL IN ORDER TO AVOID SPLICES.  GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SHALL BE UNIFORM IN TEXTURE AND APPEARANCE AND HAVE NO DEFECTS, FLAWS,


OR TEARS.  THE FABRIC SHALL CONTAIN SUFFICIENT ULTRAVIOLET (UV) RAY INHIBITOR AND STABILIZERS TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM TWO-YEAR SERVICE LIFE


OUTDOORS.  FABRIC COLOR SHALL BE INTERNATIONAL ORANGE. IN HIGH TRAFFIC AREAS CONTRACTOR SHALL REINFORCE SILT FENCE WITH WIRE FENCING


AND METAL POSTS. EXTREME CIRCUMSTANCES WILL REQUIRE TEMPORARY CONCRETE MEDIAN SECTIONS TO SUPPORT MATERIAL BACKING OF STOCK PILED


SOIL OR FILLED EARTH.


INSTALL SILTFENCE, OR OTHER EFFECTIVE SEDIMENT CONTROLS, AROUND ALL TEMPORARY SOIL STOCKPILES.  LOCATE SOIL OR DIRT STOCKPILES


CONTAINING MORE THAN 10 CUBIC YARDS OF MATERIAL SUCH THAT THE DOWNSLOPE DRAINAGE LENGTH IS NO LESS THAN 8 M (25 FEET) FROM THE TOE OF


THE PILE TO A ROADWAY OR DRAINAGE CHANNEL.  IF REMAINING FOR MORE THAN SEVEN DAYS, STABILIZE THE STOCKPILES BY MULCHING, VEGETATIVE


COVER, TARPS, OR OTHER MEANS.  CONTROL EROSION FROM ALL STOCKPILES BY PLACING SILT FENCE BARRIERS AROUND THE PILES.  DURING STREET


REPAIR, COVER CONSTRUCTION SOIL OR DIRT STOCKPILES LOCATED CLOSER THAN 8 M (25 FEET) TO A ROADWAY OR DRAINAGE CHANNEL WITH TARPS, AND


PROTECT STORM SEWER INLETS WITH SILT SACKS OR STAKED SILTFENCE.  DO NOT STOCK PILE SOIL OR MATERIAL NEAR CATCH BASINS OR DRAINAGE


WAYS.


STONE TRACKING PAD (TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE:


INSTALL AND MAINTAIN PER WIDNR CONSERVATION PRACTICE STANDARD 1057. USE 3INCH TO 6" DIAMETER ROCK.  PLACE THE AGGREGATE IN A LAYER AT


LEAST 300 MM (12 INCHES) THICK ACROSS THE ENTIRE WIDTH OF THE ENTRANCE.  EXTEND THE ROCK ENTRANCE AT LEAST 15 M (50 FEET) INTO THE


CONSTRUCTION ZONE.  USE A WIDOT TYPE R PERMEABLE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC MATERIAL BENEATH THE AGGREGATE IN ORDER TO PREVENT MIGRATION OF


SOIL INTO THE ROCK FROM BELOW.  MAINTAIN THE ENTRANCE IN A CONDITION THAT WILL PREVENT TRACKING OR FLOWING OF SEDIMENT ONTO PAVED


ROADWAYS.  PROVIDE PERIODIC TOP DRESSING WITH ADDITIONAL STONE AS REQUIRED.  CLOSE ENTRANCES NOT PROTECTED BY TEMPORARY ROCK


CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES TO ALL CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC.


TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BASINS


IN THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS OR IF NOTED ON THE PLAN THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONSTRUCT TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BASIN(S). AS PER GENERAL RULE


THE SEDIMENT BASIN SHALL BE SIZED APPROPRIATELY TO A CAPACITY RELATED TO THE DRAINAGE AREA ON A RATIO OF 3,600 CUBIC FEET PER ACRE OF


DRAINAGE ZONE ENTERING THE BASIN.  BASINS SHALL BE INSPECTED AFTER EVERY RAINFALL EVENT, MATERIAL REMOVED AND STABILIZED. IF CHANGES TO


THE BASIN ARE MADE, DOCUMENT AND AMEND THE SWPP PLAN.


DEWATERING:


IF DEWATERING IS REQUIRED AND SUMP PUMPS ARE USED, ALL PUMPED WATER MUST BE DISCHARGED THROUGH AN EROSION CONTROL FACILITY


(TEMPORARY SEDIMENTATION BASIN, GRIT CHAMBER, SAND FILTER, UPFLOW CHAMBER, HYDRO-CYCLONE, SWIRL CONCENTRATOR, DEWATERING BAG OR


OTHER APPROPRIATE FACILITY) PRIOR TO LEAVING THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.  PROPER ENERGY DISSIPATION MUST BE PROVIDED AT THE OUTLET OF THE


PUMP SYSTEM.  DISCHARGE CLEAR WATER ONLY.  TO ACHIEVE BETTER SEPARATIONS OF THE MATERIAL SUSPENDED IN THE WATER A BIODEGRADABLE NOT


TOXIC FLOCCULANT AGENT MAY BE REQUIRED.


PUMPING OF WATER FROM FOUNDATION AREA DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL NOT EXCEED A RATE OF 70 GALLONS PER MINUTE.  SUMP PUMP SHALL BE


PLACED ON A CLEAR STONE BEDDING AND A CLOTH/MESH SOCK SHALL BE PLACED ON THE OUTLET END OF THE PIPE TO CONTROL SEDIMENT LOSS.


G E N E R A L   S T O R M W A T E R    P O L L U T I O N    P R E V E N T I O N :


APPLY FOR AND OBTAIN ALL NECESSARY PERMITS FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY.


STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP): THE SWPPP INCLUDES THIS NARRATIVE, PLAN SHEETS SP3, SP3.1 AND SP3.2, AND THE STORMWATER


MANAGEMENT CALCULATIONS.  KEEP A COPY OF THE SWPPP, ALL CHANGES TO IT, AND INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE RECORDS AT THE SITE DURING THE


CONSTRUCTION. DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS THE SWPPP WILL HAVE TO BE AMENDED FOR ALL CHANGES PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR.


THE OWNER SHALL BE AWARE OF THE AMENDMENTS PRIOR TO CHANGES MADE TO THE SWPPP PLAN.  ALL NOTES, PHOTOGRAPHS, RECORDED DATES,


SKETCHES, REFERENCES, AND DIAGRAMS WILL HAVE TO BE RECORDED AND MADE AVAILABLE AS PART OF THE SWPPP PERMIT.


INDIVIDUAL(S) PREPARING THE SWPPP FOR THE PROJECT, OVERSEEING IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SWPPP, REVISING AND AMENDING THE SWPPP, AND AT


LEAST ONE INDIVIDUAL ON THE PROJECT PERFORMING INSTALLATION, INSPECTION, MAINTENANCE, AND REPAIRS OF BMP'S MUST BE TRAINED.  THE


TRAINING MUST BE DONE BY A LOCAL, STATE, FEDERAL AGENCIES; PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATION; OR OTHER ENTITIES WITH EXPERTISE IN EROSION


PREVENTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL, OR PERMANENT STORMWATER MANAGEMENT.


RESPONSIBLE PARTIES: THE CONTRACTOR MUST DESIGNATE A PERSON KNOWLEDGEABLE AND EXPERIENCED IN THE APPLICATION OF EROSION PREVENTION


AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS WHO WILL OVERSEE THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SWPPP, AND THE INSTALLATION, INSPECTION, AND MAINTENANCE OF THE


EROSION PREVENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS BEFORE AND DURING CONSTRUCTION.


THE OWNER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR IDENTIFYING WHO WILL HAVE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE LONG TERM OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE PERMANENT


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS.


OWNER CONTACT:


NAME: BRAD FRY


COMPANY: KWIK TRIP INC.


ADDRESS: KWIK TRIP, INC. - STORE ENGINEERING


1626 OAK STREET, P.O. BOX 2107


LA CROSSE, WI 54602


TELEPHONE: (608) 793-6414


E R O S I O N    C O N T R O L   :


APPLY NECESSARY MOISTURE TO THE CONSTRUCTION AREA AND HAUL ROADS TO PREVENT THE SPREAD OF DUST.


CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE COARSELY GROUND WOOD AND TREE MULCHES TO COVER EXPOSED SOILS.  MULCHES SHALL BE SPORED ON SITE TO


SUPPLEMENT AND USE IN PROBLEM AREAS DURING ALL PHASES OF THE CONSTRUCTION PROJECT.


CONTRACTOR SHALL USES STAR TACK OR OTHER ORGANIC SUBSTANCES IN SITUATIONS TO PREVENT SOIL FROM ERODING AWAY BY WIND OR RAIN.


WHENEVER POSSIBLE CONTRACTOR SHALL GRADE AREAS OF SOIL TO LIMIT POTENTIAL OF EROSION, TO INCLUDE TRACKING PERPENDICULAR TO FALL LINE


OF GRADES AS WELL AS DIVERTING WATER FLOWS FROM PROBLEMATIC AREAS ON THE SITE.


SEEDING, FIBER BLANKETS, POLY/TARPS OR COVER MULCHES, DISKED MULCHES AND COMPOST CAN BE USED TO COVER TEMPORARILY EXPOSED AREAS


FROM WIND AND RAIN. OTHER METHODS BY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE DOCUMENTED IN THE SWPP.


G E N E R A L  S O I L   S T A B I L I Z A T I O N :


ESTABLISHMENT OF LAWN, PRAIRIE/WILDFLOWER AND/OR PLANT BED AREAS WILL BE NOTED ON THE LANDSCAPE PLAN


TO ENSURE STABILIZATION OF SOILS, RESTAKING OF SOD WHERE APPLICABLE, PROPER WATERING AND MULCH MAINTENANCE WILL BE REQUIRED. INSPECT


SEEDED OR SODDED AREAS ON A TIMELY DAY-TO-DAY BASIS.  IN THE EVENT OF A SEEDING FAILURE, RESEED AND REMULCH THE AREAS WHERE THE


ORIGINAL SEED HAS FAILED TO GROW AND PERFORM ADDITIONAL WATERING AS NECESSARY AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER. SPECIAL


MAINTENANCE PROVISIONS FOR WILD AND PRAIRIE GRASS SEEDED AREAS AS NOTED IN THE LANDSCAPE PLAN. PROMPTLY REPLACE ALL SOD THAT DRIES


OUT TO THE POINT WHERE IT IS PRESUMED DEAD AND ALL SOD THAT HAS BEEN DAMAGED, DISPLACED, WEAKENED, OR HEAVILY INFESTED WITH WEEDS AT


NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER. .


IN AREAS TO BE TEMPORARILY SEEDED, USE INTRODUCED SEED MIXTURE EQUIVALENT TO WIDOT #10 OR #20.  APPLY SEED MIXTURE PER WIDOT 630.3.3.5.


INCORPORATE A FERTILIZER (SLOW RELEASE TYPE WITH 10 WEEK RESIDUAL) CONSISTING OF 23-0-30 (%N-P-K) INTO THE SOIL AT AN APPLICATION RATE OF


224 KG PER HECTARE (200 LBS PER ACRE) BY DISKING PRIOR TO SEEDING.  IN PROBLEMATIC AREAS IT MAY BE NECESSARY TO USE A LOW PHOSPHORUS


ORGANIC FERTILIZER IN CASES WHERE SEEDS MAY NOT GERMINATE. IF THIS IS THE CASE, SEED AND FERTILIZER SHALL BE DISKED INTO THE SURFACE AND


MULCHED PROPERLY TO ENSURE GERMINATION AND UPTAKE OF THE PHOSPHORUS BY THE SEED.


TO ENSURE ADEQUATE GERMINATION OF THE SEED THE WORK WILL BE PERFORMED AS FOLLOWS:


SPRING- FROM APRIL 1 THROUGH MAY 15.


FALL- FROM AUGUST 15 TO SEPTEMBER 20.


AFTER SEPTEMBER 20, WAIT UNTIL OCTOBER 30 TO PERFORM DORMANT SEEDING.  DORMANT SEEDING WILL ONLY BE ALLOWED IF THE MAXIMUM SOIL


TEMPERATURE AT A DEPTH OF 25 MM (1 INCH) DOES NOT EXCEED 4.44 DEGREES C (40 DEGREES F) IN ORDER TO PREVENT GERMINATION.


IN SEEDED AREAS WITH SLOPES STEEPER THAN 3:1 AND LENGTHS LESS THAN 15 METERS (50 FEET), INSTALL BIODEGRADABLE EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS


UNIFORMLY OVER THE SOIL SURFACE BY HAND WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER SEEDING IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDATIONS.  USE


WIDOT URBAN TYPE B OR OWNER APPROVED EQUAL.


IN AREAS WHERE IRRIGATION IS TO BE INSTALLED, CONTRACTOR SHALL WORK IN ZONES TO FINISH GRADE AND INSTALL THE SYSTEM IN ZONES.  NOTE-


EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL SOILS HAVE BEEN STABILIZED WITH SOD OR SEEDED AREAS THAT EXHIBIT MINIMUM OF 70%


LAWN VEGETATIVE COVERAGE.  IF SILT FENCE HAS TO BE REMOVED TO INSTALL THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM, IT SHALL BE REINSTALLED AT THE END OF EACH


WORK DAY OR USE BIO ROLLS TO PROVIDE PROTECTION DURING THE INSTALLATION PROCESS UNTIL LAWN AREAS HAVE SOD AND/OR PLANT BEDS ARE


MULCHED.


IN AREAS TO BE SODDED, SILT FENCE CAN BE REMOVED SHORT TERM FOR WORKING, BUT EXPOSED SOIL AREAS SHALL BE SODDED OR EROSION CONTROL


MEASURES SHALL BE REINSTALLED AT THE END OF EACH WORK DAY.


NOTE:  THE PROJECT'S LANDSCAPE PLAN IS PART OF THE SWPP FOR SOIL STABILIZATION.  REFERENCES SHALL BE MADE TO THE APPROVED LANDSCAPE


PLAN.  AMENDMENTS TO THE LANDSCAPE PLAN SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE OWNER AND DOCUMENTED AS PART OF THE SWPP


I N S P E C T I O N S - M A I N T E N A N C E - D A I L Y  R E C O R D - A M E N D  T H E  S W P P  P L A N :


CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES, STABILIZED AREAS, AND INFILTRATION AREAS ON A DAILY BASIS UNTIL


LAND-DISTURBING ACTIVITY HAS CEASED.  THEREAFTER, INSPECT AT LEAST ON A WEEKLY BASIS UNTIL VEGETATIVE COVER IS ESTABLISHED.  INSPECT ALL


EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES, STABILIZED AREAS, AND INFILTRATION AREAS WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER A RAINFALL EVENT GREATER THAN 0.5


INCHES IN 24 HOURS.  REMOVE ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT DEPOSITS FROM BEHIND EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES AS NEEDED.  DO NOT ALLOW


SEDIMENT TO ACCUMULATE TO A DEPTH OF MORE THAN ONE-THIRD OF THE HEIGHT OF THE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES.  IMMEDIATELY


REPLACE DETERIORATED, DAMAGED, ROTTED, OR MISSING EROSION CONTROL DEVICES.  DOCUMENT INSPECTIONS AND DATES OF RAINFALL EVENTS.


MAINTAIN A WRITTEN LOG OF ALL INSPECTION, MAINTENANCE, AND REPAIR ACTIVITIES RELATED TO EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL FACILITIES.  ALL


NONFUNCTIONAL BMPS MUST BE REPAIRED, REPLACED, OR SUPPLEMENTED WTIH FUNCTIONAL BMPS WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER DISCOVERY, OR AS SOON AS


FIELD CONDITIONS ALLOW ACCESS.


ALL INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES MUST BE RECORDED IN WRITING DAILY IN A DETAILED RECORD(NOTES, PHOTOGRAPHS, SKETCHES, ETC,


AND KEPT WITH THE SWPPP BY THE CONTRACTOR.


CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL SOILS AND SEDIMENTS TRACKED OR OTHERWISE DEPOSITED ONTO ADJACENT PROPERTY, PAVEMENT AREAS, SIDEWALKS,


STREETS, AND ALLEYS.  REMOVAL SHALL BE ON A DAILY BASIS THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE CONSTRUCTION AND/OR AS DIRECTED BY THE CITY.


CLEAN PAVED ROADWAYS BY SHOVELING OR WET-SWEEPING.  DO NOT DRY SWEEP.  IF NECESSARY, SCRAPE PAVED SURFACES IN ORDER TO LOOSEN


COMPACTED SEDIMENT MATERIAL PRIOR TO SWEEPING.  HAUL SEDIMENT MATERIAL TO A SUITABLE DISPOSAL AREA.  STREET WASHING IS ALLOWED ONLY


AFTER SEDIMENT HAS BEEN REMOVED BY SHOVELING OR SWEEPING.


ALL SOIL HAULED FROM THE SITE SHALL BE ACCOUNTED FOR AND DOCUMENTED IN THE SWPP BY THE CONTRACTOR. ITS FINAL DESTINATION AND HOW THE


SOIL HAS BEEN STORED AND STABILIZED.


CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES IN PLACE UNTIL THE CONTRIBUTING DRAINAGE AREA HAS BEEN


STABILIZED (HARD-SURFACED AREAS PAVED AND VEGETATION ESTABLISHED IN GREENSPACE).  REPAIR ANY RUTTING, GULLY FORMATION, OR WASHOUTS.


AFTER FINAL ESTABLISHMENT OF PERMANENT STABILIZATION, REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY SYNTHETIC, STRUCTURAL, AND NONBIODEGRADABLE EROSION AND


SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICES AND ANY ACCUMULATED SEDIMENTS.  DISPOSE-OF OFF SITE.  RESTORE PERMANENT SEDIMENTATION BASINS TO THEIR


DESIGN CONDITION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING STABILIZATION OF THE SITE.


CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAN SEDIMENTATION BASINS, STORM SEWER CATCH BASINS, DITCHES, AND OTHER DRAINAGE FACILITIES AS REQUIRED IN ORDER TO


MAINTAIN THEIR EFFECTIVENESS.  TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT SEDIMENTATION BASINS MUST BE DRAINED AND THE SEDIMENT REMOVED WHEN THE


DEPTH OF SEDIMENT COLLECTED IN THE BASIN REACHES 1/2 OF THE STORAGE VOLUME.  DRAINAGE AND REMOVAL MUST BE COMPLETED WITHIN 72 HOURS,


OR AS SOON AS FIELD CONDITIONS ALLOW ACCESS.


CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT INFILTRATION AREAS TO ENSURE THAT NO SEDIMENT FROM ONGOING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES IS ACCUMULATING. REMOVE


SEDIMENT IMMEDIATELY ENSURING SUBSOILS ARE NOT COMPACTED BY MACHINERY.


EVERY VEHICLE SHALL NOT TRACK MATERIAL OFF-SITE. CLEAN THE WHEELS OF CONSTRUCTION VEHICLES IN ORDER TO REMOVE SOILS BEFORE THE


VEHICLES LEAVE THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.  WASH VEHICLES ONLY ON AN AREA STABILIZED WITH STONE THAT DRAINS INTO AN APPROVED SEDIMENT


TRAPPING DEVICE.


CONTRACTOR SHALL REINFORCE EROSION CONTROL FACILITIES IN AREAS WHERE CONCENTRATED FLOWS OCCUR (SUCH AS SWALES, DITCHES, AND AREAS


IN FRONT OF CULVERTS AND CATCH BASINS) BY BACKING THEM WITH SNOW FENCE, WIRE MESH, OR STIFF PLASTIC MESH REINFORCEMENT UNTIL PAVING


AND TURF ESTABLISHMENT OPERATIONS HAVE BEEN COMPLETED.  POSTS FOR THE REINFORCING FENCE SHALL BE 100 MM (4 INCH) DIAMETER WOOD POSTS,


OR STANDARD STEEL FENCE POSTS WEIGHING NOT LESS THAN 0.59 KG (1.3 LBS) PER LINEAL FOOT, WITH A MINIMUM LENGTH OF 762 MM (30 INCHES) PLUS


BURIAL DEPTH.  SPACE POSTS FOR THE REINFORCING FENCE AT INTERVALS OF 3 M (10 FEET) OR LESS.  DRIVE POSTS FOR THE REINFORCING FENCE AT


LEAST 0.6 M (2 FEET) INTO THE GROUND.







S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SWP 1.2


E
R


O
S


I
O


N
 
C


O
N


T
R


O
L


 
D


E
T


A
I
L


S


3:1


8'X8' MIN


3:1


3:1


3:1


TOP OF BERM


TOP OF BERM


T
O


P
 
O


F
 
B


E
R


M


T
O


P
 
O


F
 
B


E
R


M


SIGN


8'x8' MIN.


OR AS REQ'D TO


CONTAIN WASTE CONCRETE


12" MIN.


2'-0" MIN.


12" MIN.


3:1 OR FLATTER


SIDE SLOPES


EXISTING GRADE


COMPACTED


EMBANKMENT


MATERIAL,


TYP.


SURROUNDING


BERM


VEHICLE TRACKING


CONTROL PAD


PLAN VIEW


IMPERMEABLE LINER


(10MM PLASTIC, RUBBER OR


ENGINEERED CLAY)


CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA INSTALLATION NOTES


1. SEE EROSION CONTROL PLAN FOR LOCATIONS OF CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA(S). TO BE PLACED A MIN. OF 50' FROM


DRAINAGEWAYS, BODIES OF WATER, AND INLETS.)


2. THE CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA(S) SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY CONCRETE PLACEMENT ON SITE.


3. VEHICLE TRACKING CONTROL PAD IS REQ'D AT THE ACCESS POINT(S).


4. SIGNS SHALL BE PLACED AT THE CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE, AT THE WASHOUT AREA(S), AND ELSEWHERE AS


NECESSARY TO CLEARLY INDICATE THE LOCATION OF THE CONCRETE WASHOUT AREAS TO OPERATORS OF CONCRETE


TRUCKS AND PUMP RIGS.


5. EXCAVATED MATERIAL SHALL BE UTILIZED IN PERIMETER BERM CONSTRUCTION.


CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA MAINTENANCE NOTES


6. THE CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA SHALL BE REPAIRED AND ENLARGED OR CLEANED OUT AS NECESSARY TO MAINTAIN


CAPACITY FOR WASTED CONCRETE


7. AT THE END OF CONSTRUCTION, ALL CONCRETE SHALL BE REMOVED FROM SITE AND DISPOSED OF AT AN APPROVED


WASTE SITE.


8. WHEN CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA(S) IS REMOVED, THE DISTURBED AREA SHALL BE STABILIZED PER SITE EROSION


CONTROL MEASURES.


9. INSPECT WEEKLY AND DURING AND AFTER ALL STORM EVENTS. CLEAN-OUT OR COVER WASHOUT AREA PRIOR TO


PREDICTED STORM EVENTS TO PREVENT OVER-FLOW.


1


1


12" THICK


MIN.


EXISTING PAVEMENT


3" - 6" CLEAR STONE, ALL


MATERIAL TO BE RETAINED ON 3"


SIEVE.


MIN. 12" THICK


GEOTEXTILE MATERIAL


(WIS DOT TYPE-R)6" HIGH BERM


3'


5
:15


:


1


NOTE:  MAINTAIN THE ROCK ENTRANCE TO PREVENT TRACKING ONTO PAVEMENT


FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE PLACED UNDER ROCK TO STOP MUD MIGRATION THROUGH ROCK.


2


0


'


 


M


I


N


.


1


0


'


 


M


I


N


.


7


5


'


 


M


I


N


.


E


X


I


S


T


I


N


G


 


R


O


A


D


W


A


Y


NOT TO SCALE


5
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE DETAIL


NOT TO SCALE


4
CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA


TYPICAL SECTION


SWP1.2


SWP1.2


ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES TO BE INSTALLED AND


MAINTAINED PER WDNR STANDARDS


GENERAL NOTES:


MANUFACTURED ALTERNATIVES APPROVED AND LISTED ON WIS DOT PRODUCT ACCEPTABILITY LIST MAY BE SUBSTITUTED.


WHEN REMOVING OR MAINTAINING INLET PROTECTION, ARE SHALL BE TAKEN SO THAT THE SEDIMENT TRAPPED ON THE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC


DOES NOT FALL INTO THE INLET.  ANY MATERIAL FALLING INTO THE INLET SHALL BE REMOVED IMMEDIATELY.


    FINISHED SIZE, INCLUDING FLAP POCKETS WHERE REQUIRED SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM OF 10"


    AROUND THE PERIMETER TO FACILITATE MAINTENANCE OR REMOVAL.


    FOR INLET PROTECTION, TYPE C (WITH CURB BOX), AN ADDITIONAL 18" OF FABRIC IS WRAPPED


    AROUND THE WOOD AND SECURED WITH STAPLES.  THE WOOD SHALL NOT BLOCK THE ENTIRE


    HEIGHT OF THE CURB BOX OPENING.


    FLAP POCKET SHALL BE LARGE ENOUGH TO ACCEPT A WOOD 2" x 4".


1


2


3


INSTALLATION NOTES:


TYPE C


· TRIM EXCESS FABRIC IN THE FLOW LINE TO WITHIN 3" OF THE GRATE.


· THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DEMONSTRATE A METHOD OF MAINTENANCE, USING A SEWN FLAP, HAND HOLDS OR OTHER


METHOD TO PREVENT ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT FROM ENTERING THE INLET.


TYPE D


· DO NOT INSTALL INLET PROTECTION TYPE D IN INLETS SHALLOWER THAN 30", MEASURED FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE


INLET TO THE TOP OF THE GRATE.


· THE INSTALLED BAG SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM SIDE CLEARANCE, BETWEEN THE INLET WALLS AND THE BAG, MEASURED AT


THE BOTTOM OF THE OVERFLOW HOLES, OF 3".  WHERE NECESSARY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CINCH THE BAG, USING


PLASTIC ZIP TIES, TO ACHIEVE THE 3" CLEARANCE.  THE TIES SHALL BE PLACED AT A MAXIMUM OF 4" FROM THE BOTTOM


OF THE BAG.


5xD (MIN.)


OR AS NOTED ON PLANS


W+4' (MIN.)


OR AS


NOTED ON


THE PLANS


MEDIUM RIP-RAP


18" MIN.


MEDIUM RIP-RAP


ENDWALL


ENDWALL


NATIVE SOIL


NOTE:


RIP-RAP SHALL BE A MINIMUM


OF 2 C.Y. PER ENDWALL.


6"-12"


D,


PIPE DIA.


W,


END SECTION WIDTH


NOT TO SCALE


3
BASIN OUTFALL RIPRAP DETAIL


SWP1.2


2'


2'


2"x4" FRAME


AROUND


INLET.


GEOTEXTILE


FABRIC


(TYPE FF)


ALL


AROUND


INLET.


STAPLE


TO FRAME.


MIN. 6"


INLET PROTECTION, TYPE A


PROPOSED


SURFACE


INLET


INLET PROTECTION, TYPE C


(WITH CURB BOX)


GEOTEXTILE


FABRIC,


(TYPE FF)


1


2


WOOD 2"x4" EXTENDS 10"


BEYOND GRATE WIDTH ON BOTH


SIDES, LENGTH VARIES.  SECURE


TO GRATE WITH WIRE OR


PLASTIC TIES.


GEOTEXTILE


FABRIC,


TYPE FF


INLET


SPECIFICATIONS


AS PER


THE PLAN


DIMENSION


LENGTH


AND WIDTH


TO MATCH


FRONT, BACK, AND


BOTTOM TO BE MADE


SINGLE PIECE OF FABRIC.


MINIMUM DOUBLE STITCHED


SEAMS ALL AROUND SIDE


PIECES AND ON FLAP POCKETS.


4" x 6" OVAL HOLE SHALL BE HEAT


CUT INTO ALL FOUR SIDE PANELS.


1


2


"


FLAP POCKET


8
"


4"


1
2
"


USE REBAR OR STEEL ROD FOR REMOVAL


OR FOR INLETS WITH A CAST CURB BOX;


USE A WOOD 2" x 4" EXTENDED 10" BEYOND SIDES


OF GRATE.  CONNECT


2" x 4" TO GRATE WITH WIRE OR PLASTIC TIES


INLET PROTECTION, TYPE D


3


1


3


NOT TO SCALE


SWP1.2


1
STORM WATER INLET PROTECTION


CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS


TRENCH WITH GRAVEL


ALTERNATE DETAIL


12" MIN.


TRENCH WITH NATIVE BACKFILL


STANDARD DETAIL


RUNOFF


12" MIN.


WOOD POST


STEEL OR


PONDING HT.


GRAVEL 


8"


RUNOFF


FLOW


PONDING HT.


FLOW


FLOW


THE HEIGHT OF A SILT FENCE SHALL NOT EXCEED 36 INCHES.


STORAGE HEIGHT SHALL NEVER EXCEED 18".


THE FENCE LINE SHALL FOLLOW THE CONTOUR AS CLOSELY AS 


POSSIBLE.


IF POSSIBLE, THE FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE CUT FROM A


CONTINUOUS ROLL TO AVOID THE USE OF JOINTS. WHEN JOINTS ARE


NECESSARY, FILTER CLOTH SHALL BE SPLICED ONLY AT A SUPPORT


POST, WITH A MINIMUM 6-INCH OVERLAP AND BOTH ENDS SECURELY


FASTENED TO THE POST.


POSTS SHALL BE SPACED A MAXIMUM OF 10 FEET APART AND DRIVEN


SECURELY INTO THE GROUND (MINIMUM OF 12 INCHES). WHEN EXTRA


STRENGTH FABRIC IS USED WITHOUT THE WIRE SUPPORT FENCE, POST


SPACING SHALL NOT EXCEED 6 FEET.


THE ENDS OF THE FENCE SHALL BE TURNED UPHILL.


A TRENCH SHALL BE EXCAVATED APPROXIMATELY 4 INCHES WIDE AND


6 INCHES DEEP ALONG THE LINE OF POSTS AND UPSLOPE FROM THE


BARRIER.


WHEN STANDARD-STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC IS USED, A WIRE MESH


SUPPORT FENCE SHALL BE FASTENED SECURELY TO THE UPSLOPE SIDE


OF THE POSTS USING HEAVY DUTY WIRE STAPLES AT LEAST 1 INCH


LONG, TIE WIRES OR HOG RINGS. THE WIRE SHALL EXTEND INTO THE


TRENCH A MINIMUM OF 2 INCHES AND SHALL NOT EXTEND MORE THAN


36 INCHES ABOVE THE ORIGINAL GROUND SURFACE.


THE STANDARD-STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE STAPLED OR


WIRED TO THE FENCE, AND 6 INCHES OF THE FABRIC SHALL EXTEND


INTO THE TRENCH. THE FABRIC SHALL NOT EXTEND MORE THAN 36


INCHES ABOVE THE ORIGINAL GROUND SURFACE. FILTER FABRIC


SHALL NOT BE STAPLED TO EXISTING TREES.


WHEN EXTRA-STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC AND CLOSER POST SPACING


ARE USED, THE WIRE MESH SUPPORT FENCE MAY BE ELIMINATED. IN


SUCH A CASE, THE FILTER FABRIC IS STAPLED OR WIRED DIRECTLY


TO THE POSTS.


THE TRENCH SHALL BE BACKFILLED AND/OR THE SOIL COMPACTED OVER


THE TOE OF THE FILTER FABRIC.  THE FILTER FABRIC SHALL NOT BE


SILT FENCES PLACED AT THE TOE OF A SLOPE SHALL BE SET AT


LEAST 6 FEET FROM THE TOE IN ORDER TO INCREASE PONDING


VOLUME.


SILT FENCES SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN THEY HAVE SERVED THEIR


USEFUL PURPOSE, BUT NOT BEFORE THE UPSLOPE AREA HAS BEEN


PERMANENTLY STABILIZED, AND ANY SEDIMENT STORED BEHIND THE


SILT FENCE HAS BEEN REMOVED.


SILT FENCES AND FILTER BARRIERS SHALL BE INSPECTED WEEKLY


AND AFTER EACH SIGNIFICANT STORM (1" IN 24 HR.). ANY


REQUIRED REPAIRS SHALL BE MADE IMMEDIATELY.


SEDIMENT SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN IT REACHES 1/3 HEIGHT


OF THE FENCE OR 9 INCHES MAXIMUM.


THE REMOVED SEDIMENT SHALL BE VEGETATED OR OTHERWISE STABILIZED.


INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE


SECURED BY SAND BAGS.


ALTERNATE DETAIL


PONDING HT.


RUNOFF


SOIL BACKFILL


12" MIN.


6"


SILT FENCE B


SILT FENCE A


FABRIC TO BE WRAPPED


AROUND FENCE POST


ROLL JOINTS


10 FT MAX SPACING WITH


WIRE SUPPORT FENCE 6 FT


MAX SPACING WITHOUT


WIRE SUPPORT FENCE


STEEL OR  WOOD POST 36"


HIGH MAX


FILTER FABRIC ATTACH


SECURELY TO UPSTREAM


SIDE OF POST.


9" MAX.  (RECOMMENDED)


STORAGE HT.


NOT TO SCALE


2
SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAILS


CONTINUOUS COMPACTED


SOIL BACKFILL


4"x6" TRENCH  WITH


COMPACTED  BACKFILL


EXTRA STRENGTH FILTER


FABRIC NEEDED WITHOUT


WIRE MESH SUPPORT


SWP1.2







S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#


7
3


8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / M. WAHL


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


SWP 1.3


E
R


O
S


I
O


N
 
C


O
N


T
R


O
L


 
D


E
T


A
I
L


S


NOT TO SCALE


SWP1.3


5


NOT TO SCALE


SWP1.3


3


4.


2.


5.


1.


3(A)


3(B)


NOTE: REFER TO GENERAL STAPLE PATTERN GUIDE FOR CORRECT


     STAPLE PATTERN RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SLOPE INSTALLATIONS.


1. PREPARE SOIL BEFORE INSTALLING BLANKETS, INCLUDING APPLICATION OF FERTILIZER AND SEED.


   NOTE: WHEN USING CELL-O-SEED DO NOT SEED PREPARED AREA. CELL-O-SEED MUST BE


   INSTALLED WITH PAPER SIDE DOWN.


2. BEGIN AT THE TOP OF THE SLOPE BY ANCHORING THE BLANKET IN 6" DEEP X 6" WIDE TRENCH.


   BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER STAPLING.


3. ROLL THE BLANKETS (A.) DOWN OR (B.) HORIZONTALLY ACROSS THE SLOPE.


4. THE EDGES OF PARALLEL BLANKETS MUST BE STAPLED WITH APPROXIMATELY 2" OVERLAP.


5. WHEN BLANKETS MUST BE SPLICED DOWN THE SLOPE, PLACE BLANKETS END OVER END (SHINGLE


   STYLE) WITH APPROXIMATELY 4" OVERLAP. STAPLE THROUGH OVERLAPPED AREA, APPROXIMATELY


   12" APART.


6. ALL BLANKETS MUST BE SECURELY FASTENED TO THE SLOPE BY PLACING STAPLES/STAKES IN


   APPROPRIATE LOCATIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE MANUFACTURER.


NOT TO SCALE


1
EROSION CONTROL MAT - SLOPE INSTALLATION


SWP1.3


NOT USED


STONE CULVERT PROTECTION DETAIL


NOT TO SCALE


2


SWP1.3


EROSION CONTROL MAT - CHANNEL INSTALLATION


FRONT VIEW


NOTE: STONE CULVERT PROTECTION SHOWN


      TO BE USED FOR CULVERTS UP TO


      18" IN DIAMETER. CONSULT ENGINEER


      FOR MODIFICATIONS FOR >18" DIAMETER


      CULVERTS.


2


1


FLOW DIRECTION


CULVERT


ENDWALL


FLOW DIRECTION


CULVERT


PLAN VIEW


SECTION A-A


A A


POULTRY NETTING


20 GAUGE, GALVANIZED


STEEL FENCE


POSTS.


STEEL FENCE POSTS.


1"-2" WASHED STONE


RIP RAP


STEEL FENCE POSTS.


20 GA POULTRY NETTING


1.


6.


7.


2.


5.


4.8.


3.


PREPARE SOIL BEFORE INSTALLING BLANKETS, INCLUDING APPLICATION OF FERTILIZER AND SEED.


1.


BEGIN AT THE TOP OF THE CHANNEL BY ANCHORING THE BLANKET IN A 6" DEEP X 6" WIDE TRENCH WITH


APPROXIMATELY 12" OF BLANKET EXTENDED BEYOND THE UP-SLOPE PORTION OF THE TRENCH.  ANCHOR THE


BLANKET WITH A ROW OF STAPLES/STAKES APPROXIMATELY 12" APART IN THE BOTTOM OF THE TRENCH.


BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER STAPLING.  APPLY SEED TO COMPACTED SOIL AND FOLD


REMAINING 12" PORTION OF BLANKET BACK OVER SEED AND COMPACTED SOIL.  SECURE BLANKET OVER


COMPACTED SOIL WITH A ROW OF STAPLES/STAKES SPACED APPROXIMATELY 12" APART ACROSS THE WIDTH OF


THE BLANKET


2.


ROLL CENTER BLANKET IN DIRECTION OF WATER FLOW IN BOTTOM OF CHANNEL.  BLANKETS WILL UNROLL WITH


APPROPRIATE SIDE AGAINST THE SOIL SURFACE.  ALL BLANKETS MUST BE SECURELY FASTENED TO THE SOIL


SURFACE BY PLACING STAPLES/STAKES IN APPROPRIATE LOCATIONS AS RECOMMENDED BY THE


MANUFACTURER.


3.


PLACE CONSECUTIVE BLANKETS END OVER END (SHINGLE STYLE) WITH A 4-6" OVERLAP.  USE A DOUBLE ROW OF


STAPLES STAGGERED 4" APART AND 4" ON CENTER TO SECURE BLANKETS.


4.


FULL LENGTH EDGE OF BLANKETS AT TOP OF SIDE SLOPE MUST BE ANCHORED WITH A ROW OF STAPLES/STAKES


APPROXIMATELY 12" APART IN A 6" DEEP X 6" WIDE TRENCH.  BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER


STAPLING.


5.


ADJACENT BLANKETS MUST BE OVERLAPPED APPROXIMATELY 4" AND STAPLED.


6.


A STAPLE CHECK SLOT IS RECOMMENDED AT 30 TO 40 FOOT INTERVALS.  USE A DOUBLE ROW OF STAPLES


STAGGERED 4" APART AND 4" ON CENTER OVER ENTIRE WIDTH OF THE CHANNEL.


7.


THE TERMINAL END OF THE BLANKETS MUST BE ANCHORED WITH A ROW OF STAPLES/STAKES APPROXIMATELY


12" APART IN A 6" DEEP X 6" WIDE TRENCH.  BACKFILL AND COMPACT THE TRENCH AFTER STAPLING.


8.


NOTE:  IN LOOSE SOIL CONDITIONS, THE USE OF STAPLES OR STAKE LENGTHS GREATER THAN 6" MAY BE


NECESSARY TO PROPERLY ANCHOR THE BLANKETS.


12"


6"


6"


6"


4"


4"


2'-5"


4'-6"


6"


NOT USED


NOT TO SCALE


4


SWP1.3







FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / L. OLSON


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


1
7
0
0
 
E


.
 
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#
7
3
8


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


L1.0


L
A


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 
N


O
T


E
S


1. DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED TO BE PRINTED ON 22 X 34 PAPER.  PRINTING THESE


DRAWINGS AT A DIFFERENT SIZE WILL IMPACT THE SCALE.  VERIFY THE GRAPHIC


SCALE BEFORE REFERENCING ANY MEASUREMENTS ON THESE SHEETS.  THE


RECIPIENT OF THESE DRAWINGS SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ERRORS


RESULTING FROM INCORRECT PRINTING, COPYING, OR ANY OTHER CHANGES


THAT ALTER THE SCALE OF THE DRAWINGS.


2. VERIFY ALL PLAN DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION. NOTIFY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE TO ADDRESS ANY QUESTIONS OR CLARIFY ANY


DISCREPANCIES.


3. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS.


4. GEOTECHNICAL SOILS REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS SHALL BE FOLLOWED


DURING CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE THESE CONTRACT


DOCUMENTS AS A BASIS FOR THE BID. 


5. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM THAT SITE CONDITIONS ARE SIMILAR TO THE


PLANS, WITHIN TOLERANCES STATED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS,  AND


SATISFACTORY TO THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO START OF WORK.  SHOULD SITE


CONDITIONS BE DIFFERENT THAN REPRESENTED ON THE PLANS OR


UNSATISFACTORY TO THE CONTRACTOR, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT


THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR CLARIFICATION AND FURTHER DIRECTION.


6. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO PAY FOR, AND OBTAIN, ANY REQUIRED


APPLICATIONS, PERMITTING, LICENSES, INSPECTIONS AND METERS ASSOCIATED


WITH WORK.


7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES


ASSESSED TO THE OWNER RELATING TO ANY VIOLATIONS OR


NON-CONFORMANCE WITH THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, CONTRACT


DOCUMENTS, JURISDICTIONAL CODES, AND REGULATORY AGENCIES.


8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATION OF ALL UTILITY


LOCATES PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION. REFER TO ENGINEERING UTILITY PLANS


FOR ALL PROPOSED UTILITY LOCATIONS AND DETAILS.  NOTIFY OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE IF EXISTING OR PROPOSED UTILITIES INTERFERE WITH THE


ABILITY TO PERFORM WORK.


9. UNLESS IDENTIFIED ON THE PLANS FOR DEMOLITION OR REMOVAL, THE


CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COST TO REPAIR UTILITIES, ADJACENT


OR EXISTING LANDSCAPE, ADJACENT OR EXISTING PAVING, OR ANY PUBLIC AND


PRIVATE PROPERTY THAT IS DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR OR THEIR


SUBCONTRACTOR'S OPERATIONS DURING INSTALLATION, ESTABLISHMENT OR


DURING THE SPECIFIED MAINTENANCE PERIOD.  ALL DAMAGES SHALL BE


REPAIRED TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS AS DETERMINED BY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.  CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR


LOGGING ANY DAMAGES PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION AND DURING THE


CONTRACT PERIOD.


10. ALL WORK SHALL BE CONFINED TO THE AREA WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION


LIMITS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. ANY AREAS OR IMPROVEMENTS DISTURBED


OUTSIDE THESE LIMITS SHALL BE RETURNED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION AT


THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE. IN THE EVENT THE CONTRACTOR REQUIRES A


MODIFICATION TO THE CONSTRUCTION LIMITS, WRITTEN PERMISSION MUST BE


OBTAINED FROM THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO ANY DISTURBANCE


OUTSIDE OF THE LIMITS OF WORK.


11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REPAIR OF ANY OF THEIR


TRENCHES OR EXCAVATIONS THAT SETTLE.


12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT A TRAFFIC


CONTROL PLAN TO THE APPROPRIATE JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES AND THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IF THEIR WORK AND OPERATIONS AFFECT OR


IMPACT THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  OBTAIN APPROVAL PRIOR TO ANY WORK


WHICH AFFECTS OR IMPACTS THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  THE CONTRACTOR


SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES ASSESSED TO THE


OWNER RELATING TO THIS REQUIREMENT DURING THE CONTRACT PERIOD.


13. SIGHT TRIANGLES AND SIGHT LINES SHALL REMAIN UNOBSTRUCTED BY


EQUIPMENT, CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, PLANT MATERIAL OR ANY OTHER


VISUAL OBSTACLE DURING THE CONTRACT PERIOD AND AT MATURITY OF


PLANTS PER LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS.


14. NO PLANT MATERIAL OTHER THAN GROUND COVER IS ALLOWED TO BE PLANTED


ADJACENT TO FIRE HYDRANTS AS STIPULATED BY JURISDICTIONAL


REQUIREMENTS.


15. COORDINATE SITE ACCESS, STAGING, STORAGE AND CLEANOUT AREAS WITH


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.


16. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING TEMPORARY SAFETY FENCING


AND BARRIERS AROUND ALL IMPROVEMENTS SUCH AS WALLS, PLAY


STRUCTURES, EXCAVATIONS, ETC. ASSOCIATED WITH THEIR WORK UNTIL SUCH


FACILITIES ARE COMPLETELY INSTALLED PER THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND


MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.


17. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTION OF THEIR MATERIAL


STOCK PILES AND WORK FROM VANDALISM, EROSION OR UNINTENDED


DISTURBANCE DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD AND UNTIL FINAL


ACCEPTANCE IS ISSUED.


18. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KNOW, UNDERSTAND AND ABIDE BY ANY STORM


WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) ASSOCIATED WITH THE SITE.  IF


A STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE, REQUEST A COPY BEFORE PERFORMANCE OF ANY


SITE WORK.


19. MAINTAIN ANY STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES THAT EXIST ON SITE


FOR FULL FUNCTIONALITY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL AND MAINTAIN


ANY NEW STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES THAT ARE IDENTIFIED IN THE


SCOPE OF WORK TO FULL FUNCTIONALITY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE


RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES ASSESSED TO THE OWNER FOR


FAILURE TO MAINTAIN STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES DURING THE


CONTRACT PERIOD.


20. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT SEDIMENT, DEBRIS AND ALL OTHER


POLLUTANTS FROM EXITING THE SITE OR ENTERING THE STORM SEWER


SYSTEM DURING ALL DEMOLITION OR CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS THAT ARE


PART OF THE LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE


RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES ASSESSED TO THE OWNER


RELATING TO THESE REQUIREMENTS DURING THEIR CONTRACTED COURSE OF


WORK.


21. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO PREVENT ANY IMPACTS TO


ADJACENT WATERWAYS, WETLANDS, OR OTHER ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE


AREAS RESULTING FROM WORK DONE AS PART OF THIS PROJECT.  THE


CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES


ASSESSED TO THE OWNER RELATING TO THESE STANDARDS DURING THEIR


CONTRACTED COURSE OF WORK.


GENERAL NOTES


22. THE CONTRACTOR AND/OR THEIR AUTHORIZED AGENTS SHALL ENSURE THAT ALL


LOADS OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL IMPORTED TO OR EXPORTED FROM THE


PROJECT SITE SHALL BE PROPERLY COVERED TO PREVENT LOSS OF MATERIAL


DURING TRANSPORT.  TRANSPORTATION METHODS ON PUBLIC RIGHT-OF WAYS


SHALL CONFORM TO JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL


BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES ASSESSED TO THE OWNER


RELATING TO THESE REQUIREMENTS.


23. THE CLEANING OF EQUIPMENT IS PROHIBITED AT THE JOB SITE UNLESS


AUTHORIZED BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IN A DESIGNATED AREA. THE


DISCHARGE OF WATER, WASTE CONCRETE, POLLUTANTS, OR OTHER MATERIALS


SHALL ONLY OCCUR IN AREAS DESIGNED FOR SUCH USE AND APPROVED BY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.


24. THE CLEANING OF CONCRETE EQUIPMENT IS PROHIBITED AT THE JOB SITE


EXCEPT IN DESIGNATED CONCRETE WASHOUT AREAS. THE DISCHARGE OF


WATER CONTAINING WASTE CONCRETE IN THE STORM SEWER IS PROHIBITED.


25. LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS, RESTRICTIONS OR


PROCEDURES SHALL SUPERSEDE THESE PLANS, NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS


WHEN MORE STRINGENT.  NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IF CONFLICTS


OCCUR.


GENERAL NOTES CONTINUED


1. UTILITY WARNING: THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD


SURVEY INFORMATION AND/OR RECORDS OBTAINED.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO


GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE


AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED.  THE SURVEY FURTHER DOES NOT


WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT  LOCATION INDICATED.


2. NOTIFY UTILITY OWNERS PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION.


CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING EXISTENCE, EXACT LOCATION


AND DEPTH OF ALL UTILITIES.  AVOID DAMAGE TO UTILITIES AND SERVICES


DURING CONSTRUCTION.  ANY DAMAGE DUE TO THE CONTRACTOR'S


CARELESSNESS SHALL BE CORRECTED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.


COORDINATE AND COOPERATE WITH UTILITY COMPANIES DURING


CONSTRUCTION.


3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW THE LANDSCAPE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS


AS CLOSELY AS POSSIBLE. ANY SUBSTITUTION OR ALTERATION SHALL NOT BE


ALLOWED WITHOUT APPROVAL OF THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE. OVERALL


PLANT QUANTITY AND QUALITY SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE PLANS.


4. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL AT LEAST MEET MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS SHOWN IN


THE "AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK" (ANSI Z60.1-LATEST EDITION).


5. MULCH SHALL NOT BE PLACED AROUND THE COLLAR OF SHRUB OR TREE.


PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 2" BETWEEN MULCH AND COLLAR OF SHRUB OR TREE.


6. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE GROWN IN ZONE CAPABLE OF WITHSTANDING


LOCAL CLIMATE AND GROWING CONDITIONS.


7. TREE OR SHRUB SHALL STAND PLUMB.  DO NOT ALLOW AIR POCKETS TO FORM


WHEN BACK FILLING.


8. LIVE PLANTS CAN BE PLANTED IN THE FIELD DURING THE GROWING SEASON FROM


MAY 1 THROUGH OCTOBER 1.  ANY  SUGGESTED PLANTING TIMES NOT IN THIS


WINDOW SHALL BE APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. IF PLANTING OCCURS


OUTSIDE OF THIS WINDOW, ADDITIONAL MEASURES MAY NEED TO BE TAKEN (I.E.


MULCH) TO ENSURE PLANT SURVIVAL.  IN THESE INSTANCES, THE CONTRACT


PRICE MAY NEED TO BE ADJUSTED ACCORDINGLY.


9. PLANTS SHOULD BE WATERED IN AFTER INSTALLATION TO ENSURE THEIR


SURVIVAL.  THIS TYPICALLY INVOLVES WATERING AT TIME OF INSTALLATION AND 2


TIMES WEEKLY FOR A ONE MONTH PERIOD OR UNTIL GROUND FREEZE UP IF


NATURAL RAINFALLS ARE INSUFFICIENT.  A SINGLE WATERING EVENT INVOLVES


WATERING THE SOIL IN THE PLANTED AREAS TO THE POINT OF SATURATION BUT


STOPPING SHORT OF SOIL DISPLACEMENT.  SHOULD VERY DRY CONDITIONS


DEVELOP WITHIN ONE YEAR OF PLANTING, ADDITIONAL WATERINGS MAY BE


NECESSARY, CONSULTANT OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT  WILL DETERMINE THIS


AND CONTRACT PRICES MAY BE ADJUSTED TO ACCOMMODATE THIS ACTION.


10. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE SPECIMEN QUALITY, HEALTHY, FREE OF DISEASE


AND INSECTS AND SHALL HAVE HEALTHY, WELL-DEVELOPED ROOT SYSTEMS.


PLANTS SHALL ALSO BE FREE FROM PHYSICAL DAMAGE OR OTHER CONDITIONS


THAT WOULD PREVENT VIGOROUS GROWTH.


11. ALL PROPOSED PLANTS SHALL BE LOCATED AS SHOWN ON PLANS.  ALL TREES TO


BE PLANTED A MINIMUM DISTANCE OF 5 FEET FROM PAVEMENTS AND 6 FEET


FROM ALL HYDRANTS.


12. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PLANTS AWAITING INSTALLATION AND SHALL


PROTECT THEM FROM INJURY AND THEFT.


13. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING ALL PLANT QUANTITIES.


GRAPHIC QUANTITIES TAKES PRECEDENCE OVER WRITTEN QUANTITIES.


14. THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INSPECT AND TAG ALL


PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR TO SHIPPING TO THE SITE.  IN ALL CASES, THE OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE MAY REJECT PLANT MATERIAL AT THE SITE IF MATERIAL IS


DAMAGED, DISEASED, OR  DECLINING IN HEALTH AT THE TIME OF ONSITE


INSPECTIONS OR IF THE PLANT MATERIAL DOES NOT MEET THE MINIMUM


SPECIFIED STANDARD IDENTIFIED ON THE PLANS AND IN THE SPECIFICATIONS.


THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE


FOR INSPECTION AND APPROVAL OF ALL MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS PRIOR TO


INSTALLATION.


15. THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE MAY ELECT TO UPSIZE PLANT MATERIAL AT


THEIR DISCRETION BASED ON SELECTION, AVAILABILITY, OR TO ENHANCE


SPECIFIC AREAS OF THE PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY PLANT


MATERIAL SIZES WITH OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO PURCHASING,


SHIPPING OR STOCKING OF PLANT MATERIALS. SUBMIT CHANGE ORDER REQUEST


TO OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR APPROVAL IF ADDITIONAL COST IS


REQUESTED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  RE-STOCKING


CHARGES WILL NOT BE APPROVED IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO SUBMIT A


REQUEST FOR MATERIAL CHANGES.


16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL WARRANTY ALL CONTRACTED WORK AND MATERIALS


FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION HAS BEEN ISSUED


BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE ENTIRE PROJECT UNLESS


OTHERWISE SPECIFIED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR SPECIFICATIONS.


17. LANDSCAPE MATERIAL LOCATIONS SHALL HAVE PRECEDENCE OVER IRRIGATION


MAINLINE AND LATERAL LOCATIONS.  IF IRRIGATION IS INCLUDED, COORDINATE


INSTALLATION OF IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT SO THAT IT DOES NOT INTERFERE WITH


THE PLANTING OF TREES OR OTHER LANDSCAPE MATERIAL.


GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES


18. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING POSITIVE


DRAINAGE EXISTS IN ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS.  SURFACE DRAINAGE ON


LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL NOT FLOW TOWARD STRUCTURES AND FOUNDATIONS.


MAINTAIN SLOPE AWAY FROM FOUNDATIONS PER THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT


RECOMMENDATIONS.  ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS BETWEEN WALKS AND CURBS


SHALL DRAIN FREELY TO THE CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED ON THE


GRADING PLAN.  IN NO CASE SHALL THE GRADE, TURF THATCH, OR OTHER


LANDSCAPE MATERIALS DAM WATER AGAINST WALKS.  MINIMUM SLOPES ON


LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE 2%; MAXIMUM SLOPE SHALL BE 25% UNLESS


SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED ON THE PLANS OR APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE.


19. PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF PLANT MATERIALS, AREAS THAT HAVE BEEN


COMPACTED OR DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY SHALL BE THOROUGHLY


LOOSENED TO A DEPTH OF 8” - 12” AND AMENDED PER SPECIFICATIONS.


20. ALL LANDSCAPED AREAS ARE TO RECEIVE ORGANIC SOIL PREPARATION PER RATE


IDENTIFIED BY A SOIL TEST OR AS NOTED IN THE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.


21. TREES SHALL NOT BE LOCATED IN DRAINAGE SWALES, DRAINAGE AREAS, OR


UTILITY EASEMENTS.  CONTACT OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR RELOCATION OF


PLANTS IN QUESTIONABLE AREAS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.


22. THE CENTER OF EVERGREEN TREES SHALL NOT BE PLACED CLOSER THAN 8' AND


THE CENTER OF ORNAMENTAL TREES CLOSER THAN 6' FROM A SIDEWALK,


STREET OR DRIVE LANE.  EVERGREEN TREES SHALL NOT BE LOCATED ANY


CLOSER THAN 15' FROM IRRIGATION ROTOR HEADS.  NOTIFY OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE IF TREE LOCATIONS CONFLICT WITH THESE STANDARDS FOR


FURTHER DIRECTION.


23. ALL EVERGREEN TREES SHALL BE FULLY BRANCHED TO THE GROUND AND SHALL


NOT EXHIBIT SIGNS OF ACCELERATED GROWTH AS DETERMINED BY THE OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE.


24. ALL TREES ARE TO BE STAKED AND GUYED PER DETAILS FOR A PERIOD OF 1


YEAR.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING STAKES AT


THE END OF 1 YEAR FROM ACCEPTANCE OF LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION BY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.  OBTAIN APPROVAL BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE


PRIOR TO REMOVAL.


25. ALL TREES INSTALLED ABOVE RETAINING WALLS UTILIZING GEO-GRID MUST BE


HAND DUG TO PROTECT GEO-GRID. IF GEO-GRID MUST BE CUT TO INSTALL TREES,


APPROVAL MUST BE GIVEN BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO DOING


WORK.


26. ALL TREES IN SEED OR TURF AREAS SHALL RECEIVE MULCH RINGS. OBTAIN


APPROVAL FROM OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR ANY TREES THAT WILL NOT BE


MULCHED FOR EXCESSIVE MOISTURE REASONS.


27. EXISTING TURF AREAS THAT ARE DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION,


ESTABLISHMENT AND THE MAINTENANCE PERIOD SHALL BE RESTORED WITH NEW


SOD TO MATCH EXISTING TURF SPECIES.  DISTURBED NATIVE AREAS WHICH ARE


TO REMAIN SHALL BE OVER SEEDED AND RESTORED WITH SPECIFIED SEED MIX.


28. WHEN COMPLETE, ALL GRADES SHALL BE WITHIN +/- 1/8” OF FINISHED GRADES AS


SHOWN ON THE PLANS.


29. WHEN PLANTER POTS ARE SHOWN ON PLANS, CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE THE


FOLLOWING: PLANTER MIX, ANNUAL FLOWER PLANTING PROGRAM (INCLUDES 2


PLANTINGS FOR THE 1ST YEAR (SPRING AND FALL) AND WINTER HAND-WATERING


AS NEEDED.  UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE ANNUAL


PLANTING SELECTION FOR REVIEW BY OWNER. IRRIGATION FOR PLANTERS TO BE


ON SEPARATE ZONE(S). CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE PLACEMENT OF


NECESSARY SLEEVING PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF PAVEMENT.


30. PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF MULCH AND WEED FABRIC, A GRANULAR,


PRE-EMERGENT, WEED CONTROL AGENT SHALL BE ADDED TO ALL PLANTING BEDS


IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTION, EXCEPT AROUND


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES.


31. THE CONTRACTOR IS EXPECTED TO KNOW AND UNDERSTAND THE CITY AND


COUNTY SPECIFICATIONS FOR LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION.  IN CASES OF


DISCREPANCIES THE HIGHER OF THE TWO STANDARDS SHALL HAVE


PRECEDENCE.


32. ALL TREES PLANTED WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY WILL INCLUDE CITY APPROVED ROOT


BARRIERS.


GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES


1. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS WILL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS.


2. SHOULD SITE CONDITIONS BE DIFFERENT THAN WHAT IS INDICATED ON THE


DRAWINGS, CONTACT THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY FOR


CLARIFICATION.


3. CURVED WALKS AND CURB EDGES ARE INTENDED TO BE CONSTRUCTED WITH


SMOOTH FLOWING CURVES. ANYTHING OTHER THAN SMOOTH FLOWING CURVES


WILL BE REJECTED.


4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN, AT HIS EXPENSE, ALL PERMITS WHICH ARE


NECESSARY TO PERFORM THE PROPOSED WORK.


5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A STAKED LAYOUT OF ALL SITE


IMPROVEMENTS FOR INSPECTION BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AND


MAKE MODIFICATIONS AS REQUIRED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.


ALL LAYOUT INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE IN DIGITAL FORMAT FOR USE BY THE


CONTRACTOR.


6. LAYOUT WALKS, SCORE JOINTS AND PAVING PATTERNS AS CLOSELY AS


POSSIBLE TO PLANS, DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS. DO NOT DEVIATE FROM


PLANS UNLESS SPECIFIC APPROVAL IS OBTAINED FROM THE OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE.


7. ALL WORK SHALL BE CONFINED TO THE AREA WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION


LIMITS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. ANY AREAS OR IMPROVEMENTS DISTURBED


OUTSIDE THESE LIMITS SHALL BE RETURNED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION AT


THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE. IN THE EVENT THE CONTRACTOR REQUIRES A


MODIFICATION TO THE CONSTRUCTION LIMITS, WRITTEN PERMISSION MUST BE


OBTAINED FROM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY DISTURBANCE


OUTSIDE OF THE LIMITS OF WORK.


8. WHEN APPLICABLE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING TEMPORARY


FENCING AROUND ALL PLAY STRUCTURES UNTIL PROPER FALL SURFACE IS


COMPLETELY INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.


9. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SUPERVISING ALL SAFETY SURFACING AND


PAVEMENT DURING THE CURING PROCESS.


LAYOUT NOTES


ZONING = PB


BUILDING FOUNDATION:


REQUIREMENT: 40 POINTS PER 100 LF OF BUILDING FOUNDATION


(TREES SHALL NOT BE USED TO MEET THE FOUNDATION REQUIREMENT)


530.84 LF / 100 LF X 40 = 212.3 POINTS


PROVIDED:  222


STREET FRONTAGE:


REQUIREMENT: 40 POINTS PER 100 LF OF STREET FRONTAGE


(SHRUBS SHALL NOT BE USED TO MEET THE STREET FRONTAGE REQUIREMENT)


CEDARBROOK LN


243 LF / 100 LF X 40 = 97.2 POINTS


PROVIDED = 279 POINTS


C.T.H. N


451 LF / 100 X 40 = 180.4 POINTS


PROVIDED = 0*


*EASEMENT AND UTILITIES RESTRICTS PLANTING OF TREES TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE POINTS


US HWY 51


237 LF / 100 LF X 40 = 94.8 POINTS


PROVIDED = 0*


*EASEMENT AND UTILITIES RESTRICTS PLANTING OF TREES TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE POINTS


POINTS REQUIRED: 372.4


POINTS PROVIDED: 279*


*EASEMENT AND UTILITIES RESTRICTS PLANTING OF TREES TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE POINTS


PARKING AREA:


REQUIREMENT: 60 POINTS PER 10,000 SF OF PAVED AREA, WITH A MINIMUM OF 360 SF OF


LANDSCAPE AREA LOCATED WITHIN 10 FT OF THE PAVED AREA FOR EVERY 100 PAVED AREA


POINTS.


TOTAL PAVED AREA: 55,690 SF


TOTAL LANDSCAPE POINTS REQUIRED: (55,690 / 10,000) 5.569 X 60 = 334.14


TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA REQUIRED: 2,005 SF


TOTAL LANDSCAPE POINTS PROVIDED: 492


TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA PROVIDE: 3,166 SF


BUILDING FOOTPRINT:


REQUIREMENT: 10 POINTS PER 1000 SF OF BUILDING FOOTPRINT


9,207.75 SF / 1000 SF X 10 = 92.1 POINTS


PROVIDED: 306 POINTS


TOTAL REQUIRED POINTS: 1,015


TOTAL POINTS PROVIDED: 1,299


MINIMUM LANDSCAPING POINT REQUIREMENTS


PLANT SCHEDULE


QTY KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME INSTALL SIZE MATURE SIZE COMMENTS


POINT


VALUE PER


PLANT


TOTAL


POINT


VALUE


CLIMAX TREES


3 SW Quercus bicolor SWAMP WHITE OAK 2" Cal. 60'h x 60'w B&B 75 225


2 AG


Ginkgo biloba 'Autumn Gold'


AUTUMN GOLD GINKGO 2" Cal. 50'h x 40'w


B&B (MALE ONLY)
75 150


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS TREES


8 BW


Betula populifolia 'Whitespire'


WHITESPIRE BIRCH TWIN 6' 40'h x 20'w B&B 15 120


LOW DECIDUOUS TREES


6 MP Malus x 'Prairifire' PRAIRIFIRE CRABAPPLE 4' 20'h x 20'w B&B 10 60


LOW EVERGREEN TREES


17 SJ


Juniperus scopulorum 'Baligh'


SKYHIGH JUNIPER 3' 12'h x 5'w B&B 12 204


18 TO


Thuja occidentalis 'Smaragd'


EMERALD ARBORVITAE 3' 12'h x 4'w B&B 12 216


TALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB


9 VB Viburnum x burkwoodii BURKWOOD VIBURNUM 36" Ht. 10'h x 7'w


#5 CONT. (7' O.C.)
5 45


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS SHRUB


12 CA Clethra alnifolia SWEET PEPPERBUSH 24" Ht. 6'h x 6'w #5 CONT. (6' O.C.)


3 36


28 RD Cornus sericea 'Farrow' ARCTIC FIRE RED TWIG DOGWOOD 24" Ht.


5'h x 5'w


#5 CONT. (4' O.C.)
3 84


12 AC


Ribes alpinum


ALPINE CURRANT 24" Ht.


5'h x 5'w #5 CONT. (4' O.C.)
3 36


MEDIUM EVERGREEN SHRUBS


6 RW Rhododendron catawbiense 'Album'


WHITE CATAWBA


RHODODENDRON


18" Tall/Wide 6'h x 7w #5 CONT. (6' O.C.) 5


30


6


MU Pinus mugo var. pumilio


DWARF MUGO PINE


18" Tall/Wide 4'h x 10w #5 CONT. (8' O.C.) 5


30


LOW EVERGREEN SHRUBS


15


JH Juniperus horizontalis 'Plumosa'


ANDORRA JUNIPER


12" Tall/Wide 18"h x 5'w #5 CONT. (6' O.C.) 3


45


6


JV Juniperus virginiana 'Grey Owl'


GREY OWL JUNIPER


12" Tall/Wide 3'h x 5'w #5 CONT. (6' O.C.) 3


18


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES


85


PD Sporobolus heterolepis PRAIRIE DROPSEED 8" Ht. 36" Ht. #1 CONT. (3' O.C.)


68


LB Schizachyrium scoparium


LITTLE BLUESTEM


8" Ht. 36" Ht. #1 CONT. (3' O.C.)







FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / L. OLSON


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


1
7
0
0
 
E


.
 
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#
7
3
8


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


L1.0


L
A


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 
N


O
T


E
S


1. DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED TO BE PRINTED ON 22 X 34 PAPER.  PRINTING THESE


DRAWINGS AT A DIFFERENT SIZE WILL IMPACT THE SCALE.  VERIFY THE GRAPHIC


SCALE BEFORE REFERENCING ANY MEASUREMENTS ON THESE SHEETS.  THE


RECIPIENT OF THESE DRAWINGS SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ERRORS


RESULTING FROM INCORRECT PRINTING, COPYING, OR ANY OTHER CHANGES


THAT ALTER THE SCALE OF THE DRAWINGS.


2. VERIFY ALL PLAN DIMENSIONS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION. NOTIFY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE TO ADDRESS ANY QUESTIONS OR CLARIFY ANY


DISCREPANCIES.


3. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS.


4. GEOTECHNICAL SOILS REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS SHALL BE FOLLOWED


DURING CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE THESE CONTRACT


DOCUMENTS AS A BASIS FOR THE BID. 


5. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM THAT SITE CONDITIONS ARE SIMILAR TO THE


PLANS, WITHIN TOLERANCES STATED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS,  AND


SATISFACTORY TO THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO START OF WORK.  SHOULD SITE


CONDITIONS BE DIFFERENT THAN REPRESENTED ON THE PLANS OR


UNSATISFACTORY TO THE CONTRACTOR, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT


THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR CLARIFICATION AND FURTHER DIRECTION.


6. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO PAY FOR, AND OBTAIN, ANY REQUIRED


APPLICATIONS, PERMITTING, LICENSES, INSPECTIONS AND METERS ASSOCIATED


WITH WORK.


7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES


ASSESSED TO THE OWNER RELATING TO ANY VIOLATIONS OR


NON-CONFORMANCE WITH THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, CONTRACT


DOCUMENTS, JURISDICTIONAL CODES, AND REGULATORY AGENCIES.


8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATION OF ALL UTILITY


LOCATES PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION. REFER TO ENGINEERING UTILITY PLANS


FOR ALL PROPOSED UTILITY LOCATIONS AND DETAILS.  NOTIFY OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE IF EXISTING OR PROPOSED UTILITIES INTERFERE WITH THE


ABILITY TO PERFORM WORK.


9. UNLESS IDENTIFIED ON THE PLANS FOR DEMOLITION OR REMOVAL, THE


CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COST TO REPAIR UTILITIES, ADJACENT


OR EXISTING LANDSCAPE, ADJACENT OR EXISTING PAVING, OR ANY PUBLIC AND


PRIVATE PROPERTY THAT IS DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR OR THEIR


SUBCONTRACTOR'S OPERATIONS DURING INSTALLATION, ESTABLISHMENT OR


DURING THE SPECIFIED MAINTENANCE PERIOD.  ALL DAMAGES SHALL BE


REPAIRED TO PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS AS DETERMINED BY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.  CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR


LOGGING ANY DAMAGES PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION AND DURING THE


CONTRACT PERIOD.


10. ALL WORK SHALL BE CONFINED TO THE AREA WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION


LIMITS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. ANY AREAS OR IMPROVEMENTS DISTURBED


OUTSIDE THESE LIMITS SHALL BE RETURNED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION AT


THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE. IN THE EVENT THE CONTRACTOR REQUIRES A


MODIFICATION TO THE CONSTRUCTION LIMITS, WRITTEN PERMISSION MUST BE


OBTAINED FROM THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO ANY DISTURBANCE


OUTSIDE OF THE LIMITS OF WORK.


11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REPAIR OF ANY OF THEIR


TRENCHES OR EXCAVATIONS THAT SETTLE.


12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT A TRAFFIC


CONTROL PLAN TO THE APPROPRIATE JURISDICTIONAL AGENCIES AND THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IF THEIR WORK AND OPERATIONS AFFECT OR


IMPACT THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  OBTAIN APPROVAL PRIOR TO ANY WORK


WHICH AFFECTS OR IMPACTS THE PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  THE CONTRACTOR


SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES ASSESSED TO THE


OWNER RELATING TO THIS REQUIREMENT DURING THE CONTRACT PERIOD.


13. SIGHT TRIANGLES AND SIGHT LINES SHALL REMAIN UNOBSTRUCTED BY


EQUIPMENT, CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS, PLANT MATERIAL OR ANY OTHER


VISUAL OBSTACLE DURING THE CONTRACT PERIOD AND AT MATURITY OF


PLANTS PER LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS.


14. NO PLANT MATERIAL OTHER THAN GROUND COVER IS ALLOWED TO BE PLANTED


ADJACENT TO FIRE HYDRANTS AS STIPULATED BY JURISDICTIONAL


REQUIREMENTS.


15. COORDINATE SITE ACCESS, STAGING, STORAGE AND CLEANOUT AREAS WITH


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.


16. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING TEMPORARY SAFETY FENCING


AND BARRIERS AROUND ALL IMPROVEMENTS SUCH AS WALLS, PLAY


STRUCTURES, EXCAVATIONS, ETC. ASSOCIATED WITH THEIR WORK UNTIL SUCH


FACILITIES ARE COMPLETELY INSTALLED PER THE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND


MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.


17. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTION OF THEIR MATERIAL


STOCK PILES AND WORK FROM VANDALISM, EROSION OR UNINTENDED


DISTURBANCE DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD AND UNTIL FINAL


ACCEPTANCE IS ISSUED.


18. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KNOW, UNDERSTAND AND ABIDE BY ANY STORM


WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) ASSOCIATED WITH THE SITE.  IF


A STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN IS NOT PROVIDED BY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE, REQUEST A COPY BEFORE PERFORMANCE OF ANY


SITE WORK.


19. MAINTAIN ANY STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES THAT EXIST ON SITE


FOR FULL FUNCTIONALITY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL AND MAINTAIN


ANY NEW STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES THAT ARE IDENTIFIED IN THE


SCOPE OF WORK TO FULL FUNCTIONALITY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE


RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES ASSESSED TO THE OWNER FOR


FAILURE TO MAINTAIN STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES DURING THE


CONTRACT PERIOD.


20. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PREVENT SEDIMENT, DEBRIS AND ALL OTHER


POLLUTANTS FROM EXITING THE SITE OR ENTERING THE STORM SEWER


SYSTEM DURING ALL DEMOLITION OR CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS THAT ARE


PART OF THE LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE


RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES ASSESSED TO THE OWNER


RELATING TO THESE REQUIREMENTS DURING THEIR CONTRACTED COURSE OF


WORK.


21. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO PREVENT ANY IMPACTS TO


ADJACENT WATERWAYS, WETLANDS, OR OTHER ENVIRONMENTALLY SENSITIVE


AREAS RESULTING FROM WORK DONE AS PART OF THIS PROJECT.  THE


CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES


ASSESSED TO THE OWNER RELATING TO THESE STANDARDS DURING THEIR


CONTRACTED COURSE OF WORK.


GENERAL NOTES


22. THE CONTRACTOR AND/OR THEIR AUTHORIZED AGENTS SHALL ENSURE THAT ALL


LOADS OF CONSTRUCTION MATERIAL IMPORTED TO OR EXPORTED FROM THE


PROJECT SITE SHALL BE PROPERLY COVERED TO PREVENT LOSS OF MATERIAL


DURING TRANSPORT.  TRANSPORTATION METHODS ON PUBLIC RIGHT-OF WAYS


SHALL CONFORM TO JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL


BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY FINES OR PENALTIES ASSESSED TO THE OWNER


RELATING TO THESE REQUIREMENTS.


23. THE CLEANING OF EQUIPMENT IS PROHIBITED AT THE JOB SITE UNLESS


AUTHORIZED BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IN A DESIGNATED AREA. THE


DISCHARGE OF WATER, WASTE CONCRETE, POLLUTANTS, OR OTHER MATERIALS


SHALL ONLY OCCUR IN AREAS DESIGNED FOR SUCH USE AND APPROVED BY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.


24. THE CLEANING OF CONCRETE EQUIPMENT IS PROHIBITED AT THE JOB SITE


EXCEPT IN DESIGNATED CONCRETE WASHOUT AREAS. THE DISCHARGE OF


WATER CONTAINING WASTE CONCRETE IN THE STORM SEWER IS PROHIBITED.


25. LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS, RESTRICTIONS OR


PROCEDURES SHALL SUPERSEDE THESE PLANS, NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS


WHEN MORE STRINGENT.  NOTIFY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE IF CONFLICTS


OCCUR.


GENERAL NOTES CONTINUED


1. UTILITY WARNING: THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD


SURVEY INFORMATION AND/OR RECORDS OBTAINED.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO


GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE


AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED.  THE SURVEY FURTHER DOES NOT


WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT  LOCATION INDICATED.


2. NOTIFY UTILITY OWNERS PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION.


CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING EXISTENCE, EXACT LOCATION


AND DEPTH OF ALL UTILITIES.  AVOID DAMAGE TO UTILITIES AND SERVICES


DURING CONSTRUCTION.  ANY DAMAGE DUE TO THE CONTRACTOR'S


CARELESSNESS SHALL BE CORRECTED AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.


COORDINATE AND COOPERATE WITH UTILITY COMPANIES DURING


CONSTRUCTION.


3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW THE LANDSCAPE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS


AS CLOSELY AS POSSIBLE. ANY SUBSTITUTION OR ALTERATION SHALL NOT BE


ALLOWED WITHOUT APPROVAL OF THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE. OVERALL


PLANT QUANTITY AND QUALITY SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE PLANS.


4. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL AT LEAST MEET MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS SHOWN IN


THE "AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK" (ANSI Z60.1-LATEST EDITION).


5. MULCH SHALL NOT BE PLACED AROUND THE COLLAR OF SHRUB OR TREE.


PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 2" BETWEEN MULCH AND COLLAR OF SHRUB OR TREE.


6. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE GROWN IN ZONE CAPABLE OF WITHSTANDING


LOCAL CLIMATE AND GROWING CONDITIONS.


7. TREE OR SHRUB SHALL STAND PLUMB.  DO NOT ALLOW AIR POCKETS TO FORM


WHEN BACK FILLING.


8. LIVE PLANTS CAN BE PLANTED IN THE FIELD DURING THE GROWING SEASON FROM


MAY 1 THROUGH OCTOBER 1.  ANY  SUGGESTED PLANTING TIMES NOT IN THIS


WINDOW SHALL BE APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. IF PLANTING OCCURS


OUTSIDE OF THIS WINDOW, ADDITIONAL MEASURES MAY NEED TO BE TAKEN (I.E.


MULCH) TO ENSURE PLANT SURVIVAL.  IN THESE INSTANCES, THE CONTRACT


PRICE MAY NEED TO BE ADJUSTED ACCORDINGLY.


9. PLANTS SHOULD BE WATERED IN AFTER INSTALLATION TO ENSURE THEIR


SURVIVAL.  THIS TYPICALLY INVOLVES WATERING AT TIME OF INSTALLATION AND 2


TIMES WEEKLY FOR A ONE MONTH PERIOD OR UNTIL GROUND FREEZE UP IF


NATURAL RAINFALLS ARE INSUFFICIENT.  A SINGLE WATERING EVENT INVOLVES


WATERING THE SOIL IN THE PLANTED AREAS TO THE POINT OF SATURATION BUT


STOPPING SHORT OF SOIL DISPLACEMENT.  SHOULD VERY DRY CONDITIONS


DEVELOP WITHIN ONE YEAR OF PLANTING, ADDITIONAL WATERINGS MAY BE


NECESSARY, CONSULTANT OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT  WILL DETERMINE THIS


AND CONTRACT PRICES MAY BE ADJUSTED TO ACCOMMODATE THIS ACTION.


10. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE SPECIMEN QUALITY, HEALTHY, FREE OF DISEASE


AND INSECTS AND SHALL HAVE HEALTHY, WELL-DEVELOPED ROOT SYSTEMS.


PLANTS SHALL ALSO BE FREE FROM PHYSICAL DAMAGE OR OTHER CONDITIONS


THAT WOULD PREVENT VIGOROUS GROWTH.


11. ALL PROPOSED PLANTS SHALL BE LOCATED AS SHOWN ON PLANS.  ALL TREES TO


BE PLANTED A MINIMUM DISTANCE OF 5 FEET FROM PAVEMENTS AND 6 FEET


FROM ALL HYDRANTS.


12. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PLANTS AWAITING INSTALLATION AND SHALL


PROTECT THEM FROM INJURY AND THEFT.


13. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING ALL PLANT QUANTITIES.


GRAPHIC QUANTITIES TAKES PRECEDENCE OVER WRITTEN QUANTITIES.


14. THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO INSPECT AND TAG ALL


PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR TO SHIPPING TO THE SITE.  IN ALL CASES, THE OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE MAY REJECT PLANT MATERIAL AT THE SITE IF MATERIAL IS


DAMAGED, DISEASED, OR  DECLINING IN HEALTH AT THE TIME OF ONSITE


INSPECTIONS OR IF THE PLANT MATERIAL DOES NOT MEET THE MINIMUM


SPECIFIED STANDARD IDENTIFIED ON THE PLANS AND IN THE SPECIFICATIONS.


THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE


FOR INSPECTION AND APPROVAL OF ALL MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS PRIOR TO


INSTALLATION.


15. THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE MAY ELECT TO UPSIZE PLANT MATERIAL AT


THEIR DISCRETION BASED ON SELECTION, AVAILABILITY, OR TO ENHANCE


SPECIFIC AREAS OF THE PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY PLANT


MATERIAL SIZES WITH OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO PURCHASING,


SHIPPING OR STOCKING OF PLANT MATERIALS. SUBMIT CHANGE ORDER REQUEST


TO OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR APPROVAL IF ADDITIONAL COST IS


REQUESTED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  RE-STOCKING


CHARGES WILL NOT BE APPROVED IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO SUBMIT A


REQUEST FOR MATERIAL CHANGES.


16. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL WARRANTY ALL CONTRACTED WORK AND MATERIALS


FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION HAS BEEN ISSUED


BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE ENTIRE PROJECT UNLESS


OTHERWISE SPECIFIED IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS OR SPECIFICATIONS.


17. LANDSCAPE MATERIAL LOCATIONS SHALL HAVE PRECEDENCE OVER IRRIGATION


MAINLINE AND LATERAL LOCATIONS.  IF IRRIGATION IS INCLUDED, COORDINATE


INSTALLATION OF IRRIGATION EQUIPMENT SO THAT IT DOES NOT INTERFERE WITH


THE PLANTING OF TREES OR OTHER LANDSCAPE MATERIAL.


GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES


18. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ENSURING POSITIVE


DRAINAGE EXISTS IN ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS.  SURFACE DRAINAGE ON


LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL NOT FLOW TOWARD STRUCTURES AND FOUNDATIONS.


MAINTAIN SLOPE AWAY FROM FOUNDATIONS PER THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT


RECOMMENDATIONS.  ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS BETWEEN WALKS AND CURBS


SHALL DRAIN FREELY TO THE CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED ON THE


GRADING PLAN.  IN NO CASE SHALL THE GRADE, TURF THATCH, OR OTHER


LANDSCAPE MATERIALS DAM WATER AGAINST WALKS.  MINIMUM SLOPES ON


LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE 2%; MAXIMUM SLOPE SHALL BE 25% UNLESS


SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED ON THE PLANS OR APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE.


19. PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF PLANT MATERIALS, AREAS THAT HAVE BEEN


COMPACTED OR DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY SHALL BE THOROUGHLY


LOOSENED TO A DEPTH OF 8” - 12” AND AMENDED PER SPECIFICATIONS.


20. ALL LANDSCAPED AREAS ARE TO RECEIVE ORGANIC SOIL PREPARATION PER RATE


IDENTIFIED BY A SOIL TEST OR AS NOTED IN THE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS.


21. TREES SHALL NOT BE LOCATED IN DRAINAGE SWALES, DRAINAGE AREAS, OR


UTILITY EASEMENTS.  CONTACT OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR RELOCATION OF


PLANTS IN QUESTIONABLE AREAS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.


22. THE CENTER OF EVERGREEN TREES SHALL NOT BE PLACED CLOSER THAN 8' AND


THE CENTER OF ORNAMENTAL TREES CLOSER THAN 6' FROM A SIDEWALK,


STREET OR DRIVE LANE.  EVERGREEN TREES SHALL NOT BE LOCATED ANY


CLOSER THAN 15' FROM IRRIGATION ROTOR HEADS.  NOTIFY OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE IF TREE LOCATIONS CONFLICT WITH THESE STANDARDS FOR


FURTHER DIRECTION.


23. ALL EVERGREEN TREES SHALL BE FULLY BRANCHED TO THE GROUND AND SHALL


NOT EXHIBIT SIGNS OF ACCELERATED GROWTH AS DETERMINED BY THE OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE.


24. ALL TREES ARE TO BE STAKED AND GUYED PER DETAILS FOR A PERIOD OF 1


YEAR.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR REMOVING STAKES AT


THE END OF 1 YEAR FROM ACCEPTANCE OF LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION BY THE


OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.  OBTAIN APPROVAL BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE


PRIOR TO REMOVAL.


25. ALL TREES INSTALLED ABOVE RETAINING WALLS UTILIZING GEO-GRID MUST BE


HAND DUG TO PROTECT GEO-GRID. IF GEO-GRID MUST BE CUT TO INSTALL TREES,


APPROVAL MUST BE GIVEN BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO DOING


WORK.


26. ALL TREES IN SEED OR TURF AREAS SHALL RECEIVE MULCH RINGS. OBTAIN


APPROVAL FROM OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE FOR ANY TREES THAT WILL NOT BE


MULCHED FOR EXCESSIVE MOISTURE REASONS.


27. EXISTING TURF AREAS THAT ARE DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION,


ESTABLISHMENT AND THE MAINTENANCE PERIOD SHALL BE RESTORED WITH NEW


SOD TO MATCH EXISTING TURF SPECIES.  DISTURBED NATIVE AREAS WHICH ARE


TO REMAIN SHALL BE OVER SEEDED AND RESTORED WITH SPECIFIED SEED MIX.


28. WHEN COMPLETE, ALL GRADES SHALL BE WITHIN +/- 1/8” OF FINISHED GRADES AS


SHOWN ON THE PLANS.


29. WHEN PLANTER POTS ARE SHOWN ON PLANS, CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE THE


FOLLOWING: PLANTER MIX, ANNUAL FLOWER PLANTING PROGRAM (INCLUDES 2


PLANTINGS FOR THE 1ST YEAR (SPRING AND FALL) AND WINTER HAND-WATERING


AS NEEDED.  UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE ANNUAL


PLANTING SELECTION FOR REVIEW BY OWNER. IRRIGATION FOR PLANTERS TO BE


ON SEPARATE ZONE(S). CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE PLACEMENT OF


NECESSARY SLEEVING PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF PAVEMENT.


30. PRIOR TO THE PLACEMENT OF MULCH AND WEED FABRIC, A GRANULAR,


PRE-EMERGENT, WEED CONTROL AGENT SHALL BE ADDED TO ALL PLANTING BEDS


IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTION, EXCEPT AROUND


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES.


31. THE CONTRACTOR IS EXPECTED TO KNOW AND UNDERSTAND THE CITY AND


COUNTY SPECIFICATIONS FOR LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION.  IN CASES OF


DISCREPANCIES THE HIGHER OF THE TWO STANDARDS SHALL HAVE


PRECEDENCE.


32. ALL TREES PLANTED WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY WILL INCLUDE CITY APPROVED ROOT


BARRIERS.


GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES


1. WRITTEN DIMENSIONS WILL TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALED DIMENSIONS.


2. SHOULD SITE CONDITIONS BE DIFFERENT THAN WHAT IS INDICATED ON THE


DRAWINGS, CONTACT THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY FOR


CLARIFICATION.


3. CURVED WALKS AND CURB EDGES ARE INTENDED TO BE CONSTRUCTED WITH


SMOOTH FLOWING CURVES. ANYTHING OTHER THAN SMOOTH FLOWING CURVES


WILL BE REJECTED.


4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL OBTAIN, AT HIS EXPENSE, ALL PERMITS WHICH ARE


NECESSARY TO PERFORM THE PROPOSED WORK.


5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A STAKED LAYOUT OF ALL SITE


IMPROVEMENTS FOR INSPECTION BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AND


MAKE MODIFICATIONS AS REQUIRED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE OWNER.


ALL LAYOUT INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE IN DIGITAL FORMAT FOR USE BY THE


CONTRACTOR.


6. LAYOUT WALKS, SCORE JOINTS AND PAVING PATTERNS AS CLOSELY AS


POSSIBLE TO PLANS, DETAILS, AND SPECIFICATIONS. DO NOT DEVIATE FROM


PLANS UNLESS SPECIFIC APPROVAL IS OBTAINED FROM THE OWNER'S


REPRESENTATIVE.


7. ALL WORK SHALL BE CONFINED TO THE AREA WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION


LIMITS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS. ANY AREAS OR IMPROVEMENTS DISTURBED


OUTSIDE THESE LIMITS SHALL BE RETURNED TO THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION AT


THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE. IN THE EVENT THE CONTRACTOR REQUIRES A


MODIFICATION TO THE CONSTRUCTION LIMITS, WRITTEN PERMISSION MUST BE


OBTAINED FROM THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO ANY DISTURBANCE


OUTSIDE OF THE LIMITS OF WORK.


8. WHEN APPLICABLE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING TEMPORARY


FENCING AROUND ALL PLAY STRUCTURES UNTIL PROPER FALL SURFACE IS


COMPLETELY INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.


9. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SUPERVISING ALL SAFETY SURFACING AND


PAVEMENT DURING THE CURING PROCESS.


LAYOUT NOTES


ZONING = PB


BUILDING FOUNDATION:


REQUIREMENT: 40 POINTS PER 100 LF OF BUILDING FOUNDATION


(TREES SHALL NOT BE USED TO MEET THE FOUNDATION REQUIREMENT)


530.84 LF / 100 LF X 40 = 212.3 POINTS


PROVIDED:  222


STREET FRONTAGE:


REQUIREMENT: 40 POINTS PER 100 LF OF STREET FRONTAGE


(SHRUBS SHALL NOT BE USED TO MEET THE STREET FRONTAGE REQUIREMENT)


CEDARBROOK LN


243 LF / 100 LF X 40 = 97.2 POINTS


PROVIDED = 279 POINTS


C.T.H. N


451 LF / 100 X 40 = 180.4 POINTS


PROVIDED = 0*


*EASEMENT AND UTILITIES RESTRICTS PLANTING OF TREES TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE POINTS


US HWY 51


237 LF / 100 LF X 40 = 94.8 POINTS


PROVIDED = 0*


*EASEMENT AND UTILITIES RESTRICTS PLANTING OF TREES TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE POINTS


POINTS REQUIRED: 372.4


POINTS PROVIDED: 279*


*EASEMENT AND UTILITIES RESTRICTS PLANTING OF TREES TO PROVIDE ADEQUATE POINTS


PARKING AREA:


REQUIREMENT: 60 POINTS PER 10,000 SF OF PAVED AREA, WITH A MINIMUM OF 360 SF OF


LANDSCAPE AREA LOCATED WITHIN 10 FT OF THE PAVED AREA FOR EVERY 100 PAVED AREA


POINTS.


TOTAL PAVED AREA: 55,690 SF


TOTAL LANDSCAPE POINTS REQUIRED: (55,690 / 10,000) 5.569 X 60 = 334.14


TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA REQUIRED: 2,005 SF


TOTAL LANDSCAPE POINTS PROVIDED: 492


TOTAL LANDSCAPE AREA PROVIDE: 3,166 SF


BUILDING FOOTPRINT:


REQUIREMENT: 10 POINTS PER 1000 SF OF BUILDING FOOTPRINT


9,207.75 SF / 1000 SF X 10 = 92.1 POINTS


PROVIDED: 306 POINTS


TOTAL REQUIRED POINTS: 1,015


TOTAL POINTS PROVIDED: 1,299


MINIMUM LANDSCAPING POINT REQUIREMENTS


PLANT SCHEDULE


QTY KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME INSTALL SIZE MATURE SIZE COMMENTS


POINT


VALUE PER


PLANT


TOTAL


POINT


VALUE


CLIMAX TREES


3 SW Quercus bicolor SWAMP WHITE OAK 2" Cal. 60'h x 60'w B&B 75 225


2 AG


Ginkgo biloba 'Autumn Gold'


AUTUMN GOLD GINKGO 2" Cal. 50'h x 40'w


B&B (MALE ONLY)
75 150


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS TREES


8 BW


Betula populifolia 'Whitespire'


WHITESPIRE BIRCH TWIN 6' 40'h x 20'w B&B 15 120


LOW DECIDUOUS TREES


6 MP Malus x 'Prairifire' PRAIRIFIRE CRABAPPLE 4' 20'h x 20'w B&B 10 60


LOW EVERGREEN TREES


17 SJ


Juniperus scopulorum 'Baligh'


SKYHIGH JUNIPER 3' 12'h x 5'w B&B 12 204


18 TO


Thuja occidentalis 'Smaragd'


EMERALD ARBORVITAE 3' 12'h x 4'w B&B 12 216


TALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB


9 VB Viburnum x burkwoodii BURKWOOD VIBURNUM 36" Ht. 10'h x 7'w


#5 CONT. (7' O.C.)
5 45


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS SHRUB


12 CA Clethra alnifolia SWEET PEPPERBUSH 24" Ht. 6'h x 6'w #5 CONT. (6' O.C.)


3 36


28 RD Cornus sericea 'Farrow' ARCTIC FIRE RED TWIG DOGWOOD 24" Ht.


5'h x 5'w


#5 CONT. (4' O.C.)
3 84


12 AC


Ribes alpinum


ALPINE CURRANT 24" Ht.


5'h x 5'w #5 CONT. (4' O.C.)
3 36


MEDIUM EVERGREEN SHRUBS


6 RW Rhododendron catawbiense 'Album'


WHITE CATAWBA


RHODODENDRON


18" Tall/Wide 6'h x 7w #5 CONT. (6' O.C.) 5


30


6


MU Pinus mugo var. pumilio


DWARF MUGO PINE


18" Tall/Wide 4'h x 10w #5 CONT. (8' O.C.) 5


30


LOW EVERGREEN SHRUBS


15


JH Juniperus horizontalis 'Plumosa'


ANDORRA JUNIPER


12" Tall/Wide 18"h x 5'w #5 CONT. (6' O.C.) 3


45


6


JV Juniperus virginiana 'Grey Owl'


GREY OWL JUNIPER


12" Tall/Wide 3'h x 5'w #5 CONT. (6' O.C.) 3


18


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES


85


PD Sporobolus heterolepis PRAIRIE DROPSEED 8" Ht. 36" Ht. #1 CONT. (3' O.C.)


68


LB Schizachyrium scoparium


LITTLE BLUESTEM


8" Ht. 36" Ht. #1 CONT. (3' O.C.)







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
 
T


 
O


 
P


30.0'


UTILITY


EASEMENT


30.0'


UTILITY


EASEMENT


CEDARBROOK LN


C
.
T


.
H


.
 
"
N


"


US HWY 51


1


1


1


3


3


1


1


4


4


LIMIT OF WORK


LIMIT OF WORK


LIMIT OF WORK


LIMIT OF WORK


2


5
5


6


2


6


2


6


2


6


6


2


6


2


2


6


6


2


7


7


5


3


2


6


7


1


2


6


5


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / L. OLSON


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


1
7
0
0
 
E


.
 
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#
7
3
8


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


L 2.0


M
U


L
C


H
,
 
S


E
E


D
I
N


G
 
A


N
D


 
T


U
R


F
 
P


L
A


N


MULCH, SEEDING AND TURF PLAN


FEET


0 30


LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION NOTES


1. BLACK BEAUTY TALL FESCUE KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS (TFKB


SOD) PROVIDED BY PAUL'S TURF & TREE NURSERY


(608.655.3600) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


2. PROVIDE 3" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH AROUND


ALL STAND-ALONE TREES TO A MIN. 3-FOOT PERIMETER, AND IN


ALL AREAS NOTED ON PLANS OVER  GEOTEXTILE WEED


CONTROL FABRIC. NO WEED CONTROL FABRIC IS REQUIRED IN


GROUNDCOVER OR PERENNIAL AREAS.  MULCHED LANDSCAPE


BEDS SHALL HAVE A SPADED VERTICAL EDGE WHEN


PERIMETER IS NOT CONCRETE CURB. MULCH PROVIDED BY


KELENY TOP SOIL (608.833.4835) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


3. "EARTHCARPET" TURF SEED PROVIDED BY CERTIFIED


PRODUCTS, INC. (262.542.2270) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


4. NATIVE SEED SHALL BE "DETENTION BASIN - BIOSWALE MIX"


PROVIDED BY PRAIRIE NURSERY (1.800.476.9453) OR APPROVED


EQUAL.


5. 2-6" COBBLE MULCH PROVIDED BY MILESTONE MATERIALS


(608-783-6411) OR APPROVED EQUAL. SUBMIT SAMPLE FOR


APPROVAL.


6. MULCHED LANDSCAPE BEDS SHALL HAVE A SPADED VERTICAL


EDGE AT 4" DEPTH WHEN PERIMETER IS NOT CONCRETE


SIDEWALK OR CURB.


7. LARGE BLOCK RETAINING WALL, SEE 10 AND 11 ON SP5.0


8. REFER TO CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE FOR NOTES REGARDING


SITE RESTORATION.


SOD (27,248 SF), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE


LANDSCAPE LEGEND


SHRUB BED WITH HARDWOOD MULCH (40 CY) DOES NOT


INCLUDE STAND-ALONG TREES OUTSIDE SHRUB BED


AREAS), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE


SPADE CUT EDGER AT 4" DEPTH (785 LF)


CLIMAX TREE


LOW DECIDUOUS TREE


DECIDUOUS SHRUBS


LOW EVERGREEN TREE


EVERGREEN SHRUBS


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES


TURF SEED (2,407 SF), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR
TYPE


LIMIT OF WORK


COBBLE MULCH (19 CY), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES
FOR TYPE


1


2


3


5


NATIVE SEED (6,309 SF), REFER TO
CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE.4


MATCHLINE


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS TREE







UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


S
 
T


 
O


 
P


CEDARBROOK LN


C
.
T


.
H


.
 
"
N


"


L2.1


L2.2


30.0'


30.0'


UTILITY


EASEMENT


LIMIT OF WORK


LIMIT OF WORK


LIMIT OF WORK


11-PD


5-JH


3-JH


3-AC


5-LB


3-MU


3-RW


10-PD


3-CA


3-AC


3-RD


1-SW


3-CA


13-PD


3-AC


9-LB


3-RW


6-RD


9-LB


8-LB


3-AC


3-MP


3-MP


6-LB


3-RD


1-AG


16-PD


9-TO


4-SJ


4-SJ


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / L. OLSON


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


1
7
0
0
 
E


.
 
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#
7
3
8


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


L 2.1


P
L
A


N
T


I
N


G
 
P


L
A


N


PLANTING PLAN


FEET


0 20


LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION NOTES


1. BLACK BEAUTY TALL FESCUE KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS (TFKB


SOD) PROVIDED BY PAUL'S TURF & TREE NURSERY


(608.655.3600) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


2. PROVIDE 3" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH AROUND


ALL STAND-ALONE TREES TO A MIN. 3-FOOT PERIMETER, AND IN


ALL AREAS NOTED ON PLANS OVER  GEOTEXTILE WEED


CONTROL FABRIC. NO WEED CONTROL FABRIC IS REQUIRED IN


GROUNDCOVER OR PERENNIAL AREAS.  MULCHED LANDSCAPE


BEDS SHALL HAVE A SPADED VERTICAL EDGE WHEN


PERIMETER IS NOT CONCRETE CURB. MULCH PROVIDED BY


KELENY TOP SOIL (608.833.4835) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


3. "EARTHCARPET" TURF SEED PROVIDED BY CERTIFIED


PRODUCTS, INC. (262.542.2270) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


4. NATIVE SEED SHALL BE "DETENTION BASIN - BIOSWALE MIX"


PROVIDED BY PRAIRIE NURSERY (1.800.476.9453) OR APPROVED


EQUAL.


5. 2-6" COBBLE MULCH PROVIDED BY MILESTONE MATERIALS


(608-783-6411) OR APPROVED EQUAL. SUBMIT SAMPLE FOR


APPROVAL.


6. MULCHED LANDSCAPE BEDS SHALL HAVE A SPADED VERTICAL


EDGE AT 4" DEPTH WHEN PERIMETER IS NOT CONCRETE


SIDEWALK OR CURB.


7. LARGE BLOCK RETAINING WALL, SEE 10 AND 11 ON SP5.0


8. REFER TO CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE FOR NOTES REGARDING


SITE RESTORATION.


SOD (27,248 SF), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE


LANDSCAPE LEGEND


SHRUB BED WITH HARDWOOD MULCH (40 CY) DOES NOT


INCLUDE STAND-ALONG TREES OUTSIDE SHRUB BED


AREAS), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE


SPADE CUT EDGER AT 4" DEPTH (785 LF)


CLIMAX TREE


LOW DECIDUOUS TREE


DECIDUOUS SHRUBS


LOW EVERGREEN TREE


EVERGREEN SHRUBS


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES


TURF SEED (2,407 SF), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR
TYPE


LIMIT OF WORK


COBBLE MULCH (19 CY), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES
FOR TYPE


1


2


3


5


NATIVE SEED (6,309 SF), REFER TO
CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE.4


MATCHLINE


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS TREE


PLANT SCHEDULE


QTY KEY COMMON NAME


CLIMAX TREES


RO NORTHERN RED OAK


AG AUTUMN GOLD GINGKO


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS TREES


BW WHITESPIRE BIRCH TWIN


LOW DECIDUOUS TREES


MP PRAIRIEFIRE CRABAPPLE


LOW EVERGREEN TREES


SJ SKYHIGH JUNIPER


TO EMERALD ARBORVITAE


TALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB


VB BURKWOOD VIBURNUM


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS SHRUB


CA SWEET PEPPERBUSH


RD RED TWIG DOGWOOD


AC ALPINE CURRANT


MEDIUM EVERGREEN SHRUBS


RW


WHITE CATAWBA RHODODENDRON


MU


MUGO PINE


LOW EVERGREEN SHRUBS


JH


ANDORRA JUNIPER


JV


GREY OWL JUNIPER


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES


PD PRAIRIE DROPSEED


LB LITTLE BLUESTEM







NO


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


S
 
T


 
O


 
P


C
.
T


.
H


.
 
"
N


"


US HWY 51


L2.1


L2.2


30.0'


UTILITY


EASEMENT


30.0'


UTILITY


EASEMENT


LIMIT OF WORK


LIMIT OF WORK


LIMIT OF WORK


3-JV


7-RD


2-JH


5-JH


3-TO


3-JV


14-PD


3-RD


15-PD


3-VB


3-RD


7-LB


3-VB


3-CA


6-PD


3-MU


3-CA


3-RD


7-LB


3-VB


17-LB


3-TO


3-SJ


3-TO


3-SJ


3-SJ


1-AG


1-SW


1-SW


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / L. OLSON


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


1
7
0
0
 
E


.
 
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#
7
3
8


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


L 2.2


P
L
A


N
T


I
N


G
 
P


L
A


N


PLANTING PLAN


FEET


0 20


LANDSCAPE CONSTRUCTION NOTES


1. BLACK BEAUTY TALL FESCUE KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS (TFKB


SOD) PROVIDED BY PAUL'S TURF & TREE NURSERY


(608.655.3600) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


2. PROVIDE 3" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH AROUND


ALL STAND-ALONE TREES TO A MIN. 3-FOOT PERIMETER, AND IN


ALL AREAS NOTED ON PLANS OVER  GEOTEXTILE WEED


CONTROL FABRIC. NO WEED CONTROL FABRIC IS REQUIRED IN


GROUNDCOVER OR PERENNIAL AREAS.  MULCHED LANDSCAPE


BEDS SHALL HAVE A SPADED VERTICAL EDGE WHEN


PERIMETER IS NOT CONCRETE CURB. MULCH PROVIDED BY


KELENY TOP SOIL (608.833.4835) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


3. "EARTHCARPET" TURF SEED PROVIDED BY CERTIFIED


PRODUCTS, INC. (262.542.2270) OR APPROVED EQUAL.


4. NATIVE SEED SHALL BE "DETENTION BASIN - BIOSWALE MIX"


PROVIDED BY PRAIRIE NURSERY (1.800.476.9453) OR APPROVED


EQUAL.


5. 2-6" COBBLE MULCH PROVIDED BY MILESTONE MATERIALS


(608-783-6411) OR APPROVED EQUAL. SUBMIT SAMPLE FOR


APPROVAL.


6. MULCHED LANDSCAPE BEDS SHALL HAVE A SPADED VERTICAL


EDGE AT 4" DEPTH WHEN PERIMETER IS NOT CONCRETE


SIDEWALK OR CURB.


7. LARGE BLOCK RETAINING WALL, SEE 10 AND 11 ON SP5.0


8. REFER TO CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE FOR NOTES REGARDING


SITE RESTORATION.


SOD (27,248 SF), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE


LANDSCAPE LEGEND


SHRUB BED WITH HARDWOOD MULCH (40 CY) DOES NOT


INCLUDE STAND-ALONG TREES OUTSIDE SHRUB BED


AREAS), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE


SPADE CUT EDGER AT 4" DEPTH (785 LF)


CLIMAX TREE


LOW DECIDUOUS TREE


DECIDUOUS SHRUBS


LOW EVERGREEN TREE


EVERGREEN SHRUBS


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES


TURF SEED (2,407 SF), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR
TYPE


LIMIT OF WORK


COBBLE MULCH (19 CY), REFER TO CONSTRUCTION NOTES
FOR TYPE


1


2


3


5


NATIVE SEED (6,309 SF), REFER TO
CONSTRUCTION NOTES FOR TYPE.4


MATCHLINE


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS TREE


PLANT SCHEDULE


QTY KEY COMMON NAME


CLIMAX TREES


RO NORTHERN RED OAK


AG AUTUMN GOLD GINGKO


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS TREES


BW WHITESPIRE BIRCH TWIN


LOW DECIDUOUS TREES


MP PRAIRIEFIRE CRABAPPLE


LOW EVERGREEN TREES


SJ SKYHIGH JUNIPER


TO EMERALD ARBORVITAE


TALL DECIDUOUS SHRUB


VB BURKWOOD VIBURNUM


MEDIUM DECIDUOUS SHRUB


CA SWEET PEPPERBUSH


RD RED TWIG DOGWOOD


AC ALPINE CURRANT


MEDIUM EVERGREEN SHRUBS


RW


WHITE CATAWBA RHODODENDRON


MU


MUGO PINE


LOW EVERGREEN SHRUBS


JH


ANDORRA JUNIPER


JV


GREY OWL JUNIPER


ORNAMENTAL GRASSES


PD PRAIRIE DROPSEED


LB LITTLE BLUESTEM







FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


S. ANDERSON / L. OLSON


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


1
7
0
0
 
E


.
 
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#
7
3
8


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


L 3.0


L
A


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 
D


E
T


A
I
L
S


TREE PLANTING


SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"


NOTES:


1. DO NOT CUT SINGLE LEADER. PRUNE


ONLY DAMAGED, DEAD WOOD, OR


CO-DOMINATE LEADERS AT CITY


FORESTER'S DIRECTION.


2. ANY BROKEN, CRUMBLING, OR


OTHERWISE DAMAGED ROOTBALL


WILL BE REJECTED. DAMAGE DURING


PLANTING OPERATIONS WILL NOT BE


EXCUSED.


3-4 X Root Ball Diameter


3X Root Ball Diameter


FINISH GRADE


UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE


12" NYLON TREE STRAP WITH GROMMETS


ON GUY WIRE. DO NOT TWIST STRAPS TO


TIGHTEN AROUND TRUNK.


1


2


" DIAMETER WHITE PVC PIPE SECTION ON


ENTIRE LENGTH OF EACH WIRE


14-GAUGE GALVANIZED WIRE, DOUBLE


STRAND. LEAVE  1-2" SLACK IN WIRE TO


ALLOW FOR TRUNK MOVEMENT.


IF NEEDED, 6' STEEL T-POST OR WOOD


STAKE (4' EXPOSED, 2' IN UNDISTURBED


SUBGRADE) WITH SAFETY CAPS, SET TO


WINDWARD SIDE AND OTHER OPPOSITE; OR


OTHER PRE-APPROVED STAKING METHOD.


DECIDUOUS TREE FALL PLANTING: WRAP


TRUNK TO FIRST BRANCH WITH SPECIFIED


TREE WRAP MATERIAL. SECURE AT TOP


WITH MASKING TAPE. DO NOT WRAP ROUGH


BARK, POPULOUS, OR GLEDITISIA TREES.


REMOVE IN SPRING AS SPECIFIED.


REMOVE EXCESS SOIL FROM


TOP OF ROOT BALL.


CIRCLE OF SHREDDED


WOOD MULCH, 3" DEEP


AND 2" MIN. AWAY FROM


TRUNK, TO OUTER EDGE


OF PLANTING HOLE.


COMPLETELY REMOVE ALL


TWINE, WIRE BASKET &


BURLAP AND REMOVE


FROM PIT.


SPECIFIED BACKFILL


MIXTURE (INCLUDE NATIVE


SOIL WHERE POSSIBLE).


PLANTING PIT


NO SCALE 


ROOT COLLAR AND ROOT FLARE MUST BE


VISIBLE AT FINISH GRADE.  DO NOT PLACE


MULCH WITHIN 2" OF TRUNK.  ROOT COLLAR IS


NOT ALWAYS LOCATED AT TOP OF ROOT BALL.


CONTRACTOR TO  VERIFY LOCATION OF ROOT


COLLAR AND ROOT FLARE PRIOR TO


INSTALLATION.


MINIMUM 6' DIAMETER, 3" DEPTH MULCH RING


3" HEIGHT WATER RETENTION BERM


BEYOND EDGE OF ROOT BALL


FINISH GRADE


DEPTH OF ROOT


BALL OR


CONTAINER


SYSTEM


SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT


REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL,


CONTAINERS OR OTHER MATERIAL THAT WILL


IMPEDE THE GROWTH OF THE PLANT MATERIAL.


REMOVE ALL TWINE.  FOR BALLED AND BURLAP


(B&B) PLANTS, REMOVE BURLAP AND WIRE BASKET.


PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL


3X ROOT BALL MINIMUM


FOR TREES 2X ROOT


BALL MINIMUM FOR


SHRUBS


TYPICAL PLANTING PIT DETAIL


TREE OR SHRUB


ROOT COLLAR AND ROOT FLARE MUST BE VISIBLE AT


FINISH GRADE.  DO NOT PLACE MULCH WITHIN


2" OF TRUNK.  ROOT COLLAR IS NOT ALWAYS


LOCATED AT TOP OF ROOTBALL.  CONTRACTOR TO


VERIFY LOCATION OF ROOT COLLAR AND ROOT FLARE


PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.


FINISH GRADE


SCARIFY SIDES OF PIT


REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIAL,


CONTAINERS OR OTHER MATERIAL THAT WILL


IMPEDE THE GROWTH OF THE PLANT MATERIAL.


REMOVE ALL TWINE.  FOR BALLED AND BURLAP


(B&B) PLANTS, REMOVE  BURLAP AND WIRE BASKET.


PLACE ROOT BALL ON UNDISTURBED SOIL


3X ROOT BALL MINIMUM


FOR TREES 2X ROOT


BALL MINIMUM FOR


SHRUBS


SLOPE PLANTING PIT DETAIL


EXISTING SLOPE


DEPTH OF ROOT


BALL OR


CONTAINER ROOT


SYSTEM


2:1 MAXIMUM TRANSITION SLOPE. BEGIN


TRANSITION AT EDGE OF ROOT BALL


MINIMUM 6' DIAMETER AND 3" DEPTH MULCH RING


3" HEIGHT WATER RETENTION BERM


BEYOND EDGE OF ROOT BALL


1


2







0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.6


0.8


1.0


1.0


1.0


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.8


0.9


1.1


1.2


1.2


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.1


0.9


0.8


0.8


0.7


0.8


0.9


1.1


1.3


1.4


1.4


1.2


1.1


1.0


0.8


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.3


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.8


1.0


1.1


1.1


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.9


0.9


0.9


1.0


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.7


0.9


1.1


1.2


1.3


1.6


2.1


2.6


2.5


2.3


2.6


2.6


2.0


1.5


1.3


1.2


1.2


1.1


1.1


1.3


1.5


1.6


1.6


1.4


1.2


1.1


0.9


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.4


0.8


0.9


1.1


1.2


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.2


1.0


0.8


0.8


0.7


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.9


0.9


0.9


1.0


1.1


1.1


1.2


1.3


1.4


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.0


1.1


0.9


0.8


1.1


1.4


1.5


1.5


1.6


2.0


2.5


3.1


3.3


3.3


3.2


2.9


2.3


1.9


1.6


1.5


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.5


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.5


1.4


1.3


1.0


0.4


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.5


1.0


1.2


1.3


1.5


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.5


1.2


1.0


1.0


1.0


1.0


1.0


1.0


1.0


1.1


1.1


1.2


1.3


1.4


1.6


1.9


2.1


2.2


2.3


2.5


2.8


3.2


3.0


2.6


2.7


2.7


2.3


2.1


2.2


2.4


2.4


2.4


2.4


2.5


2.8


3.1


3.1


3.0


2.6


2.3


2.1


1.9


1.8


1.7


1.5


1.5


1.7


1.9


2.0


1.8


1.7


1.6


1.6


1.2


0.4


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.6


1.0


1.3


1.4


1.6


1.8


1.9


1.9


1.7


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.8


2.0


2.3


2.6


2.7


2.8


3.1


3.7


4.3


4.4


4.1


4.1


3.8


3.1


2.8


2.7


2.9


3.0


2.9


2.7


2.7


2.7


2.9


3.0


2.8


2.6


2.5


2.4


2.4


2.2


2.1


1.9


1.8


2.0


2.2


2.3


2.0


1.9


2.0


2.1


1.5


0.4


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.7


1.2


1.4


1.5


1.7


1.9


2.0


2.1


2.0


1.7


1.5


1.5


1.7


1.8


1.9


1.9


2.0


2.0


2.0


2.1


2.1


2.1


2.3


2.7


3.0


2.9


3.0


3.3


3.7


4.2


4.4


4.3


4.2


3.7


3.2


3.1


3.1


3.3


3.4


3.4


3.4


3.4


3.5


3.6


3.7


3.6


3.5


3.4


3.1


2.9


2.8


2.6


2.4


2.2


2.3


2.4


2.6


2.3


2.2


2.5


2.8


2.0


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.8


1.5


1.7


1.8


1.8


2.1


2.2


2.2


2.0


1.8


1.7


1.7


1.8


2.0


2.2


2.2


2.3


2.3


2.3


2.3


2.3


2.3


2.5


2.9


3.1


3.1


3.2


3.4


3.6


3.8


4.0


3.9


3.8


3.5


3.3


3.4


3.6


3.6


3.8


3.9


4.0


4.1


4.3


4.5


4.7


4.7


4.6


4.3


4.0


3.7


3.6


3.4


3.1


2.9


2.8


2.8


2.8


2.5


2.5


3.0


3.2


2.1


0.5


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.0


0.1


0.2


1.0


2.0


2.3


2.0


1.9


2.2


2.4


2.2


2.0


1.8


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.8


1.8


1.9


2.0


2.0


2.0


2.0


2.0


2.3


2.6


2.9


3.2


3.2


3.2


3.5


3.8


3.8


3.7


3.8


4.0


3.7


3.7


3.8


3.9


4.0


4.1


4.1


4.3


4.5


5.1


5.5


5.9


6.1


6.0


5.6


5.1


5.1


5.0


4.8


4.3


3.8


3.5


3.3


3.2


2.7


2.8


3.2


3.2


1.9


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


1.1


2.5


2.9


2.4


2.0


2.3


2.4


2.1


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.8


2.1


2.3


2.3


2.3


2.1


2.0


2.1


2.4


2.8


3.0


3.0


3.2


3.6


4.1


4.2


4.0


4.3


4.7


4.8


4.6


4.5


4.2


4.2


4.1


4.2


4.4


4.9


5.8


6.6


7.5


7.9


7.9


7.6


7.2


7.3


7.5


7.3


6.4


5.3


4.4


3.8


3.5


2.9


2.8


3.2


3.3


2.1


0.6


0.3


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.3


1.1


2.4


3.1


2.7


2.2


2.3


2.4


2.1


1.8


1.4


1.4


1.3


1.4


1.7


2.1


2.5


2.5


2.5


2.6


2.4


2.0


2.0


2.2


2.5


2.7


2.8


3.0


3.4


3.9


3.9


3.8


4.2


4.7


5.1


4.8


4.8


4.3


4.2


3.8


4.0


4.5


5.2


6.5


7.6


9.0


10.5


11.2


11.1


10.7


10.9


11.8


11.7


10.0


7.7


5.8


4.6


3.9


3.1


2.7


3.0


3.2


2.3


0.6


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


1.1


2.2


3.1


2.8


2.3


2.4


2.4


2.1


1.8


1.4


1.3


1.1


1.2


1.5


2.2


2.7


2.9


3.0


2.9


2.5


1.9


1.7


1.9


2.2


2.4


2.4


2.6


3.0


3.5


3.5


3.4


3.8


4.0


4.9


4.7


3.4


3.7


3.7


3.5


3.9


4.6


5.7


7.3


9.0


11.1


13.8


15.8


16.1


15.5


16.2


17.6


17.7


14.9


10.8


7.5


5.4


4.3


3.3


2.7


2.6


2.6


1.9


0.6


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.3


1.1


2.5


3.1


2.7


2.3


2.4


2.4


2.2


1.9


1.3


1.1


0.9


1.0


1.3


2.0


2.8


3.2


3.3


2.9


2.3


1.7


1.4


1.5


1.7


1.9


1.9


2.1


2.5


3.0


3.0


2.9


3.3


3.3


4.5


4.2


4.1


3.7


3.6


3.3


3.8


4.8


6.2


8.2


10.3


13.2


17.0


20.1


20.9


20.4


21.0


22.9


23.4


19.6


13.7


9.1


6.2


4.6


3.4


2.7


2.4


2.1


1.5


0.7


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


1.1


2.4


2.8


2.4


2.1


2.4


2.5


2.2


1.9


1.4


1.2


0.6


0.8


1.1


1.7


2.3


2.7


1.9


2.5


2.0


1.5


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.4


1.5


1.6


2.1


2.5


2.6


2.4


2.7


3.0


3.7


3.7


3.5


3.1


3.2


3.2


3.8


5.1


6.7


9.2


11.8


15.1


19.9


23.8


24.7


23.6


24.2


26.5


26.8


22.4


15.7


10.2


6.8


4.8


3.5


2.7


2.2


1.8


1.4


0.7


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.9


1.9


2.2


2.1


2.1


2.4


2.6


2.4


2.1


1.8


1.9


0.8


1.0


1.6


1.8


2.8


2.8


2.7


3.2


3.1


3.9


2.8


3.8


3.5


3.9


5.1


4.1


6.0


5.4


6.7


6.7


3.4


3.0


3.7


3.2


2.9


2.8


2.8


3.1


3.9


5.4


7.3


10.2


13.0


16.7


21.2


24.8


25.8


24.8


25.0


27.0


27.5


23.3


16.5


10.8


7.1


4.9


3.6


2.7


2.1


1.7


1.3


0.5


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.8


1.5


1.8


1.9


2.1


2.4


2.6


2.6


2.5


4.2


9.8


7.5


7.9


11.0


8.3


13.8


11.1


14.0


15.6


14.4


21.6


14.4


20.9


19.2


18.5


24.3


17.1


25.2


20.6


24.2


24.6


9.3


10.7


10.6


4.4


2.7


2.7


2.8


3.1


4.1


5.8


7.9


10.9


13.9


17.6


22.1


25.4


26.2


24.9


25.0


26.9


27.2


23.3


16.8


11.1


7.4


5.1


3.7


2.7


2.1


1.6


1.3


0.4


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.7


1.3


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.4


2.7


2.9


3.9


14.8


36.5


25.1


23.2


29.3


21.0


30.0


24.4


26.8


29.1


22.7


29.5


19.8


27.2


24.8


22.4


27.4


27.6


27.1


7.5


3.1


2.9


3.0


3.3


4.3


6.1


8.4


11.5


14.7


18.4


22.9


26.2


26.9


25.5


25.5


27.4


27.9


24.0


17.4


11.5


7.5


5.0


3.5


2.6


1.9


1.5


1.1


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.6


1.2


1.5


1.7


2.1


2.6


3.0


3.5


7.0


29.2


32.7


26.7


28.2


9.2


4.2


3.7


3.5


3.7


4.6


6.3


8.5


11.7


14.9


18.7


23.3


26.8


27.9


26.7


26.6


28.5


29.3


25.4


18.3


11.8


7.5


4.9


3.3


2.3


1.6


1.2


0.9


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.5


1.1


1.4


1.7


2.1


2.7


3.4


4.6


9.0


23.5


30.1


27.7


34.8


13.4


6.7


5.1


4.3


4.1


4.9


6.5


8.7


11.9


15.3


19.1


23.9


28.1


29.3


27.6


27.3


29.6


30.2


26.2


18.8


12.0


7.5


4.7


3.1


2.0


1.4


1.0


0.7


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.4


0.9


1.1


1.5


1.9


2.6


3.8


6.6


9.9


15.2


17.6


15.8


9.9


7.1


5.3


4.7


5.1


6.5


8.7


11.9


15.2


18.9


23.6


27.3


28.5


27.2


26.9


28.6


29.5


25.8


18.6


12.0


7.4


4.6


2.9


1.9


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.4


0.6


0.8


1.1


1.6


2.4


4.2


7.1


11.2


15.9


17.7


17.0


12.8


8.7


6.2


5.0


5.1


6.5


8.7


11.8


15.1


18.7


23.3


26.6


27.9


26.4


26.0


27.8


28.5


25.0


18.3


11.9


7.4


4.6


2.9


1.9


1.2


0.8


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.5


0.6


0.9


1.3


2.3


4.1


6.7


10.6


15.0


17.0


17.7


13.5


9.1


6.4


4.8


5.0


6.5


8.8


11.8


15.2


18.7


23.2


26.7


27.9


26.5


26.0


27.8


28.6


25.3


18.6


12.1


7.5


4.6


2.9


1.9


1.2


0.8


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.8


1.3


2.2


3.4


5.4


8.3


13.4


17.8


14.9


11.7


8.0


5.4


4.3


4.9


6.4


8.6


11.6


14.9


18.5


23.1


26.8


28.5


27.3


26.9


28.5


29.9


26.7


19.6


12.6


7.7


4.7


3.0


1.9


1.2


0.8


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.7


1.2


1.8


2.6


3.8


6.3


17.7


32.7


28.8


17.6


8.5


5.8


4.1


3.9


4.6


6.3


8.5


11.5


15.0


18.6


23.3


27.8


29.8


28.2


27.4


29.6


30.6


27.5


20.1


12.9


7.9


4.8


3.0


1.9


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.6


0.8


1.1


1.4


1.9


2.6


4.3


17.0


34.6


28.7


13.3


5.3


3.6


3.4


3.5


4.4


6.1


8.3


11.3


14.7


18.3


22.9


27.0


28.8


27.7


27.0


28.4


29.9


27.0


20.0


12.9


7.9


4.9


3.0


1.9


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.8


0.9


1.2


1.5


1.8


2.9


13.3


32.5


30.3


12.3


3.2


2.7


2.8


3.2


4.1


5.9


8.2


11.1


14.5


17.9


22.5


26.3


28.0


26.8


26.0


27.6


28.7


26.1


19.6


12.9


8.0


4.9


3.1


2.0


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.6


0.7


0.8


0.9


1.0


1.2


1.4


2.2


12.4


31.8


20.7


8.1


2.3


2.1


2.4


2.9


3.9


5.7


8.1


10.9


14.4


17.9


22.3


26.2


27.9


26.7


25.9


27.4


28.7


26.3


20.0


13.1


8.1


5.0


3.1


2.0


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.6


0.8


0.8


0.9


0.9


1.1


1.2


1.8


10.7


30.8


28.1


11.4


2.2


1.7


2.1


2.6


3.7


5.5


7.8


10.7


14.1


17.6


22.0


26.1


28.2


27.5


26.7


27.9


29.7


27.5


20.9


13.6


8.3


5.1


3.1


2.0


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.6


0.7


0.8


0.9


0.9


1.0


1.1


1.6


10.1


29.8


26.0


9.9


1.8


1.5


1.8


2.4


3.5


5.2


7.6


10.5


14.0


17.5


22.1


26.8


29.4


28.2


26.9


28.7


30.2


28.2


21.4


13.9


8.5


5.1


3.2


2.0


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.0


1.0


1.1


1.5


9.0


29.0


23.9


10.1


1.5


1.2


1.6


2.2


3.3


5.0


7.3


10.1


13.6


17.1


21.4


25.8


28.1


27.5


26.4


27.4


29.2


27.5


21.1


13.9


8.5


5.1


3.2


2.0


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.8


1.0


1.3


1.2


1.6


7.9


29.6


29.4


13.3


1.7


1.1


1.5


2.0


3.0


4.7


6.9


9.7


13.2


16.4


20.7


24.9


27.2


26.4


25.2


26.4


27.9


26.3


20.5


13.6


8.4


5.1


3.1


2.0


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.8


0.9


1.1


1.6


1.6


3.2


13.0


29.0


29.3


29.8


28.2


28.0


20.4


20.4


21.8


29.1


36.6


20.6


9.1


1.3


0.9


1.3


1.9


2.8


4.4


6.5


9.1


12.5


15.7


19.9


24.1


26.4


25.7


24.6


25.8


27.5


26.2


20.5


13.6


8.4


5.0


3.1


1.9


1.2


0.8


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.8


0.9


1.1


1.4


2.1


2.1


4.0


9.1


9.3


8.9


7.9


7.0


4.9


3.1


3.8


11.8


25.1


29.4


15.3


1.9


0.8


1.2


1.7


2.5


4.0


5.9


8.3


11.4


14.4


18.5


22.8


25.6


25.5


24.7


25.5


27.5


26.6


20.9


13.7


8.2


4.9


3.0


1.9


1.2


0.9


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.1


1.4


1.9


2.2


2.3


2.0


2.4


2.3


1.9


1.4


1.0


0.1


1.0


12.2


28.9


24.1


11.8


1.6


0.7


1.0


1.5


2.3


3.6


5.3


7.4


10.2


13.1


17.0


21.7


25.1


24.8


23.6


24.9


26.6


25.8


20.2


13.1


7.8


4.6


2.8


1.8


1.2


0.9


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.1


1.3


1.7


2.1


2.2


1.7


2.2


2.0


1.6


1.3


0.9


0.1


0.5


7.3


20.3


25.7


15.1


2.0


0.7


1.0


1.5


2.1


3.2


4.7


6.5


9.0


11.3


14.6


18.7


21.5


21.7


20.8


21.2


22.9


22.3


17.6


11.5


6.9


4.1


2.5


1.6


1.2


1.0


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.7


0.7


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.0


1.3


1.7


2.2


2.3


2.1


2.5


2.2


1.8


1.4


1.1


0.2


0.8


11.3


35.4


27.3


16.3


2.4


0.9


1.2


1.6


2.1


3.1


4.4


5.9


7.8


9.7


12.2


15.1


17.0


16.9


15.9


16.3


17.2


16.6


13.2


8.8


5.5


3.3


2.1


1.5


1.1


1.0


1.1


1.2


1.2


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.2


1.1


1.0


0.7


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.1


1.4


1.9


2.5


2.4


2.3


2.5


2.8


2.2


1.8


1.4


0.5


0.8


8.5


35.8


30.2


24.2


30.2


23.8


28.6


27.6


24.5


29.2


19.7


28.5


19.7


7.9


4.8


1.5


1.3


1.6


1.9


2.4


3.1


4.2


5.3


6.8


8.2


9.7


11.4


12.1


11.6


10.8


10.6


11.0


10.5


8.6


6.1


4.0


2.6


1.7


1.2


1.0


1.0


1.1


1.3


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.8


1.8


1.8


1.8


1.8


1.8


1.7


1.6


1.4


1.3


1.1


0.8


0.6


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.8


1.1


1.4


2.1


2.2


2.3


2.3


2.4


2.6


2.5


2.3


1.9


1.7


1.6


3.4


13.2


20.5


13.5


17.1


12.2


14.2


13.6


10.4


13.0


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.8


1.7


1.6


1.7


2.0


2.2


2.5


3.1


3.9


4.7


5.7


6.5


7.3


7.9


7.9


7.4


6.7


6.5


6.4


6.1


5.1


3.9


2.7


1.9


1.3


1.0


0.8


0.9


1.1


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.9


2.1


2.1


2.1


2.1


2.1


2.0


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.4


1.2


0.9


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.7


0.8


1.0


1.5


1.6


1.9


2.1


2.2


2.3


2.5


2.5


2.4


2.5


2.2


2.1


2.1


3.1


3.9


3.1


3.3


2.7


2.9


3.0


2.5


2.7


2.0


1.9


1.9


2.0


2.0


2.0


2.1


2.2


2.3


2.4


2.6


2.9


3.4


4.0


4.5


5.1


5.4


5.5


5.2


4.7


4.1


3.8


3.7


3.5


3.0


2.4


1.8


1.3


0.9


0.7


0.7


0.8


1.0


1.3


1.5


1.6


1.6


1.7


1.8


1.9


2.0


2.0


1.9


1.7


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.2


0.8


0.5


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.8


1.1


1.0


1.3


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.2


2.3


2.5


2.6


2.6


2.7


2.6


2.4


2.4


2.4


2.2


2.0


1.9


2.0


2.2


2.1


2.0


1.9


2.0


2.1


2.2


2.2


2.2


2.3


2.3


2.3


2.4


2.4


2.7


3.0


3.2


3.4


3.5


3.5


3.4


3.2


2.8


2.5


2.3


2.2


2.0


1.8


1.5


1.2


0.9


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.6


0.9


1.2


1.3


1.4


1.5


1.7


1.9


2.1


2.4


2.4


2.2


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.3


1.2


1.1


0.7


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.8


0.8


0.9


1.0


1.3


1.6


1.9


2.1


2.2


2.3


2.5


2.6


2.6


2.7


2.6


2.5


2.3


2.1


1.9


1.9


2.1


2.1


2.1


1.9


1.8


1.7


1.8


1.9


2.1


2.2


2.1


2.0


2.0


2.0


2.2


2.3


2.5


2.5


2.4


2.2


2.1


2.0


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.4


1.3


1.2


1.1


0.9


0.8


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.8


1.1


1.2


1.3


1.4


1.8


2.2


2.7


2.9


2.9


2.7


2.3


1.8


1.4


1.2


1.1


1.0


0.6


0.3


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.8


1.1


1.4


1.7


1.9


2.0


2.1


2.1


2.2


2.4


2.6


2.6


2.4


2.1


1.9


1.8


1.8


1.9


2.0


1.9


1.7


1.6


1.7


1.9


2.1


2.5


2.6


2.5


2.3


2.1


2.0


1.9


1.9


2.0


1.9


1.6


1.3


1.2


1.1


1.0


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.6


0.9


1.0


1.1


1.3


1.7


2.3


2.8


2.7


2.7


2.8


2.4


1.7


1.3


1.1


1.0


0.8


0.5


0.3


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.2


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.9


2.2


2.5


2.8


3.0


3.0


2.9


2.4


2.0


1.7


1.6


1.7


1.8


1.7


1.5


1.4


1.6


2.0


2.6


3.0


3.0


3.0


2.8


2.3


1.9


1.7


1.6


1.6


1.4


1.1


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.5


0.7


0.8


0.9


0.9


1.1


1.5


1.7


1.5


1.4


1.7


1.5


1.1


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.7


1.0


1.3


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.2


2.8


3.3


3.3


3.3


3.2


2.7


2.0


1.6


1.4


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.5


2.0


2.6


2.7


2.5


2.6


2.7


2.2


1.6


1.4


1.3


1.2


1.0


0.7


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.9


1.1


1.2


1.3


1.5


1.9


2.5


2.6


2.3


2.4


2.7


2.3


1.7


1.3


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.1


1.0


0.9


0.9


1.2


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.2


1.0


0.9


0.8


0.8


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.8


0.9


1.0


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.0


0.9


0.7


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.2


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


30' WIDE SHARED


ACESS EASEMENT


FOR LOTS 1 AND 2


AS RECORDED IN CSM 11461


(Exception 13)


1
5


'


1
5


'


UNL


2
0
K


DSL 2


1
2
K


2
0
K


UNL


88


PREM


S
P


L
I
T


 
2
0
K


E85


N
O


PARKING


LOADING


ZONE


CAR


W
ASH


B


B


POLE 1


POLE 2


POLE 3


POLE 4


POLE 5


POLE 6


POLE 8


POLE 7


POLE 9


POLE 10
POLE 11


A A A A A A A A A A


D D D D D D D D D D


POLE IS FOR CAMERA ONLY,
NO LIGHT FIXTURE.


E


G


F


H


H


H


H


H


H


H


C C C C C
C


C


C


C


C


C


C


C


C


C


C C
CC C C C C


C


C


C


C


C


C


C


C


C
C C C


B


B


PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN 
SCALE: 1'' = 30'-0''


P
H


O
T


O
M


E
T


R
I
C


 
S


I
T


E
 
P


L
A


N


A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H


PROVIDE (11) 16' POLES.


FIXTURE QUANTITIES
- 10
- 4
- 35
- 10
- 1
- 1
- 1
- 7


LOT LIGHT ELEVATION DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE


GRADE LEVELCURB


CEME-TUBE FORM
ABOVE GRADE


DRILLED PIER
FOUNDATION


3'


3
'


1
6
'


FOOTCANDLE LEVELS SHOWN ON THIS PLAN
ARE CALCULATED AT GRADE LEVEL.


 E1.0


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


1
7


0
0


 
E


.
 
M


A
I
N


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


C
O


N
V


E
N


I
E


N
C


E
 
S


T
O


R
E


 
#
7
3
8


FAX (608) 781-8960


PH.  (608) 781-8988


LA CROSSE, WI  54602-2107


1626 OAK STREET


P.O. BOX 2107


KWIK TRIP, Inc.


120.0134.30


MAY 27, 2020


NOTED


DRAWN BY


SCALE


PROJ. NO.


DATE


SHEET


DESCRIPTIONDATE#


5010 VOGES ROAD


MADISON, WISCONSIN 53718


608-838-0444


B - 


FIXTURE TYPES:
A - 


C -


E -


D - 


LSI LIGHTING: SCV-LED-23L-SCFT-UNV-DIM-50-WHT
MOUNT FIXTURES WITH FORWARD THROW OPTIC AIMING AT STORE FRONT.
FIXTURE IS SHOWN DIMMED TO 50%.


LED STRIP LIGHT MOUNTED IN GABLE
LITHONIA -TZL1N-L96


RECESSED LED DOWNLIGHT
GOTHAM EVO-35/30-8AR-WD-120-TRW


LSI LIGHTING: SCV-LED-15L-SC-UNV-DIM-50-WHT
FIXTURE IS SHOWN DIMMED TO 60%.


LSI LIGHTING: SLM-LED-9L-SIL-5W-UNV-50-70CRI-WHT


LSI LIGHTING: SLM-LED-9L-SIL-FT-L-UNV-50-70CRI-WHT
ORDER FIXTURE WITH OPTICS ROTATED TO THE LEFT.


LSI LIGHTING: SLM-LED-9L-SIL-FT-UNV-50-70CRI-WHT


LSI LIGHTING: SLM-LED-9L-SIL-FT-UNV-50-70CRI-WHT-IL


F -


G -


H -


LED LIGHT MOUNTED UNDER GAS CANOPY


LED STRIP LIGHT MOUNTED IN GABLE


RECESSED LED DOWNLIGHT


POLE MOUNTED LED FIXTURE


FIXTURE SYMBOLS:
A & D


E, F, G & H


B


C


2020-0195.10


275 West Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203
414 / 259 1500
414 / 259 0037 fax


POLE #11 IS FOR CAMERA ONLY, NO LIGHT FIXTURE.


Statistics
Description Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min


GAS CANOPY 24.9 fc 30.6 fc 14.9 fc 2.1:1 1.7:1


PARKING 2.4 fc 21.6 fc 0.6 fc 36.0:1 4.0:1


OVERALL SITE WITHIN
PROPERTY LINES


3.4 fc 36.6 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A


NOTE:







Dane County Department of Public Works, Highway and Transportation 


APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO WORK IN  
COUNTY TRUNK HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY 


This permit is required and shall be issued in accordance with the provisions of Section 83.027 of the Wisconsin Statutes and Chapter 79 of the 


Dane County Code of Ordinances.


APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Company Contact Name E-Mail Address


Address  City State Zip Code 


Office Phone Alternate Phone Fax Number 


Permit Mailing Address (if different from above) City State Zip Code 


CONTRACTOR INFORMATION (see instructions) 
Company Name Contact Name E-Mail Address


Office Phone After Hours Phone (Required) Fax Number 


PROPOSED WORK 
County Trunk Highway where r-o-w is located Town Village City of: 


1/4 


of 


1/4 of 


Section 


Plans Prepared By Copy Enclosed? Customer Reference No. (optional) 


Yes No 


Estimated Start Date Estimated Ending Date Area to be restored days 


Will pavement, sidewalk or curb be 


disturbed? (Check all that apply) 


after completion of construction. 


Pavement S/W Curb 


Describe Type of Utility Installation 


CALCULATION OF PERMIT FEES: QTY AMOUNT
a. Permit to work in highway right-of-way @ $55 * 


b. Borings @ $45 per boring 


c. Open cut pavement @ $220 per open cut 


d. Trenching in excess of 1,320 feet @ $110 X lineal feet/1,000 


e. Construction of vault or other structure @ $110 per vault/structure 


f. Construction improvements at intersection with a highway @ $1,100 


*This fee applies in all cases, with the exception of an application where item f above is the
only type of work planned.  In this case, the $1,100 fee alone applies.


TOTAL FEES 


Bill our company’s account for the amount of “Total 


Fees” indicated above.  (Accounts must be pre-


approved by Highway Department) 


Check or money order payable to the Dane County 


Highway Department in the amount of “Total Fees” 


indicated above is enclosed. 


PERMIT CONDITIONS & SIGNATURE 
Applicant acknowledges that (s)he has read and understand the requirements for obtaining a permit to work in County Trunk Highway 


right-of-way.  By signing this application, applicant agrees that Dane County may establish additional provisions prior to application 


approval.  Applicants shall receive notification of any special provisions. 


Applicant further understands and agrees that the permitted work shall comply with all permit provisions and conditions listed on the 


reverse side hereof, any special provisions, and any and all plans, details or notes attached hereto and made a part hereof.  Property 


owner is responsible for notifying Dane County of any conditions and/or restrictions. 


By


Signature of Applicant / Representative or Project Manager Date 


Print Name and Title Phone 







PERMIT PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS OF ISSUANCE 
Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes and State Highway Maintenance Manual, this permit is granted to allow performance of the specific 


work described herein.  The following standard provisions and any included special provisions shall govern: 


1. The permitted facilities shall, if necessary, be altered at the expense of the Applicant to permit alteration, improvement, or


maintenance of the highway as may hereafter be ordered.  The entire cost of constructing and maintaining the permitted facilities


shall be the obligation of the Applicant unless a contract for such costs has been executed.


2. No open cutting for a crossing will be allowed where the pavement is too narrow to maintain one-way traffic at all times, unless


Dane County has granted permission for a detour.  Wherever the pavement is opened the spoil shall be hauled away and the


trench shall be backfilled with sand or gravel and compacted in layers.  The pavement removed for a road crossing shall be


replaced as per Dane County specifications.


3. The Applicant shall provide ALL NECESSARY SIGNS, FLAGMEN, AND LIGHTS required according to the “Manual on Uniform


Traffic Control Devices.”  When a detour is allowed, local newspapers shall be notified by the Applicant in advance of the work


being started.


4. All disturbed areas shall be returned to their present condition or better, subject to the satisfaction of Dane County or its


representative.  Access to all private drives and public street intersections shall be maintained, and all disturbed areas completely


restored.


5. Any trenching, tunneling, or excavating shall be performed in accordance with the requirements of OSHA and the Wisconsin


Department of Commerce, and any applicable local regulations.


6. A copy of this approval, along with any plans and special provisions, shall be available on the job site.


7. Upon completion of the work the Applicant shall file a written notice with Dane County.


8. Appeals to any special provisions or conditions of this permit must be received by the Highway Department in writing prior to the


start of work.


9. You are required to contact the Township and other governmental agencies, including the Dane County Land and Water
Resources Department, who have authority to permit land disturbances on and off of highway right-of-way.


10. This permit does not exempt the Applicant from any State, County or Local Agency permits or approval processes.


INDEMNIFICATION 


INDEMN. 1.01  APPLICANT shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend COUNTY, its boards, commissions, agencies, officers, 


employees and representatives against any and all liability, loss (including, but not limited to, property damage, bodily injury and loss of 


life), damages, costs or expenses which COUNTY, its officers, employees, agencies, boards, commissions and representatives may 


sustain, incur or be required to pay by reason of APPLICANT engaging in the activities authorized by the Permit or which arise out of or 


are connected with, or are claimed to arise out of or be connected with any of the work done by the APPLICANT, or the construction or 


maintenance of facilities by the APPLICANT, pursuant to the Permit, on, under or over highway right-of-way, provided, however, that 


the provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to liabilities, losses, charges, costs, or expenses caused by or resulting from the acts or 


omissions of COUNTY, its agencies, boards, commissions, officers, employees or representatives.  Without limiting the generality of the 


foregoing, the liability, damage, loss, expense, claims, demands, and actions indemnified against shall include all liability, damage, loss, 


expense, claims, demands, and actions for damage to any property, lines or facilities placed by or on behalf of the APPLICANT 


pursuant to the Permit, for any loss of data, information, or material; for trademark, copyright, or patent infringement; for unfair 


competition or infringement of any other so-called “intangible” property right; for defamation, false arrest, malicious prosecution or any 


other infringement of personal or property rights of any kind whatever.  APPLICANT shall at its own expense investigate all such claims 


and demands, attend to their settlement or other disposition, defend all actions based thereon and pay all charges of attorneys and all 


other costs and expenses of any kind arising from any such liability, damage, loss, claims, demands, and actions.  The obligation of 


APPLICANT under this paragraph shall survive the expiration or termination of the Permit. 


INDEMN. 1.02  In order to protect itself and COUNTY, its officers, boards, commissions, agencies, employees and representatives 


under the indemnity provisions of paragraph INDEMN. 1.01 above, APPLICANT will at all times during the term of the Permit keep in full 


force and effect comprehensive general liability and auto liability insurance policies issued by a company or companies authorized to do 


business in the State of Wisconsin and licensed by the Wisconsin Insurance Department, with liability coverage provided for therein in 


the amounts of at least $1,000,000.00 CSL (Combined Single Limits).  Covered afforded shall apply as primary.  COUNTY shall be 


given ten (10) days advance notice of cancellation or nonrenewal.  Upon issuance of the Permit, APPLICANT shall furnish COUNTY 


with a certificate of insurance listing COUNTY as an additional insured and, upon request, certified copies of the required insurance 


policies.  If APPLICANT’s insurance is underwritten on a Claims-Made basis, the Retroactive Date shall be prior to or coincide with the 


date of issuance of the Permit, and the Certificate of Insurance shall state that coverage is Claims-Made and indicate the Retroactive 


Date, APPLICANT shall maintain coverage for the duration of the Permit and two years thereafter.  APPLICANT shall furnish COUNTY, 


annually on the policy renewal date, a Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage.  It is further agreed that APPLICANT shall 


furnish the COUNTY with a 30-day notice of aggregate erosion, in advance of the Retroactive Date, cancellation, or renewal.  It is also 


agreed that on Claims-Made policies, either APPLICANT or COUNTY may invoke the tail option on behalf of the other party and that 


the Extended Reporting Period premium shall be paid by APPLICANT.  In the event any action, suit or other proceeding is brought 


against COUNTY upon any matter herein indemnified against, COUNTY shall give reasonable notice thereof to APPLICANT and shall 


cooperate with APPLICANT’s attorneys in the defense of the action, suit or other proceeding.  APPLICANT shall furnish evidence of 


adequate Worker’s Compensation Insurance. 


INDEMN. 1.03  In case of any sublet of work under the Permit, APPLICANT shall furnish evidence that each and every subcontractor 


has in force and effect insurance policies providing coverage identical to that required of APPLICANT. 


INDEMN. 1.04  The parties do hereby expressly agree that COUNTY, acting at its sole option and through its Risk Manager, may waive 


any and all requirements contained in paragraphs INDEMN. 1.01, INDEMN. 1.02 and INDEMN. 1.03 above, such waiver to be in writing 


only.  Such waiver may include or be limited to a reduction in the amount of coverage required above.  The extent of waiver shall be 


determined solely by COUNTY’s Risk Manager taking into account the nature of the work and other factors relevant to COUNTY’s 


exposure, if any, under the Permit. 







CORRESPONDENCE WITH DANE COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 
 


We will conduct a speed study of the area.   The access onto CTH N is restricted to right /in right out 
making the access negotiable for semi  traffic will be difficult. 
 
The community or developer can install radar speed signs.  We do not cost share with new construction 
or maintenance. 
 
Pam Dunphy, PE 
Deputy Commissioner 
Dane County Highway Department 
Phone:  (608) 266-4036 
Cell:        (608) 575-2244 
Email:    dunphy@countyofdane.com 
 
From: mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us <mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2020 11:01 AM 
To: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com> 
Subject: RE: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out 
 


This message was sent securely using Zix®  
 
Hello Pam, 
 
The Stoughton Plan Commission met again last night to discuss this project.  One of their main concerns 
is traffic speed control coming south on County Highway N into Stoughton.  The Commission questioned 
if speed could be reduced or is there some other speed control that could be used coming south on Hwy 
N.  The developer asked if some type of solar radar device could be installed.  The developer also 
questioned if the access point at County Highway N which I believe is currently 14 feet wide in and out 
could be widened to allow for better semi-truck access. 
 
The site plan has again been tabled until June 8th. 
 
Thanks for your time on this matter, 
 
Michael P. Stacey 
City of Stoughton 
Zoning Administrator 
207 S. Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
p - 608.646.0421 
f – 608.873.5519 
mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
From: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com>  
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2020 1:48 PM 



mailto:dunphy@countyofdane.com

mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:Dunphy@countyofdane.com

http://www.zixcorp.com/get-started/

mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:Dunphy@countyofdane.com





To: Michael Stacey <mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Subject: RE: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out 
 


This message was sent securely using Zix®  
 
I asked for additional plan information, but have not received anything yet. 
 
That information would accompany a permit after they have your approval. 
 
Pam Dunphy, PE 
Deputy Commissioner 
Dane County Highway Department 
Phone:  (608) 266-4036 
Cell:        (608) 575-2244 
Email:    dunphy@countyofdane.com 
 
From: mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us <mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us>  
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2020 9:27 AM 
To: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com> 
Subject: RE: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out 
 


This message was sent securely using Zix®  
 
Hello Pam, 
 
Anything new to report on this project?  Brad Fry of Kwik Trip said he provided you with more 
information.  We have them scheduled to come back on May 11th to resume the public hearing. 
 
Thanks, 
 
Michael P. Stacey 
City of Stoughton 
Zoning Administrator 
207 S. Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
p - 608.646.0421 
f – 608.873.5519 
mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
From: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 10, 2020 1:59 PM 
To: Michael Stacey <mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us> 
Subject: FW: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out 
 


This message was sent securely using Zix®  
 
Have you had any discussions with them on this topic?  Does this work for the City and adjoining land 
owners?   



mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://www.zixcorp.com/get-started/

mailto:dunphy@countyofdane.com

mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:Dunphy@countyofdane.com

http://www.zixcorp.com/get-started/

mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us

mailto:Dunphy@countyofdane.com

mailto:mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://www.zixcorp.com/get-started/





 
Please call to discuss. 
 
Pam Dunphy, PE 
Deputy Commissioner 
Dane County Highway Department 
Phone:  (608) 266-4036 
Cell:        (608) 575-2244 
Email:    dunphy@countyofdane.com 
 
From: Brad Fry <BFry@kwiktrip.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, March 10, 2020 1:44 PM 
To: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com> 
Cc: Troy Mleziva <TMleziva@kwiktrip.com>; Scott Anderson <sanderson@snyder-associates.com> 
Subject: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out 
 


CAUTION: External Email - Beware of unknown links and attachments. Contact 
Helpdesk at 266-4440 if unsure  


 


Pam 
 
Attached is the revision to our proposed driveway on CTH N restricting the movements to right in and 
right out.  This area currently has a right turn lane the full length of the property.   
 
Access permit application included 
 
Please review and let me know of any questions.   
 
Thank you for your review 
 
Bradford Fry, P.E -  Store Engineering  -  Kwik Trip, Inc.  -  608-793-6414 -  bfry@kwiktrip.com 
1626 Oak Street I PO Box 2107 I La Crosse, WI  54602  
 



mailto:dunphy@countyofdane.com

mailto:BFry@kwiktrip.com

mailto:Dunphy@countyofdane.com

mailto:TMleziva@kwiktrip.com

mailto:sanderson@snyder-associates.com

mailto:bfry@kwiktrip.com





Tuesday, June 2, 2020 4:16:20 PM - Window







Tuesday, June 2, 2020 4:13:40 PM - Window







Tuesday, June 2, 2020 4:10:36 PM - Window







Tuesday, June 2, 2020 4:18:54 PM - Window







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
3/9/20 
Page 2 of 3 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  3-9-20.docx 


 


• What exactly comes out of the smoke stack? 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Joe Langemeier, VP of Business Development for Zink Power gave an overview of their business 
and answered questions as follows: 


• There will be 3 chimneys: one for a natural gas furnace which burns very clean; one for a 
wet scrubber which produces clean exhaust and one for a dust collector which also has 
clean exhaust. 


• The height of the stack is dictated by the height of the building. 
• There are 30 truck per day expected on the high end. 
• Sanitary sewer will be needed for sinks and toilets, the location of sanitary sewer coming to 


the building has yet to be discussed with Stoughton Utilities. 
• Road access is near Racetrack Road. 


 
Schumacher questioned if cyanide is used as part of the process.  Joe Langemeier stated no. 
 
Schumacher had a number of questions about the manufacturing processes and Joe Langmeier will 
have their chemical engineer contact him to answer questions. 
 
Barman questioned the building height compared to Stoughton Trailers buildings.  Joe Langemeier 
was not sure but the building height will be about 7.5 feet above the street elevation. 
 
Scheel noted this request is just for the conditional use so the site plan will likely be on the agenda 
next month if there are more questions about the building and site. 
 
Motion by Caravello to recommend Common Council approval of the conditional use resolution 
as presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried 7 - 0. 
 


7. Request by Kwik Trip for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an in-vehicle sales 
and service use including Outdoor display incidental to an indoor sales use at 1700 E. Main 
Street. 
Scheel explained the applicant has requested this agenda item be tabled to a future date and since 
the public hearing is scheduled, we’ll have to open the public hearing to allow people to speak then 
adjourn until next month. 
 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
Scott Quam has traffic concerns. 
 
Tom Matson registered but did not speak. 
 
Maggie Gasner has concerns about increased traffic and access through the Kwik Trip lot. 
 
Seth Degnan is concerned about access through the Kwik Trip lot. 
 



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
3/9/20 
Page 3 of 3 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  3-9-20.docx 


 


Scheel explained the access limitations due to the WDOT not allowing access to Hwy 51 and the 
County Highway Department has jurisdiction over improvements within the right-of-way of 
County Highway N. 
 
Jerry Judd, who owns the adjacent lot (where Fastenal is located) stated he is concerned about 
access for his tenants and has been in discussions with the current owner of the Kwik Trip lot 
regarding the access easement.  He has not made a decision whether to accept changes to the access 
easement. 
 
Motion by Robinson to adjourn the public hearing until next month, 2nd by Selsor.   Motion 
carried 7 - 0. 
 


8. Discuss potential zoning ordinance amendments. 
Attorney Matt Dregne gave a presentation about changes made to State Statutes regarding 
conditional use regulations in ACT 67 from 2017. 


 
Matt Dregne stated there should be less reliance on special permissions/conditional uses. 
 
Matt Dregne noted the Plan Commission holds public hearings for conditional use permits where it 
takes the testimony while the Common Council makes the official decision.  This is unusual since 
the Plan Commission functions as the quasi-judicial body yet it is not the final decision maker. 
 
The group discussed some of the current conditional uses and whether they should be permitted 
uses. 
 
Schumacher stated he is not in favor of this new law. 
 
Selsor believes we should leave the current conditional uses as they are. 
 
Barman stated: 


• Making some changes would simplify our jobs and provide more defined standards;  
• It is hard to make decisions the way the code is currently written; 
• The comprehensive plan should be reviewed when making changes to the zoning code. 


 
Scheel stated staff will come up with a list of some potential changes for review next month. 


 
9. Future agenda items. 


Kwik Trip conditional use and site plan; Zink Power site plan. 
 
10. Adjournment. 


Motion by Selsor to adjourn 7:33 pm, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried 7 – 0. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,   
 
Michael P. Stacey 



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/11/20 
Page 2 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  5-11-20.docx 


 


Tom Matson stated cross easements are common place in the real estate world when close to 
highways. 
 
Barman stated the difference here is the pedestrian use across the access easement creates the 
safety issue. 
 
Barman stated they are getting into the site plan discussion and should act on the CSM. 
 
Motion by Barman, seconded by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM 
at 1700 E. Main Street as presented.   Motion carried unanimously. 


 
7. Request by Kwik Trip for approval of a Site Plan and Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an 


in-vehicle sales and service use including Outdoor display incidental to an indoor sales use at 
1700 E. Main Street. 
Scheel explained the right-in, right-out at the County Highway N access that was added from 
discussions with the Dane County Highway Department. 


 
Robinson questioned the depth of the retention pond related to safety.  Scheel stated the design is 
similar to most other projects in the City. 
  
Mayor Swadley reopened the public hearing. 


 
 Debra Carter spoke with concern about the increased traffic.  Scheel stated the property has been 


commercially zoned from when it was platted and has always been anticipated to have some type 
of commercial use. 


 
 Jerry Moy spoke with concern about the access at Cedarbrook Lane.  Scheel stated the City and 


Developers have tried to work with the WDOT to gain access to Hwy 51 without success. 
 
 Tom Matson stated there is no reason for vehicles to migrate down Stoney Ridge Trail. 
 
 Jerry Judd stated he is concerned about the access easement from his property (Lot 2) to County 


Highway N and who is responsible for maintenance.  He went on to say no one has discussed what 
is going on with the development. 


 
 Troy Mleziva stated the property owner met with Jerry Judd.  Tom Matson stated he and Mark 


Rosenbaum met with Jerry Judd to discuss options for the access easement. 
 
 Troy Mleziva said Kwik Trip will agree to a condition of approval that Kwik Trip would maintain 


the access easement area. 
 
 Steve Reilly spoke with concern about the lack of safety controls and is concerned about noise 


from the car wash.  He also questioned onsite deliveries and unloading.  Troy Mleziva stated 
deliveries are made at the northeast corner of the building. 


 



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/11/20 
Page 3 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  5-11-20.docx 


 


 Steve Reilly questioned why another Kwik Trip.  Troy Mleziva stated they plan to replace the 
existing eastside store and sell that property. 


 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 
 Caravello questioned semi-truck maneuvering to the Fastenal site.  Mayor Swadley stated it should 


not be affected since the access easement is not changing. 
 
 Barman questioned whether the car wash is part of the conditional use.  Scheel stated it is a 


conditional use.  Scheel noted there is a car wash at the Kwik Trip on Roby Road with an exit door 
that faces a residential use and we have no known complaints. 


 
Motion by Barman, seconded by Robinson to recommend the Common Council approve the 
conditional use permit resolution.  Motion carried 5 – 0 (Caravello abstained). 
 
Barman stated Kwik Trip has several vendors who deliver throughout the day.  Barman questioned 
if the truck delivery location would be striped.  Troy Mleziva stated it would be. 


 
 Barman questioned if there was a way to have access from Hwy N when coming from the north 


and south.  Scheel stated discussions with the County have led to the proposed plan. 
 
 Schumacher stated we should consider having a solar pedestrian crossing at Cedarbrook and 


Stoney Ridge. 
 
 Barman stated there should be some pedestrian safety features added from the fuel pumps to the 


store; possibly a change of surface color, striping or visual cues. 
 
 Barman stated we need to make sure semi-trucks can access the Fastenal location from the Kwik 


Trip Cedarbrook access.  He would like the County to look into speed controls such as reduced 
speed and identifiers on County Highway N coming into Stoughton.   


 
 Schumacher supports the need for speed controls and the access to Fastenal. 
 
 Caravello questioned the legality of trucks using the Cedarbrook access for Fastenal.  Barman 


stated we could add language that allows truck traffic from the Cedarbrook access to Fastenal. 
 
 The group discussed the access at County Highway N. 
 
 Barman stated there are 3 things he would like to see from the developer: 


• A clear pedestrian path (distinguishing colored pavement, markings, etc.) from the fuel 
pumps across the access easement to the Kwik Trip store; 


• A response from Dane County Highway Department regarding traffic control on County 
Highway N coming up the hill into Stoughton; 


• A conversation and agreement between the developer and the adjacent Lot 2 owner 
regarding semi-truck access to and from Lot 2. 
 



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
5/11/20 
Page 4 of 4 
 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2020\Plan Minutes  5-11-20.docx 


 


The Commissioners agreed with Barman. 
Motion by Barman, seconded by Schumacher to Table the site plan subject until next month to 
allow the developer to bring back a site plan with a clear pedestrian path (distinguishing colored 
pavement, markings, etc.) from the fuel pumps across the access easement to the Kwik Trip store, a 
response from Dane County Highway Department regarding traffic speed controls on County 
Highway N coming up the hill into Stoughton, and an agreement between the developer and the 
adjacent Lot 2 owner regarding semi-truck access to and from Lot 2 (the “Fastenal” property).  
Motion carried unanimously.  
 


8. Request by Edward and Patricia Bierer of Stellar Services for approval of a building addition 
at 301 Business Park Circle. 
Scheel gave an overview of the request.  The Business Park North Committee recommends 
approval. 
 
Schumacher questioned future growth and the utility easement across the property.  Scheel stated 
the utility easement is not a factor for this expansion and their plan is to continue to grow and they 
will have to deal with the utility easement as part of future expansions. 
 
Motion by Schumacher, seconded by Caravello to approved the site plan as presented.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 


9. Future agenda items. 
Kwik Trip site plan 


 
10. Adjournment. 


Motion by Schumacher to adjourn at 7:36 pm, seconded by Caravello.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 


Respectfully Submitted,   
 
Michael P. Stacey 



mstacey

Highlight







Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Date//Time: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 @ 7:00 p.m. The GoToMeeting line will be open at 


6:45 p.m. so everyone can get connected. No business will be conducted until 
7:00 p.m. 


Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted virtually due to 
COVID-19. You can join the meeting from your computer tablet or smartphone: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/470453357   You can also dial in 
using your phone: +1 (877) 568-4106 Access Code: 470-453-357.   


Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Ozzie Doom, Ben Heili, 
Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Lisa 
Reeves, Timothy Riley and Brett Schumacher  


 


CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
Consideration and possible action regarding suspending the council rule regarding being 
physically present for City Council meetings 
 
Motion by Jenson second by Heili to suspend the council rule regarding being physically present for 
City Council meetings. Motion carried 12-0. 
 
Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7: 10 p.m.  
 
Clerk Licht called the roll and noted there were 12 alders present.  


• Stoughton City Council 2020 Objections, Goals and Initiatives-President Hirsch  
 President Hirsch instructed council members to send her and clerk Licht their goals 


for 2020  
• Library Update—Director Ramsey 


  
 


Minutes and Reports:  
Utilities (4/13/20, 4/27/20, 5/11/20); Police and Fire Commission (12/4/20, 1/9/20, 1/22/20, 2/6/20); 
Personnel (10/7/19, 11/4/19, 12/2/19, 2/3/20); Landmarks (3/12/20); Arts Council (2/18/20); Public 
Works (4/16/20) 


 
2. Public Comment Period: 


• If you would like to speak during public comment period, please fill out the form and 
submit it by 6:30 p.m. on May 26, 2020. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  


• Carol Clarke, 1900 Meadow Dr., submitted her suggestions for conditions for the 
proposed Kwik Trip.  


• Brad Eneix, spoke against the proposed Kwik Trip site plan. He stated that the traffic 
would be problematic for Cedarbrook which is a residential street.  
 


 
 


    
 



http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





3. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. May 12, 2020 Council Minutes  
B. R-83-2020- Approving the Mayor’s citizen appointments to Boards, Committees and 


Commissions   
C. R-84-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator Licenses to 


various applicants 
D. Stoughton Utilities April Payments Due List Report; Stoughton Utilities February Financial 


Summary; Stoughton Utilities March Financial Summary; Stoughton  
 
Motion by Heili, second by Jenson to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried 12-0.  


 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 


NEW BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  to consider special assessments for the improvement of curb and gutter, 
retaining walls, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage walks, drainage improvements/storm sewer 
connections, hand railing, sanitary sewer and water main extensions for the 2020 Projects 
 
The public hearing opened at 7:36 p.m.  
 
Jessica Royko, 148 E Prospect St., spoke against the sidewalks on McKinley St.  
 
The public hearing closed at 7: 39 p.m. 


 
 


R-85-2020- Resolution authorizing improvements and levying special assessments against benefited 
property in the City of Stoughton for the improvement of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, 
carriage walks, retaining walls, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements for 2020 
Projects  
 
Motion by Reeves, second by Schumacher to approve R-85-2020 Resolution authorizing improvements 
and levying special assessments against benefited property in the City of Stoughton for the improvement 
of curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage walks, retaining walls, sanitary sewer, storm 
sewer and water system improvements for 2020 Projects. Riley spoke against installing a sidewalk on 
McKinley St. He also objected to the assessment on his property on Grant St. Boersma spoke in 
opposition of the sidewalk on McKinley St. Motion by Boersma to remove the sidewalk on McKinely 
St. Mayor Swadley called point of order. Motion by Boersma , second by Ligocki to amend the property 
owner 202 E Prospect from the special assessment list. Motion failed on a vote of 6-6 with Heili, Hirsch, 
Jenson, Majewski, Reeves and Schumacher voted ‘no’. Motion by Riley, second by Heili to amend the 
resolution to remove assessments on Harrison Ct.  and to remove Roby Rd from Johnson to Van Buren. 
Motion carried 10-2 with Boersma and Ligocki voting ‘no’.  Original motion as amended carried 9-3 
with Ligocki, Boersma and Riley voting ‘no’.  


 







R-86-2020- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to acknowledge receipt of the 
Stoughton Utilities 2019 Audit Report and Management Letter  
 
Motion by Jenson, second by Hirsch to approve R-86-2020 Authorizing and directing the proper City 
official(s) to acknowledge receipt of the Stoughton Utilities 2019 Audit Report and Management Letter 
Jodi Dobson, Baker Tilly, Presented the 2019 Utilities 2019 Audit report. There were no material 
weaknesses. Motion carried 12-0. 


 


O-8-2020- To adopt modification to Subsections 74-112 and 74-113 of the City of Stoughton Municipal 
Code of Ordinances.  
 
Jenson read O-8-2020 as a first reading. It will be back before the council on June 9, 2020.  
 
O- 9-2020- To create Section 74-17 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances, relating to 
replacement of lead water service lines  
 
Jenson read O-9-2020 as a first reading. It will be back before the council on June 9, 2020.  


 


R-87-2020- Authorizing Patrick Wozniak to construct raised garden beds at Lowell Park and the City to 
contribute $965 towards the project  
 
Motion by Reeves, second by Caravello to approve R-87-2020 Authorizing Patrick Wozniak to 
construct raised garden beds at Lowell Park and the City to contribute $965 towards the project. Motion 
carried 11-0 Schumacher abstained.  


 
 


R-88-2020- Approving a Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine properties at 1700 E Main Street, 
owned by Mark Rosenbaum, Stoughton, WI  
 
Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-88-2020 Approving a Certified Survey Map 
(CSM) to combine properties at 1700 E Main Street, owned by Mark Rosenbaum, Stoughton, WI. 
Motion carried 12-0. 


 


R-89-2020- Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Kwik Trip for an in-vehicle sales and 
service use including outdoor display incidental to an indoor sales use at 1700 E. Main Street, 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-89-2020 Approving a Conditional Use Permit 
request by Kwik Trip for an in-vehicle sales and service use including outdoor display incidental to an 
indoor sales use at 1700 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. Majewski said he would like to see more 
screening between the structure and the neighbors. The council discussed issues with access to HWY 51 
and the absence of sidewalks. Motion by Hirsch, second by Boersma to postpone to send this item back 
to the Plan Commission to address access, public safety, screening to neighbors, constituent input, and 
sidewalks. Motion carried 12-0. 



mstacey

Highlight







June 4, 2020 


 


Dear Mike,  


This letter is in response to the proposed Kwik Trip, to be located at the North East 


corner of Highway 51 and County Highway N in Stoughton, Wisconsin.  As a commercial 


property owner of Chalet Veterinary Clinic on Highway 51, I would like to express my 


enthusiasm for the completion of this project, as it will have many great benefits to our city.  


First, it is necessary to have a gas station in this location in order to service the citizens of 


the East side of the city of Stoughton. Kwik Trip, a Wisconsin based company, would be an 


excellent choice not only to satisfy the gas needs of our East side, but the grocery needs as well. 


Kwik Trip locations have an excellent selection of sundries in addition to gas that are vital for 


the residents and commuters of this part of Stoughton.  


Additionally, adding a Kwik Trip in the proposed location promotes the growth of the 


East side of Stoughton substantially.  The East side of our city is a prime location for those 


residents who commute to work, due to its proximity to I-90. Furthermore, with the current state 


of the housing market, the East side of Stoughton is an ideal location for home buyers looking to 


move into our city. The potential increase of new residents in the city will lead to our local 


economic growth.  


Finally, adding a Kwik Trip in this location now, is essential as there are a limited and 


decreasing number of locations on the East side of Stoughton that would be suited for a Kwik 


Trip, or gas station of the like. It is clear that the benefits of adding a Kwik Trip in the proposed 


location outweigh any negative effects. If a Kwik Trip is constructed on the East side of 


Stoughton, it will effectively service our existing residents, promote the growth of our East side, 


and help boost our local economy.  


 


Thank you for your consideration, 


Tim Gartzke 







Hi Mike, 


I am writing this letter on behalf of my 85-year-old mother in law, Jean Smith, residing at 308 Stoney 
Ridge Trail in Stoughton.  She has been a Stoughton resident for the last 60 years.  We have recently 
learned that there is a proposed building of a new Kwik Trip on the vacant NE corner lot of County Trunk 
N and Highway 51 on the far east side of Stoughton.  I have seen a layout of the proposed site and have 
some concerns and comments.   


We fully understand that the lot is zoned commercial and eventually something would be built on it.  
We only ask that the city and Kwik Trip consider the residents of that area and the 20 plus years most of 
them have lived there.   


• From the layout there is an exit/entry right on Cedarbrook that will create much more traffic in 
this residential area.    


• Anyone exiting Cedarbrook and turning south on to N as a risk with cars coming up the hill from 
the north at a speed of 55mph with little or no vision of cars entering.  I have personally had 
many close calls doing this.   


• The layout, which looks very typical of many new Kwip Trip’s, will cause an immense amount of 
light pollution to the area.  10 plus homes in this area will have the Kwik Trip beacon shinning on 
them from dusk to dawn.   


• Property values in this area will plunge if the current design is built.   


There are many options that could make all parties happier.   


• Redesign the layout to have the back of the store face the residential homes.   
• Include trees and barriers to keep light and noise from spreading in the neighborhood.   
• Have primary entrances and exits on Highway 51 rather than County Trunk N or Cedarbrook.  


There would be less safety issues and neighborhood intrusion.   


Could you please share this letter with all relevant parties.  Also, please let me know if there is anything 
else I can do to help my position on these issues. 


 


Thank you 


Jerry Moy   


 


 


 


 


 



















































[- 1 -] 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT        DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning          fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 
 


June 4, 2020 
 
Kwik Trip, Inc. 
Brad Fry 
1626 Oak Street 
PO Box 2107  
La Crosse, WI  54602  
 
 
Dear Mr. Fry: 
 
I have completed a final review of the proposed conditional use and site plan for Kwik Trip, 
1700 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.  The Common Council sent the conditional use permit 
request back to the Plan Commission for further review to address neighbor’s safety 
concerns. 
 
1. The property is currently zoned PB - Planned Business.   


Indoor Sales and Service uses are permitted outright.   
 
In-Vehicle Sales and Services incidental to the on-site principal land use is permitted as a 
conditional accessory use.  Conditional use permit application is in process. 
 
Outdoor Display incidental to indoor sales is also permitted as a conditional accessory use.  
Conditional use permit application is in process. 
 
The site plan may be approved by the Plan Commission contingent on the conditional 
use permit being approved by the Common Council.   
 


2. Indoor Sales and Service is defined in part, as follows:   
Description: Indoor sales and service land uses include all land uses which conduct or 
display sales or rental merchandise or equipment, or non-personal or non-professional 
services, entirely within an enclosed building.  Depending on the zoning district, such land 
uses may or may not display products outside of an enclosed building.  Such activities are 
listed as “Outdoor Display incidental to indoor sales” under accessory uses in the Table of 
Land Uses.  A land use which contains both indoor sales and outdoor sales exceeding 15 
percent of the total sales area of the building(s) on the property shall be considered an 
outdoor sales land use.  Vehicular fuel stations and car wash uses are considered in-
vehicle sales and service uses.  All outdoor display sales areas have been depicted on the 
site plan.   


 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





[- 2 -] 
 


3. Regulations related to Indoor Sales and Service uses are as follows:   
Parking requirements: One space per 300 square feet of gross floor area.  The building is 
9,210 square feet which requires 31 parking stalls.  39 parking stalls are provided.  The 
plan meets the zoning requirements. 


 
4. In-vehicle sales and service uses are defined as follows:   


Description: In-vehicle sales and service land uses include all land uses which perform sales 
and/or services to persons in vehicles, or to vehicles which may or may not be occupied at 
the time of such activity.  Such land uses often have traffic volumes which exhibit their 
highest levels concurrent with peak traffic flows on adjacent roads. Examples of such land 
uses include drive-in, drive-up, and drive-through facilities, vehicular fuel stations, and all 
forms of car washes. If performed in conjunction with a principal land use (for example, a 
convenience store, restaurant or bank), in-vehicle sales and service land uses shall be 
considered an accessory use.  The proposed use meets this definition. 


 
5. Regulations related to In-Vehicle Sales and Service uses per 78-206(8)(g) are as follows: 


A. Clearly marked pedestrian crosswalks shall be provided for each walk-in customer 
access to the facility adjacent to the drive-through lane(s). Expected.  The plan 
appears to meet this requirement. 


B. The drive-through facility shall be designed so as to not impede or impair vehicular 
and pedestrian traffic movement, or exacerbate the potential for pedestrian/vehicular 
conflicts.  The plan appears to meet this requirement. 


C. In no instance shall a drive-through facility be permitted to operate which endangers 
the public safety, even if such land use has been permitted under the provisions of 
this section.  Expected. 


D. The setback of any overhead canopy or similar structure shall be a minimum of ten 
feet from all street rights-of-way lines, a minimum of 20 feet from all residentially-
zoned property lines, and shall be a minimum of five feet from all other property 
lines. The total height of any overhead canopy or similar structure shall not exceed 
20 feet per the measurement of roof height.  The canopy appears to comply with 
these requirements.  No signage is allowed on the top or side of the canopy roof. 


E. All vehicular areas of the facility shall provide a surface paved with concrete or 
bituminous material which is designed to meet the requirements of a minimum four-
ton axle load. Expected.   


F. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all property 
borders abutting residentially zoned property.  N/A 


G. Interior curbs shall be used to separate driving areas from exterior fixtures such as 
fuel pumps, vacuums, menu boards, canopy supports and landscaped islands. Said 
curbs shall be a minimum of six inches high and be of a non-mountable design. No 
curb protecting an exterior fixture shall be located closer than 25 feet to all property 
lines.  Expected.  Details provided. 
 
 







[- 3 -] 
 


6. The parking requirement for In-Vehicle Sales and Service is as follows:  See parking 
requirement for Indoor Sales and Service (#3 above).  Each drive-up lane shall have a 
minimum stack length of 100 feet behind the pass through window and 40 feet beyond the 
pass through window. The plan appears to meet the requirements.  There is not pass 
through window. 
 


7. Outdoor Display incidental to indoor sales and service uses are defined as follows: 
According to section 78-206(4)(d), If a land use displays for sale only limited amount of 
product outside of an enclosed building, such use may instead be considered incidental to 
indoor sales under subsection 78-206(8)(f).  The proposed use meets this description. 
 


8. Regulations related to Outdoor Display incidental to indoor sale and service per 78-206(8)(f) 
are as follows: 


A. Display area shall not exceed 25% of the gross floor area of principle building onsite.  
The site will meet this requirement. 


B. The display of items shall not be permitted in permanently protected green space 
areas, required landscaped areas, or required bufferyards.  Expected. 


C. The display of items shall not be permitted within five feet of a property line.  
Expected. 


D. In no event shall the display of items reduce or inhibit the use or number of required 
parking stalls.  Expected. 


E. Display areas shall be separated from any circulation area by a minimum of five feet.  
The separation shall be clearly delimited by a physical separation such as a greenway, 
curb, fence, or line of planters, or by a clearly marked paved area.  The plan appears 
to meet this requirement.  The under canopy has historically not been 
considered a circulation area. 


F. Signs, screening, enclosures, landscaping, or materials being displayed shall not 
interfere in any manner with either on-site or off-site traffic visibility, including 
potential traffic/traffic and traffic/pedestrian conflicts.  Expected. 


G. Outdoor display shall be permitted during the entire calendar year, however, if goods 
are removed from the display area, all support fixtures used to display goods shall be 
removed within ten calendar days of the goods’ removal.  Expected. 


H. Inoperative vehicles or equipment, or other items typically stored or displayed in a 
junkyard or salvage yard, shall not be displayed for this land use.  Expected. 


I. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all borders of 
the display area abutting residentially zoned property.  N/A 


 
9. The parking requirement for Outdoor Display incidental to indoor sale and service uses are as 


follows:  See parking requirement for Indoor Sales and Service (#3 above).   
 


10. The property meets all zoning lot width and area requirements. 
 


11. The proposed use and zoning meets the intent of the City Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
 







[- 4 -] 
 


12. The building height and setback requirements are as follows:   
• Minimum front yard setback for principal building: 20 feet 
• Minimum rear yard setback for principal building: 20 feet 
• Minimum side yard setback for principal building: 10 feet 
• Minimum rear and side yard setback for accessory buildings: 4 feet 
• Minimum building separation: 20 feet 
• Maximum building height: 45 feet 


The property is unique in that there are three street fronts.  The building meets these 
requirements. 


 
13. Public sidewalk is required along all public frontages and is delineated on the site plan.  


Sidewalk shall be 5 feet wide and a minimum of 6” through driveways and a minimum of 4” 
thick otherwise.  Expected. 
 


14. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather 
surface and completed prior to building occupancy.  All parking spaces shall be clearly 
marked to indicate required spaces.  Expected.  
 


15. Accessible parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as 
specified by state and federal regulations.  Expected. 


 
16. Except for accessible parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a 


minimum width of 9 feet.  The site plan meets this requirement. 
 
17. The parking aisle width for 90-degree parking shall be a minimum of 24 feet.  The site plan 


meets this requirement. 
 


18. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 25%.  The site plan meets this requirement. 
 
19. The maximum floor area ratio is 1.  This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all 


buildings by the gross site area.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 
20. All access drives shall have a minimum width of 18 feet.  The plan meets this requirement. 


 
21. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-


residential uses, as measured at the right-of-way line.  Access drives may be flared between 
the right-of-way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet and may be 
exceeded with explicit Plan Commission approval.    The Cedarbrook access is proposed 
to be 35 feet in width with additional taping to the street which will need to be approved 
by the Plan Commission.   The County Highway N access is approximately 28 feet wide 
and designed per Dane County Highway Department requirements. 
 


22. The minimum paved surface setback from a side and rear lot line is 5 feet while the 
minimum is 10 feet from a right-of-way line.  The plan appears to meet this requirement. 


 
 







[- 5 -] 
 


 
23. Access near street intersections of arterial and collector streets shall not be closer than 100 


feet from the intersection of any two street rights-of-way unless the street is the only 
available frontage on the subject property.  The access at County Highway N has been 
reviewed by Dane County Highway Department and the design has been updated to 
their recommendations/requirements.  The access is proposed to be right-turn in and 
out only.  A right-of-way application has been submitted to the County. 


   
24. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile 


parking space requirement.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 


25. Off-street loading stall requirements per section 78-705(11)(b).  One loading berth shall be 
required for each building having a gross floor area of 6,000 square feet to 99,999 square 
feet.  The plan meets this requirement.    


 
21. Except for exposed foundations not to exceed three feet in height from adjacent grade, non-


single family development shall employ only high-quality, decorative exterior construction 
materials on the visible exterior of the following portions of all structures: 


• Any portion of the structure within 50 feet of an adjacent residentially zoned 
property; 


• Any portion of the structure located within 50 feet of a public right-of-way; 
• Any other portion of the structure visible from a public street…  The following 


exterior construction materials shall not be considered “high quality, decorative”: 
non-decorative concrete or cinder block, non-decorative concrete foundation walls or 
panels, non-decorative plywood, asphaltic siding, or other materials using exposed 
fastener systems or non-decorative surfaces as determined by the Planning 
Commission.  However, such materials may be allowed by the Planning Commission 
as decorative elements.   


The plan appears to meet this requirement. 
 


26. Architectural and design elements shall be compatible with the surrounding area and 
community standards and shall minimize user specific elements as determined by the plan 
commission.  Metal panels with exposed exterior fasteners of the same color may be used on 
a maximum of 50 percent of the front side of the building.  This material is not allowed 
within 50 feet of any customer or visitor entrance.   As determined by the Planning 
Commission. 
 


27. A landscaping plan, which meets the requirements of Article VI of the zoning code, is 
required.  The landscaping requirements are as follows: 


• Building foundations: 40 points of landscaping are required per 100 feet of 
foundation perimeter.  531 feet of foundation requires 213 points of landscaping 
which are required to be planted within 10 feet of the building foundations.  Climax 
and tall trees cannot be used to meet this requirement.  The plan meets this 
requirement.   


• Street frontages:  40 points of landscaping are required per 100 feet of frontage.  931 
feet of frontage requires 373 points of landscaping.  All landscaping shall be within 







[- 6 -] 
 


10 feet of the public right-of-way and cannot be within the public right-of-way.  
Shrubs shall not be used to meet this requirement.  A minimum of 50% of the points 
shall be used for climax or tall trees and a minimum of 30% of all points shall be 
devoted to medium trees.  Due to utility easements, the plan has been modified to 
suit Stoughton Utilities.  Additional plantings have been placed to help screen 
the site from residential properties which more than make up the difference.  


• Paved areas: Plants used to fulfill this requirement shall visually screen parking, and 
circulation areas from public streets.  A minimum of 360 square feet of landscaped 
area shall be provided and located within 10 feet of the paved area for every 100 
paved area points.  Said area does not have to be provided in one contiguous area. 
55,690 square feet of paving requires 334 points of landscaping. The plan meets this 
requirement.   


• Developed lots:  10 points of landscaping is required for every 1,000 square feet of 
gross floor area.  9,208 square feet of building will require 93 points of landscaping.  
The plan meets this requirement.   


 
28. Section 78-707, Exterior lighting standards for gas station pump islands is a maximum 


average of 25 footcandles and all under canopy lighting shall be recessed.  The rest of the site 
shall have a maximum average on-site lighting of 2.4 footcandles and the maximum lighting 
as measured at the property line is 0.5 footcandles.  The maximum fixture height shall be 25 
feet from grade.  The lighting element shall not be visible from a residentially zoned 
property.  The plan meets this requirement. 


 
29. A gated trash enclosure with 6-foot fencing shall be delineated on the plan for the handling of 


waste.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 
30. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fees are required.  Dane 


County Land and Water Resources, the City’s consultant, will review the plan and perform 
inspections.  The plans, applications and fees have been submitted.  


 
31. Proposed utilities-including electrical transformers and HVAC locations shall be shown on 


the utility plan.  Contact Stoughton Utilities for electric, water and wastewater services.  
Easements shall be shown on the plan.  The property is not within a wellhead protection 
area. 


 
32. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage.  This is expected. 
 
33. Street trees will need to be approved by the Public Works Department.  Contact Public 


Works Director Brett Hebert regarding street tree requirements.  Expected. 
 


34. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and zoning permit prior to installation.  
Expected. 


 
35. The building setback will need to be staked by a surveyor prior to pouring footings and an as-


built plan will need to be provided prior to occupancy.  Expected. 
 







[- 7 -] 
 


36. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a building 
permit but are not necessary to begin the City review process. 


 
 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
  
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\property log folder\1700 e. main street\kwik trip\updated submittals 6.3.20\kwik trip final review 6.4.20.doc 





		ADP9FE7.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, March 9, 2020 at 6:00 pm Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI.



		ADPEE85.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, May 11, 2020 at 6:00 pm Virtual Meeting



		ADP5060.tmp

		From: mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us <mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us>  Sent: Tuesday, May 12, 2020 11:01 AM To: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com> Subject: RE: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out

		From: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com>  Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2020 1:48 PM To: Michael Stacey <mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us> Subject: RE: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out

		From: mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us <mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us>  Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2020 9:27 AM To: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com> Subject: RE: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out

		From: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com>  Sent: Tuesday, March 10, 2020 1:59 PM To: Michael Stacey <mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us> Subject: FW: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughton - right in/out

		From: Brad Fry <BFry@kwiktrip.com>  Sent: Tuesday, March 10, 2020 1:44 PM To: Dunphy, Pamela <Dunphy@countyofdane.com> Cc: Troy Mleziva <TMleziva@kwiktrip.com>; Scott Anderson <sanderson@snyder-associates.com> Subject: Dane County - Kwik Trip Stoughto...



		738 PLAN SET 2020 06-03.pdf

		1200134_PLAN LAND.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		1200134_PLAN LAND-L100

		1200134_PLAN LAND-L200

		1200134_PLAN LAND-L201

		1200134_PLAN LAND-L202

		1200134_PLAN LAND-L300









		Company: Kwik Trip

		Contact Name: Bradford Fry

		E-Mail Address: bfry@kwiktrip.com

		Address: PO Box 2107

		City: La Crosse

		State: WI

		Zip Code: 54603

		Office Phone: 608 793 6414

		Alternate Phone: 

		Fax Number: 

		Permit Mailing Address if different from above: 

		City_2: 

		State_2: 

		Zip Code_2: 

		Company Name: Kwik Trip

		Contact Name_2: Bradford Fry

		E-Mail Address_2: bfry@kwiktrip.com

		Office Phone_2: 608 793 6414

		After Hours Phone Required: 

		Fax Number_2: 

		Check Box13: Off

		Check Box14: Off

		Check Box15: Yes

		County Trunk Highway where r-o-w is located: CTH N

		Town Village City of: Stoughton

		Text21: 

		Text22: 

		Text23: 

		Plans Prepared By: Snyder & Associates

		Check Box17: 

		1: Yes

		0: Off



		Text24: 

		days: 14

		Estimated Start Date: 2021

		Estimated Ending Date: 2021

		Check Box18: Yes

		Check Box19: Off

		Check Box20: Yes

		CALCULATION OF PERMIT FEES: driveway access connection

		Cost1: 55.00

		Right of Way: 

		AMOUNT 1: 0

		Cost2: 45.00

		Borings: 

		AMOUNT 2: 0

		Cost3: 220

		Open Cuts: 

		AMOUNT 3: 0

		Cost4: 0.11

		Lineal Feet: 

		AMOUNT 4: 0

		Cost5: 110

		Vaults: 

		AMOUNT 5: 0

		Cost6: 1100

		Improvements: 1

		AMOUNT 6: 1100

		undefined: 1100

		Check Box25: Off

		Check Box26: Yes

		Date: 2020 04-21

		Print Name and Title: 

		Phone: 608 793 6414








T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\060820\Plan Info\117 Ashberry Rezone Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  June 1, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commission and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the June 8, 2020 Plan Commission meeting and Common Council 


meetings of June 23 and July 14, 2020 
 
Request by Kevin Urso to rezone the property at 117 Ashberry Lane from SR-4 Single Family 
Residential to TR-6 Two Family Residential. 
The applicant originally made this request in February of 2019 which was denied by the Common 
Council on March 12, 2020.  See provided minutes.  Since that time, the applicant has gained 
signatures of several area neighbors in support of the change of zoning.  City Attorney Matt Dregne 
has stated the City has no obligation to make sure covenants are adhered to.  The applicant is again 
requesting this change of zoning for a property that is surrounded by two-family homes.  We 
believe the request still meets the intent of the comprehensive plan and requirements of the zoning 
code.  The application, ordinance and related materials are provided.  A public hearing and 
recommendation to Council is necessary at the Plan Commission meeting.   
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
An ordinance amending the zoning classification at 117 Ashberry Lane in the City of Stoughton, WI.  


Committee 
Action:    


Plan Commission recommends Council approval  – 0  


Fiscal Impact:        


File Number: O -    - 2020 Date Introduced: 
 


First Reading: 
Second Reading: 


 
RECITALS 


 
1. Kevin Urso (the “Applicant”) has applied to change the zoning classification of the 


property at 117 Ashberry Lane from SR-4 Single Family Residential to TR-6 Two-
Family Residential.     
 


2. The applicant proposes changing the zoning classification of these lands to allow a twin 
home to be constructed. 


 
3. The proposed two-family use at this property is consistent with adjacent uses.  The 


Comprehensive Plan states the following, “Proposed zoning map amendments 
(rezoning’s) should be consistent with the recommendations in this Plan.  Specifically, 
the Future Land Use map, in combination with the policies behind it, should be used to 
guide the application of the general pattern of permanent zoning.  However, the precise 
location of zoning district boundaries may vary, as judged appropriate by the Plan 
Commission and City Council.  Departures from the exact land use boundaries depicted 
on the Future Land Use map may be particularly appropriate for Planned Developments, 
mixed use projects, properties split by zoning districts, and/or properties located at the 
edges of future land use boundaries.  In their consideration of zoning map changes, the 
Plan Commission and City Council will also evaluate the specific timing of the zoning 
map amendment request, its relationship to the nature of both existing and future land 
uses, and the details of the proposed development. Therefore, this Plan allows for the 
phased timing of zoning actions and the refinement of the precise recommended land use 
boundaries through the zoning, conditional use, Planned Unit Developments, and land 
division processes.” 


 
4. On June 8, 2020, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing 


regarding Applicant’s proposed zoning change.  The public hearing was preceded by the 
publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.  
 







5. The Plan Commission found that the proposed zoning change is consistent with the City 
of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommend that the zoning change be approved 
as presented.   


 
6. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning change, the Plan 


Commission’s recommendation and finds that the proposed zoning change is consistent 
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan. 


 
 


ORDINANCE 
 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 
 


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance 
as if set forth in full. 


   
Section 2. Subject to the conditions set forth in section 3 below, the zoning classification of 


the property at 117 Ashberry Lane shall be changed from SR-4 Single Family Residential to TR-6 Two-
Family Residential. 


 
Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication pursuant to law as presented. 
 
 


 
 


Dates 
Council Adopted:     
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:     
 
Attest:               


        Holly Licht, City Clerk  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\117 Ashberry Lane Rezoning Ordinance.doc 
 
 
 
 
 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday June 8, 2020 at 6:00 
o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public Safety 
Building, 321 S. Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a proposed 
rezoning of the following parcel of land located at 117 Ashberry Lane, Stoughton, WI, owned by Urso 
Bros LLC.  The property described below is requested to be rezoned from SR-4 Single Family 
Residential to TR-6 Two-Family Residential.  The property is currently more fully described below:   
Parcel number:  281/0511-044-4744-8 
Legal Description: EASTWOOD ESTATES LOT 14 
 
This property description is for tax purposes. It may be abbreviated. For the complete legal description 
please refer to the deed. 
 
Additional information including a location map can be found at: http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-
commission/ 
 
For questions related to this notice contact Michael Stacey at 608-646-0421. 
   
      
       Michael Stacey 


      Zoning Administrator 
 
 
Published May 21 and May 28, 2020 HUB 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Rezone 117 Ashberry Lane 2020.doc 







Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), swisstopo, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community, Parcels


117 Ashberry Lane


Tax Parcels
January 18, 2019


 
 


0 125 25062.5 Feet
1 inch = 100 feet



mstacey

Arrow







mstacey

Arrow







May 8, 2020 


 


In 2018 we purchased a vacant lot at 117 Ashberry Lane, Stoughton.  In 2019 we applied to have the 


zoning changed from SR-4 to TR-6 and was approved by the planning commission, however our request 


was denied at the City Council meeting.  The only objection to the zoning change was from one resident 


who resided at 209 Ashberry Lane, and the home is currently for sale, with an offer to purchase. 


 


After the denial, I met with Mayor Swadley, Rodney Scheel, and Michael Stacey, they suggested if I was 


to get enough homeowner signatures to change the Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions for the 


plat of Eastwood Estates, we could come back to the city to request the zoning change. 


 


Per our attorney’s advice, we door knocked and collected signatures from the developer and 


neighboring homeowners to allow us to amend the the Covenants and Restrictions allowing the re-


zoning of this lot.  We collected the required signatures, however per the Register of Deeds the 


Amendment to the Covenants and Restrictions cannot be recorded without the signatures notarized.  It 


is not possible to get signatures notarized with the current COVID-19 restrictions. 


 


With that being said, it’s been over 1-year and we would like to come back before the planning 


commission to request this re-zone.  As you can see from the documents submitted, 70% of the 


homeowners we contacted prior to social distancing do not object to the re-zoning.   


 


We are requesting the re-zone to build an owner-occupied side by side duplex style condominiums, this 


home style is consistent with other homes in the neighborhood. 


 


 


 


Thank you for your consideration. 


 


Kevin Urso 
 


Kevin Urso 


Urso Bros, LLC 











































































































































































Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
2/11/19 
Page 2 of 3 
 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Motion by Bartlett to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use resolution as 
presented, 2nd by Robinson.  Motion carried 6 – 0. (Jenson recused himself) 
 


7. Request by Kevin Urso to rezone the property at 117 Ashberry Lane from SR-4 Single 
Family Residential to TR-6 Two Family Residential. 
Scheel explained the request. 


 
Kevin Urso explained the intent of the request. 
 
Selsor questioned whether the units would be rentals or owner occupied.  Kevin Urso stated they 
would be owner occupied.  He plans to zero lot line the structure upon completion. 


 
Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 
 
Steve Erdahl spoke in opposition with storm drainage concerns. 
 
Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 
 
Barman questioned the zoning of lots in the area and how the setbacks compared from two family 
to single family.  Scheel stated the setbacks are comparable.  Scheel noted the City does not 
regulate covenants rather the developer does. 
 
Kevin Urso explained he has made attempts to contact the developer regarding covenants and 
stated the lot is large, will easily accommodate a duplex and storm drainage from the structure will 
be directed toward the street. 
 
Caravello questioned when the duplex to the north was built.  Scheel stated in 2018 and the site 
has yet to be stabilized with grass. 
 
Motion by Bartlett to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning ordinance as 
presented, 2nd by Selsor.  Motion carried 7 – 0. 


 
8. Request by Forward Development Group for Kettle Park West Phase II conceptual plan 


support. 
Dennis Steinkraus gave an overview of the request. 
 
Jim Bricker explained the concept plan changes and parkland requirements.  Approximately 9.7 
acres of parkland is required. 
 
The commissioners support the changes made. 
 
Motion by Jenson to approve the resolution to support the conceptual plan, 2nd by Bartlett.  
Motion carried 7 – 0. 
 
 
 



mstacey

Highlight



mstacey

Highlight







Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Date/Time:  Tuesday, March 12, 2019 @ 7:00 p.m.   
Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 
   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Phil Caravello, Denise 


Duranczyk, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson,  Tom Majewski, 
Pat O’Connor, Lisa Reeves, Timothy Riley, and Ben Heili  


 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  
Clerk Licht called the roll and noted that there were 11 alders present. Heili arrived at 7:03 p.m. 


• Habitat for Humanity “Rock the Block” Presentation  
 


Minutes and Reports: the following minutes and reports were entered into the record.  
A. Public Works (1/17/2019); Parks & Rec (1/16/19); Rivers and Trails Task Force (1/7/19); Public 


Safety (11/28/18)  
B. December 2018 Treasurers Report  
C. January 2019 Treasurers Report 


 
Public Comment Period:  
 
Steve Erdahl, 209 Ashberry Lane, spoke against O-7-2019. 
 
Callie LaPoint, Stoughton Chamber, spoke in support of O-9-2019 and O-10-2019. She added that the 
2-hour is a concern for downtown business owners.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 


A. February 26, 2019 Council Minutes 
B. R-29-2019- Resolution Authorizing and directing the proper City official (s) to issue Operator 


Licenses  
Motion by Duranczyk. Second by reeves to approve. Motion carried 12-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
O-7-2019- Amending the zoning classification of 117 Ashberry Lane in the City of Stoughton, WI  
 
Motion by Bartlett, second by Jenson to approve O-7-2019 amending the zoning classification of 117 
Ashberry Lane in the City of Stoughton, WI. Hirsch asked if the City had any responsibility to uphold 
the Eastwood Estates Covenants. Attorney Dregne said that the City does not have a legal responsibility 
to consider the covenants. Motion failed on a vote of 3-9 with Bartlett, Jenson and Heili voting ‘yes’.  
 


  


  
 



mstacey

Highlight





		ADPBEAE.tmp

		Plan Commission Meeting Minutes Monday, February 11, 2019 at 6:00 pm Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI.












T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\060820\Plan Info\Viking Day Camp CUP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  June 1, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the June 8, 2020 Plan Commission Meeting and June 23, 2020 


Common Council Meeting. 
 
Request by Megan Bisbee, Viking Day Camp for a conditional use permit (CUP) to allow a 
group daycare at 2125 McComb Road, Units 102 - 105. 
This request is for approval of group daycare for up to 75 children.  The applicant currently has a 
similar business in McFarland called Spartan Day Camp.  The Day Camp provides daily field trips 
to various local places.  A public hearing is scheduled for the Plan Commission meeting on June 8, 
2020.  The resolution, application information, and staff review letter are provided.  A 
recommendation to Council is necessary for the CUP.  No changes are planned for the exterior site. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Megan Bisbee, Viking Day Camp for a Group 
Daycare use at 2125 McComb Road, Units 102- 105, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-  -2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, on June 8, 2020 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and reviewed 
the proposed conditional use permit application by Megan Bisbee, Viking Day Camp for a Group Daycare 
use at 2125 McComb Road, Units 102 - 105, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 
 
WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested to operate a group daycare at 2125 McComb Road, 
Units 102 – 105 for up to 75 children; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


• The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;  


• The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development;   


• The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


• The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property; 


• The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 
will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 
now therefore 
 
 
 







 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request by 
Megan Bisbee, Viking Day Camp for a Group Daycare use at 2125 McComb Road, Units 102 – 105 is 
hereby approved subject to: 


• Staff review dated April 29, 2020; 
 


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\2125 McComb Road Viking Day Camp CUP.doc 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, June 8, 2020 at 6:00 
o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public Safety 
Building, 321 South Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a proposed 
Conditional Use Permit Application by Megan Bisbee for Viking Day Camp.  The applicant is 
requesting conditional use approval for a Group Daycare (Viking Day Camp) at 2125 McComb Road, 
Units 102-105, Stoughton, WI. 53589.    The property description is as follows: 
Parcel Numbers: 281/0511-072-2087-2; 281/0511-072-2089-2; 281/0511-072-2091-2; 281/0511-072-
2093-2 


Description for tax purposes:  MCCOMB PLACE CONDOMINIUM COMMERCIAL UNITS 102-
105 


For questions regarding this notice, please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421.   


Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
      
Published May 7, 2020 and May 14, 2020 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Viking Day Camp Notice 2020.doc 







City of Stoughton Application for Conditional Use Review and Approval
(Requirements per Section 78-905)


Applicant Name: _______________________________________________________________


Applicant Address: ______________________________________________________________


Applicant Phone and Email: _______________________________________________________


Property Owner Name (if different than applicant): _____________________________________


Property Owner Phone: __________________________________________________________


Subject Property Address: _________________________________________________________


This form is designed to be used by the Applicant as a guide to submitting a complete application for a
conditional use review and by the City to process said application. Parts II and III are to be used by the Applicant
to submit a complete application. (See conditional use review and approval procedures attached)


I. Record of Administrative Procedures for City Use


Application form filed with Zoning Administrator Date: ________________


Application fee of $_____ received by Zoning Administrator Date: ________________


II Application Submittal Packet Requirements


Prior to submitting the final complete application as certified by the Zoning Administrator, the Applicant shall
submit an initial draft application for staff review at least 30 days prior to a Planning Commission meeting,
followed by one revised draft final application packet based upon staff review and comments. The final
application materials are required to be submitted at least 2 weeks prior to the Planning Commission meeting.


Initial Packet


(1 electronic 11 x 17 copy of plans to Zoning Administrator) Date: _______________


Final Packet


(1 electronic 11 x 17 copy of plans


and if necessary one large scalable copy of plans to Zoning Administrator) Date: ________________


(a) A map of the proposed conditional use:


 Showing all lands under conditional use consideration.


 All lot dimensions of the subject property provided.


 Graphic scale and north arrow provided.


(b) A written description of the proposed conditional use describing the type of activities, buildings, and
structures proposed for the subject property and their general locations.


(c) A site plan (conforming to the requirements of Section 78-908(3)) of the subject property as
proposed for development OR if the proposed conditional use is a large development (per
Sections 78-205(11)). A proposed preliminary plat or conceptual plat may be substituted for the
required site plan, provided said plat contains all information required on said site plan per
Section 78-908.


(d) Written justification for the proposed conditional use indicating reasons why the Applicant
believes the proposed conditional use is appropriate with the recommendations of the City of
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, particularly as evidenced by compliance with the standards set
out in Section 78-905(5)(c)1.-6, as follows.


Viking Day Camp LLC


2125 McComb Rd Stoughton, WI


608-438-3003


Patriot Properites


608) 372-5777


2125 McComb Rd. Stoughton, WI







III Justification of the Proposed Conditional Use Request.


1. How is the proposed conditional use and location in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives,
policies and standards of the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, the Zoning Ordinance, and any
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted?


2. Does the proposed conditional use, in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan
(see Section 78-905(4)(d)), result in any substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the
character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements,
public property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare,
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of
the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan, or any other plan, program, map or
ordinance adopted?


We will be offering school age day camp programs during the summer months 


as well as after school programs during the school year.  Access to quality childcare
is essential for all families, and our programs are designed with school age kids in mind.  


Our business model also offers flexible scheduling and affordable tuition for 


families in our community. 


Our programs will increase traffic and parking needs during pick up and drop off


each day, these times are however short, approximately 7a-9a and 4p-6p.  


We do not foresee any other adverse consequences to our surrounding community.







3. How does the proposed conditional use maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the surroundings of the subject property?


4. Is the proposed conditional use located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not impose
an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public agencies
serving the subject property?


5. Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse impacts
of the proposed conditional use (as identified in Subsections 78-905(5)(c)1-5.), after taking into
consideration any proposed options to minimize such impacts?


The current space is an empty commercial space, we will not change the space structurally,


or make any design changes.  We will simply add materials that are necessary to 


care for school age children. 


No changes to land use.


The building has already been established and our rental will not impose any 


increased burden on public utilities or services.


Quality childcare in our community is beneficial to everyone, and a school age program


and center does not currently exist in Stoughton.  We believe the benefits of our 
program will most definitely outweigh any unintentional adverse impacts. 







IV. Application Information for City Use


Notified Neighboring Property Owners (within 300 feet) Date: ______________


Notified Neighboring Township Clerks (within 1,000 feet) Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice sent to official newspaper by City Clerk Date: ______________


Class 2 legal notice published on _______________ and _______________ Date: ______________


Conditional Use recorded with the County Register of Deeds Office after approval 


S:\Planning\MPS\Forms&Pamphlets\Applications 2017\Conditional Use Permit APP.doc







Business Summary for Conditional Use Permit Approval 
May 1, 2020 


Viking Day Camp 
Located in Stoughton, WI, Viking Day Camp provides summer day camp and 
after school programs for children ages 5-12. Viking Day Camp is a sister 
camp to Spartan Day Camp in McFarland 


OUR MISSION 


Viking Day Camp encourages personal growth in each child by providing both 
physical and educational activities. This exceptional program is facilitated by 
experienced professional educators. Anchored in this safe and supportive 
community, each camper will learn, explore, acquire new skills, feel valued for 
who they are, and develop a sense of belonging. Our structured program is 
designed to meet your child’s needs.  


Viking Day Camp provides a summer program shaped by fun, friends and 
nature, featuring science, natural wonder, independence and exploration. 


Flexible Scheduling: 


Viking Day Camp offers flexible scheduling.  You can register for full weeks or 
single days, one week or all weeks of summer.  Please try to be as accurate 
as possible when listing your child’s enrollment schedule on their registration 
paperwork. A two week notice is necessary to remove any charges for missed 
days. 


Daily Field Trips 


Field trip schedule coming soon. Swimming, state parks, roller skating we do 
it! 







Summer 2020 Field Trip Calendar 


Summer 2020 Rates 
Full Week (Monday-Friday) - $197 


Four Days per week- $175 


Three Days per week- $145 


Two Days per week - $110 


Single Day - $60 


Rates include all field trip and supply costs and two snacks per day. 


Pick up from Stoughton Summer School classes available.  


Registration Fee - $40 per camper (charged annually with registration) 


10% discount for second child 


5% discount if entire summer is paid in full by May 31st (No refunds for 
unused days) 
 
 
 



https://www.vikingdaycamp.com/s/United-States-June-2020-August-2020-3.pdf





Questions for Conditional Use Permit Approval 
May 1, 2020 
 


How do you plan to use the internal space?  
Our program is designed for school age kids and all of our programs are play based.  The 
internal space will be arranged in a way that will allow for free play between interest areas 
including: art, manipulatives, games, dramatic play and rest space.  Children will use the space 
freely.  Areas that will be off limits include the offices and back hallway.  


Will any exterior space be used?  Where will you be 
taking the children outside? 
We are a field trip based program.  In the summer we take trips every day to swimming pools, 
beaches, state parks and other recreation areas. During the school year, we transport kids 
using our camp vans to local parks and playgrounds to play.  We are exploring the idea of 
leasing some of the green space from the owner of the field next to McComb place eventually.  


Will noise be an issue?  
We have a clause written into our lease to exempt us from being liable for any noise.  Our 
program will be structured so that kids will only be in the space a short amount of time each day. 
During the summer that is from 7a-9a and 4p-6p and during the school year from 3:30-6 each 
day.  Kids playing will create some noise, but we will be as respectful to neighbors as possible.  


How will you handle drop-off and pick-up? 
 
For our summer programs, parents can drop off anytime between 7a and 9a, and usually this is 
a steady flow of families dropping off.  Parents can pull up and park in one of the 6 spots 
reserved for us in the front of the building or park on the street directly in front of the building 
and walk their kids inside.  Parents also have the option of just dropping their school aged child 
at the front door and the child can enter by themselves.  Drop off is typically no more than 5 
minutes for each family.  During the school year, our staff will pick up the children from the local 
schools in our vans and transport them to our space. 
 
Pick up for summer and the school year is between 4p and 6p and is also a short 5-10 minute 
process.  Parents can park in one of the 6 spaces in the front of the building or on the street 
directly in front of the building and walk in to pick up their child.  







 
 
Hello Michael, 
 
  I've answered your above questions in the google documents below.  Viking Day Camp is a 
sister camp to Spartan Day Camp in McFarland.  Before we moved into our new facility, which 
we built on Siggelkow Rd., we were located in a commercial space much like the one we are 
renting in Stoughton.  Eventually, we hope to also find land and build a facility in 
Stoughton.  We were located in our commercial space in McFarland for over 5 years and are well 
versed in running a program from a space like this. We've been doing school age care, like the 
programs we are starting in Stoughton, for over 10 years.  We are experienced in creating quality 
school age programs and hope that our program in Stoughton will provide a desperately needed 
service for families.  School age care is different from typical daycare environments.  School age 
children have different needs and desire a strong sense of independence and freedom.   
 
I'd be happy to answer any more questions you have for us, please let me know. 
 
Shelly 
 







Family Parking/Pick-up/Drop off (15 minutes)


2121 McComb Rd, Stoughton
Viking Day Campf


E
x
it


E
x
it


E
x
it


E
x
it


Office


Bathroom Bathroom


Bathroom


Utility 
Closet


Classroom Classroom
Stor-
age


Play Space


Play Space


Play Space


Employee/Staff Parking 







Map data ©2020 200 ft


2125 McComb Rd


Page 1 of 12125 McComb Rd - Google Maps


6/1/2020https://www.google.com/maps/place/2125+McComb+Rd,+Stoughton,+WI+53589/@42.9173363,-89.2474943,17.31z/data=!4m5...







Image capture: Jul 2019 © 2020 Google


Street View


Stoughton, Wisconsin


Google


McComb Rd


Page 1 of 2McComb Rd - Google Maps


6/1/2020https://www.google.com/maps/place/2125+McComb+Rd,+Stoughton,+WI+53589/@42.9179337,-89.2473535,3a,75y,175.38h,90...







4/29/2020 2125 McComb Rd - Google Maps


https://www.google.com/maps/place/2125+McComb+Rd,+Stoughton,+WI+53589/@42.9175732,-89.2477318,84m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x8806489fcd98fb4f… 1/2


Map data ©2020 , Map data ©2020 20 ft 


2125 McComb Rd
Stoughton, WI 53589


Directions Save Nearby Send to your
phone


Share


Photos


2125 McComb Rd


6 Spaces


 6 Spaces


8 spaces


Viking Day Camp will utilize 6 reserved
spaces in the front of McComb Place and 
an additional 14 spaces in the back.


Our maximum capacity for children is
75, and for those 75 kids we will need 
a maximum of 5 staff. 


20 parking stalls is sufficient for 75 campers 
(1stall/5 kids) and 5 staff (1 stall/1 staff)







CITY OF STOUGHTON      RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT   DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589    (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning     fax: (608) 873-5519 


 
       


April 29, 2020 
 
Viking Day Camp 
Megan Bisbee 
2125 McComb Road, Units 105-108 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
 
Dear Ms. Bisbee: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed conditional use for a group daycare at 2125 McComb 
Road, Units 102-105, Stoughton - application provided 4/28/20.  As noted, additional information 
may be required or shown on the plans.  
 
1. The property at 2125 McComb Road is currently zoned PB – Planned Business.  A Group 


Daycare Center is allowed as a conditional use within the PB district.  The application and 
fee has been submitted.  A public hearing is planned for the June 8, 2020 Plan Commission 
meeting to address the conditional use application.  It is anticipated that the Common 
Council will act on this request at their June 23, 2020 meeting.   
 


2. Ordinance section 78-905(5)(c) provides the following criteria which the Zoning Administrator 
may use to evaluate the conditional use application to determine whether the request is in 
harmony with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan: 


 
a) Is the proposed conditional use (the use in general, independent of its location) in 


harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of 
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city?   
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


b) Is the proposed conditional use (in its specific location) in harmony with the purposes, 
goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive plan, 
this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration 
pursuant to official notice by the city?  
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


c) Does the proposed conditional use, in its proposed location and as depicted on the 
required site plan (see subsection (4)(d), above), result in a substantial or undue adverse 
impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, environmental factors, 
traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-way, or other 
matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the 
provisions of this chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or 
ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city or other 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development?  We do not see any 
substantial or major adverse impacts related to the group daycare use and we 
have not received any complaints from neighboring property owners related to 
this request. 


d) Does the proposed conditional use maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land 
use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property?  
The use is consistent with the Planned Business zoning classification.     


e) Is the proposed conditional use located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or 
services provided by public agencies serving the subject property?  The use should not 
impose a burden on utilities or services.   


f) Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use (as identified in subsections 
1. through 5., above), after taking into consideration the applicant's proposal and any 
requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts? No adverse 
impacts have been identified. 


 
3. The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates the property at 2125 McComb Road 


as Planned Business, which is consistent with this request.  This request is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 


 
4. Regulations applicable to a group daycare are as follows: 


• Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .50 along all property 
borders abutting residentially zoned property (See zoning section 78-610).  The 
condominium units do not abut residential uses. 
 


5. The parking requirement for a group daycare is one space per five students, plus one space for 
each employee on the largest work shift.   
 
Zoning code section 78-705 (14) allows a potential reduction in parking spaces by up to 25% 
based upon more than one of the following criteria:  


• Technical documentation furnished by the applicant that indicates, to the satisfaction of 
the plan commission, that actual off-street parking demand for that particular use is less 
than the required standard set forth in this ordinance. 


• Bicycle parking spaces will be provided through racks, or equivalent structures located 
convenient to the proposed use. 


• A public transportation route is located within 500 feet of the property. 
Twenty parking spaces will allow for 5 employees and 75 children/students. 
 


6. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and zoning permit prior to installation.  The 
fee for signage is $75 at the time of application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator  
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
s:\planning\property log folder\2125 mccomb road\viking day camp cup\viking day camp cup review 2020.doc 












T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\060820\Plan Info\700 Nygaard CUP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  June 1, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the June 8, 2020 Plan Commission Meeting and June 23, 2020 


Common Council Meeting. 
 
Request by Jim Hess for approval of a Conditional Use Permit for upper story dwellings at 
700 Nygaard Street. 
This request is for approval of 9 upper and main floor residential apartments which is allowable as 
an accessory conditional use.  The main floor front of the building will be 700 square feet of 
commercial space.  A public hearing is scheduled for the Plan Commission meeting on June 8, 
2020.  The resolution, application information, and staff review letter are provided.  A 
recommendation to Council is necessary for the CUP.  It is recommended, the site plan approval by 
the Plan Commission is contingent on the CUP approval by Council. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Jim Hess for upper story dwellings at 700 Nygaard 
Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Common Council approval  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-  -2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, on June 8, 2020 the City of Stoughton Plan Commission held a public hearing and reviewed 
the proposed conditional use permit application by Jim Hess for upper story dwellings at 700 Nygaard Street, 
Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 
 
WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested to allow a multi-use building to be constructed which 
includes 9 residential upper and main floor apartments ; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


• The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 
with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 
Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;  


• The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 
in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-
way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 
or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 
chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 
consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 
to guide development;   


• The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 
land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


• The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property; 


• The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 
any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Plan Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use permit 
will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a whole; 
now therefore 
 
 
 







 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request by 
Jim Hess for upper story dwellings at 700 Nygaard Street is hereby approved subject to: 


• Staff review dated May 29, 2020 
 
 


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
  
  
  
   
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\700 Nygaard Street CUP.doc 







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving a site plan for a new commercial building at 700 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 11 - 2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
June 8, 2020 


RECITALS 
 


A. Jim Hess (the “Applicant”) is seeking site plan approval for a new commercial building at 700 
Nygaard Street in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Planned Business which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   
 


C. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed site plan at their regular June 8, 
2020 meeting and found that the plan meets the intent of the zoning ordinance and 
Comprehensive Plan. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the site plan for a new commercial 
building at 700 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, WI, with the following conditions: 
 


• Staff review letter dated May 29, 2020 
• The Conditional Use Permit for upper story dwellings being approved by the Common Council 


 
   
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Plan Commission Chair 
 


 
    
  
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2020\700 Nygaard Street Site Plan - PC Resolution 11-20.doc 







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 
 


The City of Stoughton Plan Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, June 8, 2020 at 6:00 
o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public Safety 
Building, 321 South Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a proposed 
Conditional Use Permit Application by Jim Hess to allow upper story dwellings as an accessory use at 
700 Nygaard Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin.  The property at 700 Nygaard Street is owned by Sainvas 
LLC and is more fully described as follows: 
Parcel Number: 281/0511-063-2134-7  
DVORAK'S ADDITION LOT 24 
 
For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421. 
 
Additional information including a location map can be found at: 
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/ 
 
 


      
Published May 14, 2020 Hub 
Published May 21, 2020 Hub 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Hess - 700 Nygaard Street CUP Notice 20.doc 































PROJECT /PERSPECTIVE


RENDERING IS REPRESENTATIVE ONLY - SEE DOCUMENTS FOR ALL BUILDING INFORMATION


6515 Grand Teton Plaza,   Suite 120,   Madison, Wisconsin    53719


p608.829.4444          f608.829.4445          dimensionivmadison.com


Architecture : Dimension IV − Madison Design Group


6515 Grand Teton Plaza, Suite 120, Madison, WI  53719   
p: 608.829.4444 www.dimensionivmadison.com 


PROJECT #


MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT


G0.122 MAY 2020


700 Nygaard St., Stoughton, WI 53589


Snyder & Associates, Inc.
5010 Voges Rd., Madison, WI 53718
p: 608 − 838 − 0444       snyder−associates.com


Civil
Engineer:


CONDITIONAL USE & SITE PLAN REVIEW − REVISED


16069


Project Location


U
S


 5
1


Jackson St.


Buckingham Rd.


N
yg


aa
rd


 S
t.


N
yg


aa
rd


 S
t.


Drawing List


Cover Sheet
Location Map
Vicinity Street Views


Survey
T100 - Title Sheet (Civil)
C100 - Existing Site Plan
C200 - Site Plan
C300 - Grading Plan
C301 - Erosion Control Plan
C400 - Utility Plan
C500 - 505 Storm Tech 
Landscape Plan
Lighting Plan


Architectural Site Plan - Ground floor Plan
Upper Floor Plans
Elevations 1
Elevations 2
3D View







6515 Grand Teton Plaza,    Suite 120,    Madison, Wisconsin    53719
p608.829.4444            f608.829.4445           dimensionivmadison.com


MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT


700 Nygaard St., Stoughton, WI 53589


16069


8 MAY 2020


Location Map


Location Map Not to Scale
NORTH







Map data ©2020 200 ft


700 Nygaard St


Page 1 of 1700 Nygaard St - Google Maps


6/1/2020https://www.google.com/maps/place/700+Nygaard+St,+Stoughton,+WI+53589/@42.92421,-89.2511858,17.31z/data=!4m5!3m4...







6515 Grand Teton Plaza,    Suite 120,    Madison, Wisconsin    53719
p608.829.4444            f608.829.4445           dimensionivmadison.com


MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT


700 Nygaard St., Stoughton, WI 53589


16069


8 MAY 2020


Vicinity Street Views


Looking NW along Nygaard from NE Corner of Site Looking NW along Nygaard Looking NW along Nygaard at Buckingham Rd.


Looking SW along Nygaard from NW Corner of Site


Looking SW along Nygaard Aerial View Looking SW along Nygaard


PROJECT LOCATION











BY
DA


TE
R


EV
IS


IO
N


M
AR


K
Sc


al
e:


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
:


T-
R


-S
:


S
N


Y
D


E
R


 
&


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


S
,
 
I
N


C
.
 


|


C
he


ck
ed


 B
y:


En
gi


ne
er


:


D
at


e:


1
"
 
=


Pr
oj


ec
t N


o:
Sh


ee
t


Project No:


Sheet


5
0


1
0
 
V


O
G


E
S


 
R


O
A


D


M
A


D
I
S


O
N


.
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


 
5


3
7
1


8


6
0
8
-
8
3
8
-
0
4
4
4


 
|
 
w


w
w


.
s
n


y
d


e
r
-
a


s
s
o


c
i
a


t
e


s
.
c
o


m


C
H


K
D


T
E


C
H


E
N


G
R


M
M


-
D


D
-
Y


Y
Y


Y


S
C


A
L
E


1
2


0
.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0


T
 
1


0
0


120.0442.30


T 100


7
0


0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


T
I
T


L
E


 
S


H
E


E
T


C
I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


,
 
D


A
N


E
 
C


O
U


N
T


Y
,
 
W


I


    


    


    


    


T
T


N
-
R


R
W


-
S


S


V
:
\
P


r
o


j
e


c
t
s
\
2


0
2


0
\
1


2
0


.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0
\
C


A
D


D
\
1


2
0


0
4


4
2


_
P


L
A


N
.
d


w
g


 
B


R
I
A


N
 
A


R
C


A
N


D
,
 
T


I
T


L
E


 
S


H
E


E
T


,
 
2


0
2


0
/
0


5
/
2


0
,
 
1


1
:
1


5
 
A


M
,
 
A


N
S


I
 
F


U
L


L
 
B


L
E


E
D


 
D


 
(
3


4
.
0


0
 
X


 
2


2
.
0


0
 
I
N


C
H


E
S


)


TOLL FREE


1-800-242-8511


CALL DIGGERS HOTLINE


WISCONSIN


DEVELOPMENT PLANS


FOR


700 NYGAARD STREET


CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WI


LOCATION MAP
DANE COUNTY


SCALE:          NTS SCALE:          NTS


PROJECT


DEVELOPER


ANAND SANTHALINGAM


810 SILVER SAGE TRAIL


MIDDLETON, WI 53562


608-316-1516


OWNER


SAINIVAS LLC


810 SILVER SAGE TRL


MIDDLETON, WI 53562


608-316-1516


Sheet List Table


Sheet Number Sheet Title


T 100 TITLE SHEET


C 100 EXISTING SITE PLAN


C 200 SITE PLAN


C 300 GRADING PLAN


C 301 EROSION CONTROL PLAN


C 400 UTILITY PLAN


C 500 - C 505 ADS STORMTECH







EXISTING INLET


T/C=903.75


12" RCP INV. (E)=899.42


12" RCP INV. (SW)=899.42


10" PVC INV. (W)=900.25


N
Y


G
A


A
R


D
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


E
X


I
S


T
I
N


G
 
1


0
"
 
W


A
T


E
R


 
M


A
I
N


E
X


I
S


T
I
N


G
 
8


"
 
S


A
N


I
T


A
R


Y
 
S


E
W


E
R


EXISTING SANITARY LATERAL


EXISTING WATER LATERAL


EXISTING FENCE TO BE REMOVED


EXISTING PROPERTY LINE, TYP.


9


0


5


9


0


5


9


1


0


9


1


0


9


1


0


9
1


0


9
1
0


9
1
0


9


1


0


9


1


0


9


0


4


9


0


4


9
0
6


9


0


6


9


0


7


9


0


7


9


0


8


9


0


8


9


0


9


9


0


9


9
1


1


9
1


1


9


1


1


9
1
1


9


1


1


9


1


1


9


1


2


9


1


2


9
1
2


9
1
2


EXISTING 42.0' BUILDING


SETBACK PER DOC. 2640072


EXISTING 16.5' TELEPHONE


EASEMENT PER DOC. 2267107


EXISTING 20.0' GAS MAIN


EASEMENT PER DOC. 22224542


EXISTING 12.0'


UTILITY EASEMENT


PER DOC. 2640072


9
0
5


904


FEET


0 10


BY
DA


TE
R


EV
IS


IO
N


M
AR


K
Sc


al
e:


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
:


T-
R


-S
:


S
N


Y
D


E
R


 
&


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


S
,
 
I
N


C
.
 


|


C
he


ck
ed


 B
y:


En
gi


ne
er


:


D
at


e:


1
"
 
=


Pr
oj


ec
t N


o:
Sh


ee
t


Project No:


Sheet


5
0


1
0
 
V


O
G


E
S


 
R


O
A


D


M
A


D
I
S


O
N


.
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


 
5


3
7
1


8


6
0
8
-
8
3
8
-
0
4
4
4


 
|
 
w


w
w


.
s
n


y
d


e
r
-
a


s
s
o


c
i
a


t
e


s
.
c
o


m


C
H


K
D


T
E


C
H


E
N


G
R


M
M


-
D


D
-
Y


Y
Y


Y


S
C


A
L
E


1
2


0
.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0


C
 
1


0
0


120.0442.30


C 100


7
0


0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


E
X


I
S


T
I
N


G
 
S


I
T


E
 
P


L
A


N


C
I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


,
 
D


A
N


E
 
C


O
U


N
T


Y
,
 
W


I


    


    


    


    


T
T


N
-
R


R
W


-
S


S


V
:
\
P


r
o


j
e


c
t
s
\
2


0
2


0
\
1


2
0


.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0
\
C


A
D


D
\
1


2
0


0
4


4
2


_
P


L
A


N
.
d


w
g


 
B


R
I
A


N
 
A


R
C


A
N


D
,
 
E


X
I
S


T
I
N


G
 
S


I
T


E
 
P


L
A


N
,
 
2


0
2


0
/
0


5
/
2


0
,
 
1


1
:
1


5
 
A


M
,
 
A


N
S


I
 
F


U
L


L
 
B


L
E


E
D


 
D


 
(
3


4
.
0


0
 
X


 
2


2
.
0


0
 
I
N


C
H


E
S


)







N
Y


G
A


A
R


D
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


RETAINING WALL (BY OTHERS)


5.0' PAVING SETBACK


10.0' BUILDING SETBACK


10.0' PAVING SETBACK


20.0' BUILDING SETBACK


5.0' PAVING SETBACK


10.0' BUILDING SETBACK


2
0


.
5


'


2
4


.
0


'


9.0', TYP.


1
8


.
0


'
,
 
T


Y
P


.


7.9'
8.0'


9.0'
8.8'


19.0'


1
7


.
0


'


2.5'


5
.
0


'
5


.
0


'


7.0'


5
.
0


'


8.5'


1
7


.
0


'


BOLLARD


COLUMN, TYP.


18" REJECT


CURB & GUTTER


18" STANDARD


CURB & GUTTER


TRASH ENCLOSURE


(DESIGNED BY


OTHERS)


OVERHANG


3


12


BICYCLE PARKING


(4 STALLS)


700 NYGAARD STREET


SWALE FLOW LINE


2
2


.
5


'


5.0'


DRIVEWAY CURB


CUT (TYP.)


END PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK AT


DRIVEWAY APRON. REMOVE


EXISTING SIDEWALK AS NECESSARY.


END PROPOSED 5' SIDEWALK AT


DRIVEWAY APRON. REMOVE


EXISTING SIDEWALK AS NECESSARY.


RETAINING WALL (BY OTHERS)


THICKENED EDGE SIDEWALK


FEET


0 10


BY
DA


TE
R


EV
IS


IO
N


M
AR


K
Sc


al
e:


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
:


T-
R


-S
:


S
N


Y
D


E
R


 
&


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


S
,
 
I
N


C
.
 


|


C
he


ck
ed


 B
y:


En
gi


ne
er


:


D
at


e:


1
"
 
=


Pr
oj


ec
t N


o:
Sh


ee
t


Project No:


Sheet


5
0


1
0
 
V


O
G


E
S


 
R


O
A


D


M
A


D
I
S


O
N


.
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


 
5


3
7
1


8


6
0
8
-
8
3
8
-
0
4
4
4


 
|
 
w


w
w


.
s
n


y
d


e
r
-
a


s
s
o


c
i
a


t
e


s
.
c
o


m


C
H


K
D


T
E


C
H


E
N


G
R


M
M


-
D


D
-
Y


Y
Y


Y


S
C


A
L
E


1
2


0
.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0


C
 
2


0
0


120.0442.30


C 200


7
0


0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


S
I
T


E
 
P


L
A


N


C
I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


,
 
D


A
N


E
 
C


O
U


N
T


Y
,
 
W


I


    


    


    


    


T
T


N
-
R


R
W


-
S


S


V
:
\
P


r
o


j
e


c
t
s
\
2


0
2


0
\
1


2
0


.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0
\
C


A
D


D
\
1


2
0


0
4


4
2


_
P


L
A


N
.
d


w
g


 
B


R
I
A


N
 
A


R
C


A
N


D
,
 
S


I
T


E
 
P


L
A


N
,
 
2


0
2


0
/
0


5
/
2


0
,
 
1


1
:
1


5
 
A


M
,
 
A


N
S


I
 
F


U
L


L
 
B


L
E


E
D


 
D


 
(
3


4
.
0


0
 
X


 
2


2
.
0


0
 
I
N


C
H


E
S


)


ZONING


PLANNED BUSINESS


PROPERTY DESCRIPTION


MIXED USE


20,993 SQ. FT. - 0.48 ACRES


PARCEL NUMBERS


0511-063-2134-7


GENERAL USE


RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL


BUILDING DESCRIPTION


MIXED USE


TOTAL BUILDING HEIGHT = 40'-4"


FLOOR SF = 17,750 SF


FLOOR AREA RATIO = 84.6%


PARKING STALL COUNT


7 COVERED PARKING STALLS (1 ADA)


15 SURFACE PARKING STALLS (1 ADA)


BASE SITE CALCULATIONS


LOT AREA = 20,993 SQ. FT.


PERVIOUS AREA = 7,611 SQ. FT. (36.3% LOT COVERAGE)


IMPERVIOUS AREA = 13,382 SQ. FT. (63.7% LOT COVERAGE)


BUILDING = 6,227 SQ. FT.


SIDEWALK = 923 SQ. FT.


PAVEMENT = 6,232 SQ. FT.


IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RATIO = 63.7%







N
Y


G
A


A
R


D
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


9


0


5


9


0


5


9


1


0


9


1


0


9


1


0


9
1


0


9
1
0


9
1
0


9


1


0


9


1


0


9


0


4


9


0


4


9
0
6


9


0


6


9


0


7


9


0


7


9


0


8


9


0


8


9


0


9


9


0


9


9
1


1


9
1


1


9


1


1


9
1
1


9


1


1


9


1


1


9


1


2


9


1


2


9
1
2


9
1
2


9


0


5


9


1


0


9
0
4


9


0


4


9


0


4


9
0
6


9


0


6


9
0
6


9
0
6


9


0


7


9


0


8
9


0


9


9
1
1


9
1
2


9
0
5


9
0
5


9


1


0


9
1
0


9
1
0


9


0


6


9


0


7


9


0


8


9


0


9


904.40


909.80


905.95


905.25
905.25


905.09
904.99


904.94


904.73


903.47


903.75


903.88


904.23


904.40


904.17


904.31


904.65


904.65


904.33


700 NYGAARD STREET


FFE=905.25


904.62


904.58


905.05


905.05


905.05


904.81


903.81


904.10


905.15


905.15


905.15


904.33


906.05


909.12


903.93


904.02


904.41


905


9


0


4


9
0
5


904


FEET


0 10


BY
DA


TE
R


EV
IS


IO
N


M
AR


K
Sc


al
e:


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
:


T-
R


-S
:


S
N


Y
D


E
R


 
&


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


S
,
 
I
N


C
.
 


|


C
he


ck
ed


 B
y:


En
gi


ne
er


:


D
at


e:


1
"
 
=


Pr
oj


ec
t N


o:
Sh


ee
t


Project No:


Sheet


5
0


1
0
 
V


O
G


E
S


 
R


O
A


D


M
A


D
I
S


O
N


.
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


 
5


3
7
1


8


6
0
8
-
8
3
8
-
0
4
4
4


 
|
 
w


w
w


.
s
n


y
d


e
r
-
a


s
s
o


c
i
a


t
e


s
.
c
o


m


C
H


K
D


T
E


C
H


E
N


G
R


M
M


-
D


D
-
Y


Y
Y


Y


S
C


A
L
E


1
2


0
.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0


C
 
3


0
0


120.0442.30


C 300


7
0


0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


G
R


A
D


I
N


G
 
P


L
A


N


C
I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


,
 
D


A
N


E
 
C


O
U


N
T


Y
,
 
W


I


    


    


    


    


T
T


N
-
R


R
W


-
S


S


V
:
\
P


r
o


j
e


c
t
s
\
2


0
2


0
\
1


2
0


.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0
\
C


A
D


D
\
1


2
0


0
4


4
2


_
P


L
A


N
.
d


w
g


 
B


R
I
A


N
 
A


R
C


A
N


D
,
 
G


R
A


D
I
N


G
 
P


L
A


N
,
 
2


0
2


0
/
0


5
/
2


0
,
 
1


1
:
1


5
 
A


M
,
 
A


N
S


I
 
F


U
L


L
 
B


L
E


E
D


 
D


 
(
3


4
.
0


0
 
X


 
2


2
.
0


0
 
I
N


C
H


E
S


)







N
Y


G
A


A
R


D
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


9


0


5


9


0


5


9


1


0


9


1


0


9


1


0


9
1


0


9
1
0


9
1
0


9


1


0


9


1


0


9


0


4


9


0


4


9
0
6


9


0


6


9


0


7


9


0


7


9


0


8


9


0


8


9


0


9


9


0


9


9
1


1


9
1


1


9


1


1


9
1
1


9


1


1


9


1


1


9


1


2


9


1


2


9
1
2


9
1
2


9


0


5


9


1


0


9
0
4


9


0


4


9


0


4


9
0
6


9


0


6


9
0
6


9
0
6


9


0


7


9


0


8
9


0


9


9
1
1


9
1
2


9
0
5


9
0
5


9


1


0


9
1
0


9
1
0


9


0


6


9


0


7


9


0


8


9


0


9


700 NYGAARD STREET


FFE=905.25


● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●


●
●


●
●


●
●


●
●


●


INLET PROTECTION, TYP.


INLET PROTECTION, TYP.


CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE


EROSION MATTING, TYP.


SILT FENCE, TYP.


905


9


0


4


9
0
5


904


FEET


0 10


BY
DA


TE
R


EV
IS


IO
N


M
AR


K
Sc


al
e:


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
:


T-
R


-S
:


S
N


Y
D


E
R


 
&


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


S
,
 
I
N


C
.
 


|


C
he


ck
ed


 B
y:


En
gi


ne
er


:


D
at


e:


1
"
 
=


Pr
oj


ec
t N


o:
Sh


ee
t


Project No:


Sheet


5
0


1
0
 
V


O
G


E
S


 
R


O
A


D


M
A


D
I
S


O
N


.
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


 
5


3
7
1


8


6
0
8
-
8
3
8
-
0
4
4
4


 
|
 
w


w
w


.
s
n


y
d


e
r
-
a


s
s
o


c
i
a


t
e


s
.
c
o


m


C
H


K
D


T
E


C
H


E
N


G
R


M
M


-
D


D
-
Y


Y
Y


Y


S
C


A
L
E


1
2


0
.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0


C
 
3


0
1


120.0442.30


C 301


7
0


0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


E
R


O
S


I
O


N
 
C


O
N


T
R


O
L


 
P


L
A


N


C
I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


,
 
D


A
N


E
 
C


O
U


N
T


Y
,
 
W


I


    


    


    


    


T
T


N
-
R


R
W


-
S


S


V
:
\
P


r
o


j
e


c
t
s
\
2


0
2


0
\
1


2
0


.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0
\
C


A
D


D
\
1


2
0


0
4


4
2


_
P


L
A


N
.
d


w
g


 
B


R
I
A


N
 
A


R
C


A
N


D
,
 
E


R
O


S
I
O


N
 
C


O
N


T
R


O
L


 
P


L
A


N
,
 
2


0
2


0
/
0


5
/
2


0
,
 
1


1
:
1


5
 
A


M
,
 
A


N
S


I
 
F


U
L


L
 
B


L
E


E
D


 
D


 
(
3


4
.
0


0
 
X


 
2


2
.
0


0
 
I
N


C
H


E
S


)







N
Y


G
A


A
R


D
 
S


T
R


E
E


T


CONNECT TO EXISTING


WATER LATERAL.


CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY


LOCATION & DEPTH PRIOR


TO CONNECTION.


CONNECT TO EXISTING


SANITARY LATERAL.


CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY


LOCATION & DEPTH PRIOR


TO CONNECTION.


ST 2, ST MH


T/C: 904.40


INV: 901.15 S


38 LF OF 12" RCP CLASS III WALL A @ 1.54%


ST 1, UP-FLO FILTER


T/C: 903.93


INV: 900.18 N


INV: 900.18 W


19 LF OF 12" RCP CLASS III WALL A @ 0.93%


55 LF OF 12" RCP CLASS III WALL A @ 2.08%


END WATER LATERAL


END SANITARY LATERAL


UNDERGROUND STORM


WATER MANAGEMENT


SYSTEM (BY OTHERS)


CONNECT TO EXISTING


STORM SEWER INLET


AT INV.=899.42.


CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY


LOCATION & EX .INVERT


PRIOR TO CONNECTION.


ST 3, ST MH


T/C: 905.95


INV: 902.70 E


144 LF OF 12" RCP CLASS III WALL A @ 1.75%


FEET


0 10


BY
DA


TE
R


EV
IS


IO
N


M
AR


K
Sc


al
e:


Te
ch


ni
ci


an
:


T-
R


-S
:


S
N


Y
D


E
R


 
&


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


S
,
 
I
N


C
.
 


|


C
he


ck
ed


 B
y:


En
gi


ne
er


:


D
at


e:


1
"
 
=


Pr
oj


ec
t N


o:
Sh


ee
t


Project No:


Sheet


5
0


1
0
 
V


O
G


E
S


 
R


O
A


D


M
A


D
I
S


O
N


.
 
W


I
S


C
O


N
S


I
N


 
5


3
7
1


8


6
0
8
-
8
3
8
-
0
4
4
4


 
|
 
w


w
w


.
s
n


y
d


e
r
-
a


s
s
o


c
i
a


t
e


s
.
c
o


m


C
H


K
D


T
E


C
H


E
N


G
R


M
M


-
D


D
-
Y


Y
Y


Y


S
C


A
L
E


1
2


0
.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0


C
 
4


0
0


120.0442.30


C 400


7
0


0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


 
S


T
R


E
E


T


U
T


I
L


I
T


Y
 
P


L
A


N


C
I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
S


T
O


U
G


H
T


O
N


,
 
D


A
N


E
 
C


O
U


N
T


Y
,
 
W


I


    


    


    


    


T
T


N
-
R


R
W


-
S


S


V
:
\
P


r
o


j
e


c
t
s
\
2


0
2


0
\
1


2
0


.
0


4
4


2
.
3


0
\
C


A
D


D
\
1


2
0


0
4


4
2


_
P


L
A


N
.
d


w
g


 
B


R
I
A


N
 
A


R
C


A
N


D
,
 
U


T
I
L


I
T


Y
 
P


L
A


N
,
 
2


0
2


0
/
0


5
/
2


0
,
 
1


1
:
1


5
 
A


M
,
 
A


N
S


I
 
F


U
L


L
 
B


L
E


E
D


 
D


 
(
3


4
.
0


0
 
X


 
2


2
.
0


0
 
I
N


C
H


E
S


)


NOTES:


1. STORM SEWER MANHOLES SHALL HAVE R-1550 OPEN


FRAME/GRATES.


2. UP-FLO FILTER STRUCTURE SHALL HAVE R-3067 INLET


FRAME/GRATE.







 


É2013 ADS, INC.


ADVANCED DRAINAGE SYSTEMS, INC.


R


FOR STORMTECH


INSTRUCTIONS,


DOWNLOAD THE


INSTALLATION APP


IMPORTANT - NOTES FOR THE BIDDING AND INSTALLATION OF THE SC-310 SYSTEM


1. STORMTECH SC-310 CHAMBERS SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED UNTIL THE MANUFACTURER'S REPRESENTATIVE HAS COMPLETED A


PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING WITH THE INSTALLERS.


2. STORMTECH SC-310 CHAMBERS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "STORMTECH SC-310/SC-740/DC-780 CONSTRUCTION GUIDE".


3. CHAMBERS ARE NOT TO BE BACKFILLED WITH A DOZER OR AN EXCAVATOR SITUATED OVER THE CHAMBERS.


STORMTECH RECOMMENDS 3 BACKFILL METHODS:


 STONESHOOTER LOCATED OFF THE CHAMBER BED.


 BACKFILL AS ROWS ARE BUILT USING AN EXCAVATOR ON THE FOUNDATION STONE OR SUBGRADE.


 BACKFILL FROM OUTSIDE THE EXCAVATION USING A LONG BOOM HOE OR EXCAVATOR.


4. THE FOUNDATION STONE SHALL BE LEVELED AND COMPACTED PRIOR TO PLACING CHAMBERS.


5. JOINTS BETWEEN CHAMBERS SHALL BE PROPERLY SEATED PRIOR TO PLACING STONE.


6. MAINTAIN MINIMUM - 6" (150 mm) SPACING BETWEEN THE CHAMBER ROWS.


7. EMBEDMENT STONE SURROUNDING CHAMBERS MUST BE A CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR STONE 3/4-2" (20-50 mm).


8. THE CONTRACTOR MUST REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES WITH CHAMBER FOUNDATION MATERIALS BEARING CAPACITIES TO THE SITE DESIGN


ENGINEER.


9. ADS RECOMMENDS THE USE OF "FLEXSTORM CATCH IT" INSERTS DURING CONSTRUCTION FOR ALL INLETS TO PROTECT THE SUBSURFACE


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM FROM CONSTRUCTION SITE RUNOFF.


NOTES FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT


1. STORMTECH SC-310 CHAMBERS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE "STORMTECH SC-310/SC-740/DC-780 CONSTRUCTION GUIDE".


2. THE USE OF CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT OVER SC-310 & SC-740 CHAMBERS IS LIMITED:


 NO EQUIPMENT IS ALLOWED ON BARE CHAMBERS.


 NO RUBBER TIRED LOADERS, DUMP TRUCKS, OR EXCAVATORS ARE ALLOWED UNTIL PROPER FILL DEPTHS ARE REACHED IN ACCORDANCE


WITH THE "STORMTECH SC-310/SC-740/DC-780 CONSTRUCTION GUIDE".


 WEIGHT LIMITS FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT CAN BE FOUND IN THE "STORMTECH SC-310/SC-740/DC-780 CONSTRUCTION GUIDE".


3. FULL 36" (900 mm) OF STABILIZED COVER MATERIALS OVER THE CHAMBERS IS REQUIRED FOR DUMP TRUCK TRAVEL OR DUMPING.


USE OF A DOZER TO PUSH EMBEDMENT STONE BETWEEN THE ROWS OF CHAMBERS MAY CAUSE DAMAGE TO THE CHAMBERS AND IS NOT AN


ACCEPTABLE BACKFILL METHOD. ANY CHAMBERS DAMAGED BY THE "DUMP AND PUSH" METHOD ARE NOT COVERED UNDER THE STORMTECH


STANDARD WARRANTY.


CONTACT STORMTECH AT 1-888-892-2694 WITH ANY QUESTIONS ON INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS OR WEIGHT LIMITS FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT.


SC-310 STORMTECH CHAMBER SPECIFICATIONS


1. CHAMBERS SHALL BE STORMTECH SC-310.


2. CHAMBERS SHALL BE ARCH-SHAPED AND SHALL BE MANUFACTURED FROM VIRGIN, IMPACT-MODIFIED POLYPROPYLENE OR


POLYETHYLENE COPOLYMERS.


3. CHAMBERS SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF ASTM F2922 (POLETHYLENE) OR ASTM F2418-16a (POLYPROPYLENE), "STANDARD


SPECIFICATION FOR CORRUGATED WALL STORMWATER COLLECTION CHAMBERS".


4. CHAMBER ROWS SHALL PROVIDE CONTINUOUS, UNOBSTRUCTED INTERNAL SPACE WITH NO INTERNAL SUPPORTS THAT WOULD


IMPEDE FLOW OR LIMIT ACCESS FOR INSPECTION.


5. THE STRUCTURAL DESIGN OF THE CHAMBERS, THE STRUCTURAL BACKFILL, AND THE INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS SHALL ENSURE


THAT THE LOAD FACTORS SPECIFIED IN THE AASHTO LRFD BRIDGE DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS, SECTION 12.12, ARE MET FOR: 1)


LONG-DURATION DEAD LOADS AND 2) SHORT-DURATION LIVE LOADS, BASED ON THE AASHTO DESIGN TRUCK WITH CONSIDERATION


FOR IMPACT AND MULTIPLE VEHICLE PRESENCES.


6. CHAMBERS SHALL BE DESIGNED, TESTED AND ALLOWABLE LOAD CONFIGURATIONS DETERMINED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM F2787,


"STANDARD PRACTICE FOR STRUCTURAL DESIGN OF THERMOPLASTIC CORRUGATED WALL STORMWATER COLLECTION CHAMBERS".


LOAD CONFIGURATIONS SHALL INCLUDE: 1) INSTANTANEOUS (<1 MIN) AASHTO DESIGN TRUCK LIVE LOAD ON MINIMUM COVER 2)


MAXIMUM PERMANENT (75-YR) COVER LOAD AND 3) ALLOWABLE COVER WITH PARKED (1-WEEK)  AASHTO DESIGN TRUCK.


7. REQUIREMENTS FOR HANDLING AND INSTALLATION:


 TO MAINTAIN THE WIDTH OF CHAMBERS DURING SHIPPING AND HANDLING, CHAMBERS SHALL HAVE INTEGRAL, INTERLOCKING


STACKING LUGS.


 TO ENSURE A SECURE JOINT DURING INSTALLATION AND BACKFILL, THE HEIGHT OF THE CHAMBER JOINT SHALL NOT BE LESS


THAN 2ò.


 TO ENSURE THE INTEGRITY OF THE ARCH SHAPE DURING INSTALLATION, a) THE ARCH STIFFNESS CONSTANT AS DEFINED IN


SECTION 6.2.8 OF ASTM F2922 SHALL BE GREATER THAN OR EQUAL TO 400 LBS/IN/IN. AND b) TO RESIST CHAMBER DEFORMATION


DURING INSTALLATION AT ELEVATED TEMPERATURES (ABOVE 73Á F / 23Á C), CHAMBERS SHALL BE PRODUCED FROM


REFLECTIVE GOLD OR YELLOW COLORS.


8. ONLY CHAMBERS THAT ARE APPROVED BY THE SITE DESIGN ENGINEER WILL BE ALLOWED. UPON REQUEST BY THE SITE DESIGN


ENGINEER OR OWNER, THE CHAMBER MANUFACTURER SHALL SUBMIT A STRUCTURAL EVALUATION FOR APPROVAL BEFORE


DELIVERING CHAMBERS TO THE PROJECT SITE AS FOLLOWS:


 THE STRUCTURAL EVALUATION SHALL BE SEALED BY A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER.


 THE STRUCTURAL EVALUATION SHALL DEMONSTRATE THAT THE SAFETY FACTORS ARE GREATER THAN OR EQUAL TO 1.95 FOR


DEAD LOAD AND 1.75 FOR LIVE LOAD, THE MINIMUM REQUIRED BY ASTM F2787 AND BY SECTIONS 3 AND 12.12 OF THE AASHTO


LRFD BRIDGE DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS FOR THERMOPLASTIC PIPE.


 THE TEST DERIVED CREEP MODULUS AS SPECIFIED IN ASTM F2922 SHALL BE USED FOR PERMANENT DEAD LOAD DESIGN


EXCEPT THAT IT SHALL BE THE 75-YEAR MODULUS USED FOR DESIGN.


9. CHAMBERS AND END CAPS SHALL BE PRODUCED AT AN ISO 9001 CERTIFIED MANUFACTURING FACILITY.


PROJECT INFORMATION


ADS SALES REP


PROJECT NO.


 


ENGINEERED PRODUCT 


MANAGER


 


700 NYGAARD


STOUGHTON, WI







T
H


I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
H


A
S


 
B


E
E


N
 
P


R
E


P
A


R
E


D
 
B


A
S


E
D


 
O


N
 
I
N


F
O


R
M


A
T


I
O


N
 
P


R
O


V
I
D


E
D


 
T


O
 
A


D
S


 
U


N
D


E
R


 
T


H
E


 
D


I
R


E
C


T
I
O


N
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
O


R
 
O


T
H


E
R


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
P


R
E


S
E


N
T


A
T


I
V


E
.
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
S


H
A


L
L


 
R


E
V


I
E


W
 
T


H
I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
P


R
I
O


R
 
T


O
 
C


O
N


S
T


R
U


C
T


I
O


N
.
 
I
T


 
I
S


 
T


H
E


 
U


L
T


I
M


A
T


E
 


R
E


S
P


O
N


S
I
B


I
L


I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
T


O
 
E


N
S


U
R


E
 
T


H
A


T
 
T


H
E


 
P


R
O


D
U


C
T


(
S


)
 
D


E
P


I
C


T
E


D
 
A


N
D


 
A


L
L


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


D
 
D


E
T


A
I
L
S


 
M


E
E


T
 
A


L
L


 
A


P
P


L
I
C


A
B


L
E


 
L


A
W


S
,
 
R


E
G


U
L
A


T
I
O


N
S


,
 
A


N
D


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
Q


U
I
R


E
M


E
N


T
S


.


4
6
4


0
 
T


R
U


E
M


A
N


 
B


L
V


D


H
I
L
L
I
A


R
D


,
 
O


H
 
 
4
3
0
2


6


1
-
8
0
0


-
7
3
3
-
7
4
7


3


R
E


V
D


R
W


C
H


K
D


E
S


C
R


I
P


T
I
O


N


7
0
0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


D
A


T
E


:
 


D
R


A
W


N
:
 
B


A


P
R


O
J
E


C
T


 
#
:
 


C
H


E
C


K
E


D
:
 
N


/
A


SHEET


OF2 6


5
2
0
 
C


R
O


M
W


E
L
L
 
A


V
E


N
U


E
R


O
C


K
Y


 
H


I
L
L


C
T


0
6
0
6
7


8
6
0


-
5


2
9


-
8


1
8


8
8


8
8


-
8


9
2


-
2
6


9
4


W
W


W
.
S


T
O


R
M


T
E


C
H


.
C


O
M


D
e


t
e


n
t
i
o
n


 
 
R


e
t
e


n
t
i
o


n
 
 
W


a
t
e
r
 
Q


u
a
l
i
t
y


A
D


V
A


N
C


E
D


 
D


R
A


I
N


A
G


E
 
S


Y
S


T
E


M
S


,
 
I
N


C
.


R


NOTES


Å MANIFOLD SIZE TO BE DETERMINED BY SITE DESIGN ENGINEER. SEE TECH NOTE #6.32 FOR MANIFOLD SIZING GUIDANCE.


Å DUE TO THE ADAPTATION OF THIS CHAMBER SYSTEM TO SPECIFIC SITE AND DESIGN CONSTRAINTS, IT MAY BE NECESSARY TO CUT AND COUPLE ADDITIONAL PIPE TO STANDARD MANIFOLD 


COMPONENTS IN THE FIELD.


Å THE SITE DESIGN ENGINEER MUST REVIEW ELEVATIONS AND IF NECESSARY ADJUST GRADING TO ENSURE THE CHAMBER COVER REQUIREMENTS ARE MET.


Å THIS CHAMBER SYSTEM WAS DESIGNED WITHOUT SITE-SPECIFIC INFORMATION ON SOIL CONDITIONS OR BEARING CAPACITY. THE SITE DESIGN ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING 


THE SUITABILITY OF THE SOIL AND PROVIDING THE BEARING CAPACITY OF THE INSITU SOILS. THE BASE STONE DEPTH MAY BE INCREASED OR DECREASED ONCE THIS INFORMATION IS 


PROVIDED.


Å NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION: THIS LAYOUT IS FOR DIMENSIONAL PURPOSES ONLY TO PROVE CONCEPT & THE REQUIRED STORAGE VOLUME CAN BE ACHIEVED ON SITE.


PROPOSED ELEVATIONS


MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE GRADE (TOP OF PAVEMENT/UNPAVED):   


909.83


MINIMUM ALLOWABLE GRADE (UNPAVED WITH TRAFFIC):   


903.83


MINIMUM ALLOWABLE GRADE (UNPAVED NO TRAFFIC):   


903.33


MINIMUM ALLOWABLE GRADE (TOP OF RIGID CONCRETE PAVEMENT):   


903.33


MINIMUM ALLOWABLE GRADE (BASE OF FLEXIBLE PAVEMENT):   


903.33


TOP OF STONE:   902.33


TOP OF SC-310 CHAMBER:   901.83


10" x 10" TOP MANIFOLD INVERT:   900.62


12" ISOLATOR ROW INVERT:   900.58


12" BOTTOM CONNECTION INVERT:   900.58


BOTTOM OF SC-310 CHAMBER:   900.50


UNDERDRAIN INVERT:   899.50


BOTTOM OF STONE:   899.50


PROPOSED LAYOUT


70 STORMTECH SC-310 CHAMBERS


10 STORMTECH SC-310 END CAPS


6


STONE ABOVE (in)


12


STONE BELOW (in)


40 STONE VOID


2880


INSTALLED SYSTEM VOLUME (CF)


(PERIMETER STONE INCLUDED)


(COVER STONE INCLUDED)


(BASE STONE INCLUDED)


1994


SYSTEM AREA (SF)


250.0


SYSTEM PERIMETER (ft)


*INVERT ABOVE BASE OF CHAMBER


MAX FLOWINVERT*DESCRIPTIONITEM ON LAYOUTPART TYPE


 0.90"


12" BOTTOM PREFABRICATED END CAP/TYP OF ALL 12" BOTTOM CONNECTIONS AND 


ISOLATOR ROWS


APREFABRICATED END CAP   


 1.40"10" TOP PREFABRICATED END CAP/TYP OF ALL 10" TOP CONNECTIONSBPREFABRICATED END CAP   


 1.40"
10" x 10" TOP MANIFOLD, MOLDED FITTINGS


CMANIFOLD   


 0.90"12" BOTTOM CONNECTIONDPIPE CONNECTION   


3.7 CFS IN 


30" DIAMETER (24.00" SUMP MIN)


E


NYLOPLAST (INLET W/ ISO 


ROW)   


2.0 CFS OUT 


30" DIAMETER (DESIGN BY ENGINEER)


F


NYLOPLAST (OUTLET)   


  6" ADS N-12 DUAL WALL PERFORATED HDPE UNDERDRAINGUNDERDRAIN   


ISOLATOR ROW


(SEE DETAIL)


PLACE MINIMUM 12.50' OF ADS GEOSYNTHETICS 315WTK WOVEN 


GEOTEXTILE OVER BEDDING STONE AND UNDERNEATH CHAMBER FEET FOR 


SCOUR PROTECTION AT ALL CHAMBER INLET ROWS


BED LIMITS


106.24'


1
8
.
7
7
'


100.84'


1
6
.
1
7
'


B


G C


A


D


F


E


2
0


'
1
0


'
0







T
H


I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
H


A
S


 
B


E
E


N
 
P


R
E


P
A


R
E


D
 
B


A
S


E
D


 
O


N
 
I
N


F
O


R
M


A
T


I
O


N
 
P


R
O


V
I
D


E
D


 
T


O
 
A


D
S


 
U


N
D


E
R


 
T


H
E


 
D


I
R


E
C


T
I
O


N
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
O


R
 
O


T
H


E
R


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
P


R
E


S
E


N
T


A
T


I
V


E
.
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
S


H
A


L
L


 
R


E
V


I
E


W
 
T


H
I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
P


R
I
O


R
 
T


O
 
C


O
N


S
T


R
U


C
T


I
O


N
.
 
I
T


 
I
S


 
T


H
E


 
U


L
T


I
M


A
T


E
 


R
E


S
P


O
N


S
I
B


I
L


I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
T


O
 
E


N
S


U
R


E
 
T


H
A


T
 
T


H
E


 
P


R
O


D
U


C
T


(
S


)
 
D


E
P


I
C


T
E


D
 
A


N
D


 
A


L
L


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


D
 
D


E
T


A
I
L
S


 
M


E
E


T
 
A


L
L


 
A


P
P


L
I
C


A
B


L
E


 
L


A
W


S
,
 
R


E
G


U
L
A


T
I
O


N
S


,
 
A


N
D


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
Q


U
I
R


E
M


E
N


T
S


.


4
6
4


0
 
T


R
U


E
M


A
N


 
B


L
V


D


H
I
L
L
I
A


R
D


,
 
O


H
 
 
4
3
0
2


6


1
-
8
0
0


-
7
3
3
-
7
4
7


3


R
E


V
D


R
W


C
H


K
D


E
S


C
R


I
P


T
I
O


N


7
0
0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


D
A


T
E


:
 


D
R


A
W


N
:
 
B


A


P
R


O
J
E


C
T


 
#
:
 


C
H


E
C


K
E


D
:
 
N


/
A


SHEET


OF3 6


ACCEPTABLE FILL MATERIALS: STORMTECH SC-310 CHAMBER SYSTEMS


PLEASE NOTE:


1. THE LISTED AASHTO DESIGNATIONS ARE FOR GRADATIONS ONLY. THE STONE MUST ALSO BE CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR. FOR EXAMPLE, A SPECIFICATION FOR #4 STONE WOULD STATE: "CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR NO. 4 (AASHTO M43) STONE".


2. STORMTECH COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS ARE MET FOR 'A' LOCATION MATERIALS WHEN PLACED AND COMPACTED IN 6" (150 mm) (MAX) LIFTS USING TWO FULL COVERAGES WITH A VIBRATORY COMPACTOR.


3. WHERE INFILTRATION SURFACES MAY BE COMPROMISED BY COMPACTION, FOR STANDARD DESIGN LOAD CONDITIONS, A FLAT SURFACE MAY BE ACHIEVED BY RAKING OR DRAGGING WITHOUT COMPACTION EQUIPMENT. FOR SPECIAL LOAD DESIGNS, CONTACT STORMTECH FOR


COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS.


4. ONCE LAYER 'C' IS PLACED, ANY SOIL/MATERIAL CAN BE PLACED IN LAYER 'D' UP TO THE FINISHED GRADE. MOST PAVEMENT SUBBASE SOILS CAN BE USED TO REPLACE THE MATERIAL REQUIREMENTS OF LAYER 'C' OR 'D' AT THE SITE DESIGN ENGINEER'S DISCRETION.


NOTES:


1. CHAMBERS SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF ASTM F2922 (POLETHYLENE) OR ASTM F2418-16a (POLYPROPYLENE), "STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR CORRUGATED WALL STORMWATER COLLECTION


CHAMBERS".


2. SC-310 CHAMBERS SHALL BE DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM F2787 "STANDARD PRACTICE FOR STRUCTURAL DESIGN OF THERMOPLASTIC CORRUGATED WALL STORMWATER COLLECTION


CHAMBERS".


3. THE SITE DESIGN ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ASSESSING THE BEARING RESISTANCE (ALLOWABLE BEARING CAPACITY) OF THE SUBGRADE SOILS AND THE DEPTH OF FOUNDATION STONE WITH


CONSIDERATION FOR THE RANGE OF EXPECTED SOIL MOISTURE CONDITIONS.


4. PERIMETER STONE MUST BE EXTENDED HORIZONTALLY TO THE EXCAVATION WALL FOR BOTH VERTICAL AND SLOPED EXCAVATION WALLS.


5. REQUIREMENTS FOR HANDLING AND INSTALLATION:


 TO MAINTAIN THE WIDTH OF CHAMBERS DURING SHIPPING AND HANDLING, CHAMBERS SHALL HAVE INTEGRAL, INTERLOCKING STACKING LUGS.


 TO ENSURE A SECURE JOINT DURING INSTALLATION AND BACKFILL, THE HEIGHT OF THE CHAMBER JOINT SHALL NOT BE LESS THAN 2ò.


 TO ENSURE THE INTEGRITY OF THE ARCH SHAPE DURING INSTALLATION, a) THE ARCH STIFFNESS CONSTANT AS DEFINED IN SECTION 6.2.8 OF ASTM F2922 SHALL BE GREATER THAN OR EQUAL TO 400


LBS/IN/IN. AND b) TO RESIST CHAMBER DEFORMATION DURING INSTALLATION AT ELEVATED TEMPERATURES (ABOVE 73Á F / 23Á C), CHAMBERS SHALL BE PRODUCED FROM REFLECTIVE GOLD OR


YELLOW COLORS.


MATERIAL LOCATION DESCRIPTION


AASHTO  MATERIAL


CLASSIFICATIONS


COMPACTION / DENSITY REQUIREMENT


D


FINAL FILL: FILL MATERIAL FOR LAYER 'D' STARTS FROM THE TOP OF THE 'C'


LAYER TO THE BOTTOM OF FLEXIBLE PAVEMENT OR UNPAVED FINISHED


GRADE ABOVE. NOTE THAT PAVEMENT SUBBASE MAY BE PART OF THE 'D'


LAYER.


ANY SOIL/ROCK MATERIALS, NATIVE SOILS, OR PER ENGINEER'S PLANS.


CHECK PLANS FOR PAVEMENT SUBGRADE REQUIREMENTS.


N/A


PREPARE PER SITE DESIGN ENGINEER'S PLANS. PAVED


INSTALLATIONS MAY HAVE STRINGENT MATERIAL AND


PREPARATION REQUIREMENTS.


C


INITIAL FILL: FILL MATERIAL FOR LAYER 'C' STARTS FROM THE TOP OF THE


EMBEDMENT STONE ('B' LAYER) TO 18" (450 mm) ABOVE THE TOP OF THE


CHAMBER. NOTE THAT PAVEMENT SUBBASE MAY BE A PART OF THE 'C'


LAYER.


GRANULAR WELL-GRADED SOIL/AGGREGATE MIXTURES, <35% FINES OR


PROCESSED AGGREGATE.


 MOST PAVEMENT SUBBASE MATERIALS CAN BE USED IN LIEU OF THIS


LAYER.


AASHTO M145ĭ


A-1, A-2-4, A-3


OR


AASHTO M43ĭ


3, 357, 4, 467, 5, 56, 57, 6, 67, 68, 7, 78, 8, 89, 9, 10


BEGIN COMPACTIONS AFTER 12" (300 mm) OF MATERIAL OVER


THE CHAMBERS IS REACHED. COMPACT ADDITIONAL LAYERS IN


6" (150 mm) MAX LIFTS TO A MIN. 95% PROCTOR DENSITY FOR


WELL GRADED MATERIAL AND 95% RELATIVE DENSITY FOR


PROCESSED AGGREGATE MATERIALS. ROLLER GROSS


VEHICLE WEIGHT NOT TO EXCEED 12,000 lbs (53 kN). DYNAMIC


FORCE NOT TO EXCEED 20,000 lbs (89 kN).


B


EMBEDMENT STONE: FILL SURROUNDING THE CHAMBERS FROM THE


FOUNDATION STONE ('A' LAYER) TO THE 'C' LAYER ABOVE.


CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR STONE


AASHTO M43ĭ


3, 357, 4, 467, 5, 56, 57


NO COMPACTION REQUIRED.


A


FOUNDATION STONE: FILL BELOW CHAMBERS FROM THE SUBGRADE UP TO


THE FOOT (BOTTOM) OF THE CHAMBER.


CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR STONE


AASHTO M43ĭ


3, 357, 4, 467, 5, 56, 57


PLATE COMPACT OR ROLL TO ACHIEVE A FLAT SURFACE.


2,3


PAVEMENT LAYER (DESIGNED


BY SITE DESIGN ENGINEER)


D


C


B


A


18"


(450 mm) MIN*


8'


(2.4 m)


MAX


6" (150 mm)


MIN


12" (300 mm) MIN 12" (300 mm) TYP34" (865 mm)


6"


(150 mm) MIN


16"


(405 mm)


DEPTH OF STONE TO BE DETERMINED


BY SITE DESIGN ENGINEER 6" (150 mm) MIN


*TO BOTTOM OF FLEXIBLE PAVEMENT. FOR UNPAVED


INSTALLATIONS WHERE RUTTING FROM VEHICLES MAY


OCCUR, INCREASE COVER TO 24" (600 mm).


SUBGRADE SOILS


(SEE NOTE 4)


PERIMETER STONE


(SEE NOTE 5)


EXCAVATION WALL


(CAN BE SLOPED OR VERTICAL)


SC-310


END CAP


ADS GEOSYNTHETICS 601T NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE ALL


AROUND CLEAN, CRUSHED, ANGULAR STONE IN A & B LAYERS


5
2
0
 
C


R
O


M
W


E
L
L
 
A


V
E


N
U


E
R


O
C


K
Y


 
H


I
L
L


C
T


0
6
0
6
7


8
6
0


-
5


2
9


-
8


1
8


8
8


8
8


-
8


9
2


-
2
6


9
4


W
W


W
.
S


T
O


R
M


T
E


C
H


.
C


O
M


D
e


t
e


n
t
i
o
n


 
 
R


e
t
e


n
t
i
o


n
 
 
W


a
t
e
r
 
Q


u
a
l
i
t
y


A
D


V
A


N
C


E
D


 
D


R
A


I
N


A
G


E
 
S


Y
S


T
E


M
S


,
 
I
N


C
.


R







T
H


I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
H


A
S


 
B


E
E


N
 
P


R
E


P
A


R
E


D
 
B


A
S


E
D


 
O


N
 
I
N


F
O


R
M


A
T


I
O


N
 
P


R
O


V
I
D


E
D


 
T


O
 
A


D
S


 
U


N
D


E
R


 
T


H
E


 
D


I
R


E
C


T
I
O


N
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
O


R
 
O


T
H


E
R


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
P


R
E


S
E


N
T


A
T


I
V


E
.
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
S


H
A


L
L


 
R


E
V


I
E


W
 
T


H
I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
P


R
I
O


R
 
T


O
 
C


O
N


S
T


R
U


C
T


I
O


N
.
 
I
T


 
I
S


 
T


H
E


 
U


L
T


I
M


A
T


E
 


R
E


S
P


O
N


S
I
B


I
L


I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
T


O
 
E


N
S


U
R


E
 
T


H
A


T
 
T


H
E


 
P


R
O


D
U


C
T


(
S


)
 
D


E
P


I
C


T
E


D
 
A


N
D


 
A


L
L


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


D
 
D


E
T


A
I
L
S


 
M


E
E


T
 
A


L
L


 
A


P
P


L
I
C


A
B


L
E


 
L


A
W


S
,
 
R


E
G


U
L
A


T
I
O


N
S


,
 
A


N
D


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
Q


U
I
R


E
M


E
N


T
S


.


4
6
4


0
 
T


R
U


E
M


A
N


 
B


L
V


D


H
I
L
L
I
A


R
D


,
 
O


H
 
 
4
3
0
2


6


1
-
8
0
0


-
7
3
3
-
7
4
7


3


R
E


V
D


R
W


C
H


K
D


E
S


C
R


I
P


T
I
O


N


7
0
0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


D
A


T
E


:
 


D
R


A
W


N
:
 
B


A


P
R


O
J
E


C
T


 
#
:
 


C
H


E
C


K
E


D
:
 
N


/
A


SHEET


OF4 6


INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE


STEP 1) INSPECT ISOLATOR ROW FOR SEDIMENT


A. INSPECTION PORTS (IF PRESENT)


A.1. REMOVE/OPEN LID  ON NYLOPLAST INLINE DRAIN


A.2. REMOVE AND CLEAN FLEXSTORM FILTER IF INSTALLED


A.3. USING A FLASHLIGHT AND STADIA ROD, MEASURE DEPTH OF SEDIMENT AND RECORD ON MAINTENANCE LOG


A.4. LOWER A CAMERA INTO ISOLATOR ROW FOR VISUAL INSPECTION OF SEDIMENT LEVELS (OPTIONAL)


A.5. IF SEDIMENT IS AT, OR ABOVE, 3" (80 mm) PROCEED TO STEP 2. IF NOT, PROCEED TO STEP 3.


B. ALL ISOLATOR ROWS


B.1. REMOVE COVER FROM STRUCTURE AT UPSTREAM END OF ISOLATOR ROW


B.2. USING A FLASHLIGHT, INSPECT DOWN THE ISOLATOR ROW THROUGH OUTLET PIPE


i) MIRRORS ON POLES OR CAMERAS MAY BE USED TO AVOID A CONFINED SPACE ENTRY


ii) FOLLOW OSHA REGULATIONS FOR CONFINED SPACE ENTRY IF ENTERING MANHOLE


B.3. IF SEDIMENT IS AT, OR ABOVE, 3" (80 mm) PROCEED TO STEP 2. IF NOT, PROCEED TO STEP 3.


STEP 2) CLEAN OUT ISOLATOR ROW USING THE JETVAC PROCESS


A. A FIXED CULVERT CLEANING NOZZLE WITH REAR FACING SPREAD OF 45" (1.1 m) OR MORE IS PREFERRED


B. APPLY MULTIPLE PASSES OF JETVAC UNTIL BACKFLUSH WATER IS CLEAN


C. VACUUM STRUCTURE SUMP AS REQUIRED


STEP 3) REPLACE ALL COVERS, GRATES, FILTERS, AND LIDS; RECORD OBSERVATIONS AND ACTIONS.


STEP 4) INSPECT AND CLEAN BASINS AND MANHOLES UPSTREAM OF THE STORMTECH SYSTEM.


NOTES


1. INSPECT EVERY 6 MONTHS DURING THE FIRST YEAR OF OPERATION. ADJUST THE INSPECTION INTERVAL BASED ON PREVIOUS


OBSERVATIONS OF SEDIMENT ACCUMULATION AND HIGH WATER ELEVATIONS.


2. CONDUCT JETTING AND VACTORING ANNUALLY OR WHEN INSPECTION SHOWS THAT MAINTENANCE IS NECESSARY.


SUMP DEPTH TBD BY


SITE DESIGN ENGINEER


(24" [600 mm] MIN RECOMMENDED)


CATCH BASIN


OR


MANHOLE


SC-310 ISOLATOR ROW DETAIL


NTS


STORMTECH HIGHLY RECOMMENDS


FLEXSTORM PURE INSERTS IN ANY UPSTREAM


STRUCTURES WITH OPEN GRATES


SC-310 CHAMBER


12" (300 mm) HDPE ACCESS PIPE REQUIRED


USE FACTORY PRE-FABRICATED END CAP


PART #: SC310EPE12B


SC-310 END CAP


OPTIONAL INSPECTION PORT


COVER ENTIRE ISOLATOR ROW WITH ADS


GEOSYNTHETICS 601T NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE


5' (1.5 m) MIN WIDE


TWO LAYERS OF ADS GEOSYNTHETICS 315WTK WOVEN


GEOTEXTILE BETWEEN FOUNDATION STONE AND CHAMBERS


4' (1.2 m) MIN WIDE CONTINUOUS FABRIC WITHOUT SEAMS


5
2
0
 
C


R
O


M
W


E
L
L
 
A


V
E


N
U


E
R


O
C


K
Y


 
H


I
L
L


C
T


0
6
0
6
7


8
6
0


-
5


2
9


-
8


1
8


8
8


8
8


-
8


9
2


-
2
6


9
4


W
W


W
.
S


T
O


R
M


T
E


C
H


.
C


O
M


D
e


t
e


n
t
i
o
n


 
 
R


e
t
e


n
t
i
o


n
 
 
W


a
t
e
r
 
Q


u
a
l
i
t
y


A
D


V
A


N
C


E
D


 
D


R
A


I
N


A
G


E
 
S


Y
S


T
E


M
S


,
 
I
N


C
.


R







T
H


I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
H


A
S


 
B


E
E


N
 
P


R
E


P
A


R
E


D
 
B


A
S


E
D


 
O


N
 
I
N


F
O


R
M


A
T


I
O


N
 
P


R
O


V
I
D


E
D


 
T


O
 
A


D
S


 
U


N
D


E
R


 
T


H
E


 
D


I
R


E
C


T
I
O


N
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
O


R
 
O


T
H


E
R


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
P


R
E


S
E


N
T


A
T


I
V


E
.
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
S


H
A


L
L


 
R


E
V


I
E


W
 
T


H
I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
P


R
I
O


R
 
T


O
 
C


O
N


S
T


R
U


C
T


I
O


N
.
 
I
T


 
I
S


 
T


H
E


 
U


L
T


I
M


A
T


E
 


R
E


S
P


O
N


S
I
B


I
L


I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
T


O
 
E


N
S


U
R


E
 
T


H
A


T
 
T


H
E


 
P


R
O


D
U


C
T


(
S


)
 
D


E
P


I
C


T
E


D
 
A


N
D


 
A


L
L


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


D
 
D


E
T


A
I
L
S


 
M


E
E


T
 
A


L
L


 
A


P
P


L
I
C


A
B


L
E


 
L


A
W


S
,
 
R


E
G


U
L
A


T
I
O


N
S


,
 
A


N
D


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
Q


U
I
R


E
M


E
N


T
S


.


4
6
4


0
 
T


R
U


E
M


A
N


 
B


L
V


D


H
I
L
L
I
A


R
D


,
 
O


H
 
 
4
3
0
2


6


1
-
8
0
0


-
7
3
3
-
7
4
7


3


R
E


V
D


R
W


C
H


K
D


E
S


C
R


I
P


T
I
O


N


7
0
0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


D
A


T
E


:
 


D
R


A
W


N
:
 
B


A


P
R


O
J
E


C
T


 
#
:
 


C
H


E
C


K
E


D
:
 
N


/
A


SHEET


OF5 6


UNDERDRAIN DETAIL


NTS


A


A


B B


SECTION A-A


SECTION B-B


FOUNDATION STONE


BENEATH CHAMBERS


FOUNDATION STONE


BENEATH CHAMBERS


DUAL WALL


PERFORATED


HDPE


UNDERDRAIN


ADS GEOSYNTHETICS 601T


NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE


STORMTECH END CAP


ADS GEOSYNTHETICS 601T


NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE


STORMTECH


CHAMBER


OUTLET MANIFOLD


STORMTECH END CAP


STORMTECH


CHAMBERS


NUMBER AND SIZE OF UNDERDRAINS PER SITE DESIGN ENGINEER


4" (100 mm) TYP FOR SC-310 & SC-160LP SYSTEMS


6" (150 mm) TYP FOR SC-740, DC-780, MC-3500 & MC-4500 SYSTEMS


PART # STUB A B C


SC310EPE06T / SC310EPE06TPC


6" (150 mm) 9.6" (244 mm)


5.8" (147 mm)


---


SC310EPE06B / SC310EPE06BPC ---


0.5" (13 mm)


SC310EPE08T / SC310EPE08TPC


8" (200 mm) 11.9" (302 mm)


3.5" (89 mm)


---


SC310EPE08B / SC310EPE08BPC ---


0.6" (15 mm)


SC310EPE10T / SC310EPE10TPC


10" (250 mm) 12.7" (323 mm)


1.4" (36 mm)


---


SC310EPE10B / SC310EPE10BPC ---


0.7" (18 mm)


SC310EPE12B


12" (300 mm) 13.5" (343 mm)


---


0.9" (23 mm)


ALL STUBS, EXCEPT FOR THE SC310EPE12B ARE PLACED AT BOTTOM OF END CAP SUCH THAT THE OUTSIDE DIAMETER OF


THE STUB IS FLUSH WITH THE BOTTOM OF THE END CAP. FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONTACT STORMTECH AT


1-888-892-2694.


* FOR THE SC310EPE12B THE 12" (300 mm) STUB LIES BELOW THE BOTTOM OF THE END CAP APPROXIMATELY 0.25" (6 mm).


BACKFILL MATERIAL SHOULD BE REMOVED FROM BELOW THE N-12 STUB SO THAT THE FITTING SITS LEVEL.


NOTE: ALL DIMENSIONS ARE NOMINAL


NOMINAL CHAMBER SPECIFICATIONS


SIZE (W X H X INSTALLED LENGTH) 34.0" X 16.0" X 85.4" (864 mm X 406 mm X 2169 mm)


CHAMBER STORAGE 14.7 CUBIC FEET (0.42 mį)


MINIMUM INSTALLED STORAGE* 31.0 CUBIC FEET (0.88 mį)


WEIGHT 35.0 lbs. (16.8 kg)


*ASSUMES 6" (152 mm) ABOVE, BELOW, AND BETWEEN CHAMBERS


STUBS AT BOTTOM OF END CAP FOR PART NUMBERS ENDING WITH "B"


STUBS AT TOP OF END CAP FOR PART NUMBERS ENDING WITH "T"


34.0"


(864 mm)


16.0"


(406 mm)


90.7" (2304 mm) ACTUAL LENGTH 85.4" (2169 mm) INSTALLED LENGTH


BUILD ROW IN THIS DIRECTION


A A


B C


SC-310 TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION


NTS


9.9"


(251 mm)


15.6"


(396 mm)


OVERLAP NEXT CHAMBER HERE


(OVER SMALL CORRUGATION)


START END


5
2
0
 
C


R
O


M
W


E
L
L
 
A


V
E


N
U


E
R


O
C


K
Y


 
H


I
L
L


C
T


0
6
0
6
7


8
6
0


-
5


2
9


-
8


1
8


8
8


8
8


-
8


9
2


-
2
6


9
4


W
W


W
.
S


T
O


R
M


T
E


C
H


.
C


O
M


D
e


t
e


n
t
i
o
n


 
 
R


e
t
e


n
t
i
o


n
 
 
W


a
t
e
r
 
Q


u
a
l
i
t
y


A
D


V
A


N
C


E
D


 
D


R
A


I
N


A
G


E
 
S


Y
S


T
E


M
S


,
 
I
N


C
.


R







T
H


I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
H


A
S


 
B


E
E


N
 
P


R
E


P
A


R
E


D
 
B


A
S


E
D


 
O


N
 
I
N


F
O


R
M


A
T


I
O


N
 
P


R
O


V
I
D


E
D


 
T


O
 
A


D
S


 
U


N
D


E
R


 
T


H
E


 
D


I
R


E
C


T
I
O


N
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
O


R
 
O


T
H


E
R


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
P


R
E


S
E


N
T


A
T


I
V


E
.
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
S


H
A


L
L


 
R


E
V


I
E


W
 
T


H
I
S


 
D


R
A


W
I
N


G
 
P


R
I
O


R
 
T


O
 
C


O
N


S
T


R
U


C
T


I
O


N
.
 
I
T


 
I
S


 
T


H
E


 
U


L
T


I
M


A
T


E
 


R
E


S
P


O
N


S
I
B


I
L


I
T


Y
 
O


F
 
T


H
E


 
S


I
T


E
 
D


E
S


I
G


N
 
E


N
G


I
N


E
E


R
 
T


O
 
E


N
S


U
R


E
 
T


H
A


T
 
T


H
E


 
P


R
O


D
U


C
T


(
S


)
 
D


E
P


I
C


T
E


D
 
A


N
D


 
A


L
L


 
A


S
S


O
C


I
A


T
E


D
 
D


E
T


A
I
L
S


 
M


E
E


T
 
A


L
L


 
A


P
P


L
I
C


A
B


L
E


 
L


A
W


S
,
 
R


E
G


U
L
A


T
I
O


N
S


,
 
A


N
D


 
P


R
O


J
E


C
T


 
R


E
Q


U
I
R


E
M


E
N


T
S


.


4
6
4


0
 
T


R
U


E
M


A
N


 
B


L
V


D


H
I
L
L
I
A


R
D


,
 
O


H
 
 
4
3
0
2


6


1
-
8
0
0


-
7
3
3
-
7
4
7


3


R
E


V
D


R
W


C
H


K
D


E
S


C
R


I
P


T
I
O


N


7
0
0
 
N


Y
G


A
A


R
D


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
,
 
W


I


D
A


T
E


:
 


D
R


A
W


N
:
 
B


A


P
R


O
J
E


C
T


 
#
:
 


C
H


E
C


K
E


D
:
 
N


/
A


SHEET


OF6 6


A


18" (457 mm)


MIN WIDTH


AASHTO H-20 CONCRETE SLAB


8" (203 mm) MIN THICKNESS


VARIABLE SUMP DEPTH


ACCORDING TO PLANS


[6" (152 mm) MIN ON 8-24" (200-600 mm),


10" (254 mm) MIN ON 30" (750 mm)]


4" (102 mm) MIN ON 8-24" (200-600 mm)


6" (152 mm) MIN ON 30" (750 mm)


12" (610 mm) MIN


(FOR AASHTO H-20)


INVERT ACCORDING TO


PLANS/TAKE OFF


NYLOPLAST DRAIN BASIN


NTS


NOTES


1. 8-30" (200-750 mm) GRATES/SOLID COVERS SHALL BE DUCTILE IRON PER ASTM A536


GRADE 70-50-05


2. 12-30" (300-750 mm) FRAMES SHALL BE DUCTILE IRON PER ASTM A536 GRADE 70-50-05


3. DRAIN BASIN TO BE CUSTOM MANUFACTURED ACCORDING TO PLAN DETAILS


4. DRAINAGE CONNECTION STUB JOINT TIGHTNESS SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM D3212


FOR CORRUGATED HDPE (ADS & HANCOR DUAL WALL) & SDR 35 PVC


5. FOR COMPLETE DESIGN AND PRODUCT INFORMATION:  WWW.NYLOPLAST-US.COM


6. TO ORDER CALL:  800-821-6710


A PART # GRATE/SOLID COVER OPTIONS


8"


(200 mm)


2808AG


PEDESTRIAN LIGHT


DUTY


STANDARD LIGHT


DUTY


SOLID LIGHT DUTY


10"


(250 mm)


2810AG


PEDESTRIAN LIGHT


DUTY


STANDARD LIGHT


DUTY


SOLID LIGHT DUTY


12"


(300 mm)


2812AG


PEDESTRIAN


AASHTO H-10


STANDARD AASHTO


H-20


SOLID


AASHTO H-20


15"


(375 mm)


2815AG


PEDESTRIAN


AASHTO H-10


STANDARD AASHTO


H-20


SOLID


AASHTO H-20


18"


(450 mm)


2818AG


PEDESTRIAN


AASHTO H-10


STANDARD AASHTO


H-20


SOLID


AASHTO H-20


24"


(600 mm)


2824AG


PEDESTRIAN


AASHTO H-10


STANDARD AASHTO


H-20


SOLID


AASHTO H-20


30"


(750 mm)


2830AG


PEDESTRIAN


AASHTO H-20


STANDARD AASHTO


H-20


SOLID


AASHTO H-20


INTEGRATED DUCTILE IRON


FRAME & GRATE/SOLID TO


MATCH BASIN O.D.


VARIOUS TYPES OF INLET AND


OUTLET ADAPTERS AVAILABLE:


4-30" (100-750 mm) FOR


CORRUGATED HDPE


WATERTIGHT JOINT


(CORRUGATED HDPE SHOWN)


BACKFILL MATERIAL BELOW AND TO SIDES


OF STRUCTURE SHALL BE ASTM D2321


CLASS I OR II CRUSHED STONE OR GRAVEL


AND BE PLACED UNIFORMLY IN 12" (305 mm)


LIFTS AND COMPACTED TO MIN OF 90%


TRAFFIC LOADS: CONCRETE DIMENSIONS


ARE FOR GUIDELINE PUPOSES ONLY.


ACTUAL CONCRETE SLAB MUST BE


DESIGNED GIVING CONSIDERATION FOR


LOCAL SOIL CONDITIONS, TRAFFIC LOADING


& OTHER APPLICABLE DESIGN FACTORS


ADAPTER ANGLES VARIABLE 0Á- 360Á


ACCORDING TO PLANS


3
1
3


0
 
V


E
R


O
N


A
 
A


V
E


B
U


F
O


R
D


,
 
G


A
 
3


0
5


1
8


P
H


N
 
(
7


7
0


)
 
9


3
2
-
2
4


4
3


F
A


X
 
(
7
7


0
)
 
9
3


2
-
2


4
9


0


w
w


w
.
n
y
l
o
p


l
a
s
t
-
u


s
.
c
o
m


®
A


D
V


A
N


C
E


D
 
D


R
A


I
N


A
G


E
 
S


Y
S


T
E


M
S


,
 
I
N


C
.


R











7
0


0
 N


y
g


a
a
r
d


 S
tr


e
e
t


 
S


to
u


g
h


to
n


, 
W


I


Designer


S. Schoenberger


Date


5/15/2020


Scale


Not to Scale


Drawing No.


8:12 AM


Summary


1 of 1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.3


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.6


0.8


0.6


0.3


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.4


1.2


1.5


1.0


0.5


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.8


1.9


2.2


1.4


0.6


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.3


0.3


0.4


1.2


2.8


2.9


1.7


0.6


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.5


0.7


1.7


3.9


3.6


2.1


0.6


0.1


0.1


0.3


0.4


0.8


0.9


2.4


5.4


4.4


2.1


0.5


0.1


0.3


0.5


0.9


1.1


2.9


6.0


4.2


2.3


0.4


0.1


0.2


0.4


1.0


1.5


3.2


6.1


4.6


2.3


0.4


0.2


0.3


0.5


1.0


1.5


3.6


6.3


4.4


2.1


0.3


0.1


0.4


0.6


1.0


1.3


4.0


6.1


3.7


1.7


0.3


0.1


0.3


0.6


0.9


1.1


4.1


5.6


3.2


1.4


0.3


0.1


0.3


0.5


0.7


1.0


3.5


4.4


2.9


1.0


0.2


0.1


0.3


0.4


0.5


1.2


2.9


3.5


2.3


0.9


0.2


0.1


0.2


0.4


0.5


1.1


2.4


2.7


1.7


0.7


0.2


0.1


0.3


0.5


0.7


1.1


2.0


2.0


1.2


0.6


0.2


0.1


0.4


0.7


1.0


1.2


1.5


1.4


0.9


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.7


1.0


1.5


1.3


1.3


1.0


0.6


0.3


0.1


0.1


1.0


1.6


2.2


1.8


1.5


1.0


0.5


0.3


0.1


0.1


1.2


2.2


2.7


2.4


1.7


1.0


0.5


0.2


0.1


0.1


2.0


2.4


3.3


2.7


1.7


0.9


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.1


2.0


2.4


3.3


2.6


1.7


0.9


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.1


2.0


2.4


3.3


2.6


1.7


0.9


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.1


1.9


2.4


3.3


2.7


1.7


0.9


0.4


0.2


0.1


0.1


1.4


2.4


2.9


2.6


1.7


1.0


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.1


1.3


2.0


2.7


2.1


1.6


1.0


0.5


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.9


1.4


1.9


1.6


1.2


0.9


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.6


1.0


1.4


1.3


1.0


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.9


1.2


1.2


1.0


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.9


1.1


1.2


1.1


1.1


1.1


1.0


0.7


0.4


0.1


1.0


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.3


1.0


0.5


0.3


0.1


1.4


2.0


1.9


1.8


1.7


1.3


0.8


0.5


0.2


2.0


3.1


2.8


2.5


2.0


1.3


0.8


0.4


0.2


1.9


4.2


3.5


3.3


2.5


1.5


0.9


0.4


0.2


2.1


5.7


4.5


4.3


3.1


1.8


0.9


0.5


0.2


1.8


4.8


4.5


3.4


1.8


0.9


0.5


0.2


0.2


0.6


0.3


0.4


0.2


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


6.4


D-R @ 16'


E @ 16'


F @ 16'


Plan View
Scale - 1" = 20ft


Schedule


Symbol Label Image QTY Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number
Lamps


Filename


Lumens


per


Lamp


Lumen


Multiplie


r


LLF Wattage Efficiency
Distribut


ion
Polar Plot Notes


D-R


1 Lithonia


Lighting


DSX0 LED P2 40K RCCO


MVOLT


DSX0 LED P2 40K RCCO MVOLT LED 1 DSX0_LED_P2_


40K_RCCO_MV


OLT.ies


3664 1 0.9 49 100% TYPE IV,


MEDIUM,


BUG


RATING:


B1 - U0 -


G2


E


1 Lithonia


Lighting


DSX0 LED P2 40K T1S


MVOLT


DSX0 LED P2 40K T1S MVOLT LED 1 DSX0_LED_P2_


40K_T1S_MVOL


T.ies


6000 1 0.9 49 100% TYPE II,


SHORT,


BUG


RATING:


B1 - U0 -


G1


F


1 Lithonia


Lighting


DSX0 LED P1 40K BLC


MVOLT


DSX0 LED P1 40K BLC MVOLT LED 1 DSX0_LED_P1_


40K_BLC_MVOL


T.ies


3862 1 0.9 38 100% TYPE III,


SHORT,


BUG


RATING:


B1 - U0 -


G1


Statistics


Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min


700 Nygaard


Street
0.8 fc 6.4 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A







W


REF.


W


W


R
E
F
.


R
E
F
.


R
E
F
.


W


2 Bedroom Apt.


1291 sf


2ND FL. LOBBY


2 Bedroom Apt.


1252 SF


2 Bedroom Apt.


1157 S


STAIR #1
UP


UP


stair #2


DOWN


DOWN


20
' -


 6
"


20
' -


 0
"


63' - 0" 15' - 1" 66' - 11"


147' - 0"


7' - 4" 67' - 11"


MECH.


Elevator


LIVING
BR #1


Closet


BR #2


21
' -


 3
"


21
' -


 3
"


21
' -


 6
"


Dining


KITCHEN


67' - 9"


LIVING
BR #1


BR #2D
in


in
g


2 Bedroom Apt.


1340 sf


LIVING D
in


in
g


LIVING
BR #1


BR #2


D
in


in
g


D
in


in
g


BR #1


BR #2


6515 Grand Teton Plaza,    Suite 120,    Madison, Wisconsin    53719
p608.829.4444            f608.829.4445           dimensionivmadison.com


MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT


700 Nygaard St., Stoughton, WI 53589


16069


21 MAY 2020


Upper Levels Floor Plan


1/8" = 1'-0"
1


02 SECOND/THIRD FLOOR PLAN


0' 4' 8'2'
NORTH







210' - 0"


N
Y


G
A


A
R


D
 S


T
R


E
E


T


8


COMMERCIAL


700 SF


20' - 6"147' - 0"


18
' -


 0
"


Parking Entry


42' - 6"


P
R


O
P


E
R


T
Y


 L
IN


E


20
 F


T
. 


F
R


O
N


T
 S


E
T


B
A


C
K


42
  


F
T


. 
R


E
A


R
 B


U
IL


D
IN


G
  


S
E


T
B


A
C


K
,


D
O


C
. 


N
O


. 
26


40
07


2


P
R


O
P


E
R


T
Y


 L
IN


E
  


  
  1


00
.0


7 
 F


T
.


10
' -


 0
"


42' - 0"


5 FT.  PAVING SETBACK


10 FT.  BUILDING SETBACK


10 FT.  BUILDING SETBACK


5 FT.  PAVING SETBACK


B
U


IL
D


IN
G


 S
E


T
B


A
C


K
 -


20
 F


T
.


F
R


O
N


T
 P


A
V


IN
G


  
S


E
T


B
A


C
K


 -
10


 F
T


.


24
' -


 0
"


25' - 6"


42
' -


 6
"


10 11 12 13 14 1615


EDGE OF
OVERHANG
ABOVE


17 18


Elevatorstair #1


UP


22


2
1


3
4


6
5


24' - 0"


19


UP


STAIR #2


9


21


21
' -


 6
"


8' - 0"


TWO
INVERTED-"U" 


BICYCLE
PARKING


6' - 0"


MECH.


8' - 0"


2' - 0"


CURB EDGE


5'
 - 


0"3'
 - 


0"


10
' -


 0
"


63' - 0"


2BR Apt.
940 SF


REQUIRED 
CLEAR WIDTH
63' -0"
DOUBLE LOADED
STALLS PER
STOUGHTON 
CODE


LOBBY


36' - 11 3/4"


Kitchen
LR


Bath


8'
 -


 0
"


8'
 -


 0
"


8' - 0"8' - 0"BOLLARD


20


2' - 5 3/4"


TRASH 
ENCLOSURE


BR 2


Bath


DR


6515 Grand Teton Plaza,    Suite 120,    Madison, Wisconsin    53719
p608.829.4444            f608.829.4445           dimensionivmadison.com


MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT


700 Nygaard St., Stoughton, WI 53589


16069


21 MAY 2020


Architectural Site Plan/Ground Floor Plan


1/8" = 1'-0"
1


01-FIRST FLOOR PLAN/ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN
0' 4' 8'2'


NORTH







6515 Grand Teton Plaza,    Suite 120,    Madison, Wisconsin    53719
p608.829.4444            f608.829.4445           dimensionivmadison.com


MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT


700 Nygaard St., Stoughton, WI 53589


16069


22 MAY 2020


Exterior View to NW


Perspective View to NW







46
' -


 0
"


12
' -


 0
"


11
' -


 0
"


Asphalt Shingle Roof


Vinyl Shingle Siding


Vinyl Trim


Vinyl Lap Siding & Trim


Vinyl Lap Siding


Vinyl Siding & Trim
Overhead Door to Parking


Vinyl Trim
& Siding


Vinyl Windows, Typical


Split Face CMU
Dumpster Enclosure in Foreground


Residential Entry


41
' -


 0
"


7'
 -


 0
"


11
' -


 0
"


Asphalt Shingle Roof
Vinyl Shingle Siding
Vinyl Trim


Vinyl Lap Siding & TrimVinyl Lap Siding


Vinyl Siding &Trim Vinyl Trim


Vinyl Windows, Typical


Canopy
Vinyl Lap Siding


46
' -


 0
"


12
' -


 0
"


11
' -


 0
"


F
lr/


F
lr


F
lr/


F
lr


Residential Entry 


6515 Grand Teton Plaza,    Suite 120,    Madison, Wisconsin    53719
p608.829.4444            f608.829.4445           dimensionivmadison.com


MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT


700 Nygaard St., Stoughton, WI 53589


16069


22 MAY 2020


Elevations 1


1/8" = 1'-0"
1


ELEVATION - SOUTH


1/8" = 1'-0"
2


ELEVATION - NORTH


0' 4' 8'2'







46
' -


 0
"


12
' -


 0
"


11
' -


 0
"


Vinyl Shingle Siding


Vinyl Lap Siding


Vinyl Trim


Vinyl Windows, Typical


Aluminum Storefront


41
' -


 0
"


7'
 -


 0
"


11
' -


 0
"


Vinyl Shingle Siding


Vinyl Lap Siding


Vinyl Sidin & Trim


Vinyl Windows, Typical


6515 Grand Teton Plaza,    Suite 120,    Madison, Wisconsin    53719
p608.829.4444            f608.829.4445           dimensionivmadison.com


MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT


700 Nygaard St., Stoughton, WI 53589


16069


22 May 2020


Elevations 2


1/8" = 1'-0"
1


ELEVATION - EAST
1/8" = 1'-0"


2
ELEVATION - WEST


0' 4' 8'2'







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\700 Nygaard Street\Multi Use Building Resubmittals 5.26.20\700 Nygaard Multi-Use Building Review 5-26-20.docx 


 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 


 
 


May 29, 2020 


Jim Hess 
700 Nygaard Street 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
 
Dear Mr. Hess: 
 
I have completed a review of the proposed multi-use building at 700 Nygaard Street, Lot 24 
Dvorak’s Addition - Plans received 5/26/2020.  As noted, additional information may be 
required to be provided or shown on the plan.   
 
1. The property at 700 Nygaard Street is zoned PB – Planned Business.  This proposal is for 


nine (9) residential units and two (2) commercial main floor units including underground 
parking.  Upper story dwelling units and dwelling units on the main floor are allowable 
as a conditional use as long as the residential use is not within the first 24 feet of 
building depth on the main floor from the front of the building.  The first 24 feet of 
building depth must be a commercial, office or institutional land use.  A public hearing 
is scheduled for the June 8, 2020 Plan Commission meeting.  The Plan Commission 
sends a recommendation to the Common Council.  We expect the Common Council to 
act on this conditional use request on June 23, 2020.  Site plan approval is also 
necessary by the Plan Commission.   
  


2. Ordinance section 78-905(5)(c) provides the following criteria which the Zoning 
Administrator may use to evaluate the conditional use application to determine whether the 
request is in harmony with the recommendations of the Comprehensive Plan: 


a) Is the proposed conditional use (the use in general, independent of its location) in 
harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of 
Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, this chapter, and any other plan, program, or 
ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city?   
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the goals, objectives and 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 


b) Is the proposed conditional use (in its specific location) in harmony with the 
purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\700 Nygaard Street\Multi Use Building Resubmittals 5.26.20\700 Nygaard Multi-Use Building Review 5-26-20.docx 


 


comprehensive plan, this chapter, and any other plan, program, or ordinance 
adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the city?  
We believe the conditional use is consistent with the goals, objectives and 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 


c) Does the proposed conditional use, in its proposed location and as depicted on the 
required site plan (see subsection (4)(d), above), result in a substantial or undue 
adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 
environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property 
or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general 
welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result 
of the implementation of the provisions of this chapter, the comprehensive plan, or 
any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant 
to official notice by the city or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to 
guide development?  We do not see any substantial or major adverse impacts 
related to the residential and commercial use and we have not received any 
complaints from neighboring property owners related to this request. 


d) Does the proposed conditional use maintain the desired consistency of land uses, 
land use intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject 
property?  The use is consistent with the Planned Business zoning classification.     


e) Is the proposed conditional use located in an area that will be adequately served by, 
and will not impose an undue burden on, any of the improvements, facilities, utilities 
or services provided by public agencies serving the subject property?  The use 
should not impose a burden on utilities or services.   


f) Do the potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all 
potential adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use (as identified in 
subsections 1. through 5., above), after taking into consideration the applicant's 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such 
impacts? No adverse impacts have been identified. 
 


3. Site plan review and approval procedural requirements per zoning section 78-908 are as 
follows: 


A. Written description of the intended use per zoning section 78-908(3) (a) 1-12. 
Provided 


B. Property site drawing per section 78-908(3) (c) 1-17. Provided 
C. A detailed landscaping plan of the subject property showing location of all required 


bufferyard and landscaping areas in complete compliance with the requirements of 
Article VI.  Provided 


D. A grading and erosion control plan showing existing and proposed grades. Provided  
E. Elevation drawings of proposed buildings.  Provided 
F. A detailed photometric plan with an illumination limit of 0.5 foot-candles at the 


property line.  The plan must meet the requirements of section 78-707(4) (b).  
Provided 


G. A development impact study is required for all forms of development that require site 
plan approval.  Historically only required for large developments. 







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\700 Nygaard Street\Multi Use Building Resubmittals 5.26.20\700 Nygaard Multi-Use Building Review 5-26-20.docx 


 


H. A detailed site analysis shall be required for any lot containing a protected natural 
resource covered in Article V, as determined by city staff.  These protected areas 
include floodplains, shoreland-wetlands, lakeshores, woodlands, and steep slopes.  
The analysis must be submitted in accordance with section 78-908((3) (j) 1-4.  N/A 


I. Review by the plan commission in accordance with section 78-908(4) (a)-(b).  
1. The plan commission, in its consideration of the submitted complete application, 


shall take into account the basic intent of the zoning ordinance to ensure 
attractive, efficient, and appropriate development of land in the community, and 
to ensure particularly that every reasonable step has been taken to avoid 
depreciating effects on surrounding property and the natural environment. The 
plan commission, in reviewing the application may require such additional 
measures and/or modifications, as it deems necessary to accomplish this 
objective. If such additional measures and/or modifications are required, the 
plan commission may withhold approval of the site plan until revisions 
depicting such additional measures and/or modifications are submitted to the 
satisfaction of the plan commission, or may approve the application subject to 
the provision of a revised application reflecting the direction of the plan 
commission to the satisfaction of the zoning administrator. Such amended plans 
and conditions applicable to the proposed use shall be made a part of the official 
record, and development activity on the subject property may not proceed until 
the revised application has been approved by one of the two above procedures 
as directed by the plan commission.  To be determined by the Plan 
Commission. 


2. In reviewing said application the plan commission may make findings on each 
of the following criteria to determine whether the submitted site plan shall be 
approved, approved with modification, or denied:  
a. All standards of the zoning ordinance and other applicable city, state and 


federal regulations are met.  
  b. The public health and safety is not endangered. 
  c. Adequate public facilities and utilities are provided. 


d. Adequate control of stormwater and erosion are provided and the 
disruption of existing topography, drainage patterns, and vegetative cover 
is maintained insofar as is practical.  


  e. Appropriate traffic control and parking are provided. 
  f. Appropriate landscaping and open space areas are provided. 


g. The appearance of structures maintains a consistency of design, materials, 
colors, and arrangement with nearby properties of similar use, which 
comply with the general architectural guidelines provided in subsections a. 
through e. below:  
i. Exterior construction materials shall be consistent with section 78-


716.   
ii. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be of such 


unorthodox or abnormal character in relation to its surroundings as 







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\700 Nygaard Street\Multi Use Building Resubmittals 5.26.20\700 Nygaard Multi-Use Building Review 5-26-20.docx 


 


to be unsightly or offensive to generally accepted taste and 
community standards.  


iii. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be so identical with 
nearby buildings so as to create excessive monotony or drabness. A 
minimum of five basic home styles shall be provided in each 
residential subdivision.  


iv. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be constructed or 
faced with an exterior material which is aesthetically incompatible 
with other nearby buildings or which presents an unattractive 
appearance to the public and from surrounding properties.  


v. Exterior building, sign, and lighting design or appearance shall not 
be sited on the property in a manner which would unnecessarily 
 destroy or substantially damage the natural beauty of the area.  


To be determined by the Plan Commission.  The building exterior 
shall employ high quality, decorative construction materials. 


J. Modification of approved site plan is a violation of chapter 78.  An approved site plan 
shall be revised and approved via the procedures of sections 78-908(2) & (4) prior to 
initiation.    


K. Sunset clause.  All buildings on an approved site plan not fully developed within two 
years of final approval shall expire.  The plan commission may extend this period, as 
requested by the applicant, through site review process.  


 
3. The uses proposed are Personal or Professional Services and/or Office which are all 


permitted by right and defined as follows:   
 
Personal service and professional service land uses include all exclusively indoor land uses 
whose primary function is the provision of services directly to an individual on a walk-in or 
on-appointment basis. Examples of such uses include professional services, insurance or 
financial services, realty offices, medical offices and clinics, veterinary clinics, barber 
shops, beauty shops, and related land uses.   
 
Office land uses include all exclusively indoor land uses whose primary functions are the 
handling of information or administrative services. Such land uses do not typically provide 
services directly to customers on a walk-in or on-appointment basis. 
 


4. The proposed accessory use is upper story dwelling units which is defined as follows:  
Upper story dwelling units are dwelling units which are located directly above the ground 
floor of a building used for an office, commercial, or institutional land use (as designated in 
subsection (4), above). Residential uses will be permitted on the ground floor of a building 
used for an office, commercial, or institutional land use, but may not be within the first 24 
feet of the ground floor measured from the front of the building.  The proposed uses meet 
these requirements. 
 
 







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\700 Nygaard Street\Multi Use Building Resubmittals 5.26.20\700 Nygaard Multi-Use Building Review 5-26-20.docx 


 


5. The parking requirement for office and personal and professional service uses is one space 
per 300 square feet of gross floor area.  It appears there will be 700 square feet of 
commercial space on the main floor.  The parking requirement for the commercial 
space is 3 stalls. 


 
6. Regulations applicable to upper story dwelling units are: 


• The gross floor area devoted to commercial apartments shall be counted toward the floor 
area of a non-residential development.  Gross floor area is listed as 17,750 sq. ft. 


• A minimum of one off-street parking space shall be provided for each bedroom within a 
commercial apartment.  Parking spaces provided by nonresidential land uses on the site 
may be counted for this requirement with the approval of the zoning administrator.  Nine 
(9) 2-bedroom residential units will require eighteen (18) parking stalls.  Twenty 
Two (22) parking stalls are provided including underground and accessible parking 
stalls while twenty one (21) are required. 


 
The plan indicates 22 parking stalls while the project description states 19 parking 
stalls. 


 
7. The site is considered a group development and shall meet all group development 


requirements as follows: 
• The development shall contain a sufficient number of waste bins to accommodate all 
trash and waste generated by the land uses in a convenient manner. Trash enclosure 
provided.  We have been informed, garbage will be wheeled to the street to allow 
garbage dumping.  A garbage truck cannot back from or into the street. 
• All development located within a group development shall be located so as to comply 
with the intent of this chapter regarding setbacks of structures and buildings from lot lines. 
As such, individual principal and accessory structures and buildings located within group 
developments shall be situated within building envelopes that serve to demonstrate 
complete compliance with said intent. Said building envelopes shall be depicted on the 
site plan required for review of group developments. The use of this approach to designing 
group developments will also ensure the facilitation of subdividing group developments in 
the future, (if such action is so desired).  The setbacks are all compliant. 
• The entire development shall provide for full and safe pedestrian and bicycle access 
within the development, and shall provide appropriate connections to the existing and 
planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities in the community and in surrounding 
neighborhoods, including sidewalk connections to all building entrances from all public 
streets. The development shall provide secure bicycle parking and pedestrian furniture in 
appropriate quantities and location. A central pedestrian gathering area shall be provided.  
Bike parking is shown on the plan. 
 


8. Accessible parking spaces shall be provided at a size, number, location and with signage as 
specified by state and federal regulations.  This is expected. 
 


9. Except for accessible parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a 
minimum width of 9 feet.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\700 Nygaard Street\Multi Use Building Resubmittals 5.26.20\700 Nygaard Multi-Use Building Review 5-26-20.docx 


 


10. Required off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall not be used for snow storage.  
This is expected.   


 
11. Terrace trees will need to be installed as required.  Contact Public Works Director Brett 


Hebert at bhebert@ci.stoughton.wi.us or 608.873.6303.  A building permit cannot be issued 
until this is taken care of.  Expected. 


 
12. According to Chapter 66 Land Division and Chapter 67 Impact Fees, any new residential 


dwelling units must dedicate parkland or pay a fee in lieu of dedication and pay a park 
impact fee.   
Fees are required as follows:   


• Fee in lieu of dedication: $2,808.68 per two or more bedroom apartment. 
 


• Park impact fee for multi-family units of two bedrooms or more: $913.06. 
 
The total fee in lieu of parkland and park impacts under the current proposed nine (9), 
two (2) bedroom units   
Fee in lieu of dedication: $25,278.12;   
Park impact fee: $8,217.54 
Total: $33,495.66 
This fee is due upon issuance of a building permit. 
 


13. The building shall employ only high quality, decorative construction materials on the visible 
exterior as required in section 78-716.  Architectural and design elements shall be 
compatible with the surrounding area and community standards.  This is at the discretion 
of the Planning Commission. 
 


14. Public sidewalk shall be installed with a width of 5 feet and a minimum of 6” thick through 
drive areas, 4” thick minimum elsewhere.  Expected. 
 


15. The maximum floor area ratio is 1.  This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all 
buildings by the gross site area.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 


16. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 25 percent.  The plan meets this 
requirement.    
 


17. The minimum paved surface setback is five feet from a side or rear lot line and ten feet from 
a right-of-way.  The plan to meets this requirement. 
 


18. The required aisle width for the proposed parking area is 24 feet.  The plan meets this 
requirement. 
 


19. Access drives may be a maximum of 30 feet wide and may be flared between the right-of-
way line and roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet.  The plan meets this 
requirement. 


 



mailto:bhebert@ci.stoughton.wi.us





S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\700 Nygaard Street\Multi Use Building Resubmittals 5.26.20\700 Nygaard Multi-Use Building Review 5-26-20.docx 


 


20. The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates this property as Planned 
Business which is consistent with the zoning and the proposed uses.   


 
21. The Planned Business District requires a minimum lot area of 20,000 square feet and 


minimum lot width of 100 feet.  The property meets these requirements. 
 


22. The principal building setback and height requirements of the Planned Business district are 
as follows:   


• Front/Street side yard setback – minimum 20 feet;  


• Side yard setback - minimum 10 feet; 


• Rear yard setback - minimum 20 feet including a 42-foot platted building setback;  


• Building Height = max. 45 feet;  


The plan meets these requirements. 
 


23. Buildings over 6,000 square feet which require deliveries shall provide one 10’ x 50’ 
loading stall.  Only if deliveries are expected. 
 


24. Per section 78-704 (13)(a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile 
parking space requirement.  There are specific requirements related to bicycle parking 
in section 78-704 (13)(c).  Three bicycle parking spaces are required and four are 
delineated on the plan. The landscape and photometric plans show the bike racks in 
the former proposed location. 
 


25. A landscaping plan which meets the requirements of article VI of the City Zoning Code 
must be provided.  There are landscaping point requirements for the building foundation (40 
points per 100 feet of building foundation); paved area (60 points per 20 parking stalls or 
10,000 square feet of parking area, whichever is greater); developed lots (10 points per 
1,000 square feet of building footprint) and street frontage (40 points per 100 linear feet of 
street frontage).   There are approximately 316 points provided by our calculations.  150 
points are required for building foundation; 45 points for paved area; 63 points for 
developed lots and 40 points for street frontage.  The plan meets these requirements. 
 


26. There are no bufferyard requirements since the adjacent properties are of the same zoning 
classification. 
 


27. No fence, wall, planting, or structure shall be erected, placed, planted, or allowed to grow in 
such a manner to obstruct vision between a height of two and on- half feet above grade and 
ten feet above grade on both sides of a driveway where connected to a public sidewalk, ten 
feet from the points of intersection.  This includes signage.   
 


28. Section 78-707, Exterior lighting standards, requires a maximum average on-site lighting of 
2.4 footcandles.  The maximum lighting requirement as measured at the property line is 0.5 
footcandles.  Exterior lighting shall be oriented so that the lighting element is not visible 







S:\Planning\Property Log Folder\700 Nygaard Street\Multi Use Building Resubmittals 5.26.20\700 Nygaard Multi-Use Building Review 5-26-20.docx 


 


from a property located within a residential district.  The plan indicates an overage of the 
0.5 foot-candle requirement along the south side lot line. 


 
29. A gated trash enclosure is required with 6-foot fencing/screening.  The enclosure shall be 


constructed of some or all of the materials used on the main building.  Trucks may not back 
from or into the street.  We have been informed, garbage will be wheeled to the street to 
allow garbage dumping.  A garbage truck cannot backing from or into the street.  The 
landscape and photometric plans indicate the enclosure will be at the west end of the 
paved area and the truck turn-around is also shown. 
  


30. All proposed signage must meet the requirements of ArticleVIII.  A site plan and a zoning 
permit will be necessary for any proposed signage.  Any signage planned within the 
42–foot WDOT building setback line along US Highway 51 will require WDOT 
approval.  
 


31. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fee are required for this 
proposed development.  Dane County Land and Water Resources, the City’s consultant, will 
review the plans and perform inspections.  The plans, applications and fees shall be 
submitted to the Department of Planning & Development office at City Hall.  The 
elevation cannot be changed by more than 1-foot within the easements unless 
Stoughton Utilities approves.   
 


32. A utility plan has been provided.  A street opening permit from the Stoughton Public 
Works Department will be necessary for any work in the street right-of-way.  Contact 
Stoughton Utilities regarding electric, wastewater and water services at 608-873-3379.  
Easements are shown on the site and utility plans.   
 


33. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a building 
permit but are not necessary to begin the City review process.  If approved, the foundation 
location will need to be staked by a surveyor prior to pouring concrete and a post 
construction survey will need to be provided to verify setbacks.   


 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 


    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
  
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator 





		20200522 - 16069 - 700 Nygaard - Cover Sheet

		20200507 - 16069 - 700 Nygaard - Stoughton - Location Map

		20200507 - 16069 - 700 Nygaard - Stoughton - Vicinity Street Views

		16069 - ExistingSiteSurvey_2017-03-17_Stamped Final

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard T100 title sheet

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard C100

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard c200 site plan

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard c300 grading plan

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard c301 erosion control plan

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard c400 utility plan

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard 7 storm tech 1 of 6

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard 8 Storm tech 2 of 6

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard 9 storm tech 3 of 6

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard 10 storm tech 4 of 6

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard 11 storm tech 5 of 6

		Plan_2020-05-20_Nygaard 12 storm tech 6 of 6

		LANDSCAPE PLAN

		700 Nygaard Photometric plan

		20200521 - 16069 - 700 Nygaard - Stoughton - Architectural Site Plan - 2nd-3rd Floor Plan

		20200521 - 16069 - 700 Nygaard - Stoughton - Architectural Site Plan - Grnd Floor Plan

		20200522 - 16069 - 700 Nygaard - 3D View to NW

		20200522 - 16069 - 700 Nygaard - Elevations 1

		20200522 - 16069 - 700 Nygaard - Elevations 2










T:\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2020\060820\Plan Info\Zink CUP Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
Date:  June 1, 2020 
 
To:  Plan Commission   
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the June 8, 2020 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
Request by Zink Power for approval of a site plan to construct a new commercial building at 
2443 County Highway A. 
Zink Power is a supplier of coated parts for Stoughton Trailers, so having this facility located 
adjacent to the Stoughton Trailers plant is advantageous for both companies.  Zink Power is a 
specialized business which requires some unique building requirements for their metal dipping 
processes.  The conditional use permit has been approved by the Common Council.  Zink Power 
will be amending their conditional use request to increase the size of the accessory structure from 
5,000 square feet to 6800 square feet.  That public hearing will be a the next Plan Commission 
meeting of July 13, 2020.  Staff recommends approval of the site plan contingent on Council 
approval of the conditional use permit to expand the accessory building.  The site plan resolution, 
site plan and related materials are provided.  
 
  
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving a building site plan for Zink Power at 2443 County Highway A, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  – 0  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 12 - 2020 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
June 8, 2020 


RECITALS 
 


A. Zink Power (the “Applicant”) is seeking approval for building site plan approval at 2443 County 
Highway A in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the “Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Heavy Industrial which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.   
 


C. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed site plan at their regular June 8, 
2020 meeting and found that the plan meets the intent of the zoning ordinance and 
Comprehensive Plan. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves the site plan at 1700 E. Main Street, 
Stoughton, WI, with the following conditions: 


• Staff review letter dated May 27, 2020; 
• Common Council approval of the conditional use permit to allow an accessory structure of up to 


7800 sq. ft. in area. 
 
   
                                             
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
Planning Commission Chair 
 


 
    
  
  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2020\2443 CTH A - Zink Site Plan - PC Resolution 12-20.doc 







SITE PLAN REVIEW NARRATIVE 
 
In addition to the attached drawing exhibits, please find the information below: 
 


• The intent is to construct a hot dip galvanizing plant on this site.  
• The existing and proposed zoning district is Heavy Industrial 
• The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates this property as Heavy 


Industrial.  This request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and the Future Plan 
Use Map. 


• The proposed land use is for a Hot dip galvanizing qualifies as Heavy Industrial Use (per 
subsection 78-206(7)(b)) 


 
78-206 (7)(b) Heavy industrial land use. 


Description: Heavy industrial land uses are industrial facilities which do not comply 
with one or more of the following criteria: 1) are conducted entirely within an 
enclosed building; 2) are not potentially associated with nuisances such as odor, 
noise, heat, vibration, and radiation which are detectable at the property line; and 3) 
do not pose a significant safety hazard (such as danger of explosion). More 
specifically, heavy industrial land uses are industrial land uses which may be wholly 
or partially located outside of an enclosed building; may have the potential to create 
certain nuisances which are detectable at the property line; and may involve materials 
which pose a significant safety hazard. However, in no instance shall a heavy 
industrial land use exceed the performance standards listed in article VII. Examples of 
heavy industrial land uses include meat product producers; alcoholic beverage 
producers; paper, pulp or paperboard producers; chemical and allied product 
producers (except drug producers) including poison or fertilizer producers; petroleum 
and coal product producers; asphalt, concrete or cement producers; tanneries; stone, 
clay or glass product producers; primary metal producers; heavy machinery 
producers; electrical distribution equipment producers; electrical industrial apparatus 
producers; transportation vehicle producers; commercial sanitary sewage treatment 
plants; railroad switching yards; and recycling facilities not involving the on-site 
storage of salvage materials.  


• This site is directly adjacent to the Stoughton Trailers manufacturing site and is 
currently being utilized as a finished trailer staging yard. 


• ZINKPOWER-Stoughton will employ approximately 90 people, 45 people operating 
two shifts, mirroring the production schedule of Stoughton Trailers.  Pick-up and 
delivery of parts to be galvanized for Stoughton Trailers and other customers will 
equate to approximately 30 vehicles per day, including delivery trucks, pick-ups with 
trailers and semi-trucks. 


• The facility will be connected to the city water and sanitary sewer systems in the area.  
Daily water demand will be approximately 4,250 gallons to fill process tanks and 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-206DELAUSDERE





sanitary sewer loading will come from employee restrooms and cafeteria use only at 
approximately 2,250 gallons per day. 


• The proposed development shall comply with all requirements of Article VIII. 
• This site does not lend itself to physical expansion of the facility, however, expansion 


of the hours of operation is possible. 
• Please see attached Elevation Drawings A4.0 for building materials. We believe these 


are consistent with the industrial nature of the zone, however unique from the adjacent 
Stoughton Trailers and Trucking facilities.   


• The signage illustrated on our drawings is consistent with ZINKPOWER GROUP 
signage on our newer plants, worldwide.  We are hopeful that it will be acceptable in 
Stoughton. 


• We would also note that due to the unique shape of the building site, we were unable to 
include adequate office space attached to the main building.  Therefore, we made an 
office addition to the outbuilding.  This brings the outbuilding structure to 7,734 square 
feet, rather than the 5,000 originally planned. 


• Building siting – The property slopes heavily from Academy St. to the south toward the 
proposed building location. So much so that the finish floor will be nearly 10 feet lower 
than street level. Also, the primary building will be set back from Academy St. 
approximately 580 feet and accessed by a service road.  These two factors aid in natural 
screening of the building and facility from the roadway and adjacent north properties. 


• Because of the aforementioned site slope, there will be a retaining wall stepping down 
to the proposed building floor elevation of approximately 7 feet in height. This wall 
with a 6 foot chain link screen fence on top will also serve as a screen wall between the 
main building services including the transformer, standby generator and gas meter, and 
the adjacent property to the north. Please see the Site Plan exhibit. 


• Landscaping 
 Given the large size of the building and some very unique site constraints, it has 


been a challenge to meet the landscape point requirements at the ZinkPower 
development. Total point volume of landscape provided is reasonable given its 
surroundings and available green space for landscape. The following points are 
offered as explanation for how the landscape plan was developed, how it 
corresponds to the overall site design and how existing site constraints limit 
capacity for additional plantings: 


 Paved area plantings: There are a few areas of automobile parking, and all have 
constraints that limit the areas of landscape. Parking east of the main building is 
adjacent to the bufferyard, so plantings there were devoted to bufferyard 
requirements. The parking north of the main building has plantings that are 
equivalent to the code requirement, see the islands. Finally, parking at the office 
building is adjacent to a drainage swale with no room available for plantings. 


 Street frontage plantings: The property has only 100 LF of street frontage, and its 
irregular lot lines & adjacent overhead utilities do not allow for any tree 
plantings. Some landscape is devoted around the monument sign. 







 Building perimeter plantings: Most of the building’s perimeters (main building & 
office) are surrounded by pavement, with little opportunity for foundation 
plantings. Landscape is shown in all areas where it’s possible to plant near the 
buildings. 


 Building area plantings: The building area plant requirement is substantial due to 
the high GSF of buildings on site. As well, much of the site is paved or is 
devoted to stormwater management & protection of steep slopes. There isn’t 
much green space left to devote to ornamental landscape. 


 Bufferyard plantings: A best effort has been made to meet the bufferyard 
planting requirement at the adjacent Institutional-zoned property. There is 
significant grade difference between the two parcels, along with existing & 
proposed swales, thus limiting the area available for buffer plantings. As well, 
the adjacent property already has substantial buffer plantings. Shown on 
ZinkPower is a dense line of buffer plantings, oriented close to the proposed 
fence line in order to provide the best possible screening of this area. 
Furthermore, the usage of this part of the property is solely for an access 
roadway with no “Heavy Industrial” type use taking place other than ingress and 
egress of semi-trailers.  


•  







   
  2


.4
.2


02
0


N
EW


 M
A


N
UF


A
C


TU
RI


N
G


 F
A


C
ILI


TY
ST


O
UG


H
TO


N
, W


I


PROJECT STATISTICS:


ZONING:   HEAVY INDUSTRIAL


PROPOSED  HEAVY INDUSTRIAL
USE:    (CONDITIONAL USE)


SITE:   


LOT SIZE  535,788 SF (12.3 ac)
MIN. LOT SIZE:  20,000 SF
  
BUILDING 
COVERAGE:   FAR = 1.0 = 535,788 SF  
    
LOT WIDTH:   100’ AT STREET


SETBACKS:  20’ FRONT, SIDE, TO RES. &   
    REAR
PAVEMENT:  5’ SIDE OR REAR
   10’ TO STREET


BUILDING 
SEPARATION:  40’ MIN.


BUILDING HEIGHT: 45’ MAX
PROPOSED:  60’ MAX 
   (CONDITIONAL USE)


MIN. LANDSCAPE: 15% =  80,369 SF


 
BUILDING: 


MAIN BUILDING 110,380 SF
   OFFICE  6,500 SF
   PLANT  103,880 SF


ACCESSORY BLDG.   4,800 SF
   (CONDITIONAL USE)
 PROJECT SITE


ZONING MAP | N.T.S.


N







North


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


T0.01


TITLE SHEET


ZINKPOWER Stoughton Site


Stoughton, Wisconsin


OWNER CONTACT


SHEET INDEX


P.O. Box 2140


Weatherford, TX 76086


Contact: Joe Langemeier


PLAN COMMISSION SUBMITTAL


CIVIL


T0.01
C1.10
C1.11
C1.12
C1.13
C1.20
C1.21
C1.30
C1.40
C1.50
C5.00
C5.10


TITLE SHEET
SITE LOCATION AND GENERAL NOTES
SITE PLAN - OVERALL
SITE PLAN - NORTH DETAILED
SITE PLAN - SOUTH DETAILED
GRADING PLAN - NORTH
GRADING PLAN - SOUTH
EROSION CONTROL PLAN
DEMOLITION PLAN
EXISTING SURVEY
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
CONSTRUCTION DETAILS


SITE LOCATION MAP


ZINKPOWER Stoughton


CIVIL


255 North 21st Street


Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53233


Phone 414-475-5554


Contact: Tom Olejniczak, P.E.


LANDSCAPE


L1.00
L5.00


LANDSCAPE


255 North 21st Street


Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53233


Phone 414-475-5554


Contact: Tom DiSalvo, ASLA


PROJECT LOCATION


HIGHWAY 51


HIGHWAY 51


CTH A


D


U


N


K


I


R


K


 


A


V


E


V
E


T
E


R
A


N
S


 
R


D


V
E


T
E


R
A


N
S


 
R


D


LANDSCAPE PLAN
LANDSCAPE DETAILS, SCHEDULES & NOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton







LEGEND:


W W


E E


OHW OHW


GAS GAS


SAN SAN SAN


ST ST ST


WATERMAIN


UTILITY


EXISTING:


BURIED ELECTRIC


GAS LINE


SANITARY SEWER


OVERHEAD WIRE


STORM SEWER


UTILITY POLE


LIGHT POLE


SANITARY MANHOLE


FIRE HYDRANT


WATER VALVE


STORM SEWER STRUCTURE


PROPOSED:


W W


E E


GAS GAS


SAN SAN SAN


ST ST ST


WATERMAIN


ELECTRICAL LINE


GAS LINE


SANITARY SEWER


STORM SEWER


WATER VALVE


STORM SEWER STRUCTURE


FLARED END SECTION


GRADING


EXISTING:


PROPOSED:


MAJOR CONTOUR


MINOR CONTOUR


100.00


EXIST


EXISTING SPOT ELEVATION


1


6


0


1


6


0


MAJOR CONTOUR


MINOR CONTOUR


100.00


SPOT ELEVATION


(FINISHED GRADE, TOP OF PAVEMENT, FLANGE OF CURB)


100.00


DOOR ELEVATION


DOOR


100.00


GROUND GRADE AT BUILDING


GR


100.00E/P


100.50T/C


SPOT ELEVATION


(T/C - TOP OF CURB, E/P - EDGE OF PAVEMENT)


100.00B/W


100.50T/W


RETAINING WALL SPOT ELEVATION


(T/W - TOP OF WALL, B/W - GROUND GRADE AT BOTTOM)


DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION


EMERGENCY OVERFLOW ROUTE


100.00B/W


12" FES


FLARED END SECTION


(PIPE SIZE, INVERT ELEVATION)


SITE


EXISTING:


X


EXISTING PARKING COUNT


EXISTING SIGN


EXISTING ADA PARKING SPACE


PROPOSED:


X


PARKING COUNT


ADA PARKING SPACE


SIGN


TRUNCATED DOMES


PAVEMENT MARKING DIRECTIONAL ARROWS


1. THE EXISTING SITE INFORMATION ON THIS PLAN WAS TAKEN FROM A SITE SURVEY PROVIDED BY


CAPITOL SURVEY ENTERPRISES.  THE ENGINEER MAKES NO WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION


WITH REFERENCE TO THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS OF THE EXISTING CONDITIONS


INDICATED OR NOT INDICATED ON THE ENGINEERING PLANS PROVIDED.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL


VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS INCLUDING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES,


UNDERGROUND UTILITY ELEVATIONS, BUILDING SETBACKS AND EXISTING BUILDING LOCATIONS.


THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM THE OWNER AND ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO


COMMENCING WITH WORK.  QUESTIONS REGARDING THE EXISTING SURVEY SHALL BE DIRECTED


TO THE PARTIES LISTED ABOVE.


2. BEFORE PROCEEDING WITH ANY UTILITY CONSTRUCTION, CONTRACTOR SHALL EXCAVATE EACH


EXISTING LATERAL TO BE CONNECTED TO (VERIFYING ELEVATION, LOCATION AND SIZE).  SHOULD


THE EXISTING UTILITY NOT BE AS INDICATED ON THE PLAN, THE ENGINEER SHALL BE NOTIFIED


IMMEDIATELY FOR EVALUATION.


3. ALL UTILITY CONSTRUCTION SHALL ADHERE TO THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER AND


WATER CONSTRUCTION IN WISCONSIN (2003), AS WELL AS, THE MUNICIPAL CONSTRUCTION


STANDARDS AND THE DEPT. OF SAFETY AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SEC. 382-387.


4. ALL PERMITS MUST BE RECEIVED FROM THE MUNICIPALITY AND WDNR (IF REQUIRED) PRIOR TO


THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. IT IS THE CONTRACTORS RESPONSIBILITY TO ENSURE ALL


APPLICABLE PERMITS ARE RECEIVED PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.


5. NOTIFY THE PUBLIC WORKS INSPECTION DEPT. AT LEAST 48 HOURS BEFORE STARTING


CONSTRUCTION.


6. BACKFILL REQUIREMENTS AND ROADWAY/SIDEWALK RESTORATION SHALL ADHERE TO LOCAL


STANDARDS (GRANULAR BACKFILL UNDER OR WITHIN 5' OF CURBS, SIDEWALK, OR PAVEMENT.


SPOIL MAY BE USED ELSEWHERE.   SLURRY BACKFILL WILL BE REQUIRED IN PUBLIC ROADWAYS.)


7. ALL BUILDING UTILITIES SHALL BE VERIFIED WITH THE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS PRIOR TO


CONSTRUCTION.


8. ALL PROPOSED WATERMAIN SHALL BE  PVC SDR 18, CLASS 150, AWWA C900 WITH ELASTOMERIC


JOINTS.


9. PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER PIPE SHALL BE PVC, ASTM D-3034, SDR 35 WITH RUBBER GASKETED


JOINTS CONFORMING TO ASTM D-3212.


10. PROPOSED STORM SEWER SHALL BE PVC, ASTM D-3034, SDR 35 WITH RUBBER ELASTOMERIC


JOINTS CONFORMING TO ASTM D-3212 (UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED).


11. A MEANS TO LOCATE BURIED UNDERGROUND EXTERIOR NONMETALLIC UTILITIES MUST BE


PROVIDED. PROVIDE TRACER WIRE OR OTHER METHODS IN ORDER TO BE LOCATED IN ACCORD


WITH THE PROVISIONS SECTIONS 182.0715(2R) OF THE STATE STATUTES.


12. UTILITY TRENCHES SHALL BE MECHANICALLY COMPACTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARD


SPECIFICATIONS FOR SEWER AND WATER CONSTRUCTION IN WISCONSIN.


13. ALL MANHOLES, CATCH BASINS, INLETS, VALVES BOXES, ETC WITHIN THE PROJECT AREA SHALL


BE RESET AND ADJUSTED TO MATCH FINISH GRADE.


14. ALL EXCAVATED OR STRIPPED MATERIALS NOT BEING REPLACED IN UTILITY TRENCHES OR BEING


USED FOR FILL SHALL BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE, UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE


OWNER.


15. SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS FOR EXACT BUILDING & FOUNDATION DETAILS AND ORIENTATION.


16. ALL ON-SITE CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER TO BE 18" WIDE VERTICAL FACE, UNLESS OTHERWISE


NOTED.  REVERSE OR REGULAR STYLE CURB DENOTED ON PLANS.


17. ALL CURB ELEVATIONS ARE EDGE OF PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  SEE CURB DETAIL


FOR TOP OF CURB ELEVATIONS.


18. ALL CURB RADII ARE MEASURED TO THE FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.


19. CONTRACTOR SHALL MATCH PROPOSED CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER, SIDEWALK AND


PAVEMENT TO EXISTING IN ELEVATION AND ALIGNMENT.


20. REMOVAL OF CURB AND GUTTER, SIDEWALK AND PAVEMENT SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE


STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS OF THE WISCONSIN D.O.T.


21. ALL CONCRETE FOR CURB AND GUTTER, ROADWAY AND SIDEWALKS MUST CONFORM TO THE


STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR READY MIXED CONCRETE.  MINIMUM 28 DAY COMPRESSIVE


STRENGTH TEST MUST EQUAL 4000 PSI.


22. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING ALL PROPERTY CORNERS.


23. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR REPAIRING ANY DAMAGE TO EXISTING UTILITIES OR SITE


IMPROVEMENTS.  CONTRACTOR SHALL DOCUMENT ALL EXISTING DAMAGE PRIOR TO START OF


CONSTRUCTION AND NOTIFY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER OF ANY FINDINGS.


24. PROJECT SAFETY ON-SITE SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.


25. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING EXISTING SOIL CONDITIONS, CONSTRUCTION


MANAGER MAY HAVE SOILS REPORT FOR MORE INFO.


26. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE OWNER WITH A SET OF MARKED UP PLANS


(AS-BUILTS) SHOWING ANY CHANGES DURING CONSTRUCTION.


GENERAL NOTES AND SPECIFICATIONS:


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


E ACADEMY ST


C1.10


SITE LOCATION


& GENERAL


NOTES


North


V
E


T
E


R
A


N
S


 
R


D


E


A


S


T


 


S


T


PROJECT LOCATION


PROPERTY


LOCATION:


- HEAVY INDUSTRIAL


BUILDING SETBACK:     - 20 FEET (FRONT)                                       
  


LEGAL DESCRIPTION:


LOT 2 CSM 15343 CS109/336&340-2/5/2020 F/K/A LOT 1 CSM


7211 CS36/305&306-8/27/93 & F/K/A LOT 1 CSM 6876


CS34/172&173-9/24/92 & ALSO INCL & DESCR AS SEC 9-5-11


PRT NE1/4SW1/4, PRT SE1/4SW1/4, PRT NW1/4SE1/4 & PRT


SW1/4SE1/4 (12.299 ACRES)


- EAST ACADEMY STREET


- STOUGHTON, WI


EXISTING ZONING:


PROPOSED ZONING:


ZONING SETBACKS:


                                    
   -  20 FEET (SIDE & REARS YARD)                                   


      


PARKING SETBACK:      - 10 FEET  (FRONT YARD) 


                                  
     - 5 FEET  (OTHER YARDS) 


-ZINKPOWER USA


PROPERTY OWNER:


PROPOSED USEAGE: - INDUSTRIAL PLANT


TOTAL SITE AREA                                 
             13.676 AC


TOTAL DISTURBED AREA                                  10.605 AC


PROPOSED  IMPERVIOUS AREA                      11.489 AC


PROPOSED GREENSPACE                                2.187 AC


    (15.99 % OF SITE)


PROPOSED REGULAR PARKING SPACES      57


PROPOSED HANDICAP PARKING                     6


PROPOSED TOTAL PARKING                            63


EXISTING IMPERVIOUS  AREA                          11.155 AC


- HEAVY INDUSTRIAL


REQUIRED PARKING:
- 1 SPOT PER EACH EMPLOYEE 


FLOOR AREA RATIO                                  
         21%


TOTAL FLOOR AREA (BOTH BUILDINGS)        116,573 SF 


BUILDING HEIGHT                                       
       58 FT


REQUIRED PARKING (# OF EMPLOYEES)       35



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

160



AutoCAD SHX Text

160



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%USITE ZONING AND LOCATION TABLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%USITE CALCULATION TABLE



scott

Text Box

45







W
W


W


W


W
W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


SAN


SAN


SAN


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


G
AS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


GAS GAS


G
A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W W W
W


W W
W W


W
W


F
O


F


O


FO


F
O


T


T


T


T
T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T
T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T
T


ST


ST


ST


ST


S
T


O
H


W


O
H


W


OHW


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


ST


ST


ST


ST
ST


ST


SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


ST
ST


ST
ST


ST
ST


ST
ST


ST


ST ST ST ST ST


S
T


ST


ST


ST


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


S
A


N


ST ST ST ST ST
ST ST ST


SAN SAN SAN SAN
SAN SAN


SAN


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


OHW
OHW


OHW OHW
OHW


OHW OHW


O
H


W


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


S


T


W


S


T


S


T


T


T


E


E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E E
E E


E E
E E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E
E


E


E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


T


T


W


W


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


SAN SAN


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S
A


N


S
A


N


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


S


T


S


T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


ST


ST


ST


ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST


W


W


W


W


W W W W W W W W W W W W W


W
W


W


FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO


FO


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F
O


F
O


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


S
T S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


W
W


W
W


W


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


E


E


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T
T


T


T


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W


E


E


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
AS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


G


A


S


G


A


S


G
A


S


T


T
T


T


T
T


T


T


T


T


F


O


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


G
A


S


W


S


T


S


T


ST


ST


20


17


3


7
8


8


W


WWWWWWWWW


F


M


F


M


F


M


FM


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


WWWWWWWW


ST ST ST


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


S


T


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G


A


S


GASGASGAS


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


EE


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


S


A


N


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S
T


20-30 yd roll off


STSTSTST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


ST ST ST ST ST ST


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W
W


W


ST


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


STSTSTST


W


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N


W


W


W


W


PROPOSED


BUILDING


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


E ACADEMY ST


C1.11


SITE PLAN -


OVERALL


1" = 60'


North


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


PROPOSED


BUILDING


PROPOSED


STORMWATER BASIN


EXISTING WETLANDS


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY BOUNDARY


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY BOUNDARY


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY BOUNDARY


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY BOUNDARY


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY BOUNDARY



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

829.44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°52'24"W  461.90'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S23°10'02"W 96.72'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S00°07'36"W  322.79'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S11°52'56"E  72.06'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°21'12"E  25.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S00°07'36"W  25.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

100.0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S00°07'36"W  550.99'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N84°57'46"E 201.90'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N72°46'00"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

223.66'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N29°52'48"E



AutoCAD SHX Text

387.81'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N32°33'21"E 242.96'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°52'24"W 91.55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S31°09'18"W 58.20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N89°52'24"W 56.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S00°07'36"W



AutoCAD SHX Text

346.95'



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

898.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton







W


W


W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


W


S


T


S


T


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


SAN SAN SAN SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN


S


T


S


T


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


FO FO FO FO FO FO FO


FO


FO


FO


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


E


E


E


E


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


T


T


T


T


T


T
T


T


T
T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T
T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T
T


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W
W


W


E


E


E


E


E


S


A


N


S


A


N


S
A


N


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


ST


ST


ST


G
AS


G
AS


G
A


S


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
AS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T


F
O


F
O


T


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


E


W


W


17


3


7
8


8


WWW


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


W


WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW


ST ST ST ST ST ST ST


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S


G


A


S


G


A


S


GASGASGASGASGASGASGAS


G
A


S


E


E


E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


EEEEE


E


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


FM


S


A


N


S


A


N


ST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST


S
T


ST ST ST ST


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


ST


ST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


ST


S


T


S


T


S


T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S
T


ST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


W


W


W


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N


1 CONNECT TO EXISTING 8" SANITARY 


SEWER.


EXISTING 8" I.E. = 880.21


PROP. 6" PVC S I.E. = 880.21 (CORE NEW


HOLE)


2 PROPOSED 216 L.F. 6" PVC SANITARY


SEWER @ S=1.00%


3 PROPOSED SANITARY SAMPLING 


MANHOLE


RIM = 888.65


6" PVC N I.E. = 882.37


2" HDPE FM W I.E. = 882.50


6" PVC E I.E. =  882.47


4 PROPOSED 387 L.F. 6" PVC SANITARY


SEWER @ S=1.00%.


#


1. SAWCUT EXISTING PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) AND CREATE


BUTT JOINT WHERE PROPOSED MEETS EXISTING.


2. DENOTES PROPOSED REVERSE STYLE CURB.


3. DENOTES PROPOSED CURB OPENING. 3' OF DEPRESSED


CURB W/ 3' CURB TAPER ON BOTH SIDES.


4. CAUTION! UTILITIES. VERIFY EXACT LOCATION AND


ELEVATION PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.


5. CAUTION! UTILITY CROSSING. VERIFY EXACT LOCATION AND


ELEVATION PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION. MAINTAIN A


MINIMUM OF 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION BETWEEN SEWER


AND WATERMAIN.


6. DENOTES PROPOSED STOP SIGN AND PAINTED 12" WIDE


STOP BAR.


7. DENOTES PROPOSED 3' CURB TAPER.


8. DENOTES POTENTIAL ELECTRICAL SERVICE ROUTE.


CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH UTILITY COMPANY FOR


EXACT LOCATION.


9. DENOTES POTENTIAL GAS SERVICE ROUTE. CONTRACTOR TO


COORDINATE WITH UTILITY COMPANY FOR EXACT LOCATION.


10. DENOTES PROPOSED TRANSFORMER. SEE ELECTRICAL


PLANS


11. DENOTES PROPOSED GENERATOR. SEE ELECTRICAL PLANS


12. DENOTES PROPOSED GAS METER. SEE MECHANICAL PLANS


13. DENOTES PROPOSED RETAINING WALL (SEE LANDSCAPE


PLAN)


14. DENOTES PROPOSED GUARDRAIL. SEE DETAIL


15. DENOTES PROPOSED FENCE (SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS)


16. DENOTES PROPOSED GATE (SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS)


17. DENOTES PROPOSED BOLLARDS (SEE ARCHITECTURAL


PLANS FOR DETAIL)


18. DENOTES PROPOSED SIGN. (SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS


FOR DETAIL)


19. DENOTES PROPOSED FLAG POLE. (SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS)


20. DENOTES PROPOSED SITE LIGHTING. (SEE ELECTRICAL


PLANS)


21. DENOTES PROPOSED BIKE RACK LOCATION. (SEE


LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAIL)


#


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


PROPOSED


BUILDING


E ACADEMY ST


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


MATCH LINE


SEE SHEET C1.12


DENOTES PROPOSED 100'


TURN LANE


DENOTES PROPOSED 100'


TAPER LANE


DENOTES PROPOSED


ADA PARKING


C1.12


SITE PLAN -


DETAILED


NORTH


1" = 30'


North


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK


PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT


PROPOSED DEPRESSED CURB


PROPOSED TAPER CURB


PROPOSED REVERSE CURB


DENOTES EXISTING 10'


WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT


DENOTES EXISTING 75'


WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT


DENOTES EXISTING 20'


WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT


1. CONNECT TO EXISTING 10" WATERMAIN,


INSTALL TEE, GATE VALVE AND 10 L.F. 8"


PVC WATERMAIN.


2. INSTALL 8" -45° BEND AND 67 L.F. 8" PVC


WATERMAIN.


3. INSTALL 8" -45° BEND AND 153 L.F. 8" PVC


WATERMAIN.


4. INSTALL 8" x 6" HYDRANT TEE, AUX


VALVE AND 86 L.F. HYDRANT LEAD.


BURY ELEVATION = 888.60.


5. PROPOSED 25 L.F. 8" PVC WATERMAIN


6. INSTALL 8" x 8" TEE, GATE VALVE AND


347 L.F. PVC WATERMAIN.


7. INSTALL 8"-90° BEND AND 23 L.F. 8" PVC


WATERMAIN. SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR


CONTINUATION INTO BUILDING.


8. INSTALL GATE VALVE AND 395 L.F. 8"


PVC WATERMAIN.


#


DENOTES PROPOSED


05


C5.10
HANDICAP RAMP - TYPE 4


DENOTES PROPOSED


18


C5.00CONCRETE SIDEWALK (TYP)


DENOTES PROPOSED


04


C5.10
TRUNCATED DOMES


DENOTES PROPOSED


15


C5.00
DEPRESSED CURB - 18 IN WIDE


DENOTES PROPOSED


03


C5.10HANDICAP SIGN - WALL MOUNTED (TYP)


DENOTES PROPOSED


14


C5.00VERTICAL FACE CURB - 18 IN WIDE (TYP)


DENOTES PROPOSED


14


C5.00
VERTICAL FACE CURB - 18 IN WIDE


1


3


8


1


4


5


6


7


8


DENOTES PROPOSED


13


C5.00
TYPICAL HYDRANT


DENOTES PROPOSED


02


C5.10 HANDICAP SIGN (TYP)


1


2


3


4


5


6


7


1


2


2


7


7


DENOTES PROPOSED


17


C5.00
CONCRETE PAVEMENT


DENOTES PROPOSED


17


C5.00
CONCRETE PAVEMENT


5


7


8


9


10


11


12


8


9


4


4


2


4


4


5


4


13


DENOTES EXISTING WALL


(TO REMAIN)


6


14


4


4


5


5


13


13


13


2


4


5 PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE


RIM = 888.83


6" PVC W I.E. = 886.34


6" PVC SW I.E. = 886.44


2" HDPE FM S I.E. = 886.44


6 PROPOSED 39 L.F. 6" PVC SANITARY


SEWER @ S=1.00%. INVERT AT BUILDING =


886.83. SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR


CONTINUATION INTO BUILDING.


7 PROPOSED 246 L.F. 2" HDPE SANITARY


SEWER FORCE MAIN. INVERT AT BUILDING


= 886.75. SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR


CONTINUATION INTO BUILDING.


8 PROPOSED 626 L.F. 2" HDPE SANITARY


SEWER FORCE MAIN. INVERT AT BUILDING


= 883.61. SEE PLUMBING PLANS FOR


CONTINUATION INTO BUILDING.


20


15


15


15


15


16


16


DENOTES 20'


BUILDING SETBACK


DENOTES 20'


BUILDING SETBACK


17


17


4


18


19


DENOTES 20'


BUILDING SETBACK


DENOTES VISION


TRIANGLE


DENOTES VISION


TRIANGLE


RESTORE SITE IN AREA


DISTURBED FOR UTILITY


INSTALLATION TO MATCH


EXISTING CONDITIONS


DENOTES PROPOSED


FIRE DEPARTMENT


CONNECTION


2


3


PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT


DENOTES PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY


ASPHALT PAVEMENT. CONTRACTOR


TO MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT.


DENOTES PROPOSED HEAVY DUTY


ASPHALT PAVEMENT. CONTRACTOR


TO MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT.


5


DENOTES PROPOSED


12


C5.00
SAMPLING MANHOLE


20


20


20


DENOTES PROPOSED 20'


WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT


21


DENOTES PROPOSED


06


C5.10
WIDOT GUARDRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

75' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 2466413



AutoCAD SHX Text

898.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UUTILITY TAGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SANITARY



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UNOTES



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UHATCH LEGEND



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UUTILITY TAGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER







S


T


S


T


E


E


W


20


WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


FM FM


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


F
M


FM


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


20-30 yd roll off


STSTSTSTSTSTSTST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


STSTSTSTSTSTSTST


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W W


C1.13


SITE PLAN -


DETAILED


SOUTH


1" = 30'


North


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


PROPOSED


BUILDING


PROPOSED


BUILDING


MATCH LINE


SEE SHEET C1.11


DENOTES PROPOSED


ADA PARKING


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


8 PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER FORCE


MAIN. 626 L.F. 2" HDPE. INVERT AT


BUILDING = 883.61. SEE PLUMBING PLANS


FOR CONTINUATION INTO BUILDING.


#


8 PROPOSED 395 L.F. 8" PVC WATERMAIN


9 PROPOSED 2" TAP, VALVE AND 221 L.F.


HDPE WATERMAIN. SEE PLUMBING PLANS


FOR CONTINUATION INTO BUILDING.


10 PROPOSED 10 L.F. 8" PVC WATERMAIN


11 INSTALL 8" x 6" REDUCER.


12 PROPOSED 11 L.F. 6" PVC WATERMAIN


13 INSTALL 6" x 6" HYDRANT TEE, AUX VALVE


AND 398 L.F. HYDRANT LEAD.  BURY


ELEVATION = 887.50


14 INSTALL AUX VALVE AND 30 L.F. HYDRANT


LEAD. BURY ELEVATION = 887.20


#


DENOTES PROPOSED


19


C5.00PRECAST WHEEL STOP (TYP)


DENOTES PROPOSED


02


C5.10HANDICAP SIGN (TYP)


DENOTES PROPOSED


14


C5.00 VERTICAL FACE CURB - 18 IN WIDE (TYP)


DENOTES PROPOSED


17


C5.00
CONCRETE PAVEMENT


DENOTES PROPOSED


17


C5.00
CONCRETE PAVEMENT


DENOTES PROPOSED


13


C5.00
TYPICAL HYDRANT


DENOTES PROPOSED


13


C5.00
TYPICAL HYDRANT


DENOTES PROPOSED


18


C5.00
CONCRETE SIDEWALK


8


9


10


13


14


1. SAWCUT EXISTING PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) AND CREATE


BUTT JOINT WHERE PROPOSED MEETS EXISTING.


2. DENOTES PROPOSED CURB OPENING. 3' OF DEPRESSED


CURB W/ 3' CURB TAPER ON BOTH SIDES.


3. CAUTION! UTILITY CROSSING. VERIFY EXACT LOCATION AND


ELEVATION PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION. MAINTAIN A


MINIMUM OF 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION BETWEEN SEWER


AND WATERMAIN.


4. DENOTES PROPOSED 3' CURB TAPER.


5. DENOTES PROPOSED RETAINING WALL (SEE LANDSCAPE


PLANS)


6. DENOTES PROPOSED GUARDRAIL (SEE DETAIL)


7. DENOTES PROPOSED FENCE (SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS)


8. DENOTES PROPOSED GATE (SEE LANDSCAPE PLANS)


9. DENOTES PROPOSED TRASH ENCLOSURE (SEE


ARCHITECTURAL PLANS)


10. DENOTES PROPOSED GENERATOR PAD (SEE


ARCHITECTURAL PLANS)


11. DENOTES PROPOSED HANDICAP RAMP - TYPE 3. 6 L.F.


DEPRESSED CURB W/ 6' CURB TAPER AND TRUNCATED


DOMES


12. DENOTES PROPOSED REVERSE STYLE CURB


13. DENOTES PROPOSE SITE LIGHTING. (SEE ELECTRICAL PLANS)


14. DENOTES PROPOSED BIKE RACK LOCATION. (SEE


LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR DETAIL)


#


3


4


1


1


2


DENOTES PROPOSED


17


C5.00
CONCRETE PAVEMENT


DENOTES EXISTING


WETLANDS


EXISTING


BUILDING


DENOTES PROPOSED


17


C5.00
CONCRETE PAVEMENT


PROPOSED CONCRETE SIDEWALK


PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT


PROPOSED DEPRESSED CURB


PROPOSED TAPER CURB


PROPOSED REVERSE CURB


1


5


6


6


EXISTING GRAVEL LOT TO


REMAIN


7


7


7


7


7


8


8


9


10


8


11


12


DENOTES PROPOSED WET


RETENTION BASIN. SEE


GRADING PLAN


11


DENOTES 20'


BUILDING SETBACK


DENOTES 20'


BUILDING SETBACK


12


13


13


13


13


13


14


14


DENOTES PROPOSED


06


C5.10
WIDOT GUARDRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UHATCH LEGEND



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UUTILITY TAGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SANITARY



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UUTILITY TAGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UNOTES







W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W W
W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


S


T


S


T


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


S


T


S


T


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO


FO


FO


FO


FO


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


S
A


N


GAS
GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T T
T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T
T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T
T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W
W


W
W


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


S


A


N


S


A


N


S
A


N
S


A
N


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


ST


ST


ST


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


F
O


F
O


F
O


T
T


T


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


E


E


W


W


W


W


8


8


9


896


895


WWWWWWW


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


W
W


WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW


ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


8


8


9


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S


G


A


S


G


A


S


G


A


S


G


A


S


GASGASGASGASGASGASGASGASGASGASGASGASGASGASGAS


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E


EEEEEEEEEE


E


E


E


E


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


FMFM


890


8


8


9


8


9


1


8


9


0


8
8
8


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


ST


ST


S


T


ST ST


8


8


8


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST


S
T


S
T


S
T


ST ST ST ST ST ST ST


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


ST


ST


ST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


RIM


889.17


RIM


888.34


RIM


888.40


RIM


887.70


RIM


887.90


RIM


889.47


RIM


887.72


RIM


889.46


RIM


888.20


RIM


888.49


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


8


8


9


889


889


8
8
8


8


8


9


8
8
9


8


8


8


8


8


9


8


8


9


8


8


9


8


8


9


8


9


9


8


9


8


8


9


7


8


9


6


8


9


5


8


9


4


8


9


3


8


9


2


898


8


8


9


8


9


1


8
9
2


8
9
3


8
9
4


8
9
5


8
9
6


8
9
7


8
9
8


8
9
7


ST ST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


ST


ST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


RIM


891.41
RIM


891.41


RIM


894.85


RIM


894.85


RIM


889.45


H


P


H


P


H
P


8


8


8


8


8


7


8


8


6


8


8


5


8


8


4


8
8
3


8
8
2


8
8
1


8
9
8


W


W


W


W


W


W


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


HP


889.10


HP


889.20


HP


888.05


889.47


MATCH±


888.98


MATCH±


880.60


MATCH±


898.02


MATCH±


898.66


MATCH±


898.98


MATCH±


899.38


MATCH±


899.69


897.00 T/W


892.07B/W


897.50 T/W


896.50B/W


897.50 T/W


893.00B/W


896.47 T/W


889.60B/W


888.87 T/W


888.87B/W


896.50 T/W


889.33B/W


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


880.00


HP


889.10


HP


888.10


889.70


888.51


HP


888.10


888.26


889.70


888.40 T/W


887.50B/W


DOOR


889.89


DOOR


889.87


DOOR


889.74


888.81


888.81


889.79


889.79


888.00


888.79


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.30


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


GR


890.30


889.10


889.70


889.20


889.10


889.50


889.20


889.20


889.00


889.10


889.20


889.20


889.20889.20


889.20


889.20


898.74


898.40


897.31


896.50


896.50


894.50


894.50


892.50


892.50


888.88


896.81 T/W


890.70B/W


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


898.42


897.50 T/W


895.00B/W


880.85


Pipe-103C


Pipe-106A


106


Pipe-107


107


Pipe-108


108


Pipe-108A


Pipe-108C


Pipe-108B


Pipe-101F


101E


Pipe-101E


101D


Pipe-101D


Pipe-101C


101C


Pipe-104


104


Pipe-105


105


P


i


p


e


-


1


0


6


103A


P


i
p


e


-
1


0


3


A


Pipe-103B


103


Pipe-103


108A


Pipe-105A


105A


Pipe-105B


105B


Pipe-105C


105C


Pipe-105D


105D


Storm Structure Table


#


100


101


101A


101B


101C


101D


101E


101F


101G


102


Structure Details


CATCH BASIN (5' DIA)


RIM = 886.27


Pipe-101 = 879.31


Pipe-100 = 879.31


CATCH BASIN (6' DIA)


RIM = 889.47


Pipe-102 = 880.08


Pipe-101 = 880.09


Pipe-101A = 880.08


Pipe-101G = 880.08


CLEANOUT


RIM = 883.36


Pipe-101A = 881.75


Pipe-101B = 881.75


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 889.48


Pipe-101B = 883.41


Pipe-101C = 883.41


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 889.46


Pipe-101C = 885.37


Pipe-101F = 885.37


Pipe-101D = 885.37


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 888.20


Pipe-101D = 885.59


Pipe-101E = 885.59


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 888.49


Pipe-101E = 886.09


CLEANOUT


RIM = 887.21


Pipe-101F = 886.27


CLEANOUT


RIM = 881.81


Pipe-101G = 880.87


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 887.50


Pipe-103 = 880.64


Pipe-102 = 880.64


103


103A


103B


103C


104


105


105A


105B


105C


105D


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 887.72


Pipe-104 = 881.02


Pipe-103A = 881.02


Pipe-103 = 881.02


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 889.47


Pipe-103B = 881.61


Pipe-103C = 881.61


Pipe-103A = 881.61


CLEANOUT


RIM = 883.21


Pipe-103B = 882.27


CLEANOUT


RIM = 883.30


Pipe-103C = 882.36


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 887.90


Pipe-105 = 881.31


Pipe-104 = 881.31


CATCH BASIN - CURB (5' DIA)


RIM = 887.70


Pipe-106 = 881.60


Pipe-105A = 881.60


Pipe-105 = 881.61


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 891.41


Pipe-105B = 885.08


Pipe-105C = 885.08


Pipe-105A = 885.07


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 891.41


Pipe-105B = 885.64


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 894.85


Pipe-105D = 888.69


Pipe-105C = 888.69


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 894.85


Pipe-105D = 889.25


106


106A


107


108


108A


108B


108C


300


CATCH BASIN (4' DIA)


RIM = 889.45


Pipe-107 = 882.14


Pipe-106A = 882.14


Pipe-106 = 882.14


CLEANOUT


RIM = 883.63


Pipe-106A = 882.86


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 888.40


Pipe-108 = 882.36


Pipe-107 = 882.36


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 888.34


Pipe-108A = 883.09


Pipe-108 = 883.09


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 889.17


Pipe-108B = 883.46


Pipe-108A = 883.46


Pipe-108C = 883.46


CLEANOUT


RIM = 886.14


Pipe-108B = 885.37


CLEANOUT


RIM = 884.86


Pipe-108C = 884.26


OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE


RIM = 883.75


Pipe-300 = 878.00


Pipe-301 = 878.00


Storm Pipe Table


Pipe Name


Pipe-100


Pipe-101


Pipe-101A


Pipe-101B


Pipe-101C


Pipe-101D


Pipe-101E


Pipe-101F


Pipe-101G


Pipe-102


Pipe-103


Pipe-103A


Pipe-103B


Pipe-103C


Pipe-104


Pipe-105


Pipe-105A


Pipe-105B


Pipe-105C


Pipe-105D


Pipe-106


Pipe-106A


Pipe-107


Pipe-108


Pipe-108A


Pipe-108B


Pipe-108C


Pipe-200


Pipe-300


Pipe-301


Size


36


36


18


18


18


12


10


10


10


27


27


12


10


10


24


24


18


12


15


15


15


8


15


12


10


8


6


12


18


18


Material


HDPE


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


RCP


HDPE


HDPE


Length


330


194


166


166


197


44


99


90


79


110


77


59


66


76


57


60


173


28


181


28


106


72


45


146


37


190


79


75


19


23


Slope


0.40%


0.40%


1.00%


1.00%


1.00%


0.50%


0.50%


1.00%


1.00%


0.50%


0.50%


1.00%


1.00%


1.00%


0.50%


0.50%


2.00%


2.00%


2.00%


2.00%


0.50%


1.00%


0.50%


0.50%


1.00%


1.00%


1.00%


2.00%


0.00%


8.60%


Description


W/ RCP FES AND GRATE


W/ RCP FES AND GRATE


W/ RCP FES AND GRATE


W/ RCP FES AND GRATE


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


PROPOSED


BUILDING


FFE = 889.80


E ACADEMY ST


EXISTING


BUILDING


FFE = 898.80±


EXISTING


BUILDING


FFE = 898.91±


MATCH LINE


SEE SHEET C1.21


C1.20


GRADING PLAN


- DETAILED


NORTH


1" = 30'


North


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES PROPOSED


OVERFLOW ROUTE


DENOTES PROPOSED


OVERFLOW ROUTE


RESTORE SITE TO MATCH


EXISTING CONDITIONS


AFTER GRADING IS


COMPLETE


1. DENOTES PROPOSED DOWNSPOUT CONNECTION. 6" PVC @


S=1.00% MIN. (SEE DETAIL). COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION


WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF


STORM SEWER.


2. DENOTES PROPOSED DOWNSPOUT CONNECTION. 6" PVC @


S=1.00% MIN. (SEE DETAIL). COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION


WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF


STORM SEWER.


#


1


2


2


2


2


2


1


1


1


1


1


2


2


2


1


1


1


1



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

898.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UNOTES







S


T


S


T


E


E


E


E


889


8
8
8


8


8


7


8


8


8


8


8


9


W
W


8
8


7


8
8
7


WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


F


M


FM FM FM


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


8


8


6


8
8
5


8


8


4


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


8
8
3


F
M


FMFM


RIM


886.27


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


ST


ST


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


8


8


3


8


8


2


8


8


1


8


8


0


8


7


9


8


7


8


8


7


8


20-30 yd roll off


STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


8
8


6


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


8
8
5


8
8
4


RIM


889.47


RIM


887.72


RIM


887.50


RIM


889.47


RIM


889.48


W


8
8
8


8


8


8


8


8


9


8
8
9


8


8


9


8


8


9


8
8
8


8
8


8
8


8
8


8
8
7


8
8


6


8


8


5


8


8


6


8


8


7


8


8


3


8


8


3


8


8


3


8


8


2


8


8


1


8


8


0


8


7


9


8


7


8


8


8


0


8


8


1


8


8


2


8


7


6


8


7


4


STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST


8
8
3


8


8


2


8
8
1


8


8


5


8


8


4


8
8
3


8
8
2


8
8
1


8
8
8


8


8


6


8


8


5
8


8


4


8
8
3


8
8
2


8


8


1


8


8


7


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W W W W


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


DOOR


889.80


886.00


HP


887.90


HP


888.05


DOOR


888.10


MATCH±


888.40


MATCH±


888.14


888.30


888.50 T/W


886.00B/W


DOOR


889.80


883.75


883.75


883.75


883.75


FES


878.99


FES


880.50


HP


888.10


889.70


DOOR


889.89


DOOR


889.87


GR


889.00


DOOR


888.10


DOOR


888.10


887.36


DOOR


888.10


DOOR


888.10


887.90


887.96


887.40


887.40


887.30


887.30


887.30


888.60


888.00


FES


878.00


888.81


889.79


889.79


888.00


888.79


GR


888.20


GR


888.10


GR


888.10


887.00


884.90


883.16


MATCH±


883.48


MATCH±


883.05


883.55


883.05


883.57


884.17


883.05


883.79


884.00


885.47


885.54


886.18


886.63


887.15


887.35


887.30


888.48


887.95


887.60


887.16


887.00


885.26


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


GR


889.80


888.60


MATCH±


888.14


882.75


GR


889.80


GR


888.60


887.50


887.40


GR


888.10


887.86


Pipe-101C


Pipe-104


103A


P


i
p


e


-
1


0


3


A


Pipe-103B


103


Pipe-103


101B


Pipe-101A


101


P


i


p


e


-


1


0


2


Pipe-101G


102


P


i


p


e


-


1


0


1


100


P


i


p


e


-


1


0


0


P


i


p


e


-


2


0


0


Pipe-300


300


Pipe-301


Storm Structure Table


#


100


101


101A


101B


101C


101D


101E


101F


101G


102


Structure Details


CATCH BASIN (5' DIA)


RIM = 886.27


Pipe-101 = 879.31


Pipe-100 = 879.31


CATCH BASIN (6' DIA)


RIM = 889.47


Pipe-102 = 880.08


Pipe-101 = 880.09


Pipe-101A = 880.08


Pipe-101G = 880.08


CLEANOUT


RIM = 883.36


Pipe-101A = 881.75


Pipe-101B = 881.75


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 889.48


Pipe-101B = 883.41


Pipe-101C = 883.41


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 889.46


Pipe-101C = 885.37


Pipe-101F = 885.37


Pipe-101D = 885.37


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 888.20


Pipe-101D = 885.59


Pipe-101E = 885.59


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 888.49


Pipe-101E = 886.09


CLEANOUT


RIM = 887.21


Pipe-101F = 886.27


CLEANOUT


RIM = 881.81


Pipe-101G = 880.87


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 887.50


Pipe-103 = 880.64


Pipe-102 = 880.64


103


103A


103B


103C


104


105


105A


105B


105C


105D


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 887.72


Pipe-104 = 881.02


Pipe-103A = 881.02


Pipe-103 = 881.02


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 889.47


Pipe-103B = 881.61


Pipe-103C = 881.61


Pipe-103A = 881.61


CLEANOUT


RIM = 883.21


Pipe-103B = 882.27


CLEANOUT


RIM = 883.30


Pipe-103C = 882.36


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 887.90


Pipe-105 = 881.31


Pipe-104 = 881.31


CATCH BASIN - CURB (5' DIA)


RIM = 887.70


Pipe-106 = 881.60


Pipe-105A = 881.60


Pipe-105 = 881.61


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 891.41


Pipe-105B = 885.08


Pipe-105C = 885.08


Pipe-105A = 885.07


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 891.41


Pipe-105B = 885.64


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 894.85


Pipe-105D = 888.69


Pipe-105C = 888.69


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 894.85


Pipe-105D = 889.25


106


106A


107


108


108A


108B


108C


300


CATCH BASIN (4' DIA)


RIM = 889.45


Pipe-107 = 882.14


Pipe-106A = 882.14


Pipe-106 = 882.14


CLEANOUT


RIM = 883.63


Pipe-106A = 882.86


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 888.40


Pipe-108 = 882.36


Pipe-107 = 882.36


CATCH BASIN - CURB


RIM = 888.34


Pipe-108A = 883.09


Pipe-108 = 883.09


CATCH BASIN


RIM = 889.17


Pipe-108B = 883.46


Pipe-108A = 883.46


Pipe-108C = 883.46


CLEANOUT


RIM = 886.14


Pipe-108B = 885.37


CLEANOUT


RIM = 884.86


Pipe-108C = 884.26


OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE


RIM = 883.75


Pipe-300 = 878.00


Pipe-301 = 878.00


Storm Pipe Table


Pipe Name


Pipe-100


Pipe-101


Pipe-101A


Pipe-101B


Pipe-101C


Pipe-101D


Pipe-101E


Pipe-101F


Pipe-101G


Pipe-102


Pipe-103


Pipe-103A


Pipe-103B


Pipe-103C


Pipe-104


Pipe-105


Pipe-105A


Pipe-105B


Pipe-105C


Pipe-105D


Pipe-106


Pipe-106A


Pipe-107


Pipe-108


Pipe-108A


Pipe-108B


Pipe-108C


Pipe-200


Pipe-300


Pipe-301


Size


36


36


18


18


18


12


10


10


10


27


27


12


10


10


24


24


18


12


15


15


15


8


15


12


10


8


6


12


18


18


Material


HDPE


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


PVC


RCP


HDPE


HDPE


Length


330


194


166


166


197


44


99


90


79


110


77


59


66


76


57


60


173


28


181


28


106


72


45


146


37


190


79


75


19


23


Slope


0.40%


0.40%


1.00%


1.00%


1.00%


0.50%


0.50%


1.00%


1.00%


0.50%


0.50%


1.00%


1.00%


1.00%


0.50%


0.50%


2.00%


2.00%


2.00%


2.00%


0.50%


1.00%


0.50%


0.50%


1.00%


1.00%


1.00%


2.00%


0.00%


8.60%


Description


W/ RCP FES AND GRATE


W/ RCP FES AND GRATE


W/ RCP FES AND GRATE


W/ RCP FES AND GRATE


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


PROPOSED


BUILDING


FFE = 889.80


PROPOSED


BUILDING


FFE = 888.10


MATCH LINE


SEE SHEET C1.20


C1.21


GRADING PLAN


- DETAILED


SOUTH


1" = 30'


North


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES PROPOSED


WET RETENTION BASIN


DENOTES PROPOSED


OVERFLOW ROUTE


1. DENOTES PROPOSED DOWNSPOUT CONNECTION. 6" PVC @


S=1.00% MIN. (SEE DETAIL). COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION


WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF


STORM SEWER.


2. DENOTES PROPOSED DOWNSPOUT CONNECTION. 6" PVC @


S=1.00% MIN. (SEE DETAIL). COORDINATE EXACT LOCATION


WITH ARCHITECTURAL PLANS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF


STORM SEWER.


3. DENOTES PROPOSED DOWNSPOUT AT GRADE WITH


SPLASHBLOCK


#


1


2


1


1


2


2


2


2


2


3


3


3


3



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UNOTES







W
W


W


W


W
W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


GAS GAS


G
A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


W
W


W W W
W W


W
W W


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T
T


T


ST


ST


ST


ST


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S


T


S


T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


ST


ST


S
T


S


T


E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


SAN SAN


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


S


T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST


W
W


W


FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO


FO


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F
O


F
O


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


W
W


W
W


W


E


E


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


T


T


T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T
T


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


W


E


E


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
AS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


G


A


S


G


A


S


G
A


S


T


T
T


T


T
T


T


T


T


T


F


O


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


W


S


T


S


T


ST


ST


889


888


8


8


7


8


8


8


8


8


9


8


8


9


8
8


7


8
8
7


896


895


WW


WWWWWWWWWWWW


F


M


F


M


F


M


FM


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


WWWWWWWWWW


ST ST ST ST


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


8


8


6


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


8
8
5


8


8


4


8


8


9


S


T


S


T


8
8
3


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S


G


A


S


GASGASGASGASGAS


G
A


S


E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


EEE


E


F
M


F
M


F
M


F
M


890


8


8


9


8


9


1


8


9


0


8
8
8


S


A


N


8
8
8


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S
T


S
T


8


8


3


8


8


2


8


8


1


8


8


0


8


7


9


8


7


8


8


7


8


20-30 yd roll off


STSTSTSTST


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


ST ST ST ST ST


S
T


ST ST


8
8


6


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


8
8
5


8
8
4


W
W


W
W


ST


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


8


8


9


889


889


8
8
8


8


8


8


8


8


9


8
8
9


8


8


8


8
8
9


8


8


9


8


8


9


8


8


9


8


8


9


8
8
8


8
8


8
8


8
8


8
8


7


8
8


6


8


8


5


8


8


6


8


8


7


8


8


3


8


8


3


8


8


3


8


8


2


8


8


1


8


8


0


8


7


9


8


7


8


8


8


0


8


8


1


8


8


2


8


7


6


8


7


4


8


9


9


8


9


8


8


9


7


8


9


6


8


9


5


8


9


4


8


9


3


8


9


2


898


8


8


9


8


9


1


8
9
2


8
9
3


8
9


4


8
9
5


8
9
6


8
9


7


8
9
8


8
9
7


S


T


S


T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


STSTSTSTST


8
8
3


H


P


H


P


H
P


8


8


2


8
8
1


8


8


8


8


8


7


8


8


6


8


8


5


8


8


4


8
8
3


8
8
2


8
8
1


8
8
8


8


8


6


8


8


5
8


8


4


8
8
3


8
8
2


8


8


1


8


8


7


8
9
8


W


W


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


W


W


W


W


W


W


PROPOSED


BUILDING


1. WDNR PERMIT COVERAGE IS REQUIRED. POST WDNR CERTIFICATE OF PERMIT COVERAGE ON SITE AND MAINTAIN UNTIL


CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES HAVE CEASED, THE SITE IS STABILIZED, AND A NOTICE OF TERMINATION IS FILED WITH


WDNR.


2. KEEP A COPY OF THE CURRENT EROSION CONTROL PLAN ON SITE THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT.


3. SUBMIT PLAN REVISIONS OR AMENDMENTS TO THE ENGINEER AT LEAST 5 DAYS PRIOR TO FIELD IMPLEMENTATION.


4. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ROUTINE SITE INSPECTIONS AT LEAST ONCE EVERY 7 DAYS AND WITHIN 24 HOURS


AFTER A RAINFALL EVENT OF 0.5 INCHES OR GREATER. KEEP INSPECTION REPORTS ON-SITE AND MAKE THEM AVAILABLE


UPON REQUEST.


5. INSPECT AND MAINTAIN ALL INSTALLED EROSION CONTROL PRACTICES UNTIL THE CONTRIBUTING DRAINAGE AREA HAS


BEEN STABILIZED.


6. WHEN POSSIBLE: PRESERVE EXISTING VEGETATION (ESPECIALLY ADJACENT TO SURFACE WATERS), MINIMIZE


LAND-DISTURBING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY ON SLOPES OF 20% OR MORE, MINIMIZE SOIL COMPACTION, AND PRESERVE


TOPSOIL.


7. REFER TO THE WDNR STORMWATER CONSTRUCTION TECHNICAL STANDARDS   AT


http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/stormwater/standards/const_standards.html.


8. INSTALL PERIMETER EROSION CONTROLS, (IF REQUIRED) CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE(S) PRIOR TO ANY


LAND-DISTURBING ACTIVITIES, INCLUDING CLEARING AND GRUBBING. USE WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD STONE


TRACKING PAD FOR ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE(S) (IF REQUIRED).


9. INSTALL INLET PROTECTION PRIOR TO LAND-DISTURBING ACTIVITIES IN THE CONTRIBUTING DRAINAGE  AREA AND/OR


IMMEDIATELY UPON INLET INSTALLATION. COMPLY WITH WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION


FOR CONSTRUCTION SITES #1060.


10. STAGE CONSTRUCTION GRADING ACTIVITIES TO MINIMIZE THE CUMULATIVE EXPOSED AREA. CONDUCT TEMPORARY


GRADING FOR EROSION CONTROL PER WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD TEMPORARY GRADING PRACTICES FOR EROSION


CONTROL #1067.


11. PERMITTING OF GROUNDWATER DEWATERING IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.  GROUNDWATER


DEWATERING IS SUBJECT TO A DNR WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT AND A DNR HIGH CAPACITY WELL APPROVAL IF


CUMULATIVE PUMP CAPACITY IS 70 GPM OR MORE.


12. PROVIDE ANTI-SCOUR PROTECTION AND MAINTAIN NON-EROSIVE FLOW DURING DEWATERING.  PERFORM DEWATERING


OF ACCUMULATED SURFACE RUNOFF IN ACCORDANCE WITH WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD DE-WATERING #1061.


13. COMPLETE AND STABILIZE WET POND PRIOR TO MASS LAND DISTURBANCE TO CONTROL RUNOFF DURING


CONSTRUCTION. REMOVE SEDIMENT AS NEEDED TO MAINTAIN 3 FEET OF DEPTH TO THE OUTLET, AND PROPERLY


DISPOSE OF SEDIMENT REMOVED DURING MAINTENANCE (REFER TO NR 528). CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN THE SEDIMENT


BASIN PER WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD SEDIMENT BASIN #1064 AND SEDIMENT TRAP # 1063.


14. INSTALL AND MAINTAIN SILT FENCING PER WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD SILT FENCE #1056. REMOVE SEDIMENT FROM


BEHIND SILT FENCES AND SEDIMENT BARRIERS BEFORE SEDIMENT REACHES A DEPTH THAT IS EQUAL TO ONE-HALF OF


THE FENCE AND/OR BARRIER HEIGHT.


15. REPAIR BREAKS AND GAPS IN SILT FENCES AND BARRIERS IMMEDIATELY.  REPLACE DECOMPOSING STRAW BALES


(TYPICAL BALE LIFE IS 3 MONTHS). LOCATE, INSTALL, AND MAINTAIN STRAW BALES PER WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD


DITCH CHECKS #1062.


16. INSTALL AND MAINTAIN FILTER SOCKS IN ACCORDANCE WITH WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD INTERIM MANUFACTURED


PERIMETER CONTROL AND SLOPE INTERRUPTION PRODUCTS # 1071.


17. IMMEDIATELY STABILIZE STOCKPILES AND SURROUND STOCKPILES AS NEEDED WITH SILT FENCE OR OTHER PERIMETER


CONTROL IF STOCKPILES WILL REMAIN INACTIVE FOR 7 DAYS OR LONGER.


18. IMMEDIATELY STABILIZE ALL DISTURBED AREAS THAT WILL REMAIN INACTIVE FOR 14 DAYS OR LONGER.


- BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 15 AND OCTOBER 15:


  STABILZE WITH MULCH, TACKIFIER, AND A PERENNIAL SEED MIXED WITH WINTER WHEAT, ANNUAL OATS, OR ANNUAL


  RYE, AS APPROPRIATE FOR REGION AND SOIL TYPE


- OCTOBER 15 THROUGH COLD WEATHER: STABILIZE WITH A POLYMER AND DORMANT SEED MIX, AS APPROPRIATE FOR


  REGION AND SOIL TYPE.


19. STABILIZE AREAS OF FINAL GRADING WITHIN 7 DAYS OF REACHING FINAL GRADE.


20. SWEEP/CLEAN UP ALL SEDIMENT/TRASH THAT MOVES OFF-SITE DUE TO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY OR STORM EVENTS


BEFORE THE END OF THE SAME WORKDAY OR AS DIRECTED BY THE WDNR/MUNCIPALITY. SEPARATE SWEPT MATERIALS


(SOILS AND TRASH) AND DISPOSE OF APPROPRIATELY.


21. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTROLLING DUST PER WDNR TECHNICAL STANDARD DUST CONTROL ON


CONSTRUCTION SITES # 1068.


22. PROPERLY DISPOSE OF ALL WASTE AND UNUSED BUILDING MATERIALS (INCLUDING GARBAGE, DEBRIS, CLEANING


WASTES, OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS) AND DO NOT ALLOW THESE MATERIALS TO BE CARRIED BY RUNOFF


INTO THE RECEIVING CHANNEL.


25. FOR NON-CHANNELIZED FLOW ON DISTURBED OR CONSTRUCTED SLOPES 4:1 OR GREATER (OR AS SHOWN ON THE


PLAN), PROVIDE CLASS I TYPE TYPE A (WITH ACCELERATED DEGRADABLE NETTING) EROSION CONTROL MATTING.


SELECT EROSION MATTING FROM WDOT’S  PRODUCT ACCEPTABILITY LIST (PAL); INSTALL AND MAINTAIN PER WDNR


TECHNICAL STANDARD NON-CHANNEL EROSION MAT #1052.


23. FOR CHANNELIZED FLOW ON DISTURBED OR CONSTRUCTED AREAS (OR AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS), PROVIDE NORTH


AMERICAN GREEN SC150 (OR APPROVED EQUAL) EROSION CONTROL MATTING.  INSTALL AND MAINTAIN PER WDNR


TECHNICAL STANDARD CHANNEL EROSION MAT #1053.


24. MAKE PROVISIONS FOR WATERING DURING THE FIRST 8 WEEKS FOLLOWING SEEDING OR PLANTING OF DISTURBED


AREAS WHENEVER MORE THAN 7 CONSECUTIVE DAYS OF DRY WEATHER OCCUR.


25. INSTALL ADDITIONAL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES (SUCH AS TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BASINS, DITCH


CHECKS, EROSION CONTROL MATTING, SILT FENCING, FILTER SOCKS, WATTLES, SWALES, ETC.), OR AS DIRECTED BY


WDNR/MUNICIPALITY


26. NOTICE OF TERMINATION: WHEN THE SITE HAS BEEN FULLY STABILIZED AND ALL STORMWATER DISCHARGES FROM THE


SITE AUTHORIZED UNDER THE NOI PERMIT HAVE BEEN ELIMINATED, A NOTICE OF TERMINATION SHALL BE FILED WITH


THE DNR. CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT A COMPLETED NOTICE OF TERMINATION APPLICATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH


THE PERMIT REQUIREMENTS TO THE SITE OWNER FOR EXECUTION PRIOR TO FINAL PAYMENT.


SILT FILTER FENCE


CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE


EROSION MAT


DITCH CHECK


INLET SEDIMENT GUARD


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


C1.30


EROSION


CONTROL PLAN


1" = 60'


North


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


DENOTES EROSION MAT (TYPE 1,


CLASS A) WITH ACCELERATED


DEGRADABLE NETTING


PROPOSED WET


RETENTION BASIN. BASIN


TO SERVE AS SEDIMENT


TRAP DURING


CONSTRUCTION


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


E ACADEMY ST


DENOTES PROPOSED


INLET PROTECTION


(TYP.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


SILT FENCE (TYP.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


TRACKING PAD


DENOTES PROPOSED


SILT FENCE (TYP.)


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES PROPOSED


SILT FENCE (TYP.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


SILT FENCE (TYP.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


INLET PROTECTION


(TYP.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


INLET PROTECTION


(TYP.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


INLET PROTECTION


(TYP.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


FIELDSTONE COBBLES


(8"-10" DIA) W/


GEOFABRIC LINER


PROPOSED


BUILDING


DENOTES EROSION MAT FOR


CONCENTRATED FLOWS


NORTH AMERICAN GREEN


SC150 (OR APPROVED EQUIV.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


DITCH CHECK (TYP.)


DENOTES PROPOSED


DITCH CHECK (TYP.)


DENOTES EROSION MAT FOR


CONCENTRATED FLOWS


NORTH AMERICAN GREEN


SC150 (OR APPROVED EQUIV.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

898.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

14" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UEROSION CONTROL NOTES AND PHASING



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UEROSION CONTROL LEGEND



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton







W
W


W


W


W
W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


W


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS GAS


GAS


W
W W


W W
W W


W


T


T


T


T


T
T


T
T


ST


ST


ST


ST


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


SAN SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


SAN
SAN


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E
E


E
E


E
E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


S


A


N


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST


FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO


FO


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F


O


F
O


F
O


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


E


SAN


SAN


SAN


SAN


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


E


E


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS
GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


T


T


T


T


T


T


T
T


T


T
T


T


T
T


T
T


T


T
T


T


O


H


W


OHW
OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


E


E


E


S
A


N


O


H


W


O


H


W


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


OHW


OHW
OHW


O


H


W


O


H


W


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


G
AS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
AS


GAS


GAS GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


GAS


G
A


S


GAS


G


A


S


G


A


S


G


A


S


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


W


C1.40


DEMO PLAN


SCALE: 1" = 30'


North


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


DENOTES EXISTING CONCRETE


TO BE REMOVED (TYP.)


DENOTES EXISTING PAVEMENT


TO BE REMOVED (TYP.)


DENOTES CONCRETE SIDEWALK REMOVAL AREA


DENOTES ITEM TO BE REMOVED OR DEMOLISHED


DENOTES PAVEMENT REMOVAL AREA


DENOTES GRAVEL DRIVE REMOVAL AREA


DENOTES ITEM TO BE ABANDONED OR REMOVED


xxxxx


DENOTES EXISTING GRAVEL


LOT TO BE REMOVED


DENOTES EXISTING GRAVEL


LOT TO BE REMOVED


DENOTES EXISTING PAVEMENT


TO BE REMOVED (TYP.)


EXISTING


BUILDING


EXISTING


BUILDING


DENOTES EXISTING PAVEMENT


TO BE REMOVED (TYP.)


DENOTES EXISTING


PROPERTY LINE


x


x


x


E ACADEMY ST


DENOTES TREE TO BE REMOVED 


DENOTES EXISTING


TREES TO BE REMOVED


DENOTES EXISTING RIP


TAP TO BE REMOVED


DENOTES EXISTING RIP


TAP TO BE REMOVED


DENOTES EXISTING RIP


TAP TO BE REMOVED



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

75' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 2466413



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

75' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 2466413



AutoCAD SHX Text

898.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

U



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN ACCORDANCE WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE 182.0175, DAMAGE  



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO TRANSMISSION FACILITIES, EXCAVATOR SHALL BE SOLELY  



AutoCAD SHX Text

RESPONSIBLE TO PROVIDE ADVANCE NOTICE TO THE DESIGNATED  



AutoCAD SHX Text

"ONE CALL SYSTEM" NOT LESS THAN THREE WORKING DAYS  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION REQUIRED TO  



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERFORM WORK CONTAINED ON THESE DRAWINGS, AND FURTHER,  



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCAVATOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL OTHER REQUIREMENTS OF  



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS STATUTE RELATIVE TO EXCAVATOR'S WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UDEMOLITION LEGEND







LEGEND


of


Date:


Drawing No.


SheetCSE Job No.:


Checked By:


Drawn By:


54


EC - 5


JAN 24, 2020


17 - 017


MJB


NJF


FOR


PLAT OF SURVEY WITH TOPOGRAPHY


STOUGHTON TRAILERS


1111 VETERANS ROAD


STOUGHTON, WI


0


( IN FEET )


1 inch =            ft.


Graphic Scale


100


20010050100


CSE
CAPITOL SURVEY ENTERPRISES


220 REGENCY CT. STE. 210


BROOKFIELD, WI 53045


Ph: (262) 786-6600


Fax: (414) 786-6608


www.capitolsurvey.com


W


I SCONS I N


N
o


r
t


h


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


C1.50


EXISTING


SURVEY


SCALE: 1" = 100'


North



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

1699.15'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1406.93'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP SET



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP SET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

COUNTY TRUNK HIGHWAY "A"



AutoCAD SHX Text

(66' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 09-05-11 N 89°21'12" E 2670.96'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1335.38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

ACADEMY STREET



AutoCAD SHX Text

(66' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 09-05-11 N 89°20'11" E 2669.58'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 89°21'12" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

1335.52'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 89°20'11" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

760.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 01°33'22" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

31.29'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 00°11'37" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

671.69'



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARC = 429.72' RADIUS = 580.00' CHORD = 419.96' BEARING = N 21°25'07" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 42°38'37" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

226.60'



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARC = 251.96' RADIUS = 1270.00' CHORD = 251.55' BEARING = N 36°57'36" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARC = 1078.86' RADIUS = 2815.29' CHORD = 1072.28' BEARING = N 60°51'24" W



AutoCAD SHX Text

MILWAUKEE, SAINT PAUL & PACIFIC RAILROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 71°50'05" W



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 00°07'36" W



AutoCAD SHX Text

2537.40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

VETERANS ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

VETERANS ROAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 60°51'24" W



AutoCAD SHX Text

1072.28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

292.22'



AutoCAD SHX Text

66.01'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 00°11'32" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

232.60'



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 89°20'11" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

593.99'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 00°11'32" W



AutoCAD SHX Text

232.60'



AutoCAD SHX Text

(80' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(80' WIDE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(99' WIDE RAIL ROAD RIGHT OF WAY)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NW CORNER SE 1/4 SEC. 09-05-11 1"IP FND



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 5



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 5



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL BUILDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT DRIVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRAME GATE HOUSE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRAVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRAVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRAVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL BUILDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

1335.48'



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRAVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRAVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRAVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

WETLAND LINE PER CSM 7211



AutoCAD SHX Text

WEST LINE OF THE SW 1/4 OF SEC. S 00°11'32" W 2083.71'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP FND



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP SET



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP SET



AutoCAD SHX Text

2"IP FND



AutoCAD SHX Text

1 1/2"IP FND



AutoCAD SHX Text

2"IP FND



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP FND



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP SET



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP SET



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 36°57'36" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

251.55'



AutoCAD SHX Text

61.30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

165.30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"IP FND



AutoCAD SHX Text

100.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT 1 CSM 7211



AutoCAD SHX Text

CSM 6876



AutoCAD SHX Text

3,088,504 SQ. FT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

UNPLATTED LANDS



AutoCAD SHX Text

UNPLATTED LANDS



AutoCAD SHX Text

1,550,879 SQ. FT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

UNPLATTED LANDS



AutoCAD SHX Text

138,154 SQ. FT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 00°07'36" W



AutoCAD SHX Text

33.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 00°11'32" W



AutoCAD SHX Text

33.00'



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATERMAIN PER PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATERMAIN PER PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATERMAIN PER PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASONRY RET. WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC. RET. WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

NE CORNER SE 1/4 SEC. 09-05-11 1"IP FND



AutoCAD SHX Text

NW CORNER SW 1/4 SEC. 09-05-11



AutoCAD SHX Text

CURB INLET



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOLLARD LIGHT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY WIRE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

STORM MANHOLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER OPTIC MARKER



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOLLARD



AutoCAD SHX Text

MAIL BOX



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLAG POLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL SIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOOD SIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

UTILITY POLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

YARD LIGHT



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOOD LIGHT POLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE LIGHT POLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL LIGHT POLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

AIR CONDITIONER



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

GAS METER



AutoCAD SHX Text

TV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TV PEDESTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

TELEPHONE PEDESTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TELEPHONE BOX AT GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TB



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELECTRIC BOX AT GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

EB



AutoCAD SHX Text

EDGE OF TREES AND BRUSH



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMB



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMBINATION SEWER



AutoCAD SHX Text

BURIED CABLE TELEVISION LINES



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOOD FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

MANHOLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

MH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CATCH BASIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CB



AutoCAD SHX Text

CATV



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELECTRIC PEDESTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

FO



AutoCAD SHX Text

//



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

SAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

DOOR SILL ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

994.32 DS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BURIED TELEPHONE LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BURIED GAS LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BURIED ELECTRIC LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SANITARY SEWER



AutoCAD SHX Text

STORM SEWER



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER MAIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

GAS VALVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HYDRANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WATER VALVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELECTRIC METER



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER



AutoCAD SHX Text

BURIED FIBER OPTIC LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

OVERHEAD UTILITY LINES



AutoCAD SHX Text

BROOKFIELD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

WI



AutoCAD SHX Text

S-2545



AutoCAD SHX Text

MICHAEL J.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BERRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

JAN. 24, 2020



AutoCAD SHX Text

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR S-2545



AutoCAD SHX Text

MICHAEL J. BERRY, R.L.S.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

     I CERTIFY THAT I HAVE SURVEYED THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY, AND THE ABOVE MAP IS A TRUE REPRESENTATION THEREOF AND SHOWS THE SIZE AND LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY, ITS EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES, THE LOCATION AND DIMENSIONS OF ALL VISIBLE STRUCTURES THEREON, BOUNDARY FENCES, APPARENT EASEMENTS AND ROADWAYS AND VISIBLE ENCROACHMENTS, IF ANY.      THIS SURVEY IS MADE FOR THE EXCLUSIVE USE OF THE PRESENT PROPERTY, AND ALSO THOSE WHO PURCHASE, MORTGAGE, OR GUARANTEE THE TITLE THERETO, WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FROM DATE THEREOF.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTES 1. LEGAL DESCRIPTION FROM DOCUMENTS PROVIDED BY CLIENT. 2. THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY INFORMATION AS SHOWN HEREON IS BASED, IN PART, ON INFORMATION FURNISHED BY THE UTILITY COMPANIES, DIGGERS HOTLINE AND THE LOCAL MUNICIPALITY. WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS BELIEVED TO BE RELIABLE, ITS ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS CANNOT BE GUARANTEED NOR CERTIFIED TO. 3. SUBJECT PROPERTY ARELOCATED WITHIN AN AREA HAVING A ZONE DESIGNATION X: AREAS DETERMINED TO BE OUTSIDE THE 0.2% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD PLAIN PER INFORMATION FROM THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA), ON FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 55025C0637H WITH A DATE OF IDENTIFICATION OF SEPTEMBER 17, 2014, AND FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 55025C0639H WITH A DATE OF IDENTIFICATION OF SEPTEMBER 17, 2014 IN COMMUNITY NO. 55091, CITY OF STOUGHTON, WHICH IS THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH THE SUBJECT PROPERTY IS SITUATED. 4. SITE BENCHMARKS: HYDRANT FLANGE BOLTS AS SHOWN HEREON. 6. ELEVATIONS BASED ON INFORMATION FROM THE DANE COUNTY COORDINATE SYSTEM AND ARE AT DANE COUNTY DATUM.



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 6876 AND LANDS IN THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWHSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, AND LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 7211 IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, IN THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN. CONTAINING: 4,777,537 SQUARE FEET, OR 109.6772 ACRES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton







·
·
·


·


·


·


·


·


·


·


·


$ /


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


C5.00


CONSTRUCTION


DETAILS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETAIL OF CONSTRUCTION NOT SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING SHALL CONFORM TO THE PERTINENT REQUIREMENTS OF THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND APPLICABLE SPECIAL PROVISIONS. WHEN POSSIBLE THE SILT FENCE SHOULD BE CONSTRUCTED IN AN ARC OR HORSESHOE SHAPE, WITH THE ENDS POINTING UPSLOPE TO MAXIMIZE BOTH STRENGTH AND EFFECTIVENESS. CROSS BRACE WITH 2" x 4" WOODEN FRAME OR EQUIVALENT AT TOP OF POSTS AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. MINIMUM 14 GAGE WIRE REQUIRED, FOLD FABRIC 3" OVER THE WIRE AND STAPLE OR PLACE WIRE RINGS ON 12" C-C. EXCAVATE A TRENCH A MINIMUM OF 4" WIDE AND 6" DEEP TO BURY AND ANCHOR THE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, FOLD MATERIAL TO FIT TRENCH AND BACKFILL AND COMPACT TRENCH WITH EXCAVATED SOIL. WIRE SUPPORT FENCE SHALL BE 14 GAGE MINIMUM WOVEN WIRE WITH A MAXIMUM MESH SPACING OF 6".  SECURE TOP OF GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TO TOP OF FENCE WITH STAPLES OR WIRE RINGS AT 12" C-C. GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SHALL BE REINFORCED WITH AN INDUSTRIAL POLY-PROPYLENE NETTING WITH A MAXIMUM MESH SPACING OF 3/4" OR EQUAL.  A HEAVY DUTY NYLON TOP SUPPORT CORD OR EQUIVALENT IS REQUIRED. STEEL POSTS SHALL BE STUDDED "TEE" OR "U TYPE" WITH A MINIMUM WEIGHT OF 1.28 lbs/lin. ft. (WITHOUT ANCHOR).  FIN ANCHORS SUFFICIENT TO RESIST POST MOVEMENT ARE REQUIRED.  WOOD POSTS SHALL BE A MINIMUM SIZE OF 4" DIA. OR 1-1/2" x 3-1/2" EXCEPT WOOD POSTS FOR GEOTEXTILE FABRIC REINFORCED WITH NETTING SHALL BE A MINIMUM SIZE OF 1-1/8" x 1-1/8" OAK OR HICKORY. ALTERNATIVES A AND B ARE EQUAL AND EITHER MAY BE USED.



AutoCAD SHX Text

6



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

GENERAL NOTES:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIEBACK BETWEEN FENCE POST AND ANCHOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

ANCHOR STAKE MIN. 18" LONG



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLOW DIRECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SILT FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SILT FENCE TIE BACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

(WHEN REQUIRED BY THE ENGINEER)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTE: ADDITIONAL POST DEPTH OR TIE  ADDITIONAL POST DEPTH OR TIE BACKS MAY BE REQUIRED IN UNSTABLE SOILS



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRENCH DETAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXCESS FABRIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIRECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOOD OR STEEL POSTS, LENGTH 4'-6" MIN. 2'-0" MIN. DEPTH IN GROUND



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

RING



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIRE SUPPORT FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

SUPPORT NETTING



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC REINFORCED WITH SUPPORT NETTING



AutoCAD SHX Text

NYLON CORD



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEAM



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

5



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'%%P



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'-0" MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

BACKFILL AND COMPACT TRENCH WITH EXCAVATED SOIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'-0" MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC WITH ALTERNATE SUPPORT COMPONENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLOW DIRECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SUPPORT NETTING



AutoCAD SHX Text

20 FT. MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

50 FT. MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING PAVEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

10'



AutoCAD SHX Text

20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

20'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING PAVEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTE: STRIP TOPSOIL PRIOR TO PLACING STONE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UPLAN VIEW



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UPROFILE VIEW



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

3'' TO 6'' WASHED OR CLEAR STONE. 12" (MIN) THICKNESS



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UGENERAL NOTES:



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLET PROTECTION DEVICES SHALL BE MAINTAINED OR REPLACED AT THE DIRECTION OF THE ENGINEER MANUFACTURED ALTERNATIVES APPROVED AND LISTED ON THE DEPARTMENT's EROSION CONTROL PRODUCT ACCEPTABILITY LIST MAY BE SUBSTITUTED. WHEN REMOVING INLET PROTECTION, CARE SHALL BE TAKEN SO THAT SEDIMENT TRAPPED ON THE GEOTEXTILE FABRIC DOES NOT FALL INTO INLET.  ANY MATERIAL FALLING INTO THE INLET SHALL BE REMOVED IMMEDIATELY.  FINISHED SIZE, INCLUDING FLAP POCKETS WHERE REQUIRED, SHALL EXTEND A MINIMUM OF 10" AROUND THE PERIMETER TO FACILITATE MAINTENANCE OR REMOVAL. FOR INLET PROTECTION, TYPE C WITH CURB BOX, AND ADDITIONAL 18" OF FABRIC IS WRAPPED AROUND THE WOOD AND SECURED WITH STAPLES.  THE WOOD SHALL NOT BLOCK THE ENTIRE HEIGHT OF THE CURB BOX OPENING. FLAP POCKETS SHALL BE LARGE ENOUGH TO ACCEPT WOOD 2X4.



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UINSTALLATION NOTES:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYPES B & C: TRIM EXCESS FABRIC IN THE FLOW LINE TO WITHIN 3" OF THE GRATE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DEMONSTRATE A METHOD OF MAINTENANCE, USING A DEWN FLAP, HAND HOLDS OR OTHER METHOD TO PREVENT ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT FROM ENTERING THE INLET. TYPE D: DO NOT INSTALL INLET PROTECTION TYPE D IN INLETS SHALLOWER THAN 30", MEASURED FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE INLET TO THE TOP OF THE GRATE. TRIM EXCESS FABRIC IN THE FLOW LINE TO WITHIN 3" OF THE GRATE. THE INSTALLED BAG SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM SIDE CLEARANCE, BETWEEN THE INLET WALLS AND THE BAG MEASURED AT THE BOTTOM OF THE OVERFLOW HOLES OF 3". WHERE NECESSARY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CINCH THE BAG USING PLASTIC ZIP TIES TO ACHIEVE THE 3" CLEARANCE. THE TIES SHALL BE PLACED AT A MAXIMUM IF 4" FROM THE BOTTOM OF THE BAG.



AutoCAD SHX Text

4"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

6"



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

USE REBAR OR STEEL ROD FOR REMOVAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UINLET PROTECTION, TYPE D 



AutoCAD SHX Text

(CAN BE INSTALLED IN ANY INLET TYPE WITH OR WITHOUT A CURB BOX AS PER NOTE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

3



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLAP POCKET



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE  FABRIC, TYPE FF



AutoCAD SHX Text

MINIMUM DOUBLE STITCHED  SEAMS ALL AROUND SIDE PIECES AND ON FLAP POCKETS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC,  TYPE FF



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UINLET PROTECTION, TYPE C



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%U(WITH CURB BOX)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

(CAN BE INSTALLED IN ANY INLET WITHOUT A CURB BOX)



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UINLET PROTECTION, TYPE B 



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%U(WITHOUT CURB BOX)



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC,  TYPE FF



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UINLET PROTECTION, TYPE A



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE FF



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRATED INLET



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'



AutoCAD SHX Text

2" x 4" STAKE AND  CROSS BRACING



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC,  TYPE FF



AutoCAD SHX Text

4" X 6" OVAL HOLE SHALL BE HEAT CUT INTO ALL FOUR SIDE PANELS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOR INLETS WITH CAST CURB BOX USE WOOD 2" X 4", EXTEND 10" BEYOND GRATE WIDTH ON BOTH  SIDES, LENGTH VARIES. SECURE TO GRATE WITH WIRE OR PLASTIC TIES



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLET SPECIFICATIONS AS PER THE PLAN DIMENSION LENGTH AND WIDTH TO MATCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT, BACK, AND BOTTOM TO BE MADE FROM SINGLE PIECE OF FABRIC.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIRECTION OF  RUNOFF WATER FLOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

BURIED FABRIC               MIN. 6" DEPTH  



AutoCAD SHX Text

2" x 4" STAKE AND CROSS BRACING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ATTACH GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE FF TO THE STAKES AND CROSS BRACING.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLET WITH OR WITHOUT GRATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOOD 2" x 4" EXTENDS 8" BEYOND GRATE WIDTH ON BOTH SIDES, LENGTH VARIES. SECURE TO GRATE WITH WIRE OR PLASTIC TIES



AutoCAD SHX Text

SOD REQ'D AT ALL PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

10' MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENDS WHERE RIPRAP IS 



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT SPECIFIED ON PLANS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIPRAP



AutoCAD SHX Text

<



AutoCAD SHX Text

SOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UPLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%USECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

W + 2'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

12''



AutoCAD SHX Text

W + 2'



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

3 x DIA. OR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

<



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' PRECAST, REINF'D CONC. TOP



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL STEPS @ 16'' O.C. WHEN STRUCTURE IS OVER 5 FEET DEEP. (ALIGN WITH OPENING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5'' PRECAST CONC. WALLS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE PLAN FOR SEWER SIZE AND INVERT ELEV.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REINF'D CONCRETE FOUNDATION W/ #5 RE-BAR @ 12'' EA. WAY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'-0''*



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'' MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'-0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

18'' MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT MORTAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

SUMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

ADD ADJUSTMENT RINGS AS-NEEDED



AutoCAD SHX Text

* STRUCTURES TO BE 4' DIA. OR AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEENAH FOUNDRY R-2502 FRAME & TYPE D GRATE, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEENAH FOUNDRY R-3015 FRAME & TYPE GRATE FOR STRUCTURES IN THE CURB LINE. TAPER CURB & GUTTER 5' EACH SIDE OF STRUCTURE TO MATCH WIDTH OF FRAME AT CATCH BASIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' TO 12'' ABOVE THE SEWER



AutoCAD SHX Text

MINIMUM 6'' BELOW PREDICTED DEPTH OF FROST



AutoCAD SHX Text

OR



AutoCAD SHX Text

FROST SLEEVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PREDICTED DEPTH OF FROST



AutoCAD SHX Text

WYE PATTERN FITTING



AutoCAD SHX Text

MINIMUM 4'' THICK CONCRETE



AutoCAD SHX Text

REMOVABLE WATERTIGHT COVER NEENAH FOUNDRY R-1970-1977, ROUND SERIES (SELECT APPROORIATE SIZE TO FIT CLEANOUT PIPE) OR APPROVED EQUAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

MIN. 9''



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRASS CLEANOUT PLUG



AutoCAD SHX Text

FILL WITH 2" OF VERMICULITE TERMINATING AT CLEANOUT HUB



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

AGGREGATE BASE COURSE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTE: CONCRETE COLLAR NOT REQUIRED IN NON-PAVED AREAS



AutoCAD SHX Text

RCP FLARED END SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLASS 1 PIPE BEDDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

HDPE PIPE (SIZE PER PLANS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

HDPE INTERNAL COUPLER  SPIGOT ADAPTER



AutoCAD SHX Text

DOUBLE WIDTH MAR-MAC COUPLER (OR APPROVED EQUAL) CENTERED ON JOINT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECURING STRAP (TYP) TWO ON EACH SIDE OF THE JOINT



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLOW LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEENAH R-1661 FRAME & LID WITH SELF-SEALING APPLICATION AND CONCEALED PICKHOLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDE BY SIDE JOINT (TYP)



AutoCAD SHX Text

 ADJUSTMENT RING



AutoCAD SHX Text

INTERNAL ADAPTOR SEAL RING



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDE BY SIDE JOINT (TYP)



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE ANNULAR SPACE BETWEEN THE PIPE AND MANHOLE WALL BELOW THE SPRINGLINE OF THE PIPE, SHALL BE PLUGGED WITH BUTYL RUBBER GASKET MATERIAL PRIOR TO PLACING OF CONCRETE BOTTOM. (STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 3.5.7(c) )



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF BENCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

RUBBER BOOT



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEWER PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAINLESS STEEL CLAMP AND BAND



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE E-Z STIK JOINT SHALL BE MANUALLY COMPRESSED TO SETTING THE NEXT CASTING, AJUSTING RING, OR MANHOLE SECTION.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1" E-Z STIK BETWEEN ALL ADJUSTMENT RINGS, BETWEEN TOP ADJUSTMENT RING AND FRAME USE INTERNAL ADAPTOR SEAL RING, ALL JOINTS MUST BE BACKPLASTERED INSIDE AND OUT.  (STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 3.5.4(2)(a) )



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 STRIPS OF 1" E-Z-STIK BETWEEN ALL MANHOLE SECTIONS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BUTTE JOINT



AutoCAD SHX Text

JOINT



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDE BY SIDE



AutoCAD SHX Text

48" MIN. DIA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1. PLACE E-Z-STIK ON THE CLEANED LOWER SURFACE WITH ENDS ALIGNED HORIZONTALLY (SEE DETAIL ABOVE)  2. CLEAN UNDERSIDE OF ADJUSTING RING OR CAST IRON FRAME AND SET IN PLACE.  3. TUCK POINT MORTAR INTO ANNULAR CRACK AND BACKPLASTERED INSIDE AND OUTSIDE OF ALL JOINTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'' MORTAR BENCH SLOPES TO CROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

  NOTE: 1) MEGALUG RESTRAINING GLANDS ON ALL MECHANICAL JOINTS, THE BOLTS & NUTS ARE TO BE HIGH STRENGTH LOW ALLOY STEEL (CORTEN) AS PER SECTION 11.6.5 OF A.W.W.A. C-111. 2) THE FOLLOWING HYDRANTS SHALL BE ALLOWED:                 MUELLER SUPER CENTURION 250 3-WAY FIRE HYDRANT U.S. PIPE METROPOLITAN/M-94 DUCTILE IRON FIRE HYDRANT WATEROUS 5 1/4'' PACER FIRE HYDRANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CRUSHED STONE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE BUTTRESS (MAY BE FIELD MIX)



AutoCAD SHX Text

3/4'' LIMESTONE CHIPS



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE BUTTRESS (MAY BE FIELD MIX)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE BLOCKING



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L HYDRANT BRANCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

C/L OF MAIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ANCHOR TEE & VALVE ASSEMBLY



AutoCAD SHX Text

VARIABLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'' MIN. BOTTOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

OF FLANGE TO



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.0' SUMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'-0" MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

MINIMUM 5'' COMPACTED BASE COARSE UNDER CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAVING SURFACE, TYP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

6.5''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-1''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAVING SURFACE, TYP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

2''R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

6-1/2''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-1''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

5-1/2/''



AutoCAD SHX Text

6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UREGULAR STYLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UREVERSE STYLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/2''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/2''



AutoCAD SHX Text

12''



AutoCAD SHX Text

MINIMUM 5'' COMPACTED BASE COARSE UNDER CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

12''



AutoCAD SHX Text

#4 BAR SPACED 3' o.c. (ONLY REQUIRED IN AREAS WITH SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO THE CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (IN AREAS WHERE SHOWN ON THE PLANS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2''R.



AutoCAD SHX Text

#4 BAR SPACED 3' o.c. (ONLY REQUIRED IN AREAS WITH SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO THE CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (IN AREAS WHERE SHOWN ON THE PLANS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAVING SURFACE, TYP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN & TOPSOIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6-1/4''



AutoCAD SHX Text

7-1/4''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAVING SURFACE, TYP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAWN & TOPSOIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6-1/2''



AutoCAD SHX Text

7-14''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/4''



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTE: REVERSE STYLE CURB LOCATIONS ARE NOTED ON THE PLANS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UREGULAR STYLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UREVERSE STYLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/4''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/4''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1/4''



AutoCAD SHX Text

12''



AutoCAD SHX Text

MINIMUM 5'' COMPACTED BASE COARSE UNDER CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

12''



AutoCAD SHX Text

MINIMUM 5'' COMPACTED BASE COARSE UNDER CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

#4 BAR SPACED 3' o.c. (BAR TO BE USED w/ SIDEWALK ONLY) 



AutoCAD SHX Text

#4 BAR SPACED 3' o.c. (BAR TO BE USED w/ SIDEWALK ONLY) 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE PAVING WITH



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEDIUM BROOM FINISH



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPACTED SUBGRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' CRUSHED 1.25" STONE BASE COURSE (COMPACTED)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTES: TIE BARS SHALL BE INSTALLED AT ALL AREAS WHERE CONCRETE PAVEMENT ABUTS CURB AND GUTTER AND CONSIST OF NO. 4 EPOXY COATED REINFORCING BARS 24 INCHES IN LENGTH AND 48 INCHES ON CENTER. CONTROL/ CONTRACTION/ CONSTRUCTION JOINTS SHALL BE SPACED AT 12' MAXIMUM AND CONSTRUCTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE AMERICAN CONCRETE INSTITUTE (ACI-330R) RECOMMENDATIONS. EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE PROVIDED WHERE PAVEMENT ABUTS FIXED OBJECTS, MEETING ACI-330R STANDARDS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTROL/CONTRACTION JOINT (SAWED) 1" DEEP FOR EARLY ENTRY SAWS OR   OF THE SLAB 14 OF THE SLAB THICKNESS IF A CONVENTIONAL SAW IS USED.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSTRUCTION JOINT 



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL EXPANSION JOINT BETWEEN FIXED OBJECTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

12''



AutoCAD SHX Text

CREATE A MINIMUM 12" THICKENED CONCRETE EDGE AROUND PERIMETER   



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'(min)



AutoCAD SHX Text

7''



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTE: MATRIX HPS 950 MACRO/MICRO SYNTHETIC BLEND FIBER OR FORTA FERRO MACRO FIBER TO BE ADDED TO MIX AT A DOSAGE RATE OF 5 POUNDS PER CUBIC YARD.



AutoCAD SHX Text

12"



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTROL JOINT - 2'' DEEP



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ 1/4'' RADIUS EDGE TYP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE PAVING WITH



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEDIUM BROOM FINISH



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPACTED SUBGRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

5.0''*



AutoCAD SHX Text

4.0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

* NOTE:   SIDEWALK SHALL BE 7" AT DRIVEWAY SECTIONS



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTES: CONTROL JOINT SPACING SHALL BE A MAXIMUM OF 5' AND CONSTRUCTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH AMERICAN CONCRETE INSTITUTE (ACI) RECOMMENDATIONS. EXPANSION JOINTS SHOULD BE PROVIDED WHERE PAVEMENT ABUTS FIXED OBJECTS. MATRIX BI BLEND MICRO FIBER TO BE ADDED AT A RATE OF 1.5 POUNDS PER CUBIC YARD.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPACTED 4'' CRUSHED STONE BASE COURSE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6' 0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

10"



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.5"



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'6"



AutoCAD SHX Text

11"



AutoCAD SHX Text

7"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8"



AutoCAD SHX Text

10"



AutoCAD SHX Text

1" DIA. HOLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

EDGE OF PAVEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

#3 RE-BAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

FINISH GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOTE: ANCHOR WHEEL STOPS WITH #6 RE-BAR - 18" MIN. LENGTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

OUTLET



AutoCAD SHX Text

DOWNSPOUT ADAPTER



AutoCAD SHX Text

6"



AutoCAD SHX Text

CAST IRON



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLET



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRE-FINISHED TO



AutoCAD SHX Text

MATCH DOWNSPOUT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRANSITION FROM CAST IRON TO



AutoCAD SHX Text

PVC WITH FERNCO COUPLING



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF BERM ELEV. = 883.75



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF OVERFLOW ELEV. = 882.75



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERMANENT FABRIC OUTFALL AS NOTED ON EROSION CONTROL PLAN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

24" OUTLET PIPE (SLOPE AND LENGTH AS INDICATED ON PLAN)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:1 (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE (SEE DETAIL) SET RIM AT ELEV. = 883.75



AutoCAD SHX Text

3:1 (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'' RCP INLET PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8' SAFETY SHELF



AutoCAD SHX Text

N.W.L.=878.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL 24'' CLAY LINER TO ----  



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL 12'' COVER OVER CLAY LINER  (TOPSOIL OR  SILTY SAND) 



AutoCAD SHX Text

*



AutoCAD SHX Text

*NOTE:FOR AREAS WHERE THE IN-SITU SOILS ARE NOT SUITABLE AS A LINER (PER A GEOTECHNICAL REPRESENTATIVE), THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL A LINER PER THE DETAIL WITH THE FOLLOWING PROPERTIES:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLAY LINER TO HAVE THE FOLLOWING PROPERTIES:PI $ 12 : LL / 25 12 : LL / 25  25 MOISTURE CONTENT = 0-2% ABOVE OPTIMUM PLACE LINER IN 9" LIFTS, COMPACT TO 90% MODIFIED PROCTOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOT=874.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

2:1 (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' PERMANENT POOL DEPTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

MINIMUM 6" STRIPPED TOPSOIL UNDER EMBANKMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

CUT TRENCH OR KEYWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

2' MINIMUM DEPTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

8' MINIMUM WIDTH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SLURRY ANTI-SEEP COLLARS. (TYP, 2 LOCS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

3:1



AutoCAD SHX Text

N.W.L.=878.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

6"



AutoCAD SHX Text

6"



AutoCAD SHX Text

SAFETY SHELF



AutoCAD SHX Text

3:1 (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

3:1 (TYP.)



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIDTH VARIES. SEE GRADING PLAN 10' MINIMUM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2%



AutoCAD SHX Text

2%



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF BERM ELEV. NOTED ON PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BERM DETAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

<



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEENAH FOUNDRY #R-2557 INLET FRAME & GRATE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT MORTAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' PRECAST, REINF'D CONC. TOP



AutoCAD SHX Text

5'' PRECAST CONC. WALLS



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'' INLET/OUTLET INV = 878.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REINF'D CONCRETE FOUNDATION W/ #5 RE-BAR @ 12'' EA. WAY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' ORIFICE INV = 878.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UPROFILE VIEW



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%UPLAN VIEW



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' ORIFICE  CAST INTO  CONCRETE SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

18'' SUMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

6'' CONCRETE SEPARATOR SECTION w/ OUTLET ORIFICECAST INTO



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'' OUTLET



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'' INLET



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIM ELEV. = 883.75



AutoCAD SHX Text

30"



AutoCAD SHX Text

5' DIA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF WEIR ELEV = 879.75



AutoCAD SHX Text

4.00'' ASPHALT BINDER COURSE WISDOT LT-3



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.50'' ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE WISDOT LT-5 



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPACTED SUBGRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

13'' CRUSHED 1.25'' STONE  BASE COURSE (COMPACTED)



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL TACK COAT PER WDOT SPECIFICATIONS



AutoCAD SHX Text

IF LAYERS ARE NOT INSTALLED AT THE SAME TIME.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SILT FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

01



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRACKING PAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

02



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

INLET PROTECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

03



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIP RAP AT ENDWALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

04



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

CATCH BASIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

05



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

STORM CLEANOUT



AutoCAD SHX Text

06



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

RCP FLARED END SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

08



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SANITARY MANHOLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

11



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYPICAL HYDRANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

13



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

VERTICAL FACE CURB - 18 IN WIDE



AutoCAD SHX Text

14



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEPRESSED CURB - 18 IN WIDE



AutoCAD SHX Text

15



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE PAVEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

17



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

18



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRECAST WHEEL STOP



AutoCAD SHX Text

19



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DOWNSPOUT CONNECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

07



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASIN OUTLET WITH STRUCTURE



AutoCAD SHX Text

09



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE



AutoCAD SHX Text

10



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HEAVY DUTY PAVEMENT



AutoCAD SHX Text

16



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SAMPLING MANHOLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

12







VAN


ACCESSIBLE


RESERVED


PARKING


VEHICLES WITH VET OR


DIS PLATES OR STATE


DISABLED CARD


THIS SPACE


VAN


ACCESSIBLE


RESERVED


PARKING


VEHICLES WITH VET OR


DIS PLATES OR STATE


DISABLED CARD


THIS SPACE


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


C5.10


CONSTRUCTION


DETAILS



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRUNCATED DOMES DETECTABLE WARNING FIELD (SEE DETAIL)



AutoCAD SHX Text

           CONCRETE SIDEWALK 



AutoCAD SHX Text

DISTANCE AS  INDICATED ON PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'' MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEPRESSED CURB & GUTTER



AutoCAD SHX Text

8% SLOPE MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

5'-0" MIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.0%%% MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

3'-0" MIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'' MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

5'-0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROVIDE VAN-ACCESSIBLE SIGN AT VAN-ACCESS LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN SHALL CONFORM TO STATE SPECIFICATIONS



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'-0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'-0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'' ; 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'' ; 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETECTABLE WARNING FIELD (TYPICAL)****



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLAN VIEW



AutoCAD SHX Text

MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

MIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

* THE C DIMENSION IS 50% TO 65% IF THE D DIMENSION



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

2.4''



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.65''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.5''



AutoCAD SHX Text

*



AutoCAD SHX Text

*



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.9''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.4''



AutoCAD SHX Text

ELEVATION VIEW



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLAN VIEW



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRUNCATED DOMES DETECTABLE WARNING PATTERN DETAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

0.2'



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

RAMP  



AutoCAD SHX Text

B



AutoCAD SHX Text

***DETECTABLE WARNING FIELDS TO BE NEENAH FOUNDRY DETECTABLE WARNING FIELDS (OR APPROVED EQUAL), UNPAINTED NATURAL COLOR AND FIELD WEATHERED PRIOR TO INSTALLATION (VERIFY COLOR W/ OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

1'-6''



AutoCAD SHX Text

5'-0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'' DIAMETER BY 3'-6'' DEEP CONCRETE BASE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2'' DIAMETER GALVANIZED STEEL POST



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROVIDE VAN-ACCESSIBLE SIGN AT VAN-ACCESS LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

HANDICAP PARKING SIGN SHALL CONFORM TO STATE SPECIFICATIONS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BARRIER STYLE CONCRETE CURB



AutoCAD SHX Text

MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DEPRESSED STYLE CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER AS INDICATED ON PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS INDICATED ON PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DETECTABLE WARNING FIELD (SEE DETAIL)



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

12" EXPANSION JOINT



AutoCAD SHX Text

12" EXPANSION JOINT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1.8%%%



AutoCAD SHX Text

8%V



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'-0''



AutoCAD SHX Text

REGULAR STYLE CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER AS INDICATED ON PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HANDICAP RAMP - TYPE 4



AutoCAD SHX Text

05



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HANDICAP SIGN - WALL MOUNTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

03



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

TRUNCATED DOMES



AutoCAD SHX Text

04



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HANDICAP SIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

02



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HANDICAP RAMP - TYPE 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

01



AutoCAD SHX Text

NTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIDOT GUARDRAIL



AutoCAD SHX Text

06







W


W
W


W


W


W


W


W


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S
G


A
S


W


T
T


O
H


W
O


H
W


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


E
E


E
E


S
T


F
O


F
O


F
O


F
O


F
O


F
O


F
O


F
O


F


O


F


O


F


O


E


S
A


N


S
A


N


W W W W


E


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


T


T


T


T
T


T


T
T


T
T


T
T


O


H


W


O


H


W


O
H


W
O


H
W


O
H


W


O
H


W


O
H


W


O
H


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


E


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


O
H


W


O
H


W


O
H


W


O
H


W
O


H
W


O
H


W


O


H


W


O


H


W


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


GAS


T


T


T


T


T


T


T


G
A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


W


S
T


S
T


8
8
9


8
8
8


8


8


7


8


8


8


8


8


9


8


8


9


887


8
8
7


8
9
6


8
9
5


W


W
W


W
W


W
W


W
W


F


M


F


M


FM FM FM FM FM FM


W
W


W
W


W
W


W


S
T


S
T


S
T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


8


8


6


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


S
A


N
S


A
N


8
8
5


8


8


4


8


8


9


S


T


883


G
A


S


G
A


S


GASGASGASGASGASGASGASGAS


G


A


S


G
A


S
G


A
S


G
A


S


E


E


EEEEEEEE


E


E
E


FMFMFM


8
9
0


8


8


9


8


9


1


8


9


0


8


8


8


8


8


8


S


T


S


T


S


T


S


T


ST


8


8


3


8


8


2


8


8


1


8


8


0


8


7


9


8


7


8


8


7


8


2
0


-
3


0
 
y


d
 
r
o


l
l
 
o


f
f


S
T


S
T


S
T


ST ST ST ST ST


ST


S
T


ST


S


T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


S
T


886


WWWWWWWW


885


884


W
W


W


ST
ST


S


T


S


T


8


8


9


8
8
9


8
8
9


8
8
8


8


8


8


8


8


9


889


8


8


8


889


8


8


9


8


8


9


8


8


9


8


8


9


888


888888


887


886


8


8


5


8


8


6


8


8


7


8


8


3


8


8


3


8


8


3


8


8


2


8


8


1


8


8


0


8


7


9


8


7


8


8


8


0


8


8


1


8


8


2


8


7


6


8


7


4


8


9


9


8


9


8


8


9


7


8


9


6


8


9


5


8


9


4


8


9


3


8


9


2


8
9
8


8


8


9


8


9


1


8
9
2


893


894


895


896


897


898


897


S


T


S


T


S


T


STSTST


S
T


S
T


S
T


8
8
3


H


P


H


P


HP


8


8


2


881


8


8


8


8


8


7


8


8


6


8


8


5


8


8


4


8
8
3


8
8
2


8
8
1


8
8
8


8


8


6


8


8


5
8


8


4


8
8
3


8
8
2


8


8


1


8


8


7


8
9
8


W


SANSAN
SANSAN


W


W


W


W


Z
o


n
e


d
 
I
n


s
t
i
t
u


t
i
o


n
a


l


BUILDING


BUILDING


Automobile parking


A
u


t
o


m
o


b
i
l
e


 
p


a
r
k


i
n


g


Mechanical equipment


w/ stone mulch, see


MEP dwgs., typ.


Truck circulation


Automobile


parking


Truck


circulation


Gravel


storage


zone


Truck


circulation


Future paving @


Stoughton Trucking


Truck circulation


Truck circulation


3:1 slope area, low-mow seed


mix, see notes


Wet retention pond,


see Civil dwgs.


Gate access: 26' swing


gate, manual, locked


Swale,  rip-rap


coverage


Circulation


Gate access: 30' slide


gate w/ operator


Perimeter fencing, 6' ht.


chain-link, typ.


Perimeter fencing, 6'


ht. chain-link, typ.


Ex. to


remain


Ex. to


remain


Ex. to


remain


Ex. swale to remain


Perimeter fencing, 6'


ht. chain-link, typ.


Turf


Ex. to


remain


Ex. to


remain


Gate access:


TBD. 48' slide


gate, manual


Ex. to


remain


Retaining wall, 4' off back of curb, system


TBD, variable ht., See Civil dwgs., see notes


Guardrail @ wall, all wood const., coord


w/ wall construction, see Civil dwgs.


Perimeter fencing, 6' ht. chain-link,


slats as req. adj. to Institutional


zoning, located 10' off face of wall


Bufferyard zone @ adj. Institutional


use, planting volumes 'best effort' per


the space available, tapers towards the


south, see notes, typ.


Bufferyard


zone, typ.


Gate access: 32' swing


gate w/ operators


Retaining wall, see Civil dwgs.,


stone strip @ back of curb, typ.


Retaining wall, single tier, 3' off


back of curb, system TBD, variable


ht., See Civil dwgs., see notes


Street frontage; monument sign (see


Arch. dwgs.) w/ 30' flagpole, see notes


Swale along drive, wet tolerant seed mix, see notes


Ex. to


remain


Perimeter fencing,


6' ht. chain-link, typ.


Perimeter fencing, 6 ht. black chain-link, slats as


req. adj. to Institutional zoning, located 6' off curb


Revised edge of pavement w/ swale,


wet-tolerant seed mix, see notes


Ex. to


remain


Ex. to


remain


Ex. to


remain


Fencing @ 2' off wall, guardrail @ 2'


off fencing, stone strip beneath


Turf


Landscape


enlargement, see L5.00


Landscape


enlargement,


see L5.00


4 Jun


Kal


6 Ros


CFW


3 Mis


Mor


14 Hem


Hap


3 Mal


Adi


5 Ace


Gre


5 Ame


Col


5 Gle


Sky


5 Pic


Gla


5 Abi


Con


3 Que


Bic


5 Abi


Con


Turf


Stone strip @ guardrail


Low-mow seed mix


Low-mow seed mix


Low-mow seed mix


Bike racks, qty.


05, see notes


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


L1.00


OVERALL


LANDSCAPE


PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

2537.40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

GM



AutoCAD SHX Text

EM



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

N 89°21'12" E



AutoCAD SHX Text

1335.52'



AutoCAD SHX Text

75' WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT PER DOC. NO. 2466413



AutoCAD SHX Text

898.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

GV



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

MB



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

H



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WV



AutoCAD SHX Text

30" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

30" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

30" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

36" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

26" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

24" TRIPLE



AutoCAD SHX Text

24" QUAD



AutoCAD SHX Text

14" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

8" TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GUY



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

100'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

1"=50'-0" @ 42x30"







8


8


9


896


895


W


F
M


WWWWWWW


ST ST ST


SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN


8


8


9


G


A


S


GASGASGAS


EE


F
M


S
T


ST ST ST ST ST


W


S


T


S


T


8


8


9


889


889


H


P


H


P


H
P


S
A


N


33 Hem


Hap


4 Syr


Pal


5 Jun


Kal


13 Rib


Gre


8 Ros


CFW


18 Thu


Tec


43 For


Bro


16 Jun


Kal


22 Rhu


Gro


3 Phy


Cen


6 Rib


Gre


3 Til


Gle


8
8


6


8
8
5


8
8


8


8
8
7


8


8


6


8


8


7


W


5 Spi


Fri


1 Vib


Spi


16 Hem


Hap


9 Ros


CFW


5 Tax


Den


1 Til


Gle


13 Rib


Gre


Turf


18" stone maint.


strip w/ metal edge,


see notes, typ.


Turf


Bike racks, qty.


02, see notes


Sheet No.


Project No.


Revisions


20-1004.00


MAY 26, 2020


L5.00


LANDSCAPE


DETAILS,


SCHEDULES


& NOTES


78-604 Landscape Requirements:


Zoned Heavy Industrial Zoning


Code Category Measurement Ratio Required Points


(P) Paved Areas * 25,675 SF 40 / 10,000 SF 103


(* Only paving devoted to automobile parking.)


Min. 30% climax / tall trees, min. 40% shrubs


Within 10' of pavement


(S) Street Frontage 100 LF 20 / 100 LF 20


Min. 50% climax / tall trees, min. 30% med. trees


No shrubs


Within 10' of ROW


(F) Bldg. Perimeter 1,820 LF 20 / 100 LF 364


No climax trees, all other categories okay


Driplines within 10' of bldg. @ maturity


(B) Building Area 117,000 SF 5 / 1,000 SF 585


All plant categories okay


Locate away from other req. plantings


1,072 Required


581 Provided


(491) Net


78-610 Bufferyard Requirement:


Partial requirement @ east property: Adj. property zoned Institutional


Opacity Ratio = 0.60


Code Category Measurement Ratio Required Points


20' width 950 LF 221 / 100 LF 2,100 Required


Req. min. 6' ht. solid fence (chain-link w/ slats) 1,290 Provided


(810) Net


3,172 Total Required


1,871 Total Provided


(1,301) Total Net


Landscape Regulations


Finished grade


NOTES:


Rootball


Mulch


Approved backfill, thoroughly


mixed prior to installation.


Native grade or certified


compacted grade.


-See planting specifications prior


to installation of plants.


Existing soil.


Soil under rootball undisturbed to


support root ball and reduce settling.


Remove transit guard.


Backfill:  Use approved backfill per


specification.  Water thoroughly to


eliminate air pockets.  Do not tamp!


2-4" depth of woody mulch:  Shredded hardwood


bark, aged or similar mulch.  Keep mulch 6"


back from trunk.


Remove wire baskets or cut top and fold down in


the pit after positioned and backfilled halfway.


Cut and remove all poly ties.


Remove excess soil from top of ball to natural


surface of rootball-if needed.


Prune tree as required- methods


vary depending on species and


time of year.  (See specification)


Wrap trunk of tree if required (See specifications).


Plant tree at 1"-2" above level of


finish grade.  Allow for settling.


4" soil saucer.


Rootball - Remove burlap and


twine from top 


1


3  rootball.  If


synthetic matr'l - remove


completely once in place.


Notes: -See planting


specifications prior to installation


of plants.


8' Long hardwood stake placed on windward and


leeward side of tree.  Galvanized wire with rubber


hose (typical)  Alternate:  Nylon strapping


1.01  All landscape installation & maintenance to conform with all applicable local codes & ordinances,


including (but not limited to) select portions of City of Stoughton Municipal Code.


1.02  See Site dwgs. for work limits, scope of construction, hardscape, dimensions &/or construction notes.


See Civil dwgs. for all hardscape, grading, stormwater management, site utilities & erosion control.


See Landscape dwgs. for landscape plans, site amenities, details, schedules, notes. See


Architectural dwgs. for all construction. See Electrical drawings for all power, circuiting, lighting &


access control.


1.03  Contractor shall provide shop drawings and material submittals of all hardscape & landscape


construction elements shown in plan set for Landscape Architect review prior to construction,


including (but not limited to) ornamental fencing & all access control equipment.


1.04  Contractor to provide samples for Landscape Architect's approval on all colors, finishes & materials


prior to construction, including (but not limited to) topsoil, gravels, mulches, seed mixes et al.


1.05  Caution: underground utilities are present on site. The Contractor shall verify location of all above-


and below-grade utilities, both public & private, prior to commencement of site construction. If


unanticipated above- or below-grade conditions are encountered, notify Client & Landscape Architect


prior to proceeding. Coordinate with local public utility locating entity as needed.


1.06  Contractor to verify hardscape layout prior to construction. Contact Landscape Architect if


discrepancies are found.


1.07  Contractor to limit construction traffic to within work limit lines. All adjacent damage shall be the


responsibility of the contractor to restore. See Civil drawings for limits of disturbance.


1.08 Existing trees to remain on site shall be protected. Erect snow fencing @ 15' R or tree driplines,


whichever is farther. All construction traffic, storage, compaction, parking or other disturbance within


protection zones shall be prevented for the duration of construction, except for work specifically


indicated in the site plans.


1.09  All written dimensions supersede scaled dimensions. All dimensions are taken from face of curb, wall


or existing building foundations.


2.01  Rough grading & topsoil import/spreading are to be completed by others. Finish grading, seed area


and ornamental planting bed preparation shall be the landscape contractor's responsibility. Verify all


existing site and grading conditions prior to construction.


2.02  All areas disturbed by site construction shall be fine graded and restored with vegetative cover as


shown. See plans for cover types & locations, see specifications for materials & installation.


2.03  Contractor shall verify plant quantities shown on plan. Symbol quantities take precedence over plant


keys. Forward a material list to the Landscape Architect prior to construction identifying species,


sizes & plant sources to be used on the project.


2.04  All plant materials shall conform to the schedule and shall meet quality requirements outlined in the


ANLA "American Standard for Nursery Stock", ANSI Z60.1-2004.The Landscape Architect reserves


the right to reject any substandard planting material. Such rejected material shall be removed from


the project site immediately.


2.05 The Owner's representative shall be allowed to inspect and approve trees at the nursery prior to


delivery to the site.


2.06  All nursery tags/labels shall be left on plant materials until the project punch-list inspection is


completed by the Landscape Architect. Untagged materials will be assumed to be deficient.


2.07  All planting beds shall contain screened blended topsoil mix to a min. depth of 18". All turf, low-mow


& other seeded areas shall have min. 6". Suitable existing soil may be used & mixed if previously


approved. Subgrade shall be tilled and/or scarified prior to placement of topsoil. Contractor shall be


responsible for obtaining soil tests for existing or imported topsoil. Soil testing results shall include


(but is not limited to) soil pH, % organic matter, phosphorus, potassium, calcium & texture


(percentages of sand, silt and/or clay.) Remove excessive clay, gravel & stones detrimental to


healthy plant growth. Remove all debris greater than 1" diameter.


2.08  Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that all tree pits & planting areas drain properly. Notify


Landscape Architect if drainage or moisture problems are encountered while planting.


2.09  Contractor shall backfill all trees, shrubs & evergreens with a mix of 1/3 plant starter mix & 2/3


remaining soil. Plant Starter Mix to be provided by Liesener Soils, Cedarburg WI, or approved equal.


2.10 All perennial and groundcover areas shall receive a 3" layer of plant starter mix and perennial starter


fertilizer, rototilled into the top 6" of blended topsoil in beds.


2.11  Unless otherwise shown, all perennials & shrubs to be planted in triangular arrangements. For plants


not shown individually, refer to the spacing shown in the plant schedule.


2.12 Mulch shall be as follows:


- General planting bed mulch: Shall contain 2-3" of shredded hardwood bark mulch,


- Building maintenance strip: Shall contain 2-3" of decomposed / crushed granite installed over


non-woven geotextile fabric over compacted subgrade.


2.13  Bed edging shall be as follows:


- Metal edging shall be installed at the building maint. strip. Edging shall be 3/16" x 4" alum.


mill-finish. Permaloc "CleanLine" or "ProSlide", or approved equal.


- 6" deep shovel-cut edging shall be installed at all other locations, typ.


2.14  Contractor shall provide positive drainage away from all structures for a minimum of 10'.


2.15 Contractor shall be responsible for providing base bid comprehensive landscape establishment,


maintenance and warranty care for one year after installation. Work shall include all watering,


weeding, pruning, fertilizing, pest management and spring / fall clean-up's. Prior to beginning


installation, the contractor shall submit a 12-mo. calendar for review/approval including all anticipated


maintenance activities.


Landscape Notes


General Notes


Tree Planting Detail


2


Not To Scale


Shrub Planting Detail


3


Not To Scale


3.01  This work shall consist of preparing the seed beds and furnishing, sowing and mulching the required


seed on the various seeded areas, as outlined in the site plans and specifications. All turf restoration


shall be seeded turf unless otherwise noted.


3.02  Rough grading, drainage work, topsoiling and fine grading shall be completed before sowing the seed


mixes. The areas to be seeded shall be worked with plow chisels, discs & harrows, soil finishers


and/or other appropriate equipment until a reasonably even and loose seedbed is obtained. Seed


beds shall be prepared immediately in advance of the seeding. If proposed seed areas are weedy,


contractor to apply herbicide or other weed control measures to eliminate weeds. Conform with seed


supplier's specifications if required.


3.03  Confirm that anticipated project schedule date(s) fall within the respective seed supplier's approved


calendar prior to installation. Installations completed outside of acceptable seeding dates shall be the


performed at the sole responsibility and expense of the contractor. For dormant seeding, a min. of


one over-seed application in the following season will be required.


3.04  Seeds shall be PLS and will be mixed in accordance w/ mfr's specifications. Provide invoices,


bag-tags or mix analysis results for approval prior to installation.


3.05  The seed mixtures shall be sown by means of equipment adapted to the purpose. Mechanical


distribution of seed (i.e. Truax seed drill, Brillion seeder, cultipacker, slit-seeder, drop spreader or


broadcast spreader) are the only accepted methods. No hand-broadcasting of seed.


3.06  No seeding shall occur if the wind exceeds 12 MPH.


3.07  Coordinate erosion control and/or mulching with Civil dwgs:


- In sloped areas steeper than 4:1, erosion matting shall be installed by others. Landscape installation


shall be coordinated with the erosion control contractor.


- In areas with slopes between 4:1 and 8:1, landscape contractor shall apply clean hay or straw


mulch, free of debris and seeds, on all newly seeded areas. Mulch shall be uniformly spread over the


designated area at a rate of 55 bales per acre or as indicated in the respective seed supplier's


specifications. Mulch material shall be chopped and blown into the seeded area.


- Lightweight E.C. matting and/or hydromulch will be accepted as a no-cost alternate if approved by


Landscape Architect prior to application.


3.08  See Civil dwgs for erosion control devices. Coordinate with erosion control contractor where required


to ensure that topsoil, seeding and/or mat installations are properly coordinated.


3.09 Contractor is responsible for obtaining soil tests for all seeded areas. Soil testing results shall include


(but is not limited to) soil pH, % organic matter, phosphorus, potassium, calcium & texture


(percentages of sand, silt and/or clay.) Contaminated soil shall be removed from the project site if


discovered. If necessary, supply soil amendments required for specified seed mixes and/or


coordinate alternate mixes if soils cannot be properly conditioned.


3.10 Seed mix substitutions will be considered only if submitted for approval 10 days before the close of


bidding. All mixes shall be installed & maintained per supplier's specifications.


BLUEGRASS MIX:


"Landscape 40 Mix" shall be supplied by Reinders, Madison WI, 608-244-0200. Apply @ 5 lbs per


1000 GSF.


SLOPE MIX:


"No-Mow Lawn Mix" shall be supplied by Prairie Nursery, Westfield WI, 800-476-9453. Apply @ 200


lbs per AC, including Annual Rye cover crop.


WET-TOLERANT MIX:


"Detention Basin-Bioswale" shall be supplied by Prairie Nursery. Apply @ 10 lbs per AC, plus cover


crop. Contractor shall coordinate with LA to discuss seasonally appropriate cover crop prior to


submittal & installation.


3.11  Contractor shall be responsible for providing base bid comprehensive seed area establishment,


maintenance and warranty care for all seeded areas:


- Bluegrass & low-mow areas shall be for one season after installation. Work shall include all


watering, weeding, fertilizing & mowing. Assume 24 mowings per year for bluegrass, 4 mowings per


year for low-mow. Assume one full overseeding in the spring following installation.


- Wet-tolerant areas shall be for three years after installation. Work shall include all watering, weeding


(both spot herbicide and/or hand-pulling, depending on necessity), fertilizing, spring / fall clean-up &


mowing. Expect 4-5 mowings in the first year, 3-4 mowings in the second year and 2-3 mowings in


the third year. All mowings shall be timed to cut germinating weeds but not desirable forbs / grasses.


Overseed each spring any bare areas larger than 1 sq. ft.


- Prior to beginning installation, the contractor shall submit a 36-month calendar for review/approval


including all anticipated maintenance activities.


Seeding Notes & Mixes Preliminary Plant Schedule


Note: Final species / quantities TBD. Contractor shall be responsible for calculating all plant quantities, typ.


Symbol Qty. Botanical Name Common Name Installed


Size


Root Spacing Category Value Points Notes


Shade Trees


Ace Gre 5 Acer saccharum 'Green Mountain' Green Mountain Sugar Maple 3" Cal. B/B As Shown Decid tree / climax 75 375 In buffer area
Gle Sky 5 Gleditsia tri. 'Skyline' Skyline Honeylocust 3" Cal. B/B As Shown Decid tree / tall 30 150 In buffer area
Que Bic 3 Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak 3" Cal. B/B As Shown Decid tree / climax 75 225 In buffer area
Til Gle 4 Tilia x. flavens 'Glenleven' Glenleven Linden 2.5" Cal. B/B As Shown Decid tree / tall 30 120


Subtotal, Shade Trees 870


Ornamental Trees


Ame Col 3 Amelanchier x. 'Cole's Select' Cole's Select Serviceberry 8' Ht. B/B As Shown Decid tree / low 10 50 Heavy Three Stem
Mal Adi 3 Malus 'Adirondak' Adirondak Upright Crabapple 2" Cal. B/B As Shown Decid tree / low 10 30 Single Stem


Subtotal, Ornamental Trees 80


Evergreen Trees


Abi Con 10 Abies concolor White Fir 6' Ht. B/B As Shown Ever tree / tall 40 400 In buffer area
Pic Den 5 Picea glauca var. densata Black Hills Spruce 6' Ht. B/B As Shown Ever tree / low 12 60 In buffer area
Thu Tec 18 Thuja occ. 'Technito' Dwarf Techny Arborvitae 5' Ht. B/B As Shown Ev tree / low 12 216


Subtotal, Evergreen Trees 676


Deciduous Shrubs


For Bro 7 Forsythia vir. 'Bronxensis' Bronx Forsythia 18-24" Ht. 2 Gal. 48" o.c. Decid shrub / low 1 7
Phy Cen 3 Physocarpus 'Center Glow' Center Glow Ninebark 30-36" Ht. 5 Gal. 60" o.c. Decid shrub / tall 5 15
Rhu Gro 22 Rhus aromatica 'Gro Low' Gro Low Sumac 15-18" Ht. 2 Gal. 48" o.c. Decid shrub / low 1 22
Rib Gre 33 Ribes alpinum 'Green Mound' Green Mound Alpine Currant 15-18" Ht. 2 Gal. 42" o.c. Decid shrub / low 1 33


Ros CFW 23 Rosa 'Carefree Wonder' Carefree Wonder Shrub Rose 15-18" Ht. 2 Gal. 36" o.c. Decid shrub / low 1 23
Spi Fri 5 Spiraea fritschiana Fritsch Spirea 15-18" Ht. 2 Gal. 36" o.c. Decid shrub / low 1 5
Syr Pal 4 Syringa meyeri 'Palibin' Palibin Dwf. Lilac 30-36" Ht. 7 Gal. 54-60" o.c. Decid shrub / med 3 12
Vib Spi 1 Viburnum carlesii 'Spiced Bouquet' Spiced Bouquet Comp. Kspice Vib. 30-36" Ht. 7 Gal. 60" o.c. Decid shrub / med 3 3


Subtotal, Deciduous Shrubs 120


Evergreen Shrubs


Jun Kal 20 Juniperus chinensis 'Kallay' Kallay Compact Juniper 24" sprd. 7 Gal. 54-60" o.c. Ev shrub / med 5 100
Tax Den 5 Taxus x. media 'Densiformis' Densiform Japanese Yew 24" sprd. 7 Gal. 54-60" o.c. Ev shrub / med 5 25


Subtotal, Evergreen Shrubs 125


Perennials & Grasses


Hem Hap Hemerocallis 'Happy Returns' Happy Returns Daylily 4.5" Cont. 18-24" o.c. N/A - -
Hem Ros Hemerocallis 'Rosy Returns' Rosy Returns Daylily 4.5" Cont. 18-24" o.c. N/A - -
Mis Mor Miscanthus 'Morning Light' Morning Light Maidenhairgrass 1 Gal. Cont. 30-36" o.c. N/A - -


Total Points Provided
1,871


4.01 Chain-link fencing: All domestic steel tube (Wheatland or sim.), min. 2" dia. driven posts @ max. 8'


o.c., min. 1-3/8" dia. top & bottom rails w/ 3/8" diagonal truss rods @ each section, 9-gauge


aluminized fabric w/ 2" mesh opening, twisted selvage @ top & knuckle selvage @ bottom. Height


TBD, min. 6' ht. @ buffer area, incl. slats. Construction to match fencing @ adjacent Stoughton


Trucking site, typ.


4.02 Chain-link gates: Constructed sim. to chain-link fencing. Slide gates w/ internal rollers & cantilever


rail, alum. construction acceptable.


4.03 Gate operators: Post-mounted operators, power TBD per site availability (i.e. 208v single phase or


230v / 460v three-phase), all sensor loops as req. per code & Owner access needs. Operators shall


be Linear, Osco or sim. All access control (card readers, call boxes, gooseneck mounts & data


connections back to bldg.) per Owner.


4.04 Retaining walls: Style TBD. Either gabion (galvanized steel wire baskets filled with stone), segmental


concrete (Keystone, County Materials or sim.) or large-scale gravity (Redi-Rock or sim.) Wall heights


& layouts per Civil. All wall engineering shall be the contractor's responsibility.


4.05 Flagpole: Shall be 30' ht., internal halyard, clear anodized aluminum, footing per mfr. requirements,


available from Eder Flag, Oak Creek WI, or sim.


4.06 Bike racks: Shall be 'UX' model, inverted-U, surface mounted, w/ SS hardware, galvanized finish.


Available from Madrax, Waunakee WI, or sim.


Hardscape Notes


Building Enlargement


1


Scale: 1"=30'-0"


Office Enlargement


4


Scale: 1"=30'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

ZINKPOWER - Stoughton



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

As Shown @ 42x30"







EXPOSED FASTENER 
VERTICAL METAL SIDING -
CORRUGATED PROFILE, 
GALVALUME FINISH


MATERIAL LEGEND


MS-1


EXPOSED FASTENER 
METAL SIDING - BOX RIB 
PROFILE, GALVALUME 
FINISH


MS-2


ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
METAL PANELS -
SMOOTH FINISH, CUSTOM 
MATCH BLUE KYNAR 
FINISH


ACM-1


EXPOSED FASTENER 
METAL SIDING - BOX RIB 
PROFILE,  CUSTOM 
MATCH BLUE KYNAR 
FINISH


MS-3


ALUMINUM COMPOSITE 
METAL PANELS -
SMOOTH FINISH, CLEAR 
ANODIZED FINISH


ACM-2


CAST IN PLACE 
CONCRETE - RUB BOTH 
FACES


CNC-1


EXPOSED FASTENER 
METAL SIDING - BOX RIB 
PROFILE,  LIGHT 
TRANSMITTING PANEL


MS-4


T/ Fin. Flr.
0' - 0"


UPPER PLANT
EAVE


55' - 2"


ABD CE


ZINKPOWER STOUGHTON


F A.25A.5A.75B.25B.5B.75C.25C.5C.75D.25D.5D.75


EL13


T/ Fin. Flr.
0' - 0"


LOWER PLANT
EAVE


49' - 10"


UPPER PLANT
EAVE


55' - 2"


13 11 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 112 214 316 15
EL17


EL18 58' - 0"
17678


BUILDING 
HEIGHT


30
48


10
' -


 0
"


70' - 0"
21336


EL26


~580' TO ACADEMY ST.


10
' -


 0
"


EL02


EL21


EL05


6' CHAINLINK 
FENCE ON TOP 
OF 6'-7' 
RETAINING 
WALL


EQ. SEE SITE 
PLAN


T/ Fin. Flr.
0' - 0"


LOWER PLANT
EAVE


49' - 10"


A B DC E
EL18


EL21


FA.25 A.5 A.75 B.25 B.5 B.75 C.25 C.5 C.75 D.25 D.5 D.75


20' - 0"
6096


25' - 0"
7620


1/2" / 1'-0"


1/4" / 1'-0"1/4" / 1'-0"


EL26


EL17


T/ Fin. Flr.
0' - 0"


LOWER PLANT
EAVE


49' - 10"


UPPER PLANT
EAVE


55' - 2"


1311109876541 122 143 1615


EL02


6' BLACK CHAINLINK 
FENCE WITH SLATS 
ON ALL SIDES OF 
DUMPSTER 
ENCLOSURE


20' - 0"
6096


1/2" / 1'-0"


ZINKPOWER STOUGHTON


23' - 0"
7010


EL05


5'
 - 


0"
5'


 - 
0"


8' - 0"


ARTWORK TO 
BE DETERMINED


PAINTED BLUE OR 
GRAY STEEL SIGN 
BASE TO MATCH 
BUILDING 
MATERIALS


SELF-
ILLUMINATED 
SIGN CABINET


BUILDING NUMBER


PROJECT # DATE:


DRAWN  BY:


CHECKED BY:


DESIGNED  BY: REVISIONS:


SHEET NO.


SHEET TITLE:


ARCHITECT
WINTER DESIGN, INC.
1840 S. WALNUT AVE
FREEPORT, IL 61032


SITE PLAN 
REVIEW


APPLIES TO "A, G," SERIES SHEETS ONLY


1840 S. WALNUT AVE. 
FREEPORT, IL 61032


© 2020 WINTER CONSTRUCTION INC. THESE DRAWINGS ARE 
THE PROPERTY OF WINTER CONSTRUCTION INC. AND ARE 
NOT TO BE REPRODUCED IN ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE 
EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF WINTER CONSTRUCTION INC.


DESIGN/BUILDER
WINTER CONSTRUCTION INC.
1840 S. WALNUT AVE
FREEPORT, IL 61032


NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION


STRUCTURAL ENGINEER
IMEG
4700 KENNEDY DRIVE
EAST MOLINE, IL 61244


A4.0


EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


---


ZI
N


KP
O


W
ER


  -
St


ou
gh


to
n


5.26.20


ASW


SAW


SAW


ST
O


U
G


H
TO


N
, W


I


1" = 20'-0"1 NORTH ELEVATION


1" = 20'-0"2 EAST ELEVATION


1" = 20'-0"3 SOUTH ELEVATION


1" = 20'-0"4 WEST ELEVATION


KEYNOTES


Key Value Keynote Text


EL02 POWDER COATED GALV. STEEL LOUVER - COLOR CUSTOM
BLUE


EL05 PREFAB PAINTED OR GALV. STEEL CANOPY
EL13 144" STEEL SIGN LETTERS
EL17 FURNACE EXHAUST STACK 10' ABOVE HIGH ROOF RIDGE
EL18 SCRUBBER EXHAUST STACK 10' ABOVE HIGH ROOF RIDGE
EL21 GALV. STEEL ROOF ACCESS LADDER WITH 8' SECURITY


ACCESS GUARD AT BASE, WITH WALK-THRU PLATFORM AT
ROOF, FALL PROTECTION, LADDER TO BE PROVIDED
TURNKEY WITH STAMPED ENGINEERING SUBMITTAL
DRAWINGS. LADDER TO MEET ANSI A14.3, OSHA 1910.27
and 1926.1053 STANDARDS.


EL26 AIR FILTER EXHAUST STACK 10' ABOVE HIGH ROOF RIDGE


1" = 20'-0"5 OFFICE WEST ELEVATION


1" = 20'-0"6 OFFICE EAST ELEVATION


1" = 20'-0"7 OFFICE NORTH ELEVATION


1" = 20'-0"8 OFFICE SOUTH ELEVATION


No. Date


1/4" = 1'-0"9 MONUMENT SIGN







GENERAL
PHOTOMETRIC
SCHEDULE


AVERAGE
FOOT-CANDLES


1.83


0 TILT


0 TILT


0 TILT


0 TILT


75 DEGREE TILT


75 DEGREE TILT


LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE
CALLOUT SYMBOL DESCRIPTION OUTPUT MOUNTING HEIGHT MODEL QUANTITY


OA DSX1 LED P1 50K T3M MVOLT 7,056 Lumens POLE 15'-0" Lithonia Lighting,


DSX1 LED P1 50K


T3M MVOLT


7,056 Lumens


8


OA2 DSX1 LED P6 50K T3M MVOLT 19,290 Lumens POLE 25'-0" Lithonia Lighting,


DSX1 LED P6 50K


T3M MVOLT


19,290 Lumens


10


OA3 DSX1 LED P1 50K BLC MVOLT 7,057 Lumens POLE 15'-0" Lithonia Lighting,


DSX1 LED P1 50K


BLC MVOLT


7,057 Lumens


1


OB DSX1 LED P6 50K T3M MVOLT 19,290 Lumens WALL 20'-0" Lithonia Lighting,


DSX1 LED P6 50K


T3M MVOLT


19,290 Lumens


9


OC D-Series Floodlight Size 3 with 6 COBs


P2 Lumen Package 5000K CCT 70CRI


Type WFL Distribution


21,387 Lumens WALL 25'-0" Lithonia Lighting,


DSXF3 LED 6 P2 50K


70CRI WFL


21,387 Lumens


8


OD D-Series Floodlight Size 3 with 6 COBs


P2 Lumen Package 5000K CCT 70CRI


Type WFL Distribution


21,387 Lumens POLE 25'-0" Lithonia Lighting,


DSXF3 LED 6 P2 50K


70CRI WFL


21,387 Lumens


17


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.3


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.5


0.5


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.6


1.0


2.0


1.6


1.0


0.7


0.5


0.6


0.9


1.3


2.5


1.7


1.0


0.7


0.6


0.7


1.0


1.8


1.7


0.9


0.7


0.5


0.6


0.8


1.4


2.3


1.2


0.8


0.6


0.5


0.7


1.3


2.4


1.5


0.9


0.8


0.8


1.0


1.7


2.8


1.5


1.0


0.7


0.7


0.9


1.4


2.6


1.8


1.2


1.0


0.8


0.9


1.3


1.3


1.1


0.9


0.8


0.6


0.7


0.6


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.6


1.2


1.9


2.9


3.5


3.4


2.7


2.1


1.7


1.8


2.2


3.1


3.5


3.3


2.6


2.2


2.1


2.3


3.0


3.5


3.5


2.9


2.3


2.0


2.2


2.5


3.3


3.6


3.0


2.3


2.0


2.0


2.3


3.0


3.6


3.3


2.7


2.5


2.5


2.6


3.3


3.5


3.2


2.4


2.1


2.1


2.4


3.3


3.8


3.7


3.1


2.5


2.0


1.8


2.2


2.2


2.0


2.2


2.4


2.2


2.0


1.8


1.7


1.5


0.8


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.6


1.1


1.7


2.3


2.4


2.4


2.3


1.8


1.5


1.6


2.0


2.4


2.4


2.4


2.4


2.0


1.9


2.1


2.4


2.5


2.5


2.4


2.0


1.8


2.0


2.4


2.5


2.5


2.5


2.1


1.8


1.8


2.1


2.5


2.5


2.5


2.5


2.2


2.1


2.4


2.5


2.4


2.5


2.2


1.9


1.9


2.2


2.7


2.7


2.8


2.8


2.3


2.1


1.9


1.8


2.0


2.2


2.6


2.6


2.7


3.2


3.7


4.3


3.4


1.7


0.9


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.4


0.6


1.1


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.2


0.9


1.0


1.2


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.5


1.2


1.1


1.4


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.3


1.1


1.3


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.1


1.1


1.4


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.4


1.3


1.5


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.2


1.2


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.7


1.9


1.7


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.7


2.0


2.3


2.6


3.3


3.6


3.6


3.7


3.7


2.9


2.1


1.6


0.9


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.8


1.1


1.2


1.2


1.3


1.5


1.7


2.1


2.5


2.7


2.8


3.1


3.4


3.5


3.6


2.8


2.7


2.4


1.9


1.5


1.3


1.4


1.5


1.4


0.8


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.8


1.0


1.2


1.4


1.8


2.2


2.5


2.6


2.7


2.8


3.0


3.1


3.0


3.0


3.0


2.9


2.8


3.0


3.2


4.0


3.5


2.0


1.2


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.5


0.4


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.2


1.5


1.8


2.0


2.2


2.5


2.8


3.2


3.4


3.3


3.2


3.2


3.1


3.3


3.8


3.7


4.0


4.1


3.3


2.7


2.3


1.8


1.5


1.3


1.2


1.2


1.5


1.7


1.8


1.2


0.9


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.8


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.3


0.3


0.5


0.7


0.9


1.2


1.5


1.9


2.1


2.3


2.6


2.9


3.3


3.7


3.6


3.4


3.3


3.3


3.5


3.6


3.9


4.0


4.0


4.0


3.4


2.8


2.6


2.5


2.6


2.6


2.8


3.1


4.0


4.1


2.7


2.0


1.5


1.5


1.3


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.1


1.0


0.8


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.5


0.7


1.1


1.4


1.8


2.2


2.4


2.6


2.8


3.1


3.4


3.8


3.8


3.7


3.7


3.7


3.9


3.9


3.8


3.8


3.8


3.7


3.5


3.1


2.9


2.9


2.9


3.1


3.9


3.9


4.3


4.6


3.9


3.4


3.2


3.1


2.9


2.9


2.8


2.6


2.7


1.9


1.2


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.5


0.9


1.4


1.8


2.3


2.5


2.9


3.2


3.4


3.6


3.9


4.1


3.9


4.1


4.2


4.1


4.0


4.0


4.1


4.2


4.1


4.2


3.9


3.7


3.5


3.5


3.6


3.8


4.1


4.4


4.3


4.4


4.3


4.1


3.5


3.6


3.6


3.8


4.0


4.2


5.2


4.1


2.4


1.4


0.8


0.6


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.6


1.0


1.6


2.2


2.7


2.9


3.0


3.3


3.8


4.1


4.0


4.3


4.0


4.1


4.1


3.9


3.7


3.7


3.8


3.8


3.9


4.1


4.4


4.6


4.5


4.5


4.7


5.1


5.0


4.4


4.0


3.9


3.8


3.6


3.4


3.6


3.8


4.1


4.4


4.4


4.1


4.0


3.3


2.6


2.1


1.3


0.7


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.6


1.1


1.8


2.6


3.2


3.0


2.2


2.7


4.1


4.0


3.6


3.6


3.6


3.7


4.3


4.0


3.9


4.0


4.0


4.1


3.7


4.1


4.5


4.9


5.1


5.0


5.1


5.3


4.9


4.4


4.1


3.8


3.7


3.5


3.3


3.4


3.8


4.1


4.1


3.9


3.8


3.9


3.9


2.9


2.6


2.2


1.6


0.9


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.5


1.0


1.7


2.3


2.6


2.0


1.8


2.1


2.7


3.4


4.6


4.4


3.4


3.2


3.4


3.8


4.3


5.3


5.9


5.9


5.9


5.8


4.4


3.9


3.6


3.4


3.4


3.3


3.2


3.3


3.5


3.9


4.1


3.9


3.4


3.3


3.2


2.9


2.7


2.5


2.1


1.3


0.8


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.4


3.1


3.3


2.6


2.7


3.5


4.4


7.0


6.3


4.0


3.1


2.9


2.6


3.1


3.8


3.9


3.9


3.8


3.3


3.8


4.6


3.9


3.3


3.2


3.1


2.9


2.7


2.6


2.5


2.1


1.0


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.8


3.6


4.9


3.4


0.8


2.1


4.7


6.2


6.3


4.7


2.6


4.1


6.3


5.1


3.7


3.1


2.9


2.6


2.5


2.6


2.7


2.6


1.6


0.9


0.6


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.8


3.8


5.1


5.4


0.2


1.1


4.2


8.4


8.2


3.9


1.2


3.1


8.8


7.5


5.1


3.2


2.5


2.2


2.3


2.6


2.8


2.8


2.7


1.6


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.8


3.8


5.1


6.1


0.1


0.2


0.6


1.4


1.4


0.6


0.3


0.5


4.0


6.6


4.1


2.3


1.7


1.7


2.1


2.6


2.9


3.7


3.4


3.0


1.8


0.9


0.7


0.7


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.8


3.7


4.8


3.7


0.5


0.8


0.9


0.8


0.8


1.1


1.6


2.3


2.7


3.4


3.7


4.8


2.9


1.0


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.6


3.3


4.0


2.7


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.5


0.8


1.2


1.8


2.5


2.8


3.6


4.1


3.1


1.3


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.1


1.9


2.5


2.8


2.3


0.3


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.6


0.7


1.0


1.5


2.2


2.6


3.4


3.4


2.9


1.5


0.8


0.6


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.8


1.3


1.8


2.0


1.5


0.5


0.2


0.5


0.8


0.9


0.9


1.0


1.3


1.9


2.5


2.8


3.6


2.8


2.0


0.9


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.6


0.9


1.2


1.3


0.9


0.6


0.6


1.4


1.6


1.3


1.1


1.0


1.1


1.6


2.3


2.6


2.7


2.7


2.6


1.6


1.2


1.0


0.8


0.8


0.7


0.7


0.8


0.7


0.7


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.5


0.7


0.8


0.8


0.6


0.7


2.5


3.6


2.7


1.7


1.2


1.0


1.0


1.3


1.9


2.2


2.3


2.5


2.5


2.1


1.9


2.1


1.9


1.4


1.4


1.1


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.5


0.8


6.8


6.3


3.3


1.8


1.2


0.9


0.9


1.2


1.5


1.8


2.0


2.2


2.3


2.3


2.2


2.4


2.6


2.9


2.8


2.7


1.8


1.0


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.5


0.7


0.8


0.8


0.6


0.7


8.2


6.7


3.4


1.8


1.2


1.0


1.0


1.1


1.3


1.5


1.7


1.9


2.0


2.2


2.4


2.6


3.5


3.6


4.0


5.0


3.5


1.8


1.0


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.6


0.9


1.2


1.2


0.8


0.6


5.2


5.7


3.3


1.9


1.3


1.1


1.0


1.1


1.3


1.4


1.6


1.7


1.9


2.1


2.4


2.8


3.0


3.5


3.8


3.8


3.7


2.9


1.8


1.0


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.8


1.3


1.8


2.0


1.4


0.5


1.7


2.8


2.5


1.8


1.4


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.3


1.5


1.5


1.7


1.8


2.0


2.3


2.7


2.8


2.9


3.0


3.5


3.7


3.3


2.6


2.1


1.2


0.8


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.5


1.1


1.9


2.5


2.8


2.2


0.4


0.5


1.2


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.5


1.7


1.7


1.8


1.9


2.0


2.1


2.1


2.3


2.6


2.8


2.9


3.0


3.0


2.6


2.4


2.1


1.6


1.1


0.8


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.9


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.6


3.3


3.8


2.6


0.4


0.4


0.7


1.1


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.0


2.1


2.2


2.2


2.2


2.1


1.9


1.9


2.0


2.2


2.5


2.8


2.6


2.4


2.3


2.2


2.2


2.3


2.1


1.5


1.4


1.3


1.0


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.8


3.7


4.8


3.5


0.4


0.5


1.0


1.4


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.7


1.8


2.1


2.6


2.9


3.0


2.9


2.8


2.4


2.0


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.9


2.2


2.2


2.1


2.1


2.2


2.3


2.5


2.6


3.0


2.9


3.2


2.3


1.4


0.9


0.8


0.8


0.6


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.3


2.8


3.8


5.1


5.8


0.5


1.2


2.2


2.3


2.0


1.8


1.8


1.9


2.2


2.6


3.3


4.1


4.3


4.3


3.9


3.0


2.3


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.8


1.8


1.8


2.0


2.3


2.5


3.1


3.7


3.7


4.8


4.4


2.6


1.5


1.1


1.0


0.8


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.3


2.8


3.8


5.1


5.4


0.7


3.9


4.7


3.3


2.3


1.9


1.9


2.2


2.7


3.3


4.1


5.2


5.9


5.8


4.9


3.7


3.0


2.4


1.9


1.6


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.5


2.8


3.2


3.7


3.8


3.8


3.4


2.7


2.0


1.5


1.3


0.8


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.3


2.8


3.7


4.8


3.4


1.4


8.3


6.4


3.5


2.2


1.9


2.0


2.5


3.3


4.3


5.1


5.5


5.9


5.8


5.4


4.8


4.0


2.9


2.2


1.7


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.6


1.8


2.2


2.6


2.8


2.9


3.3


3.8


3.8


3.0


2.9


2.6


2.1


1.6


0.8


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.3


2.5


3.2


3.4


2.6


1.4


8.6


6.5


3.5


2.3


1.9


2.1


2.6


3.6


5.1


6.2


4.6


2.5


2.5


5.2


5.9


4.7


3.2


2.3


1.7


1.4


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.3


1.3


1.5


1.7


2.0


2.3


2.6


2.9


3.1


3.1


3.0


3.0


3.0


2.8


2.6


1.5


0.8


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.0


1.8


2.4


2.6


2.0


0.8


4.5


5.0


3.4


2.3


2.0


2.2


2.7


3.8


5.4


6.7


4.6


0.9


1.2


5.4


6.3


4.9


3.3


2.3


1.8


1.4


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.3


1.4


1.5


1.7


2.0


2.4


2.7


2.8


2.7


2.9


3.0


3.0


2.9


2.8


1.5


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.8


1.2


1.7


1.8


1.3


0.5


1.4


2.5


2.5


2.2


2.1


2.2


2.7


3.7


5.1


6.0


4.8


3.2


3.2


5.2


5.7


4.6


3.2


2.3


1.8


1.5


1.3


1.2


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.5


1.7


1.8


2.1


2.2


2.4


2.6


3.0


3.2


3.9


3.5


3.0


1.8


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.3


0.6


0.9


1.1


1.1


0.8


0.4


0.6


1.2


1.6


1.8


2.0


2.2


2.7


3.3


4.2


4.9


5.8


6.5


6.4


5.5


4.6


3.9


3.0


2.3


1.8


1.5


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.6


1.6


1.7


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.7


1.9


2.3


2.8


3.1


3.7


3.9


4.9


3.0


1.1


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.3


0.4


0.7


0.8


0.7


0.5


0.4


0.5


0.9


1.4


1.7


1.9


2.1


2.3


2.7


3.3


4.1


5.2


5.7


5.6


4.9


3.8


3.0


2.5


2.0


1.8


1.6


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.9


2.2


2.2


2.2


2.2


2.1


2.0


1.7


1.5


1.4


1.5


1.8


2.3


2.8


3.1


3.8


4.3


3.3


1.5


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.6


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.4


0.6


1.3


1.7


1.8


1.8


1.9


2.0


2.2


2.7


3.3


3.9


4.1


4.1


3.8


3.1


2.5


2.1


1.8


1.7


1.6


1.6


1.8


2.0


2.4


2.9


3.2


3.0


3.1


3.0


2.5


2.0


1.7


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.9


2.6


2.9


3.5


3.7


3.1


1.7


0.7


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.5


0.7


0.8


0.8


0.5


0.5


1.6


2.7


2.6


2.1


1.8


1.7


1.7


1.9


2.2


2.6


2.8


2.9


2.9


2.8


2.4


2.1


1.8


1.7


1.6


1.7


1.8


2.0


2.5


3.1


3.9


4.5


4.2


4.4


4.3


3.4


2.7


2.0


1.6


1.4


1.4


1.6


2.1


2.8


3.1


3.7


3.0


2.2


0.8


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.3


0.6


0.9


1.2


1.2


0.8


0.7


5.0


5.5


3.5


2.2


1.7


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.0


2.1


2.1


2.1


2.1


2.0


1.8


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.7


1.9


2.4


3.0


4.0


5.2


5.8


5.5


5.7


5.6


4.7


3.4


2.5


1.9


1.5


1.3


1.4


1.8


2.5


3.0


3.0


2.9


2.5


1.1


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


0.8


1.3


1.8


2.0


1.3


1.0


8.5


6.7


3.6


2.1


1.6


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.6


1.5


1.4


1.5


1.6


2.0


2.6


3.5


4.8


6.0


6.4


4.4


4.9


6.6


5.6


4.2


2.9


2.0


1.5


1.3


1.3


1.6


2.2


2.6


2.8


2.8


2.5


1.5


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.5


1.1


1.9


2.5


2.8


2.1


0.9


7.6


6.5


3.5


2.1


1.6


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.6


2.0


2.5


3.5


4.7


5.7


4.0


1.2


2.4


5.1


5.5


4.1


2.9


2.0


1.5


1.2


1.2


1.4


1.9


2.3


2.7


2.8


2.7


1.6


0.7


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.3


2.7


3.3


3.7


2.5


0.6


3.2


4.2


3.2


2.3


1.8


1.5


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.3


1.4


1.6


1.9


2.5


3.5


4.7


5.7


3.8


1.0


2.2


4.9


5.5


4.1


2.9


2.1


1.5


1.2


1.2


1.4


1.8


2.2


2.6


2.8


2.8


1.7


0.9


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.3


2.9


3.7


4.7


3.5


0.5


0.9


2.1


2.4


2.2


1.9


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.6


2.0


2.5


3.5


4.9


6.1


6.4


4.2


4.8


6.7


5.7


4.3


3.0


2.1


1.6


1.3


1.2


1.3


1.8


2.3


2.7


3.0


2.9


2.1


1.0


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.4


1.3


2.9


3.9


5.1


5.7


0.5


0.7


1.7


2.2


2.2


1.9


1.7


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.9


2.4


3.1


4.1


5.4


6.0


5.6


5.9


5.9


4.9


3.6


2.7


2.0


1.6


1.3


1.1


1.3


1.7


2.4


2.9


3.5


3.5


2.7


1.5


0.7


0.7


0.5


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.3


2.9


3.9


5.1


5.2


0.5


1.9


3.1


2.9


2.3


1.9


1.7


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.5


3.2


4.1


4.8


4.5


4.7


4.6


3.7


2.9


2.2


1.8


1.5


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.6


2.2


2.8


3.4


3.7


3.8


1.8


0.9


0.8


0.6


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.4


1.3


2.9


3.7


4.8


3.2


0.9


5.6


5.8


3.6


2.3


1.8


1.6


1.6


1.6


1.8


1.9


1.9


1.9


1.9


1.9


1.8


1.7


1.6


1.5


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.5


3.1


3.4


3.4


3.4


3.4


2.9


2.3


1.9


1.6


1.4


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.5


2.1


2.7


3.2


3.7


5.0


3.0


1.0


0.8


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.5


1.5


2.8


3.6


4.1


2.4


1.2


9.0


7.0


3.8


2.3


1.8


1.6


1.7


1.8


2.0


2.3


2.4


2.5


2.5


2.4


2.2


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.4


2.5


2.5


2.6


2.6


2.4


2.0


1.7


1.5


1.3


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.4


1.9


2.6


3.0


3.7


4.2


2.5


1.0


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.6


1.5


2.6


3.8


4.8


5.0


4.1


5.0


6.2


5.2


4.3


3.4


2.9


2.5


2.7


3.2


3.4


4.5


6.3


6.2


4.4


3.3


2.8


2.0


1.3


0.9


0.8


1.1


1.7


2.6


3.6


4.6


6.1


8.4


7.3


5.9


3.6


2.8


2.6


8.2


6.9


3.9


2.4


1.9


1.8


1.8


2.0


2.4


2.9


3.3


3.5


3.4


3.3


2.8


2.3


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.8


1.9


2.0


2.0


2.1


2.1


2.1


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.4


1.3


1.2


1.2


1.4


1.8


2.6


2.9


3.7


3.3


2.1


0.9


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.6


1.2


2.0


3.0


4.0


4.1


4.4


4.8


4.7


4.8


4.5


3.3


2.9


2.6


2.7


3.1


3.9


4.8


5.0


4.9


4.7


3.7


2.7


2.0


1.3


1.0


0.9


1.2


1.8


2.7


3.5


5.4


5.9


6.3


6.4


5.8


3.6


2.8


2.2


4.0


4.6


3.5


2.5


2.1


2.0


2.1


2.4


2.9


3.7


4.7


5.0


4.9


4.5


3.5


2.7


2.3


1.9


1.7


1.5


1.5


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.6


1.7


1.7


1.8


1.9


2.0


2.0


1.8


1.7


1.6


1.5


1.4


1.3


1.4


1.8


2.5


2.8


3.6


2.8


1.9


0.8


0.6


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.5


0.9


1.5


2.1


2.8


3.2


3.3


3.3


3.4


3.4


3.5


2.9


2.3


2.1


2.2


2.7


3.3


3.6


3.5


3.4


3.5


3.1


2.3


1.6


1.2


0.9


0.9


1.1


1.5


2.2


3.1


3.9


4.2


4.3


4.3


4.0


3.1


2.4


1.9


1.9


2.5


2.5


2.2


2.1


2.2


2.5


3.0


3.7


4.5


5.6


6.4


6.3


5.3


4.1


3.5


2.8


2.2


1.8


1.6


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.7


1.9


2.2


2.2


2.1


2.0


2.0


1.9


1.6


1.4


1.5


1.8


2.3


2.6


2.7


2.6


2.1


0.8


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.4


0.6


1.0


1.3


1.7


2.0


1.9


1.9


1.9


1.9


2.0


1.9


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.8


2.2


2.2


2.2


2.1


2.1


2.0


1.6


1.1


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.9


1.1


1.5


2.1


2.6


2.6


2.7


2.6


2.5


2.3


1.8


1.6


1.4


1.6


1.7


1.8


2.0


2.2


2.7


3.6


4.8


5.6


5.5


5.4


5.3


5.6


5.3


4.4


3.3


2.4


1.9


1.6


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.4


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.5


2.8


2.8


2.7


2.6


2.4


2.0


1.7


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.3


2.5


2.5


2.0


0.8


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.4


0.6


0.7


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.8


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.8


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.1


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.4


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.2


1.4


1.5


1.8


2.1


2.8


3.8


5.4


6.6


4.5


1.4


1.5


5.3


6.2


4.9


3.4


2.5


1.9


1.6


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.5


1.7


2.0


2.5


3.1


3.7


3.8


3.6


3.7


3.3


2.6


2.1


1.9


1.9


2.0


2.2


2.3


2.3


2.0


0.8


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.7


0.9


1.1


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.4


1.7


2.1


2.8


3.9


5.5


6.7


4.6


1.2


1.4


5.4


6.3


5.0


3.4


2.5


1.9


1.6


1.4


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.6


1.9


2.4


3.0


4.0


5.0


5.0


4.9


5.1


4.4


3.4


2.6


2.2


2.0


2.0


2.1


2.3


2.3


2.1


1.0


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.5


0.8


1.1


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.3


1.4


1.7


2.1


2.7


3.7


5.0


5.9


5.4


4.7


4.6


5.6


5.6


4.6


3.3


2.4


1.9


1.6


1.4


1.3


1.2


1.3


1.4


1.6


2.1


2.8


3.8


5.0


6.1


5.9


5.3


6.3


5.7


4.4


3.2


2.5


2.1


2.0


2.1


2.4


2.5


2.4


1.4


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.5


0.9


1.5


1.8


1.6


1.5


1.5


1.6


1.8


2.1


2.6


3.2


4.1


4.9


6.0


6.8


6.6


5.6


4.5


3.7


2.9


2.3


1.9


1.6


1.4


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.3


1.6


2.1


2.9


4.1


5.4


6.2


4.2


2.4


5.2


6.1


4.8


3.5


2.5


2.1


2.0


2.2


2.5


2.6


2.6


1.9


0.7


0.5


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.4


1.1


2.1


2.6


2.2


2.0


1.8


1.8


1.9


2.0


2.3


2.7


3.3


4.1


5.2


5.6


5.5


4.8


3.7


2.9


2.4


2.0


1.7


1.5


1.3


1.2


1.1


1.2


1.3


1.6


2.0


2.8


3.8


5.1


4.7


1.0


0.7


2.9


5.2


4.6


3.3


2.4


2.0


2.0


2.3


2.7


3.1


3.2


2.6


1.3


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.3


1.2


3.0


4.2


3.5


2.8


2.4


2.2


2.0


2.0


2.1


2.3


2.8


3.4


3.9


4.1


4.0


3.7


3.1


2.5


2.1


1.8


1.6


1.4


1.3


1.2


1.1


1.1


1.3


1.5


2.0


2.8


4.0


5.3


5.7


3.7


1.8


4.7


6.0


4.7


3.4


2.4


1.9


1.9


2.3


2.9


3.0


3.6


3.3


1.9


0.9


0.7


0.6


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.3


0.8


3.6


6.1


5.4


4.3


3.3


2.6


2.2


2.0


1.9


2.1


2.5


2.8


3.0


3.1


3.1


3.0


2.6


2.3


2.0


1.8


1.6


1.4


1.2


1.1


1.0


1.1


1.2


1.5


1.9


2.7


3.7


5.0


6.2


5.7


4.9


6.2


5.8


4.5


3.2


2.3


1.7


1.7


2.0


2.6


2.9


3.6


4.3


3.7


1.3


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.4


1.8


5.4


6.7


5.1


3.5


2.8


2.3


2.0


2.0


2.2


2.3


2.4


2.3


2.4


2.6


2.7


2.5


2.3


2.1


2.0


1.7


1.4


1.1


1.0


0.9


1.0


1.1


1.4


1.7


2.2


2.9


4.0


5.0


5.1


4.9


5.2


4.6


3.5


2.5


1.9


1.5


1.5


1.8


2.4


2.8


3.6


4.0


3.6


1.6


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.4


1.3


3.0


3.0


2.6


2.6


2.7


2.6


2.5


2.6


2.4


2.1


1.9


2.0


2.4


2.9


2.9


2.9


2.7


2.5


1.9


1.3


1.0


0.9


0.8


0.9


1.0


1.1


1.4


1.7


2.2


2.9


3.6


3.7


3.5


3.7


3.3


2.5


1.9


1.5


1.2


1.2


1.6


2.2


2.6


3.3


3.4


2.8


1.4


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.4


0.5


0.8


1.5


2.7


3.9


4.1


4.0


3.5


2.5


1.7


1.4


1.6


2.3


3.5


4.3


4.4


4.2


3.2


2.0


1.2


0.8


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.8


0.9


1.1


1.4


1.7


2.1


2.5


2.5


2.5


2.5


2.3


1.9


1.5


1.2


1.0


1.0


1.3


1.9


2.5


2.8


3.3


2.6


1.1


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.3


0.4


1.0


2.6


5.2


6.3


6.0


4.0


2.1


1.2


0.8


1.0


1.8


3.6


6.0


6.6


5.9


3.4


1.6


0.9


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.8


0.9


1.1


1.3


1.6


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.7


1.4


1.2


0.9


0.8


0.8


1.1


1.6


2.2


2.4


2.4


2.2


1.1


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.3


0.4


1.2


3.3


4.9


4.6


2.6


1.1


0.6


0.5


0.6


0.8


2.1


4.2


5.2


4.1


2.0


0.7


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.9


1.0


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.2


1.1


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.7


0.9


1.3


1.7


1.9


1.9


1.8


1.2


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.9


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.6


0.7


1.0


1.2


1.4


1.5


1.4


1.0


0.4


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.0


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.8


0.7


0.6


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.0


1.1


1.0


0.8


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.2


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.6


0.7


0.8


1.0


1.1


1.1


1.1


1.1


1.1


1.0


0.8


0.7


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.6


0.6


0.7


0.7


0.7


0.6


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.6


0.7


0.9


1.3


1.7


1.9


1.8


1.9


1.8


1.4


1.0


0.7


0.6


0.4


0.4


0.4


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.7


1.0


1.6


2.3


2.8


2.8


2.8


2.4


1.8


1.2


0.8


0.5


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.4


0.5


0.8


1.3


2.1


2.3


2.4


2.4


2.1


1.5


0.9


0.6


0.4


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.3


0.3


0.4


0.6


1.1


1.4


1.6


1.4


0.9


0.7


0.5


0.3


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.2


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.1


OA


OA


OA


OA


OA


OA


OA


OA


OA2


OA2


OA2


OA2


OA2


OA2


OA2


OA2


OA2


OA2


OD
OD


OD
OD


OD
OD


OD
OD


OD


ODOD


OD OD


ODOD


OD


OCOCOC OC OC


OB


OA3


OD


OC


OC


OB


OB


OB


OB OB OB


OB


OB


OB


PROJECT # DATE:


DRAWN  BY:


CHECKED BY:


DESIGNED  BY: REVISIONS:


SHEET NO.


SHEET TITLE:


ARCHITECT
WINTER DESIGN, INC.
1840 S. WALNUT AVE
FREEPORT, IL 61032


SITE PLAN 
REVIEW


APPLIES TO "A, G," SERIES SHEETS ONLY


1840 S. WALNUT AVE. 
FREEPORT, IL 61032


© 2020 WINTER CONSTRUCTION INC. THESE DRAWINGS ARE 
THE PROPERTY OF WINTER CONSTRUCTION INC. AND ARE 
NOT TO BE REPRODUCED IN ANY MANNER WITHOUT THE 
EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF WINTER CONSTRUCTION INC.


DESIGN/BUILDER
WINTER CONSTRUCTION INC.
1840 S. WALNUT AVE
FREEPORT, IL 61032


NOT FOR
CONSTRUCTION


STRUCTURAL ENGINEER
IMEG
4700 KENNEDY DRIVE
EAST MOLINE, IL 61244


SL-1


SITE LIGHTING


---


ZI
N


KP
O


W
ER


  -
St


ou
gh


to
n


5.26.20


ASW


SAW


SAW


ST
O


U
G


H
TO


N
, W


I


1" = 60'-0"1 SITE LIGHTING PHOTOMETRIC
NORTH


OA, OA2, 
OA3, OB


OC, OD


No. Date







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest St., Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 


 
 


May 27, 2020 


Winter Design Inc. 
Scott Winter 
1840 South Walnut Avenue 
Freeport, IL  61032-9523 
 


Dear Mr. Winter: 


I have completed a review of the proposed site plan to construct a commercial building at 2443 
County Highway A, Stoughton, WI. 53589.  Plans received 5.26.20.  The intent is to facilitate 
the construction of a hot dip galvanizing plant on this site.  The conditional uses have already 
been approved by the Stoughton Common Council, however, the proposed expansion of the 
accessory building from 5,000 square feet to 7,800 square feet will require another conditional 
use process.  The site and building plans are planned to be reviewed by the Stoughton Plan 
Commission on June 8, 2020.  A conditional use public hearing will be planned for the July 
13th Plan Commission Meeting.  We anticipate Common Council review/approval on July 
28th. 


1. The property at 2443 County Highway A is zoned HI – Heavy Industrial.   
 


2. The approved conditional uses are as follows: 
• A heavy industrial use as follows: 


Section 78-105 (5)(c)2b  Principal land uses permitted as conditional use: (per 
subsection 78-202(2)) 


 
Heavy industrial (per subsection 78-206(7)(b)) 


 
Description: Heavy industrial land uses are industrial facilities which do not comply 
with one or more of the following criteria: 1) are conducted entirely within an 
enclosed building; 2) are not potentially associated with nuisances such as odor, 
noise, heat, vibration, and radiation which are detectable at the property line; and 3) 
do not pose a significant safety hazard (such as danger of explosion). More 
specifically, heavy industrial land uses are industrial land uses which may be wholly 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-202REALUS

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-206DELAUSDERE





or partially located outside of an enclosed building; may have the potential to create 
certain nuisances which are detectable at the property line; and may involve materials 
which pose a significant safety hazard. However, in no instance shall a heavy 
industrial land use exceed the performance standards listed in article VII. Examples of 
heavy industrial land uses include meat product producers; alcoholic beverage 
producers; paper, pulp or paperboard producers; chemical and allied product 
producers (except drug producers) including poison or fertilizer producers; petroleum 
and coal product producers; asphalt, concrete or cement producers; tanneries; stone, 
clay or glass product producers; primary metal producers; heavy machinery 
producers; electrical distribution equipment producers; electrical industrial apparatus 
producers; transportation vehicle producers; commercial sanitary sewage treatment 
plants; railroad switching yards; and recycling facilities not involving the on-site 
storage of salvage materials.  


• An accessory structure of up to 5,000 square feet in area as follows: 
78-206 (8)(c) Detached residential garage, carport, utility shed; gazebo and similar 
accessory structures.  


Description: A detached private residential garage or carport is a structure used 
primarily to shelter parked passenger vehicles. A utility shed is a structure used 
primarily to store residential maintenance equipment of the subject property. A 
gazebo is a small roofed structure that is used for outdoor entertaining, relaxing and 
dining. A greenhouse shall be considered an accessory structure. See section 78-408 
for requirements applicable to legal, nonconforming garages. Garages, carports, 
utility sheds; gazebos and similar structures in excess of 900 square feet of gross floor 
area are not permitted in residential districts except as conditional uses in the MR-10, 
MR-24, RH and ER-1 Districts (Also see subsection 78-206(8)).  


1. Regulations:  
a. One detached residential garage, and two other accessory structures, shall be 


permitted by right.  
b. A conditional use permit is required for:  


A. A combination of accessory structures exceeding a total of 1,000 square 
feet; or  


B. More than three accessory structures. 
• An increase to the maximum building height from 45 feet to 62 feet as follows: 


78-105(5)(c)8bM: Heavy Industrial - Maximum building height: 45 feet (or more 
with conditional use permit). 


• An increase to the maximum 10-foot smokestack height above the roof to 15 
feet as follows: 



https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIVBURE_S78-408NOSTRE

https://library.municode.com/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIILAUSRE_S78-206DELAUSDERE





78-406(c): The following require a conditional use permit to exceed ten feet in 
height: chimneys, smokestacks, cooling towers, and elevator penthouses.  
 


4. The Comprehensive Plan, planned land use map designates this property as Heavy Industrial.  
This request is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 


 


5. Site plan review and approval procedural requirements per zoning section 78-908 are as 
follows: 


A. Written description of the intended use per zoning section 78-908(3) (a) 1-12. 
Provided 


B. Property site drawing per section 78-908(3) (c) 1-17. Provided 
C. A detailed landscaping plan of the subject property showing location of all required 


bufferyard and landscaping areas in complete compliance with the requirements of 
Article VI.  Provided 


D. A grading and erosion control plan showing existing and proposed grades. Provided  
E. Elevation drawings of proposed buildings.  Provided 
F. A detailed photometric plan with an illumination limit of 0.5 foot-candles at the 


property line.  The plan must meet the requirements of section 78-707(4) (b).  
Provided 


G. A development impact study is required for all forms of development that require site 
plan approval.  Historically only required for large developments. 


H. A detailed site analysis shall be required for any lot containing a protected natural 
resource covered in Article V, as determined by city staff.  These protected areas 
include floodplains, shoreland-wetlands, lakeshores, woodlands, and steep slopes.  
The analysis must be submitted in accordance with section 78-908((3) (j) 1-4.  N/A 


I. Review by the plan commission in accordance with section 78-908(4) (a)-(b).  
1. The plan commission, in its consideration of the submitted complete application, 


shall take into account the basic intent of the zoning ordinance to ensure 
attractive, efficient, and appropriate development of land in the community, and 
to ensure particularly that every reasonable step has been taken to avoid 
depreciating effects on surrounding property and the natural environment. The 
plan commission, in reviewing the application may require such additional 
measures and/or modifications, as it deems necessary to accomplish this 
objective. If such additional measures and/or modifications are required, the plan 
commission may withhold approval of the site plan until revisions depicting such 
additional measures and/or modifications are submitted to the satisfaction of the 
plan commission, or may approve the application subject to the provision of a 
revised application reflecting the direction of the plan commission to the 
satisfaction of the zoning administrator. Such amended plans and conditions 
applicable to the proposed use shall be made a part of the official record, and 
development activity on the subject property may not proceed until the revised 







application has been approved by one of the two above procedures as directed by 
the plan commission.  To be determined by the Planning Commission. 


2. In reviewing said application, the plan commission may make findings on each of 
the following criteria to determine whether the submitted site plan shall be 
approved, approved with modification, or denied:  
a. All standards of the zoning ordinance and other applicable city, state and 


federal regulations are met.  
  b. The public health and safety is not endangered. 
  c. Adequate public facilities and utilities are provided. 


d. Adequate control of stormwater and erosion are provided and the 
disruption of existing topography, drainage patterns, and vegetative cover 
is maintained insofar as is practical.  


  e. Appropriate traffic control and parking are provided. 
  f. Appropriate landscaping and open space areas are provided. 


g. The appearance of structures maintains a consistency of design, materials, 
colors, and arrangement with nearby properties of similar use, which 
comply with the general architectural guidelines provided in subsections a. 
through e. below:  
i. Exterior construction materials shall be consistent with section 78-


716.   
   ii. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be of such   
    unorthodox or abnormal character in relation to its surroundings as 
    to be unsightly or offensive to generally accepted taste and   
    community standards.  
   iii. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be so identical  
    with nearby buildings so as to create excessive monotony or  
    drabness. A minimum of five basic home styles shall be provided  
    in each residential subdivision.  
   iv. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be constructed or  
    faced with an exterior material which is aesthetically incompatible  
    with other nearby buildings or which presents an unattractive  
    appearance to the public and from surrounding properties.  
   v. Exterior building, sign, and lighting design or appearance shall not  
    be sited on the property in a manner which would unnecessarily  
    destroy or substantially damage the natural beauty of the area.  


To be determined by the Plan Commission.  The building 
exterior shall employ high quality, decorative construction 
materials. 


J. Modification of approved site plan is a violation of chapter 78.  An approved site plan 
shall be revised and approved via the procedures of sections 78-908(2) & (4) prior to 
initiation.  







K. Sunset clause.  All buildings on an approved site plan not fully developed within two 
years of final approval shall expire.  The plan commission may extend this period, as 
requested by the applicant, through site review process. 
 


6. The parking requirement for a Heavy Industrial use is one space per each employee on 
largest work shift.  45 employees will require 45 parking stalls.  63 stalls are provided.  
We believe 63 stalls are justified to accommodate shift changes. 
 


7. At this time, there are no plans to urbanize the right-of-way area along County Highway A so 
we’ll recommend no curb/gutter/sidewalk requirements at this time. 
 


8. The building and site meets the setback, height and lot size requirements of the Heavy 
Industrial district.  The site will need to be staked prior to pouring foundations to confirm 
setbacks are being met.  Footings need to be inspected prior to pouring concrete.  Once 
constructed, an as-built survey will need to be provided to the Department of Planning & 
Development for confirmation of compliance with the approved site plan. 
 
 


9. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather 
surface and completed prior to building occupancy.  All parking spaces shall be clearly 
marked to indicate required spaces.  This is expected.   
 


10. Accessible parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as 
specified by state and federal regulations.  This is expected. 
 


11. Except for accessible parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a 
minimum width of 9 feet.  The plan meets this requirement. 


 
12. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile 


parking space requirement.  Five bicycle parking spaces are required and are delineated 
on the plan. 
 


13. The parking aisle width for 90 degree parking shall be a minimum of 24 feet.  The plan 
meets this requirement. 
 


14. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 15%.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 


15. The maximum floor area ratio is 1.  This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all 
buildings by the gross site area.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 


16. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-
residential uses, as measured at the right-of-way line.  Access drives may be flared between 
the right-of-way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet and may be 
exceeded with explicit Plan Commission approval.    We’ll need details so the Plan 
Commission can approve of a wider access. 
 







17. The minimum paved surface setback from a side lot line is 5 feet while the minimum is 10 
feet from a right-of-way line.  The plan meets this requirement. 
 


18. Off-street loading stall requirements per section 78-705.  There is ample room to meet the 
loading requirements.     


 
19. Except for exposed foundations not to exceed three feet in height from adjacent grade, non-


single family development shall employ only high-quality, decorative exterior construction 
materials on the visible exterior of the following portions of all structures: 


• Any portion of the structure within 50 feet of an adjacent residentially zoned 
property; N/A 


• Any portion of the structure located within 50 feet of a public right-of-way; N/A 
• Any other portion of the structure visible from a public street…  The following 


exterior construction materials shall not be considered “high quality, decorative”: 
non-decorative concrete or cinder block, non-decorative concrete foundation walls or 
panels, non-decorative plywood, asphaltic siding, or other materials using exposed 
fastener systems or non-decorative surfaces as determined by the Planning 
Commission.  However, such materials may be allowed by the Plan Commission as 
decorative elements.  Details are provided.   


 
20. Architectural and design elements shall be compatible with the surrounding area and 


community standards and shall minimize user specific elements as determined by the plan 
commission.  Metal panels with exposed exterior fasteners of the same color may be used on 
a maximum of 50 percent of the front side of the building.  This material is not allowed 
within 50 feet of any customer or visitor entrance.   Expected. 
 


21. A landscaping plan, which meets the requirements of Article VI of the zoning code, is 
required.  The landscaping requirements are as follows: 


• Building foundations: 20 points of landscaping is required per 100 feet of foundation 
perimeter.  1820 feet of foundation requires 364 points of landscaping which are 
required to be planted within 10 feet of the building foundations.  Climax and tall 
trees cannot be used to meet this requirement.   


• Street frontages:  20 points of landscaping is required per 100 feet of frontage.  100 
feet of frontage requires 20 points of landscaping.  All landscaping shall be within 10 
feet of the public right-of-way.  Shrubs shall not be used to meet this requirement.  A 
minimum of 50% of the points shall be used for climax or tall trees and a minimum of 
30% of all points shall be devoted to medium trees.   


• Paved areas: 40 points of landscaping is required per 10,000 square feet of paved 
area.  25,675 square feet of paved area requires 103 points of landscaping.  Plants 
used to fulfill this requirement shall visually screen parking, and circulation areas 
from public streets.  A minimum of 360 square feet of landscaped area shall be 
provided and located within 10 feet of the paved area for every 100 paved area points.  
Said area does not have to be provided in one contiguous area.  


• Developed lots:  5 points of landscaping is required for every 1,000 square feet of 
gross floor area.  117,000 square feet will require 585 points of landscaping.   


We believe the proposed landscaping plan meets the intent of the regulations. 







 
22. Bufferyards landscaping is required where two different zoning classifications abut one 


another.  The adjacent property to the east is zoned institutional which does not require 
a bufferyard.   
     


23. Exterior lighting standards. 
All off-street parking areas shall be lit to ensure safe and efficient use.  An illumination level 
of between 0.4 and 1.0 footcandles is recommended.  The maximum lighting as measured at 
the property line is 0.5 footcandles.  The maximum average on-site lighting shall be 2.4 
footcandles.  The minimum lighting standard for parking areas used after sunset shall be 0.2 
foot-candles.  The lighting element shall not be visible from the residentially zoned 
properties.  The maximum fixture height is 25 feet. The lighting shall be down facing so as 
not to be visible from residential properties.   
 


24. All exterior trash storage areas shall be located within a gated enclosure and completely 
screen the view a said trash.  The exterior of said enclosure shall be constructed of some or 
all of the materials used on the main building.  Shown on architectural plans.   
 


25. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fees are required.  Dane 
County Land and Water Resources, the City’s consultant, will review the plan and perform 
inspections.  The plan, application and fees shall be submitted to the Department of 
Planning & Development office at Stoughton City Hall. 
 


26. Proposed utilities-including electrical transformers and HVAC locations shall be shown on 
the utility plan.  Contact Jill Weiss, Stoughton Utilities at 608-873-3379 for electric, 
water and wastewater services.  
 


27. Any work in the right-of-way will likely require a work in the right-of-way permit through 
the Dane County Highway Department and possibly a permit through the City Public Works 
Department.  Contact Public Works Director Brett Hebert at 608-873-6303 or 
bhebert@ci.stoughton.wi.us  to verify requirements.   


 
28. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and permit prior to installation.  Signage 


must meet the zoning code requirements and a permit is required for prior to 
installation.   


 
29. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a building 


permit but are not necessary to begin the City review process.   
 
 


 


 


 



mailto:bhebert@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


     Sincerely, 


     City of Stoughton 


    Michael P. Stacey 


    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
s:\planning\property log folder\2443 county highway a\zincpower\submittals 5.26.20\zink power site plan review 5.27.20.docx 
   





		A4-0 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS.PDF

		Sheets

		A4.0 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS





		SL-1 - SITE LIGHTING.PDF

		Sheets

		A4.0 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

		SL-1 - SITE LIGHTING





		ZinkPower Plan Commission Set.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		T0.01 Title Sheet

		C1.10 Site location & General Notes

		C1.11 Site Plan - Overall

		C1.12 Site Plan - North

		C1.13 Site Plan - South

		C1.20 Grading Plan - North

		C1.21 Grading Plan - South

		C1.30 Erosion Control

		C1.40 Demo Plan

		C1.50 Existing Survey

		C5.00 Construction Details

		101 - Silt Fence(2)

		102 - Tracking Pad(2)

		103 - Inlet Protection(2)

		105 - Rip Rap at Endwall(2)

		203 - Catch Basin(2)

		209 - Storm Cleanout(2)

		226 - RCP Flared End Section(2)

		301 - Sanitary Manhole(2)

		401 - Typical Hydrant(2)

		504 - Vertical Face Curb - 18 in Wide(2)

		508 - Depressed Curb - 18 in Wide(2)

		523 - Concrete Pavement(2)

		524 - Concrete Sidewalk(2)

		611 - Handicap Ramp - Type 4(2)

		605 - Handicap Sign - Wall Mounted(2)

		610 - Truncated Domes(2)

		526 - Precast Wheel Stop(2)

		604 - Handicap Sign(2)

		210 - Downspout Connection(2)

		251 - Basin Outlet with Structure(2)

		253 - Outlet Control Structure(2)

		603 - Handicap Ramp - Type 3(2)

		519 - Heavy Duty Pavement(2)

		Sampling Manhole(2)

		WIDOT GUARDRAIL(2)



		C5.10 Construction Details - C5.10

		101 - Silt Fence(2)

		102 - Tracking Pad(2)

		103 - Inlet Protection(2)

		105 - Rip Rap at Endwall(2)

		203 - Catch Basin(2)

		209 - Storm Cleanout(2)

		226 - RCP Flared End Section(2)

		301 - Sanitary Manhole(2)

		401 - Typical Hydrant(2)

		504 - Vertical Face Curb - 18 in Wide(2)

		508 - Depressed Curb - 18 in Wide(2)

		523 - Concrete Pavement(2)

		524 - Concrete Sidewalk(2)

		611 - Handicap Ramp - Type 4(2)

		605 - Handicap Sign - Wall Mounted(2)

		610 - Truncated Domes(2)

		526 - Precast Wheel Stop(2)

		604 - Handicap Sign(2)

		210 - Downspout Connection(2)

		251 - Basin Outlet with Structure(2)

		253 - Outlet Control Structure(2)

		603 - Handicap Ramp - Type 3(2)

		519 - Heavy Duty Pavement(2)

		Sampling Manhole(2)

		WIDOT GUARDRAIL(2)







		ZinkPower Site Plan.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		T0.01 Title Sheet

		C1.10 Site location & General Notes

		C1.11 Site Plan - Overall

		C1.12 Site Plan - North

		C1.13 Site Plan - South

		C1.20 Grading Plan - North

		C1.21 Grading Plan - South

		C1.30 Erosion Control

		C1.40 Demo Plan

		C1.50 Existing Survey

		C5.00 Construction Details

		101 - Silt Fence(2)

		102 - Tracking Pad(2)

		103 - Inlet Protection(2)

		105 - Rip Rap at Endwall(2)

		203 - Catch Basin(2)

		209 - Storm Cleanout(2)

		226 - RCP Flared End Section(2)

		301 - Sanitary Manhole(2)

		401 - Typical Hydrant(2)

		504 - Vertical Face Curb - 18 in Wide(2)

		508 - Depressed Curb - 18 in Wide(2)

		523 - Concrete Pavement(2)

		524 - Concrete Sidewalk(2)

		611 - Handicap Ramp - Type 4(2)

		605 - Handicap Sign - Wall Mounted(2)

		610 - Truncated Domes(2)

		526 - Precast Wheel Stop(2)

		604 - Handicap Sign(2)

		210 - Downspout Connection(2)

		251 - Basin Outlet with Structure(2)

		253 - Outlet Control Structure(2)

		603 - Handicap Ramp - Type 3(2)

		519 - Heavy Duty Pavement(2)

		Sampling Manhole(2)

		WIDOT GUARDRAIL(2)



		C5.10 Construction Details - C5.10

		101 - Silt Fence(2)

		102 - Tracking Pad(2)

		103 - Inlet Protection(2)

		105 - Rip Rap at Endwall(2)

		203 - Catch Basin(2)

		209 - Storm Cleanout(2)

		226 - RCP Flared End Section(2)

		301 - Sanitary Manhole(2)

		401 - Typical Hydrant(2)

		504 - Vertical Face Curb - 18 in Wide(2)

		508 - Depressed Curb - 18 in Wide(2)

		523 - Concrete Pavement(2)

		524 - Concrete Sidewalk(2)

		611 - Handicap Ramp - Type 4(2)

		605 - Handicap Sign - Wall Mounted(2)

		610 - Truncated Domes(2)

		526 - Precast Wheel Stop(2)

		604 - Handicap Sign(2)

		210 - Downspout Connection(2)

		251 - Basin Outlet with Structure(2)

		253 - Outlet Control Structure(2)

		603 - Handicap Ramp - Type 3(2)

		519 - Heavy Duty Pavement(2)

		Sampling Manhole(2)

		WIDOT GUARDRAIL(2)













